
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

October 6, 2020 6:00 PM

Due to COVID-19, there will be NO physical meeting location per WA Proclamation 20-28. 
Meeting may be viewed live via YouTube. 

To listen to the live meeting, please call (623) 404-9000, Meeting ID: 149 766 1467 
(NOTE: Listen to audio only; No Comments. For Comments, follow directions below)

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Pastor Kevin Scott, Seventh Day Adventist Church
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Severns
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

b. Honors & Recognitions
i. Fire Department Employee Recognition - Chief Ray Merrill (30 years)

c. Community Presentations
i. Greater Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce Presentation

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent Agenda. Public
comment may be submitted electronically to the City Clerk at jlindsey@oakharbor.org or by calling 360-279-4539 (after 5
p.m. on the Friday preceding the meeting and prior to the agenda item). To ensure comments are recorded properly, state
your name clearly when leaving a message.  Please limit comments to three (3) minutes.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with one motion unless
separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the Mayor to implement each item in
accordance with staff recommendations.

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 1



Consent Items

a. Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers
b. Minutes of Regular Council Meeting of September 15, 2020 and Council Workshop of September 23, 2020
c. Bid Award-Odor Control Unit
d. Historic Preservation Commission Appointment of Lorraine Johnson-Coleman
e. Interlocal Agreement-NPP GOV
f. Interlocal Agreement-TIPS purchasing cooperative
g. Interlocal Agreement with Oak Harbor School District - School Resource Officer for 2020-2021 School Year
h. Purchase Authorization-Automated Solid Waste Replacements
i. Purchase Authorization-Camera Van Equipment
j. Purchase Authorization-Dump Truck Replacement
k. Purchase Authorization-Hybrid Patrol SUV 
l. Resolution 20-24: Island County Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan
m. Waterfront Pedestrian Improvements - Final Contract Voucher Certificate

5. MAYOR, COUNCIL & STAFF COMMENTS
a. Mayor
b. Councilmembers
c. City Administrator

 6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
 To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please note the instructions for submitting public comment earlier

in this agenda. Please state your name clearly when leaving a message. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes.
a. None

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 20-25: 2021-2022 Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) Contingent for Non-Represented Employees

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Finance Director Employment Contract
b. Gray and Osborne, Inc. - Professional Service Agreement - Water System Plan Limited Update
c. Interlocal Agreement with South Correctional Entity (SCORE) - Inmate Housing
d. Interagency Agreement with the Washington State Department of Commerce, CARES Act Funds for Local

Governments, Amendment 1: Date Extension and Additional Funds
e. Purchase Authorization-Aries Modular Office Space with CARES Act Funds
f. Agreement with Island County, for Coronavirus Relief Fund Grant (CARES), Amendment 1: Date Extension

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. 2021 LTAC 2% Grant Program Referral to Council
b. Annual Review of the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Membership

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 2



11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. For the purpose of discussing a Real Estate matter. Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110 (1) (ii) (b) (c) those factors that bear

upon price include property location, condition, possible uses, and economic development.
b. Executive Session: RCW 42.30.110(b) discussion of real estate acquisition
c. Property Acquisition - Possible Council Action 

ADJOURN

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 3



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4. a.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Approval of Payroll and

Accounts Payable Vouchers

FROM: Mike Bailey, Interim Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers listed in the
attachments and Check Numbers listed in the October 6, 2020 Regular Agenda.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 4



Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment.
The documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets
will be provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council Signatures. 

August 15, 2020

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

Voucher Numbers 184416-184424 in the amount of $7,261.10

August 30, 2020 Payroll:

Direct Deposit # 54276-54419  $335,026.85

EFT #  1268-1271  $133,075.74

Checks # 101533-101548  $297,258.85

Direct Deposit  # 54420-54446  $36,380.15

EFT # 1272-1273  $10,495.02

Checks # 101549-101559  $99,212.99

August 30, 2020

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

Voucher Numbers 184410-184611 in the amount of $952,967.48

AP Utility Refunds Numbers 184612-184621 in the amount of $1,433.39

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Accounts Payable Voucher List 22e
2. Accounts Payable Voucher List 09b
3. Accounts Payable Voucher LIst 09ub

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 5

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601662913x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601662844x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601662802x_at.pdf


09/15/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 4:15:28PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184416 9/15/2020 0004903  US BANK 4485591002386419 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  4,762.70

Total :  4,762.70

 184417 9/15/2020 0004903  US BANK 4485591002298200 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  1,337.96

Total :  1,337.96

 184418 9/15/2020 0004903  US BANK 4485591002299422 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  293.49

Total :  293.49

 184419 9/15/2020 0004903  US BANK 4485590005678350 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  248.74

Total :  248.74

 184420 9/15/2020 0004903  US BANK 4485591000646855 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  203.77

Total :  203.77

 184421 9/15/2020 0004903  US BANK 4485591002299083 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  125.00

Total :  125.00

 184422 9/15/2020 0004903  US BANK 4485590004137259 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  110.00

Total :  110.00

 184423 9/15/2020 0004903  US BANK 4485590004137119 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  95.99

Total :  95.99

 184424 9/15/2020 0004903  US BANK 4485590005638313 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  83.45

Total :  83.45

Bank total :  7,261.10 9 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 7,261.10Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 9

1Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 6



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184410 9/10/2020 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 081020 CARES GRANT  10,000.00

Total :  10,000.00

 184411 9/10/2020 0010277  HAI NAIL SPA 081320 CARES GRANT  1,605.96

Total :  1,605.96

 184412 9/10/2020 0010276  PEDIATRIC ASSOC OF WHIDBEY IS 080320 CARES GRANT  3,016.19

Total :  3,016.19

 184413 9/10/2020 0003425  OAK HARBOR CINEMAS, LLC 080420 CARES GRANT  10,000.00

Total :  10,000.00

 184414 9/10/2020 0010275  OAK HARBOR PLAYTOWN, LLC 080620 CARES GRANT  8,279.90

Total :  8,279.90

 184415 9/11/2020 0000967  ECOLOGY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 05528 COASTAL TRAINING PROGRAM EVENT REGISTRAT 80.00

Total :  80.00

 184425 9/17/2020 0004185  WHIDBEY SEATAC SHUTTLE 090920 CARES GRANT  10,000.00

Total :  10,000.00

 184426 9/17/2020 0010282  WHIDBEY WILD BIRD 081420 CARES GRANT  7,126.34

Total :  7,126.34

 184427 9/17/2020 0010281  FANTASIA DANCE & MOTION APPARE 081020 CARES GRANT  3,750.00

Total :  3,750.00

 184428 9/17/2020 0010277  HAI NAIL SPA 091420 CARES GRANT  1,600.00

Total :  1,600.00

 184429 9/17/2020 0010280  CHANCES FOR DESSERT, LLC 082420 CARES GRANT  1,414.39

Total :  1,414.39

 184430 9/17/2020 0010279  POPSIES 090920 CARES GRANT  1,052.67

Total :  1,052.67

 184431 9/17/2020 0010283  STUDIO SUGAR, LLC 081720 CARES GRANT  8,621.95

1Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 7



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  8,621.95 184431 9/17/2020 0010283 0010283  STUDIO SUGAR, LLC

 184432 9/18/2020 0000960  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 091820 EXCISE TAX  71,247.67

Total :  71,247.67

 184433 9/24/2020 0010284  THE BALLET SLIPPER. LLC 091120 CARES GRANT  2,925.00

Total :  2,925.00

 184434 9/24/2020 0010285  IN MOTION COMPANY 082720 CARES GRANT  2,930.45

Total :  2,930.45

 184435 9/24/2020 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 091620 CARES GRANT  7,489.28

Total :  7,489.28

 184436 9/24/2020 0002596  HABITAT FOR HUMANITY 091020 CARES GRANT  10,000.00

Total :  10,000.00

 184437 9/24/2020 0010286  THRIVE COMMUNITY FITNESS 090120 CARES GRANT  10,000.00

Total :  10,000.00

 184438 9/24/2020 0010287  BLACKTOP GRAPHIX 090920 CARES GRANT  2,484.89

Total :  2,484.89

 184439 9/24/2020 0001218  PBY MEMORIAL FOUNDATION 090820 CARES GRANT  5,473.92

Total :  5,473.92

 184440 9/29/2020 0009968  PRUSHA, CORY 092920 FORAGE FISH SURVEY  99.00

Total :  99.00

 184441 9/30/2020 0000001  3M COMPANY 9408724266 PAVEMENT MARKING TAPE  751.14

Total :  751.14

 184442 9/30/2020 0010296  ABB, INC 7104814312 FLOW METER CHECK AND CALIBRATION  6,425.00

Total :  6,425.00

 184443 9/30/2020 0004354  ADVANCED TRAFFIC PRODUCTS, INC 0000027822 MULTIMODE PHASE SELECTOR TRADE  15,216.05

Total :  15,216.05

 184444 9/30/2020 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 29968 DUP KEYS  4.01

2Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 8



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184444 9/30/2020 (Continued)0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY

 24.05KEYS29984

 40.14KEYS29991

 260.00LOCKS29992

Total :  328.20

 184445 9/30/2020 0009717  ALPHA CARD INV6461891 KEYFOB  532.53

Total :  532.53

 184446 9/30/2020 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF 900-9080-00 AUGUST 2020 WATER PURCHASED  142,227.73

Total :  142,227.73

 184447 9/30/2020 0008435  ANDREANO, JEREMY 090420 REIMBURSEMENT  20.00

Total :  20.00

 184448 9/30/2020 0005001  ARAMARK 1991857408 UNIFORMS SERVICE  20.96

 31.10UNIFORMS SERVICE1991857409

 46.30UNIFORMS SERVICE1991857410

 22.28UNIFORMS SERVICE1991857411

 16.34UNIFORMS SERVICE1991857412

 16.34UNIFORMS SERVICE1991857413

 16.34UNIFORMS SERVICE1991857414

 84.20UNIFORMS SERVICE1991857426

 26.59UNIFORMS SERVICE1991859433

 20.96UNIFORMS SERVICE1991867175

 31.10UNIFORMS SERVICE1991867176

 46.30UNIFORMS SERVICE1991867177

 22.28UNIFORMS SERVICE1991867178

 16.34UNIFORMS SERVICE1991867179

 16.34UNIFORMS SERVICE1991867180

 16.34UNIFORMS SERVICE1991867181

 83.32UNIFORMS SERVICE1991867193

 31.10UNIFORMS SERVICE19918766018

 20.96UNIFORMS SERVICE1991876607

 46.30UNIFORMS SERVICE1991876609

 22.28UNIFORMS SERVICE1991876610

 16.34UNIFORMS SERVICE1991876611

3Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 9



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184448 9/30/2020 (Continued)0005001  ARAMARK

 16.34UNIFORMS SERVICE1991876612

 16.34UNIFORMS SERVICE1991876613

 83.32UNIFORMS SERVICE1991876626

 26.59UNIFORMS SERVICE1991878567

 20.96UNIFORMS SERVICE1991886023

 31.10UNIFORMS SERVICE1991886024

 46.30UNIFORMS SERVICE1991886025

 22.28UNIFORMS SERVICE1991886026

 16.34UNIFORMS SERVICE1991886027

 16.34UNIFORMS SERVICE1991886028

 16.34UNIFORMS SERVICE1991886029

 83.32UNIFORMS SERVICE1991886041

Total :  1,065.98

 184449 9/30/2020 0004188  ASPHALT QUALITY SEALERS 1380 SEAL COAT  18,810.08

Total :  18,810.08

 184450 9/30/2020 0000668  AUTO VALUE 77-00100330 FUSE HOLDER  2.91

 36.76LIFT SUPPORT77-00100535

 10.22STANDARD MINIATURE77-00100537

 23.73PREMIUM AUTOMOTIVE77-00100608

 85.96AIR FILTER77-00100723

 122.44ENGINE OIL77-00100816

 66.47AIR FILTER77-00100817

 19.00SEALED BEAMS77-00101110

 19.00SEALED BEAMS77-00101111

-13.96SEALED BEAMS77-00101154

 4.36COPPER CORE/PERMATEX77-00101171

 149.35OIL/AIR FILTER77-00101242

 17.59OIL PRESSURE GAUGE77-00101265

 29.07OIL PRESSURE LIGHT77-00101270

-17.59OIL PRESSURE GAUGE77-00101280

-34.16PURGE VALVE77-00101282

 3.91SPARK PL77-00101379

 19.20SPIN ON LUBE FILTER77-00101414

 20.14MOLDED GASOLINE FILL77-00101452

4Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 10



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184450 9/30/2020 (Continued)0000668  AUTO VALUE

 143.77HVAC RECIRCULATION77-00101506

 95.65BATTERY77-00101532

 395.94FUEL FILL HOSE77-00101549

-365.96FUEL FILL HOSE77-00101557

-110.63BATTERY/FUEL HOSE77-00101559

 19.885 GAL AUTO SHUT OFF77-00101561

 35.70SOCKETS77-00102269

 7.61SOLAR SHIELD77-00102353

Total :  786.36

 184451 9/30/2020 0000077  BARGE, JA 020120 RENTAL BED/OUT OF POCKET EXPENSE  195.66

 433.803 MONTHS MEDICARE090220

 211.60OUT OF POCKET EXPENSEEXP REIMB

 195.66OUT OF POCKET EXPENSEEXP REIMB

Total :  1,036.72

 184452 9/30/2020 0000103  BLADE CHEVROLET, INC 641464 HARNESS  68.79

Total :  68.79

 184453 9/30/2020 0004168  BLUETARP FINANCIAL, INC 45525524 DW 20V  271.16

 271.16M18 FUEL HTIW 1/2 FR45926108

Total :  542.32

 184454 9/30/2020 0004818  BOBBINK, MICHAEL 091320 SEP 2020 HEARING EXAMINER  1,708.33

 1,708.33AUG 2020 HEARING EXAMINER091320A

Total :  3,416.66

 184455 9/30/2020 0002551  BOS, BRYON 090420 REIMBURSEMENT  20.00

Total :  20.00

 184456 9/30/2020 0001558  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC 83767793 RESPIRATOR, N95  127.41

Total :  127.41

 184457 9/30/2020 0003097  BOYER, TALLIE 090420 REIMBURSEMENT  20.00

Total :  20.00

 184458 9/30/2020 0009588  BRIDGES, JAMES L 090420 REIMBURSEMENT  20.00

5Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 11



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  20.00 184458 9/30/2020 0009588 0009588  BRIDGES, JAMES L

 184459 9/30/2020 0006215  CAROLLO 0187638 JUNE 2020 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY  6,758.50

 7,073.75JULY 2020 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY0188535

 2,749.50AUGUST 2020 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILIT0189416

 1,072.50AUGUST 2020 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILIT0190339

Total :  17,654.25

 184460 9/30/2020 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 08793000004 NATURAL GAS/POLICE STATION  22.41

 3,826.71NATURAL GAS/1375 SE CITY BEACH ST27891142880

 89.21NATURAL GAS/FIRE STATION36624000000

 80.64NATURAL GAS/CITY HALL58793000009

 136.31NATURAL GAS/CITY SHOP80434000008

 23.28NATURAL GAS/ANNEX82193000005

 24.12NATURAL GAS/ADULT CARE CENTER90134000000

Total :  4,202.68

 184461 9/30/2020 0000157  CDW GOVERNMENT, INC 1096504 LG 43LT340C 43IN TV  435.25

 435.25LG 43LT340C 43IN TV1096509

 435.25LG 43LT340C 43IN TV1096515

 102.70SIERRA1201560

 10,733.06DELL BASESV R5401335800

-1,088.22REFUND SAMSUNG 65INZQX3557

 922.43UNIFISWITCHZWV2631

 835.59SIERRA AIRLINKZXG0500

 14,610.88DELL CTO ME4024ZZM6292

Total :  27,422.19

 184462 9/30/2020 0000172  CHRISTIANS TOWING STORAGE 33243 TOWING  200.38

Total :  200.38

 184463 9/30/2020 0005773  COMCAST 8498300271287100 CURRENT SERVICES  147.82

 295.00INTERNET8498300290363841

Total :  442.82

 184464 9/30/2020 0000694  CORE & MAIN M663115 MONUMENT RISER  2,348.98

 429.53NUT & SNAP RINGM889209

 1,573.63PARTSM956514

6Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 12



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184464 9/30/2020 (Continued)0000694  CORE & MAIN

 342.58SADDLE/TEESM997143

Total :  4,694.72

 184465 9/30/2020 0000202  COREY OIL COMPANY 94608 FUEL  12.17

Total :  12.17

 184466 9/30/2020 0009091  CROUCHER, DUSTIN 090420 REIMBURSEMENT  20.00

 100.00WATER CERTIFICATION II TRAINING091420

Total :  120.00

 184467 9/30/2020 0008263  CURTIS BLUE LINE INV417876 BLK TACLITE PANTS  70.36

Total :  70.36

 184468 9/30/2020 0000222  CUSTOM ENGRAVING 20-0438 ENGRAVING  68.00

Total :  68.00

 184469 9/30/2020 0000225  DAILY JOURNAL OF COMMERCE 3361020 NE 7TH AVE RECONSTRUCT  1,041.60

 222.60ODOR CONTROL3361367

Total :  1,264.20

 184470 9/30/2020 0000234  DAVID EVANS & ASSOCIATES, INC 474150 PROF SVC/HARBOR HEIGHTS SPORTS COMPLEX 17,830.46

Total :  17,830.46

 184471 9/30/2020 0000256  DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS INV644856 DEPOT REPAIR  262.24

Total :  262.24

 184472 9/30/2020 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-533144-59 PORTABLES  75.00

 75.00PORTABLES1-584821-13

 75.00PORTABLES1-588083-10

 433.56PORTABLES WITH SINK1-599125

 2,962.08MANLIFT RENTAL1-599473

 35.70SWITCH PTO1-600042

 152.46BLADE SHARPENING1-8512

 87.12BLADE SHARPENING1-8522

Total :  3,895.92

 184473 9/30/2020 0008555  DOG WASTE DEPOT 363255 DOG WASTE ROLL BAGS  860.20

7Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 13



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  860.20 184473 9/30/2020 0008555 0008555  DOG WASTE DEPOT

 184474 9/30/2020 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 083120 AUGUST 2020 LAUNDRY SERVICES  75.01

Total :  75.01

 184475 9/30/2020 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 20-30489 TESTING  120.00

 100.00TESTING20-31600

 120.00TESTING20-32398

 20.00TESTING20-32400

 140.00TESTING20-33457

Total :  500.00

 184476 9/30/2020 0001859  ELITE 1060525 PROLAW CONSULTING SERVICE  470.00

Total :  470.00

 184477 9/30/2020 0008922  EMPLOYMENT SCREENING RESOURCES 214221 EMPLOYMENT SCREENING  705.64

Total :  705.64

 184478 9/30/2020 0001666  ENVIRO-CLEAN EQUIPMENT 20-52264 WATER PUMP KIT  1,088.04

Total :  1,088.04

 184479 9/30/2020 0006005  ENVIROISSUES, INC 180-004-000-18 JULY 2020 OAK HARBOR COMMUNITY OUTREACH 2,478.75

Total :  2,478.75

 184480 9/30/2020 0008082  EVIDENT, INC 161631B HINGE LIFTERS  25.00

Total :  25.00

 184481 9/30/2020 0008752  EXACT SCIENTIFIC SERVICES, INC 20-11216 TESTING  161.00

 20.00TESTING20-13990

Total :  181.00

 184482 9/30/2020 0002900  FASTENAL WAANA128268 4.5X5/8-11 60 GFIP DSC  95.13

 12.758-32X1/2XS/S PPHMSWAANA128403

 133.95FASTENERSWAANA128537

Total :  241.83

 184483 9/30/2020 0000954  FIRE CHIEFS, WASHINGTON STATE ASSOC OF16676 DEPT MEMBER TIER 7  1,800.00

8Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 14



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,800.00 184483 9/30/2020 0000954 0000954  FIRE CHIEFS, WASHINGTON STATE ASSOC OF

 184484 9/30/2020 0008572  FIREFIGHTERS BOOKSTORE INV422054 ESSENTIALS OF FIRE FIGHTING  574.79

Total :  574.79

 184485 9/30/2020 0000314  FISHERIES SUPPLY COMPANY 5423079 GAGE WEATHER WATCH  52.01

Total :  52.01

 184486 9/30/2020 0008880  FIZZ EVENTS, LLC 202014 WHIDBEY ISLAND MARATHON  13,781.08

Total :  13,781.08

 184487 9/30/2020 0004971  FREEMAN, DENISE L 2020-22 UNIFORMS  1,250.46

Total :  1,250.46

 184488 9/30/2020 0000326  FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY 197216 CEDAR  137.04

 6.23CEDAR197220

 119.99WOOD197471

 540.93PLYWOOD/DRIED FIR197908

Total :  804.19

 184489 9/30/2020 0000325  FRONTIER FORD 131325 SPOSOCKET  403.06

 441.01NUT/BOLT/BRACKET131407

 136.83REPAIR CRACKED AIR INLET TUBE161441C

Total :  980.90

 184490 9/30/2020 0010297  FUSION COMMUNICATIONS, LLC BL-006912 BUSINESS LICENSE REFUND  12.50

Total :  12.50

 184491 9/30/2020 0000329  GALLS 016311047 GARRISON BELT  16.32

 258.74BOOTS016398846

Total :  275.06

 184492 9/30/2020 0003064  GC SYSTEMS, INC 5310 REBUILD CLA-VAL CONTROL VALVES  20,436.17

Total :  20,436.17

 184493 9/30/2020 0010278  GOVQA, LLC 1638-200813 EXCHANGE PLATFORM WITH FOIA MODULE  9,997.02

Total :  9,997.02

9Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 15



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184494 9/30/2020 0000349  GRAINGER 9638151994 VIBRATION ISOLATOR  71.00

 427.10STORM DRAIN FILTER9638419888

Total :  498.10

 184495 9/30/2020 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8603 SIGNAL REPAIR  110.00

Total :  110.00

 184496 9/30/2020 0000362  HACH COMPANY-MARSH-MCBIRNEY 12114966 POCKET PRO PH TESTER  131.00

Total :  131.00

 184497 9/30/2020 0008996  HARMSEN & ASSOC, INC 20_1238 PROF SVC/FAKKEMA ACCESS ROAD  3,662.50

Total :  3,662.50

 184498 9/30/2020 0005311  HB JAEGER COMPANY, LLC U2016044748 PVC GREEN PIPE  1,234.93

Total :  1,234.93

 184499 9/30/2020 0000382  HELTSLEY, RAY 080120 MEDICARE PREMIUMS  433.80

Total :  433.80

 184500 9/30/2020 0009853  HERRERA ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULT 47150 PROF SVC/GOLDIE STREET STORMWATER RETROF 71.29

Total :  71.29

 184501 9/30/2020 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1022852 SUMP PUM  184.04

 55.41CARB BIT1022919

 33.74BLK & WHT CONNECTOR1512154

 216.41VANTAGE GREEN CARPET1972113

-28.06ABS/CEMENT2083421

 23.11SCREWS2514377

 25.31WHITE WOOD2514383

 119.62WHT PEGBOARD2624253

 125.07BOX WRENCH/14GAL3024190

 26.65TILE SETTING MATE3621019

 96.38OPTIX ACRYLIC3971303

 21.76EXTINGUISHER4667672

 131.90BEHR512524

 144.87LEMON GRASS5164796

 46.52ABS SHOWER/FLEX HOLE/SINK DRAIN523419

 3.902FT ABS523429

10Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 16



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184501 9/30/2020 (Continued)0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

 251.93SILICONE/ABS/CEMENT5513062

 44.80STORAGE BOX, TOILET SEAT5523926

 141.55RELEASE BATTERY, RING DOORBELL5621942

 65.24MAGNETIC MULTI BIT5900367

 42.73CANVAS BAG/CLAMP620125

 21.18ROOF FELT620130

 5.06CONCRETE MIX6511973

 6.40COUPLER6514022

 20.26CONCRETE MIX6614761

 96.38OPTIX ACRYLIC6971173

 143.73CARBON STEEL BRUSH7021977

-32.48FLEX HOSE7083800

 21.82PVC BUSHING7511861

 49.27PVC PIPE7624809

 111.95GRADE STAKES7972214

 169.32PAINT SUPPLIES9023187

 10.86EXTINGUISHER904305

 194.69PVC CEMENT/STEP LADDER/MISC9523485

 115.37BEHR9523486

 43.49TITE LIFT OFF WHT9523487

 18.48TOOL BAG9614523

 88.91RUBBER SQUARE BLK9614524

 97.97UPGEAR PREMIUM HARNESS971608

 16.79SCRUBBER972123

 38.98OLYMPIAN ALU9952780

Total :  3,011.31

 184502 9/30/2020 0006520  HOPKINS, CAMERON 090420 REIMBURSEMENT  20.00

Total :  20.00

 184503 9/30/2020 0001307  INSIGHT PUBLIC SECTOR 1100764640 HARD DRIVE  130.05

 114.32HARD DRIVE1100765532

Total :  244.37

 184504 9/30/2020 0000410  ISLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE 083120 AUGUST TIPPING FEE  104,592.00

11Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 17



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  104,592.00 184504 9/30/2020 0000410 0000410  ISLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE

 184505 9/30/2020 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 083120 AUGUST 2020 RECYCLING  12,831.75

 21,925.99DUMPSTER CHARGES090120

Total :  34,757.74

 184506 9/30/2020 0000454  JET CITY EQUIPMENT RENTAL 30249 EXCAVATOR RENTAL  1,089.00

 125.01BRUSH DUMPING35363

 106.25BRUSH DUMPING35384

 28.81BRUSH DUMPING35385

Total :  1,349.07

 184507 9/30/2020 0006362  KBA, INC 3005473 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY CLOSEOUT 2,134.47

Total :  2,134.47

 184508 9/30/2020 0008553  KNUTSEN, JENNA 092720 TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES  206.25

Total :  206.25

 184509 9/30/2020 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 136340 ASPHALT  754.50

Total :  754.50

 184510 9/30/2020 0010274  LANDAU ASSOCIATES, INC 0046497 CLEAN WATER FACILITY AIR MONITORING SERV 5,153.95

Total :  5,153.95

 184511 9/30/2020 0008926  LARSON, CARLY 090420 REIMBURSEMENT  20.00

 200.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

Total :  220.00

 184512 9/30/2020 0010162  LDC, INC 21516 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR HOUSING ACTION PLAN 8,936.25

Total :  8,936.25

 184513 9/30/2020 0005277  LEE-SAUNDERS, STEPHANIE 090420 REIMBURSEMENT  20.00

Total :  20.00

 184514 9/30/2020 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400507480 ALIGNMENT  119.78

 269.07TIRES41400509206

 2,428.39TIRES41400509545

12Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 18



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  2,817.24 184514 9/30/2020 0000979 0000979  LES SCHWAB

 184515 9/30/2020 0010302  LIFE WITHOUT LIMITS, LLC 081820 CARES GRANT  2,691.44

Total :  2,691.44

 184516 9/30/2020 0010300  LITTLE TOWN COTTAGE 082020 CARES GRANT  3,548.55

Total :  3,548.55

 184517 9/30/2020 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 211887 YARD WASTE  111.20

 111.55YARD WASTE211975

 10.00YARD WASTE212093

 142.00YARD WASTE212095

 10.00YARD WASTE212107

 7.00YARD WASTE212114

 7.00YARD WASTE212125

 10.00YARD WASTE212168

 7.00YARD WASTE212173

 157.75YARD WASTE212182

 10.00YARD WASTE212211

 7.00YARD WASTE212240

 180.50YARD WASTE212302

 130.45YARD WASTE212587

 107.70YARD WASTE212683

 10.00YARD WASTE212726

 120.30YARD WASTE212805

 147.25YARD WASTE212897

 16.29SOIL212977

 227.75YARD WASTE213024

 15.00YARD WASTE213034

 10.00YARD WASTE213043

 409.75YARD WASTE213294

 10.00YARD WASTE213302

 143.05YARD WASTE213365

 118.55YARD WASTE213494

 10.00YARD WASTE213547

 189.25YARD WASTE213562

 10.00YARD WASTE213611

13Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 19



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184517 9/30/2020 (Continued)0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY

 165.80YARD WASTE213688

 50.00YARD WASTE213710

 114.00YARD WASTE213971

 10.00YARD WASTE214010

 10.00YARD WASTE214027

 7.00YARD WASTE214052

 10.00YARD WASTE214063

 15.00YARD WASTE214064

 117.50YARD WASTE214095

 10.00YARD WASTE214097

 132.20YARD WASTE214194

 87.98BARK MEDIUM214245

 174.90YARD WASTE214292

 159.50YARD WASTE214388

 10.00YARD WASTE214654

 105.25YARD WASTE214659

Total :  3,625.47

 184518 9/30/2020 0003654  MAIN STREET COLLISION II 7504 VEHICLE REPAIR  5,286.72

Total :  5,286.72

 184519 9/30/2020 0009139  MANGLONA-CHARLTON, BERNICE 09212020 EXERCISE VIRTUAL CLASS  299.00

Total :  299.00

 184520 9/30/2020 0001612  MARINERS HAVEN 090320 VESSEL WORK BARGE  397.48

 692.87VESSEL HUNTER09032020

Total :  1,090.35

 184521 9/30/2020 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 632163 GROCERIES  150.86

 111.86GROCERIES756285

 177.72GROCERIES756295

Total :  440.44

 184522 9/30/2020 0007306  MASSEY, MEG EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  121.01

Total :  121.01

14Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 20



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184523 9/30/2020 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 70986 AUG 2020 MAILING SERVICES FOR UTILITY ST  1,596.79

 1,599.97SEP 2020 MAILING SERVICES FOR UTILITY ST71527

 2,695.64AUG  2020 POSTAGE FOR STATEMENTSP70986

Total :  5,892.40

 184524 9/30/2020 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P71527 POSTAGE  2,684.49

Total :  2,684.49

 184525 9/30/2020 0008347  MCGEE, MARIA 092020 YOGA CLASS  250.00

Total :  250.00

 184526 9/30/2020 0009900  MCPHEE, DUNCAN 091220 LUMBER PURCHASE REIMBURSMENT  162.96

Total :  162.96

 184527 9/30/2020 0009729  METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION CO 4926-AR11620 SUBSCRIPTION  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

 184528 9/30/2020 0000197  MILES SAND & GRAVEL COMPANY 1788334 CY 11CDA20  1,440.76

Total :  1,440.76

 184529 9/30/2020 0005266  MOFFATT & NICHOL ENGINEERS 753636 PROF SVC/2020 OAK HARBOR MARINA BREAKWAT 18,162.50

Total :  18,162.50

 184530 9/30/2020 0008460  MOUNTAIN MIST 003700153 WATER  8.40

Total :  8.40

 184531 9/30/2020 0000608  NC MACHINERY COMPANY MVCS0319832 FENDER RH  291.63

Total :  291.63

 184532 9/30/2020 0000612  NELSON PETROLEUM 0739958-IN DEF-FLUID  274.19

 153.32FUEL0741953-IN

Total :  427.51

 184533 9/30/2020 0000610  NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 439598 CLASS 1 WEIGHT SET  1,034.22

Total :  1,034.22

 184534 9/30/2020 0007653  NORTH ISLAND MEDICAL 0904201 PRE-EMPLOYMENT  150.00

 150.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT0904202

15Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 21



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184534 9/30/2020 (Continued)0007653  NORTH ISLAND MEDICAL

 150.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT0904203

 150.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT0904204

 150.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT9513

 150.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT9514

 150.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT9515

Total :  1,050.00

 184535 9/30/2020 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 329239 DRILL BITS  19.13

 2.05FASTNERS329293

 11.64NAIL GLUE329334

 38.69RIVETS329370

 6.52SPRY PNT329379

 5.21CONDUAT NUT329388

-5.21RETURN CONDUAT NUT329389

 0.85CONDUAT NUTS329390

 5.43DAMPRID REFIL329394

 18.63FASTNERS329395

 11.26ADAPTER329407

 22.62WASHERS/NUTS329418

 60.94BATTERIES329436

 176.37HOSE FLEXOGEN329451

 43.77WIRE BRUSH/ANTI SEIZE329465

 19.57SPRYPNT/PAINTERS TAPE329487

 48.07THREADLOCKER/LUBE TRIFLOW329493

 7.07WOOD SCREW329497

-141.5620V MAX RNDORB329602

 22.08POST BASE ZMAX329641

 9.54SCREWS/FASTENERS329662

 6.86SCREWS329669

 16.07COUPLE/BUSHING329692

 190.05BOLTS/HP ULTRA/WASHERS329749

 18.50OIL329779

 6.45HARDWARE329783

 32.31RUST NTRLZER329801

 169.84SAW BLADE, BIT DRILL329877

 295.83HOSEHANGOUTS, FASTNERS, COUPLE329878

16Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 22



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184535 9/30/2020 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 37.96BOLTS329880

 7.59SANDDISCS329888

 18.02PUTTY KNIFE/KEY329897

-95.16RETURN BLADE CIRC, BOLTS329901

 2.05FASTNERS329910

-13.04SANDDISCS329918

 26.13SANDDISC329919

 66.08SCREENS/CORNERS/FASTENERS329942

 17.39HARDWARE/FASTENERS329949

 57.12SWITCH,WASHER,NUT329953

 53.20WIPES/OIL329962

 3.04RIVETS329977

 5.66FASTENERS329981

 25.03ADAPTER329984

 47.55HARDWARE330060

 15.22REPAIR TAPE330100

Total :  1,392.42

 184536 9/30/2020 0003007  OFFICE DEPOT 2429978557 FOLDERS/SCISSOR/LABELS  83.07

 22.83INDEX2433795503

 28.74ENVELOPES2436882384

Total :  134.64

 184537 9/30/2020 0006980  OHD, LLLP 71357 QFIT ANNUAL CALIBRATION  936.55

Total :  936.55

 184538 9/30/2020 0008401  OR/WA JOINT CONFERENCE 112 2020 VIRTUAL JOINT CONFERENCE  600.00

Total :  600.00

 184539 9/30/2020 0006007  O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 2532-199836 IND FN HOSE  34.98

 24.13HEADLIGHT/MULTI SOCK2532-201178

 15.43FN NOSE2532-202009

 22.63FN NOSE2532-202574

 56.58CONNECTOR2532-202717

 54.93WIPER BLADES2532-203292

17Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 23



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  208.68 184539 9/30/2020 0006007 0006007  O'REILLY AUTO PARTS

 184540 9/30/2020 0000089  OWEN EQUIPMENT COMPANY 00098873 CAMERAS -993.95

 670.95FEDERAL SIGNAL/CAMERA FRONT00099094

 972.72CAMERAS00099165

Total :  649.72

 184541 9/30/2020 0010130  PACIFIC CONSTRUCTION CONSULT 792-08-20 CLEAN WATER FACILITY AUDIT  4,426.00

Total :  4,426.00

 184542 9/30/2020 0003164  PAINTERS ALLEY P0027418 SPRAY TIP/GRACO  109.96

 401.91PAINT/TAPEP0027439

 66.84PAINTP0027463

 334.21PAINTP0027488

 249.63PAINTP0027591

 155.71PAINTP0027596

 758.72PAINTP0027629

 226.88PAINTP0027784

Total :  2,303.86

 184543 9/30/2020 0000299  PLACE, SANDRA 090420 REIMBURSEMENT  20.00

Total :  20.00

 184544 9/30/2020 0000400  PLUMBING & MECHANICAL OFFICIAL 1526544 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL/KING  200.00

Total :  200.00

 184545 9/30/2020 0007877  POLLOCK, JONATHAN 090420 REIMBURSEMENT  20.00

Total :  20.00

 184546 9/30/2020 0000724  PONY MAILING & BUSINESS CENTER 326875 SHIPPING  272.56

 7.52SHIPPING326981

 17.53SHIPPING327839

Total :  297.61

 184547 9/30/2020 0000729  POSTMASTER 092520 POSTAGE/PERMIT #29  700.00

Total :  700.00

 184548 9/30/2020 0005069  PROFORCE LAW ENFORCEMENT 423435 TSR X26P BLK CLASS III LASER/PWR MAG  7,612.11

18Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 24



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

19

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  7,612.11 184548 9/30/2020 0005069 0005069  PROFORCE LAW ENFORCEMENT

 184549 9/30/2020 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000947859 ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP  1,567.25

 13.38ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVE PUMP200001884218

 66.65ELECTRICITY/30505 STATE ROUTE 20200002036164

 32.75ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20 SIGN200002036719

 12.44ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037097

 10.50ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFIELD CT PUMP200002037261

 9.80ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DR200002170617

 87.09ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FORT NUGENT AVE200002511539

 13.54ELECTRICITY/WELL #7200003131170

 13.66ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND ST200003267636

 122.77ELECTRICITY/1957 FORT NUGENT RD RSTRM```200003459654

 9.89ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE SEWAGE200004342099

 56.10ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD LIGHT200004562878

 10.50ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVE200004856627

 9.80ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 67.68ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & MIDWAY200007702943

 9.80ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME ST200007824192

 10.39ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993

 28.14ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

 37.40ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PL200010322895

 103.05ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248

 19.29ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE SEWERSTN200010499446

 33.50ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DR LIGHT200010530240

 10.48ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP IRR200010531172

 78.92ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CABIN200010531354

 164.82ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK ST200010531941

 13.54ELECTRICITY/WELL #6200010549943

 14.09ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR BALLPK200010699706

 279.92ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839

 22.34ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930

 18.57ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME ST200011579964

 9.89ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 723.37ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087

 14.14ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765

 1,745.40ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

19Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 25



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

20

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184549 9/30/2020 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 695.08ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN RD PUMP200013734963

 67.35ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY LIFT200013968405

 26.98ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK ST200014151886

 653.91ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 10.39ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153

 91.47ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVE200015618321

 52.88ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DR SWRPMP200015685833

 364.38ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER ST WTRTWR200017255619

 9.80ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482

 52.32ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE SGNL200017575347

 64.45ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE RD PUMP200017653656

 200.25ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR PUMP200017654415

 10.28ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVE SWRPMP200017853025

 1,082.25ELECTRICITY/POLICE STATION200017968427

 20.32ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY LIGHT200019043344

 51.97ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DR PUMP200019500517

 5.88ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN RD200020179194

 452.72ELECTRICITY/SENIOR CENTER200020235012

 36.48ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN ST PUMP200022441113

 27.07ELECTRICITY/TRAILER PK S END200022988147

 16.55ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067

 37.78ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER RD TRAFFI200023360569

 30.02ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST LIFT200024715845

 86.07ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157

 48.05ELECTRICITY/END OF GUN CLUB RD220002244337

 12.85ELECTRICITY/1770 NE GOLDIE ST PUMP220005593946

 12.74ELECTRICITY/2900 N OAK HARBOR RD PUMP220007681624

 22,195.48ELECTRICITY/1375 SE CITY BEACH220010389959

 10.39ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK220014752129

 92.21ELECTRICITY/1090 SE PIONEER WAY SGNL220015477015

 196.43ELECTRICITY/1501 S BEEKSMA DR SHOP220019185945

 11.62ELECTRICITY/32460 STATE ROUTE 20220021979996

 130.99ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000005003

 26.39ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421

 11,766.73CURRENT PHONE CHARGES300000007421

 174.79ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000009906

20Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 26



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

21

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184549 9/30/2020 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 10.39ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000009906

 55.85ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000010409

 89.14ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000010458

 62.20ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000010516

Total :  44,483.75

 184550 9/30/2020 0002729  QUADIENT LEASING USA, INC N8486841 LEASE PAYMENT  867.61

Total :  867.61

 184551 9/30/2020 0009058  REHRIG PACIFIC COMPANY 50122266 2YD COM CONT FL  19,133.73

Total :  19,133.73

 184552 9/30/2020 0010301  RHONDA INCE, LMT 082120 CARES GRANT  2,100.00

Total :  2,100.00

 184553 9/30/2020 0000781  SAFEWAY 436965 GROCERY  29.12

 7.00PHARMACY726047

 104.35MARKET STREET CATERING809196

Total :  140.47

 184554 9/30/2020 0008058  SALTY DOG WOODWORKS 092520 CEDAR PARK SIGNS  1,760.64

Total :  1,760.64

 184555 9/30/2020 0000801  SEA WESTERN, INC INV7578 FACESHIELD  244.43

Total :  244.43

 184556 9/30/2020 0003222  SEAGRAVE FIRE APPARATUS, LLC 0123639 CYLINDER ASSY  40.69

 2.23CYLINDER ASSY0123640

 260.49CYLINDER ASSY0123641

 1,419.17CYLINDER0123642

Total :  1,722.58

 184557 9/30/2020 0005967  SEATTLE AUTOMOTIVE DIST S5-5622119 SENSOR -56.72

 61.02OILS5-5696353

Total :  4.30

 184558 9/30/2020 0004415  SEATTLE PUMP 211763-1 SEWER CLEANER HOSE  2,281.46

21Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 27



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

22

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  2,281.46 184558 9/30/2020 0004415 0004415  SEATTLE PUMP

 184559 9/30/2020 0008963  SEMRAU ENGINEERING AND SURVEY 5749N-13 STABIL  476.25

 2,261.25HILLSIDE PRD5749W-19

 101.25WHIDBEY DENTAL5749Y-7

 1,012.50TOWN & COUNTRY5923I-5

 113.75PCM STAPLE BLA5923M-4

 67.50WEST BROWN5923O-3

 33.75CROSBY RV5923Q-2

 3,330.00CITY OF OAK HARBOR - MONUMENTS5923R-1

 202.50BECKETT5923T-1

Total :  7,598.75

 184560 9/30/2020 0003783  SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO 1143-6 PAINT  39.79

 57.82PAINT7350-8

-57.82PAINT7353-2

Total :  39.79

 184561 9/30/2020 0010298  SHIMMER SHINE DRY BAR SALON 080320 CARES GRANT  1,492.38

Total :  1,492.38

 184562 9/30/2020 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 8180367059 SHREDDING  124.20

 80.99SHREDDING8180367157

Total :  205.19

 184563 9/30/2020 0010203  SIMPLE BOX 13034 40' HIGH CUBE  11,815.65

Total :  11,815.65

 184564 9/30/2020 0010250  SIMPLY YARDS 51270 WINDJAMMER PARK PLANT MAINTENANCE  1,317.69

Total :  1,317.69

 184565 9/30/2020 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-403926 PASS WGT ZN UNCOAT  22.28

Total :  22.28

 184566 9/30/2020 0000833  SKAGIT HYDRAULICS 152128 CYLINDER REPAIR  530.34

 1,458.79CYLINDER REPAIR152129

Total :  1,989.13

22Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 28



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

23

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184567 9/30/2020 0002901  SMITH & LOVELESS, INC 146831 O RING FUEL RESISTANT  207.66

Total :  207.66

 184568 9/30/2020 0000843  SOLID WASTE SYSTEMS, INC 0126154-IN HYD TANK  2,873.19

 312.69BRACKET, FLARE KIT0126291-IN

 182.32RETAINING RING/SEAL/TEMPERATURE GAUGE0126398-IN

Total :  3,368.20

 184569 9/30/2020 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING, INC WNT907803 CALL FOR BIDS/ODOR CONTROL  87.22

 34.27CITY NOTICES/HPC PUB NOTICEWNT908110

 54.82LEGAL NOTICESWNT908165

 10.59CITY NOTICES/PN CANCEL MTGWNT908264

 98.43CITY NOTICES/U-HAUL APPLICATIONWNT908861

Total :  285.33

 184570 9/30/2020 0005351  SOUND SLOPE & SHORELINE, INC 1964 TRANSPORT AND PAINT WATERLOO HULL  6,416.56

Total :  6,416.56

 184571 9/30/2020 0010039  SRI-ROCHLIN CONSTRUCTION 092620 REFUND BALANCE OF DEPOSIT  374.57

Total :  374.57

 184572 9/30/2020 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 092120 LIFE/POCFF  276.88

Total :  276.88

 184573 9/30/2020 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3455109290 LOGITECH WIRELESS  27.21

 28.55STUFF FILE FLDR3455109300

 32.11CHRMAT3455109305

 10.59CABLE3456010088

 97.02BLK/STD CLR3456010105

 111.02OFFICE SUPPLIES3456010117

 15.24AVY IJ/LSR RMV3456010126

 15.78LOG BOOKS3456010133

 15.56SURGE SUPRSR3456010145

 32.66WIRELESS TRACKBALL3456010153

 20.30TAPE,MARKERS3456010161

 72.17LEBAEL,TEXTURED SCALLOP3456010171

 60.94LABELS WHITE3456010178

23Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 29



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

24

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184573 9/30/2020 (Continued)0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE

 648.80CMY TN3456406097

 34.06WHITE CARD STOCK3456406100

 22.86HEATER3456406107

 10.87STAPLES3456406116

 336.74HP COLOR LASERJET PRO3456406126

 980.07PRINTER3456900329

 191.79COPY PAPER3456900336

Total :  2,764.34

 184574 9/30/2020 0010143  STONEWAY ELECTRIC SUPPLY S103109820.001 KIM LIGHTING  1,361.25

 62.42FREIGHT FOR KIM LIGHTINGS103109820.002

Total :  1,423.67

 184575 9/30/2020 0010283  STUDIO SUGAR, LLC 092420 CARES GRANT  1,378.05

Total :  1,378.05

 184576 9/30/2020 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1358781 PEST CONTROL  31.58

 44.65PEST CONTROL1358783

 44.65PEST CONTROL1358786

 33.76PEST CONTROL1358789

 31.58PEST CONTROL1358797

 59.90PEST EXTERMINATION1359260

 54.45PEST CONTROL1360260

 78.95PEST CONTROL1361339

 59.90PEST EXTERMINATION1364594

 59.90PEST EXTERMINATION1365058

Total :  499.32

 184577 9/30/2020 0007736  SYSTEMS FOR PUBLIC SAFETY, INC 37990 STEEL SKID PLATE  658.85

 41.72TOP DRAWER SLIDE38375

Total :  700.57

 184578 9/30/2020 0010303  THE CASUAL HOUSE 090220 CARES GRANT  6,137.78

Total :  6,137.78

 184579 9/30/2020 0008337  TRACTOR SUPPLY COMPANY 100246537 FUEL PUMP  359.36

24Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 30



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

25

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184579 9/30/2020 (Continued)0008337  TRACTOR SUPPLY COMPANY

 37.00COUPLER100247266

 92.55PRESSURE REG100251519

Total :  488.91

 184580 9/30/2020 0000986  TRANSPORTATION, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OFRE 41 JZ0553 L004 PROF SVC/WET FIBER  54.83

 36.63PROF SVC/NE 7TH AVE RECONSTRUCTIONRE-313-ATB00914146

Total :  91.46

 184581 9/30/2020 0006331  ULINE 124037144 L40 DISPENSER BOX WIPERS  1,014.26

Total :  1,014.26

 184582 9/30/2020 0000940  UNIVAR USA, INC 48706336 SOD HYPO 12.5% LIQUICHLOR  6,704.41

 4,479.55CAUSTIC SODA48706337

 2,881.49CITRIC ACID 50%48720098

Total :  14,065.45

 184583 9/30/2020 0010295  UNIVERSITY OF ARIZONA 3333 SHELL TESTING  383.00

Total :  383.00

 184584 9/30/2020 0010299  UNSIZEME YOGA 090920 CARES GRANT  5,435.45

Total :  5,435.45

 184585 9/30/2020 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 08/18/20 LONG-TERM CARE  405.86

Total :  405.86

 184586 9/30/2020 0000927  US BANK 5819899 OAKLTG011 - FISCAL AGENT  300.00

 300.00OAKWATREV16 - FISCAL AGENT5819900

Total :  600.00

 184587 9/30/2020 0000926  USABLUEBOOK 333054 VITA-D CHLOR  310.60

 88.58AC VOLTAGE QUARTZ348926

Total :  399.18

 184588 9/30/2020 0000934  UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION 0080189 AUG 2020 LOCATES  136.74

Total :  136.74

 184589 9/30/2020 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9862419809 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  5,938.57

25Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 31



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

26

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  5,938.57 184589 9/30/2020 0000932 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS

 184590 9/30/2020 0007173  VON HADEN, BRADLEY 090420 REIMBURSEMENT  20.00

Total :  20.00

 184591 9/30/2020 0000971  WALMART COMMUNITY/SYNCB 000000 STRAWBERRY, CHOC CREAM FILLED CUP  14.78

Total :  14.78

 184592 9/30/2020 0001044  WASHINGTON CRIMINAL JUSTICE 201134527 FTO ACADEMY/HUTCHINSON/WENDELL  190.00

Total :  190.00

 184593 9/30/2020 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL I21000883 AUGUST 2020 BACKGROUND CHECKS  11.00

 511.25AUGUST 2020 BACKGROUND CHECKSI21001029

Total :  522.25

 184594 9/30/2020 0006853  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & BENSON, INC, LAW OFFICES OF101 PROF SVC/GENERAL  11,241.75

Total :  11,241.75

 184595 9/30/2020 0000995  WEST, GARY 090120 PREMIUM REIMBURSMENT  433.80

Total :  433.80

 184596 9/30/2020 0007094  WESTERN EQUIPMENT, INC 7136113-00 ROCKER SWITCH  50.26

 95.62BLADES/BELTS/ELEMENT/FILTER7139276-00

 245.31BLADES/BELTS/ELEMENT7139276-02

 32,787.47ROTARY MOWER8059925-00

Total :  33,178.66

 184597 9/30/2020 0004644  WESTERN SAFETY PRODUCTS, INC 195097-1 RUBBER HIP BOOTS  75.01

Total :  75.01

 184598 9/30/2020 0001039  WESTERN TRUCK CENTER 025P62519 HARNESS WIRE  121.87

 374.57STARTER026P13240

 1,263.73BAND CLAMP/PIPE026P13252

 146.45SENSOR026P13705

 381.19REPAIR026R262613

Total :  2,287.81

 184599 9/30/2020 0005064  WHATCOM COUNTY AS FINANCE 31525 QTR 3 NW MINI CHAIN  461.25

26Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 32



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

27

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  461.25 184599 9/30/2020 0005064 0005064  WHATCOM COUNTY AS FINANCE

 184600 9/30/2020 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 430667 AIR BLOW GUN  31.67

 25.92TRAILER HITCH PARTS433036

Total :  57.59

 184601 9/30/2020 0001016  WHIDBEY NEWS TIMES WN-222364 SUBSCRIPTION  70.00

Total :  70.00

 184602 9/30/2020 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 51277 ENVELOPE/MOORAGE LEASE  498.65

 241.29TAGS, GARBAGE51320

 76.23BUSINESS CARDS/KUHL51352

 259.18POSTCARD-NOTICE OF LAND USE51353

 53.91BUSINESS CARDS51360

Total :  1,129.26

 184603 9/30/2020 0001010  WHIDBEY TELECOM 996-100-1001 SEP 2020 ALARM MONITORING  43.48

Total :  43.48

 184604 9/30/2020 0001005  WHIDBEYHEALTH MEDICAL CENTER WAK36656 INMATE SERVICES  238.00

 777.75INMATE SERVICESWAK36827

 148.75INMATE SERVICESWAK40385

 400.35INMATE SERVICESWAK40977

Total :  1,564.85

 184605 9/30/2020 0006969  WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP E1995538 BOOTS  210.18

Total :  210.18

 184606 9/30/2020 0006775  WORKSAFE SERVICE, INC 294779 DRUG TEST  385.00

Total :  385.00

 184607 9/30/2020 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 011294700 AUG 2020/COPIER RENTAL  261.31

Total :  261.31

 184608 9/30/2020 0009092  XEROX FINANCIAL SERVICES 2271079 SEP 2020 COPIER RENTAL  148.67

Total :  148.67

 184609 9/30/2020 0010166  YSI, INC 834017 TESTING  1,712.81

27Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 33



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

28

10:19:49AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184609 9/30/2020 (Continued)0010166  YSI, INC

 612.93POTASSIUM ELECTRODE837366

Total :  2,325.74

 184610 9/30/2020 0010128  ZENON ENVIRONMENTAL CORP 900577751 SILICONE INJECTION TOOL  240.39

Total :  240.39

 184611 9/30/2020 0000355  ZIPLY FIBER 007-9244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  259.21

 810.00FIBER CONNECTON197-0410

 813.87FIBER CONNECITON197-0420

 74.56CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-9510

 115.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-9874

 265.82CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1568

 70.34CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111

 64.84CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121

 78.51CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-0500

 64.84CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1651

 265.45CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-3228

Total :  2,883.23

Bank total :  952,967.48 193 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 952,967.48Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 193

28Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 34



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 1:32:47PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 184612 9/30/2020 0001799  ACORN PROPERTY MANAGEMENT Ref000277675 UB Refund Cst #00138063  20.14

Total :  20.14

 184613 9/30/2020 0010288  BRIGHT ROCK ASSETS Ref000277673 UB Refund Cst #00177820  370.34

Total :  370.34

 184614 9/30/2020 0010292  BUI, KIMBERLY Ref000277679 UB Refund Cst #00176813  129.90

Total :  129.90

 184615 9/30/2020 0010289  CAIN, MYRNA Ref000277676 UB Refund Cst #00165648  333.77

Total :  333.77

 184616 9/30/2020 0010293  DEFORGE INVESTMENTS INC Ref000277680 UB Refund Cst #00177861  15.75

Total :  15.75

 184617 9/30/2020 0002787  ENCINAS CONSTRUCTION, INC Ref000277681 UB Refund Cst #00178578  144.03

Total :  144.03

 184618 9/30/2020 0010294  GRIFFITH, MEREDITH OR BRYAN Ref000277682 UB Refund Cst #00179144  150.91

Total :  150.91

 184619 9/30/2020 0008882  LINDSEY, JESSICA OR GABRIEL Ref000277674 UB Refund Cst #00125166  11.15

Total :  11.15

 184620 9/30/2020 0010291  ULAMA, SHEININA Ref000277678 UB Refund Cst #00175519  184.58

Total :  184.58

 184621 9/30/2020 0001391  WINDERMERE Ref000277683 UB Refund Cst #00179863  72.82

Total :  72.82

Bank total :  1,433.39 10 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 1,433.39Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 10

1Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 35



09/30/2020

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 1:32:47PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

2Page:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 36



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4.b.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Minutes of Regular Council

Meeting of September 15, 2020
and Council Workshop of
September 23, 2020

FROM: Administration, City Clerk

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approval of Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of September 15, 2020 and the Council
Workshop of September 23, 2020.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Minutes of September 15, 2020 Regular Council Meeting
2. Minutes of September 23, 2020 Council Workshop

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 37

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601595697x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601595743x_at.pdf


Regular Meeting Minutes - September 15, 2020 
Page 1 of 5 

 
 

 Oak Harbor City Council  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

September 15, 2020 

 
Due to COVID-19, physical distancing and masks were required of attendees per WA Proclama-
tion 20-28. The meeting was also available to view via YouTube or Channel 10 or by calling 623-

404-9000 and entering the meeting ID: 149 766 1467 for audio only. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Severns called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Invocation – Mayor Severns led a moment of silence for those affected by COVID-19 as well as for 
the wildfires and the poor air quality created by the smoke. 
Pledge of Allegiance – Led by Mayor Severns 

 
 

Mayor Severns thanked City Staff, the City Council and the community for working with the requirements 
to prevent the spread of COVID-19. He explained the Council and the majority of staff would continue 
to participate remotely and he and the minimal staff in Council Chambers were physically distanced at 
least six feet apart and wearing masks. Mayor Severns noted Island County is currently in a modified 
and reduced Phase 3. Per Island County Public Health, non-essential travel outside of the County and 
State is highly discouraged at this time. He asked citizens to please recreate and shop locally this holiday 
weekend and to remember to wear masks and keep physical distance in public spaces. 
 
Mayor Severns noted more details about COVID-19 and its impact on City services can be found on the 
City’s website, www.oakharbor.org. Additionally, Island County Human Services is providing assistance 
for rent, mortgage payments and utilities. Contact them by phone at (360) 678-8284. 
 
 

ROLL CALL 
   
City Council Present: Videoconference Staff Present: Videoconference 
Mayor Robert Severns  
Mayor Pro Tem Munns  
Councilmember Tara Hizon 
Councilmember Jeff Mack  
Councilmember Joel Servatius 
Councilmember Erica Wasinger  
Councilmember Jim Woessner 
Councilmember Millie Goebel   
 

City Administrator Blaine Oborn  
Interim Finance Director Mike Bailey 
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen  
Development Services Director David Kuhl 
City Engineer Jim Bridges  
Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Fire Chief Ray Merrill 
Police Chief Kevin Dresker 
Assistant City Attorney Anna Thompson 
Human Resources Manager Emma House 
Accountant Tallie Boyer 
City Administrator Assistant Lisa Felix 
Public Information Officer Sabrina Combs 
City Clerk Julie Lindsey 

 
 Also in attendance: City Consulting Attorney      

Grant Weed of Weed, Graafstra & Associates 
  
  

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 38

http://www.oakharbor.org/


Regular Meeting Minutes - September 15, 2020 
Page 2 of 5 

 
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  
Mayor Severns noted staff is requesting removal of item 5.c.i  Approval of Special Meeting: October 13, 
2020 – Budget Study Session. Staff instead proposes a special meeting on November 4 for Capital 
Project Presentations.  Mayor Severns noted staff has also requested to add an Executive Session prior 
to the Closed Session at the end of the agenda, for the purpose of discussing litigation or potential 
litigation. Approximate duration 10 minutes.  He called for a motion to amend the agenda. Mayor Pro 
Tem Munns moved to amend the agenda, changing the October 13 special meeting to November 4, 
2020 and adding the Executive Session to this meeting, seconded by Councilmember Servatius. The 
vote on the motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
2. PRESENTATIONS 

 
a. Proclamations 

 
None. 
 

b. Honors & Recognitions 
 
None. 

 
c. Community Presentations 

 
None. 

 
3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 
Mayor Severns explained citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the Agenda or 
items listed on the Consent Agenda. Comments could be submitted by email to the City Clerk at jlind-
sey@oakharbor.org or by calling 360-279-4539 after 5 p.m. on the Friday preceding the meeting and 
prior to the agenda item.  
 
No comments specific to this meeting were received.  
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 Consent Items 

a. Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers 
b. Minutes of Regular Council Meeting of September 1, 2020  
c. Puget Sound Energy’s Workplace Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Station Pilot Program 
d. Clean Water Facility/Windjammer Park – Final Release Agreement between Haarslev, 

Hoffman and the City of Oak Harbor for the Biosolids Dryer 
 
Mayor Severns called for any changes or objections to the Consent Agenda. Hearing none, the items 
were approved as presented.  
 
5. MAYOR, COUNCIL & STAFF COMMENTS 
 

a. Mayor   

  
  
  

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 39

mailto:jlindsey@oakharbor.org
mailto:jlindsey@oakharbor.org


Regular Meeting Minutes - September 15, 2020 
Page 3 of 5 

 
 

Air Quality – Mayor Severns asked all to note our air quality remains very unhealthy at this 
time due to smoke from wildfires. The City encourages residents to stay indoors when possible 
and to wear masks when outside. He noted citizens can learn more about air quality by check-
ing the Northwest Clean Air Agency website at nwcleanairwa.gov. 
 
Island County has a Type II burn ban in effect, this includes a ban on all outdoor burning 
except for barbeque grills using propane, briquettes or self-contained camp stoves. Please 
use these safely. 
 
And some good news, the CARES Grant Program team is working on the third set of reim-
bursement checks for this week. At this point the City has requested that Island County reim-
burse the City for grant dollars to businesses in the amount of $52,457.05 and for administra-
tive costs in the amount of $13,998.85. Nine businesses have submitted and received reim-
bursement requests. Businesses with questions about the grant process can submit their 
questions via email to cares@oakharbor.org. All grant reimbursement requests must be sub-
mitted by September 30, 2020.  
 
Avenue of the Oaks – Mayor Severns noted he had received word from Laura Renninger, 
President of the Oak Harbor Garry Oak Society, who was excited to announce the street sign 
toppers have arrived for the Avenue of the Oaks, the honorary designation given to S.E. 8th 
Ave. in Oak Harbor. The signs are currently with the City Street Dept. awaiting installation. 
We have a slide with a photo for a glimpse of the how the street signs and sign toppers will 
appear together. 
 

 
b.  Councilmembers 

Councilmember Servatius made the following two motions: 
Motion: “I move to schedule an annual review of our Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC) mem-
bership at our October 6, 2020 Council Meeting.” The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Munns 
and passed unanimously.  

 
Motion: “I move to schedule an action item to discuss the LTAC disbursements at our October 6, 2020 
Council Meeting.” The motion was seconded by Councilmember Wasinger. Following discussion by the 
Council, City Consulting Attorney Weed provided counsel and clarification regarding the City Code 
2.66.030 and 2.66.040 referenced. Councilmember Hizon called for the question. The motion passed 6-
1 with Councilmember Woessner opposed.  
 
 

c. City Administrator 
City Administrator Oborn provided his respective comments and announcements. 

 
i. Approval of Special Meeting: October 13, 2020 – Budget Study Session 

- As noted earlier in the meeting, this item was removed from the agenda. 
 

ii. Update: 2021-2022 Budget Preparation – Administrator Oborn reviewed the revised 
budget calendar, noting the assistance of Interim Finance Director Bailey. Staff will no-
tice a public hearing regarding and adjustment to utility rates for the Council meeting of 
October 20, 2020 and for the Mayor’s preliminary budget on the Council Workshop of 
October 28, 2020. As approved earlier, the Council will hold a special Workshop at 2:00 
P.M. on November 4, 2020 for capital projects related to the budget.  

 
iii. Update: Inflation Rate for Setting 2021 Property Taxes – Administrator Oborn, Interim 

Finance Director Bailey and City Consulting Attorney Weed presented this update to the 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 40



Regular Meeting Minutes - September 15, 2020 
Page 4 of 5 

 
 

Council. The inflation rate set by the State of Washington for setting 2021 property taxes 
has been sharply reduced to 0.601.52%. Staff wishes to provide the Council the oppor-
tunity to take action via Resolution for declaring substantial need for a 1% increase per 
RCW 84.55.005. Consulting Attorney Weed explained the process for increasing the tax 
levy by 1% and noted if they elect to do so, the Council must approve such a resolution 
by November 17, 2020 to allow Island County time to make the adjustments to tax bills. 
Staff will provide Council an action item for a resolution at the September 23, 2020 
Council Workshop. 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & PUBLIC MEETINGS 

 
a. None.  

 
7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 

 
a. None.  

 
8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 

 
a. 2020 Street Overlays and TBD Project: Bayshore and Dock Street Change Order No. 2 

with Island County Public Works 
 

City Engineer Bridges provided the background regarding the first Change Order and the 
Change Order currently before Council.  
 
Councilmember Servatius and Mayor Pro Tem Munns provided their respective questions 
and comments.  
 

Motion:  Mayor Pro Tem Munns moved to authorize the Mayor to approve Island County Public Works 
to accept a Change Order No. 2 with Krieg Construction to add SE Bayshore Drive and Dock Street 
improvements to the 2020 TBD / 2020 Street Overlay Project. The motion was seconded by Coun-
cilmember Wasinger.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
None. 
 

10. REPORTS & ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION  
 

a. Navy Groundwater Extraction Treatment and Recovery (GETR) System Easement in State 
Route 20 

 
City Engineer Bridges and Public Works Director Rosen provided information regarding the 
easement the City has been negotiating with the U.S. Navy, who has a clean-up project in 
an area near the City’s shop facility. The easement will be between the Property line and 
State Route 20. The Navy will construct an extraction treatment facility. 

 
Councilmember Goebel provided her respective questions and comments. 
 
 

b. 2021-2022 Revenue Forecast 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 41



Regular Meeting Minutes - September 15, 2020 
Page 5 of 5 

 
 

City Administrator Oborn and Interim Finance Director Bailey reviewed the Revenue Forecast, 
with Interim Director Bailey stressing this is a preliminary forecast in preparation for the 2021-
2022 budget. He reviewed steps to final revenue projections and graphs showing actual reve-
nues for 2016-present. Director Bailey also reviewed the preliminary biennial budget including 
the General Fund revenue structure with a focus on taxes, which represent 76% of General Fund 
revenues. He thanked City finance staff for their assistance in developing the presentation.  

 
Councilmember Servatius, Mayor Pro Tem Munns, and Councilmembers Woessner and  Mack provided 
their respective questions and comments. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Mayor Severns announced the City Council would go into Executive Session for the purpose of discuss-
ing litigation or potential litigation per RCW 42.30.110 (1) (i) and (ii).  
 
He noted the Executive Session was anticipated to last for 10 minutes and that no action was planned 
upon return to the open session. Executive Sessions are not open to the public. 
 
The Council went into Executive Session at 7:45 p.m. At 7:55 p.m. the Council came out of Executive 
Session and resumed the open session. Mayor Severns announced no action would be taken on the 
matter discussed. 
 
 
11. CLOSED SESSION 

 
Mayor Severns announced that the City Council would go into closed session until approximately 8:10 
p.m.  Closed Sessions are not open to the public.   
 
The Council entered into Closed Session at 7:57 p.m. 
 
Council came out of the Closed Session at 8:13 p.m.  
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Motion: There being no other business, Councilmember Servatius moved to adjourn, seconded by 
Councilmember Wasinger.  The motion was approved by a unanimous vote, therefore the meeting ad-
journed at 8:14 p.m. 
 

Certified by Julie Lindsey, City Clerk   
  

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 42



Workshop Meeting Minutes September 23, 2020 
Page 1  

 

Oak Harbor City Council 
Workshop Meeting Minutes 

September 23, 2020 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Severns called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 
 

Due to COVID-19, there was NO physical meeting location per WA Proclamation 20-28. 
Meeting was viewable live via YouTube and was telephonically available at (623)404-

9000, Meeting ID149-766-1467 (NOTE: Audio only, No Comments). 
 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
City Council Present: Videoconference Staff Present: Videoconference 
Mayor Robert Severns 
Mayor Pro Tem Munns 
Councilmember Jeff Mack 
Councilmember Joel Servatius 
Councilmember Erica Wasinger 
Councilmember Jim Woessner 
Councilmember Millie Goebel 
Councilmember Tara Hizon - 
absent 
 

City Administrator Blaine Oborn             
Interim Finance Director Mike Bailey  
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Development Services Director David Kuhl 
Senior Planner Cac Kamak 
City Engineer Jim Bridges 
Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Associate Planner Ray Lindenburg 
Fire Chief Ray Merrill 
Police Chief Kevin Dresker 
Assistant City Attorney Anna Thompson 
Harbormaster Chris Sublet 
Human Resources Director Emma House 
Purchasing/Contracts Admin.Sandra Place 
Public Information Officer Sabrina Combs 
City Administrator Assistant Lisa Felix  
City Clerk Julie Lindsey 

 
        Also in attendance: City Consulting Attorney      

  Grant Weed of Weed, Graafstra & Associates 

MAYOR 

Mayor Severns announced there was no physical meeting due to COVID-19. Council and staff 
were participating via video conferencing. Those minimal staff present in Council Chambers were 
distanced more than six feet apart and wearing masks. 

CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION ITEMS 

a. PURCHASE AND SALES AGREEMENT – NAVY EASEMENT FOR GETR SYSTEM 

b. WET FIBER AGREEMENT WITH CITY OF ANACORTES 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 43



Workshop Meeting Minutes September 23, 2020 
Page 2  

 

Mayor Pro Tem Munns and Councilmember Servatius provided their respective comments and 
questions. Hearing no objections to the Consent Agenda, the items were approved as presented. 

 

COMMUNITY PARTNER PRESENTATIONS 

a. ARTS COMMISSION:’TAO’ ART PIECE PLACEMENT AT SCENIC HEIGHTS 
LOCATION 

City Administrator Oborn introduced guest Rodric Gagnon, Chair of the Arts Commission, 
accompanied on-line by Arts Commissioner Cynthia Mason, who presented information to Council 
on the Tao sculpture and proposed placement at the Scenic Heights location. An amended 
Resolution 20-17 will be brought forward at a future Council meeting to approve the location 
change from that originally proposed. 

Mayor Pro Tem Munns and Councilmember Servatius provided their respective comments and 
questions. 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

a. RFP/HEARING EXAMINER UPDATE 
 

Senior Planner Kamak provided an update on the recruitment process. Staff is planning to put out 
a Request for Proposals (RFP) later this month and will provide additional information to Council 
in October and November, with action requested in November of early December.   

 

MARINA 

a. OAK HARBOR YOUTH SAILING STORAGE BUILDING RIGHT OF ENTRY - 
AMENDMENT 

Harbormaster Sublet, Assistant City Attorney Thompson, City Consulting Attorney Weed and 
Development Services Director   Kuhl provided background history and reviewed the item 
regarding the placement of a metal storage building for use by OHYS that requires Right of Entry 
Agreement Amendment and outlines insurance requirements and timelines. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Munns, and Councilmembers Servatius and Mack provided their respective 

comments and questions. 
 
The Right of Entry Agreement Amendment will be brought forward at the October 6, 
2020 Council meeting as a consent agenda item.  

 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

a. RESOLUTION 20-24: ISLAND COUNTY MULTI-JURISDICTION HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

Fire Chief Merrill reviewed the Plan. The City in partnership with Island County participates in the 
Plan, which is a requirement of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 and is required in order to 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 44



Workshop Meeting Minutes September 23, 2020 
Page 3  

 

quality for disaster funding from FEMA. The Plan was previously adopted in 2015 and is required to 
be updated and adopted every five years.  
 
The resolution will be brought forward at the October 6, 2020 Council meeting as a consent 
agenda item.  

 
  b,    SELF-CONTAINED BREATHING APPARATUS – (SCBA) 

Fire Chief Merrill noted Purchasing/Contracts Administrator Place would include this item regarding 
the need to purchase updated SCBA’s in her updates regarding proposed purchasing later in the 
meeting. 
 
 
PUBLIC WORKS 

 
a.   CLEAN WATER FACILITY PURCHASES 

Public Works Director Rosen, Project Engineer Arvidson, City Engineer Bridges and Fire Chief 
Merrill provided an overview regarding adding membrane capacity to assist in overflows. They 
explained the two-phase implementation approach will require electrical modifications. Staff is 
recommending moving forward with the membranes installation and will bring an item to the 
Council at the October 6, 2020 meeting. 

Project Engineer Arvidson and Director Rosen also presented information regarding Biosolids Odor 
Control, including background information, proposed costs for modifications and next steps.  
 
Councilmember Servatius, Mayor Pro Tem Munns, Councilmember Mack and Councilmember 
Woessner provided their respective comments and questions. 

 
 

b. VEHICLE REPLACEMENTS  
 
Purchasing/Contracts Administrator Place reviewed and explained the process for evaluation for 
vehicle replacements as well as state and federal contracts. The City is looking to replace a dump 
truck, a patrol vehicle, refuse trucks, and update camera equipment inside the camera van, as well 
as retain a 2007 Impala used by the Police Department. Police Chief Dresker added his comments. 
Additionally, Administrator Place and Chief Merrill reviewed the purchase of replacement SCBA’s.  
 
Councilmember Mack provided his respective comments and questions. 
 
The replacement purchases will be brought forward at an upcoming Council meeting. 

 
 
c. NAVY P-FAS/P-FOS WATER SYSTEM PRESENTATION 

 
City Engineer Bridges reviewed the item. The Department of the Navy has been conducting an off-
base drinking water investigation that occurred in Oak Harbor, south of the Navy’s Former Area 6 
Landfill and identified six private wells southwest of the Former Landfill that have PFAS above the 
EPA’s lifetime health advisory.  The Navy has conducted and Engineering Evaluation/Cost 
Analysis. The City has been working with the Navy for the past two years on this project, which will 
install a new waterline due to wells contamination.  

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 45



Workshop Meeting Minutes September 23, 2020 
Page 4  

 

The item will be brought forward at a future Council meeting. 
 

ENGINEERING 
 

a. 2021 TBD STREET OVERLAY AND ARTERIALS PROJECTS UPDATE 

City Engineer Bridges provided the update on the TBD street overlays and chip seal for roadways 
progressing throughout the City. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Munns and Councilmembers Mack and Woessner provided their respective 
comments and questions. 
 
 

b. 24-INCH WATERMAIN RELOCATION AT CAMPBELL LAKE PER WSDOT PLANS 
 
City Engineer Bridges reviewed the item. The City has been informed the Washington State 
Department of Transportation plans to construct a new roundabout at the intersection of Campbell 
Lake Road and State Route 20 which would necessitate the relocation of the City’s 24-inch 
watermain.  Plans have yet to be developed. Staff will be following up to meet with WSDOT and to 
discuss the impacts and costs of the waterline relocation. Cost is estimated at $2.3 million. 
 
 
FINANCE 
 

a. ORDINANCE NO. 1899 – UTIOLITY RATE INCREASE (CONTINUED FROM MAY 5, 
2020 and JUNE 2, 2020 

City Administrator Oborn and Utility Rate Study Consultant Shawn Koorn provided an update with 
a final utility rate recommendation.  Council first discussed utility rates in February of 2020 and held 
a subsequent public hearing on May 5, 2020 followed by additional discussion on June 2, 2020.  
Consultant Koorn’s presentation included consideration of long-term sustainable revenues, a rate 
study update for water, wastewater, solid waste and storm drainage, process reviews, a revised 
capital plan and next steps.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Munns and Councilmembers Mack and Woessner provided their respective 
comments and questions, including voicing their support for the use of reserve funds to help 
offset and reduce a rate increase. 
 
A public hearing on the proposed ordinance will be held at the October 20, 2020 Council meeting. 

 
 
ADMINISTRATION 

 
a. CARES NORTH WHIDBEY ISLAND SMALL BUSINESS RELIEF PROGRAM 

UPDATE 

City Administrator Oborn introduced Public Information Officer Combs who provided an update 
regarding the CARES North Whidbey Island Small Business Relief Program, including a recap of 
the partnership with Island County and amounts received from the Department of Commerce and 
Island County. The total award amount available to be distributed to business grants is $677,883.  

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 46



Workshop Meeting Minutes September 23, 2020 
Page 5  

 

The City has received 83 applications, 6 of whom subsequently withdrew their application, 7 of 
which did not complete the process, with 70 businesses currently in the process of disbursement.  
To date, 22 businesses have been reimbursed a total of $129,274 and 47 businesses are pending 
reimbursements of $417,978. OIP Combs noted the contributions of staff Lovelady, Boyer and Dela 
Cruz. 

Staff is working on costs for the following additional elements: 
• Personal Protective Equipment Program (PPE) 
• A potential program for the purchase of heaters/canopies in cooperation with the Greater 

Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce to allow businesses to continue to serve customers 
outside as the weather gets colder in coming weeks. Staff is investigating this option within 
existing Development services and Fire Department requirements.  

 
Councilmember Woessner, Mayor Pro Tem Munns and Councilmember Goebel provided their 
respective comments and questions. 
 
Staff will provide an update at the October 6, 2020 Council meeting. 

 
 

b. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

City Administrator Oborn noted his complete report was included in the Council packet and in the 
interest of time he would respond to any questions or comments.  

 
Councilmember Woessner noted his appreciation of having the information in advance of the 
meeting. Administrator Oborn explained this was a team effort of the Administration staff and 
Department Heads.  
 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Councilmember provided additional comments concerning utility rate increases and the need to 
provide clear explanations and proper verbiage to the community.  
 
Mayor Severns thanked the Council for their work, time, input and leadership and thanked staff 
for their work in g information and analysis to Council. 
 
ADJOURN 

 
There being no further reports or discussions, Mayor Severns adjourned the workshop meeting at 
4:41 p.m. 
 

Certified by Julie Lindsey, City Clerk 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 47



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4.c.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Bid Award-Odor Control Unit

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing staff to award the bid to Continental Carbon Group, Inc. for the odor control
units for the Clean Water Facility in the amount of $50,747.40.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 48



The biosolid facility at the Clean Water Facility went into operation September 2019.  The facility
experienced varying levels of odor emissions since then.  There are numerous reasons for the
odors and solutions are potentially expensive.  Many sources of the odors result from operational
practices and staff had a stiff learning curve without vendor support.  Staff has since learned the
system and made modifications to improve odor capture, gradually reducing the odor emissions. 
While further operation reductions are possible, staff feels additional investments in odor control
are justified and cost effective. 
 
Detailed testing has been done and based on that information, staff is able to select a suitable
media and container that removes the odorous compounds. 
 
Staff solicited bids for the equipment on September 5, 2020, utilizing the Whidbey News Times
and the Daily Journal of Commerce (DJC).  Staff will be installing the equipment.
 
Staff received two (2) bids by the deadline on September 18, 2020.  Bid amounts have been
provided in this table below:
 

Vendor Bid Amount
Continental Carbon Group, Inc. $50,747.40
Pure Air Filtration, LLC $98,010.00

 
 
Staff has reviewed the bids and found no discrepancies.  Therefore, staff is proposing to move
forward with awarding the bid to Continental Carbon Group, Inc.
 
Funds are available in the current year Clean Water Facility operation budget to cover this
purchase.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:          $50,747.40                 

Appropriation Source:            402.60.594.35.6400               

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented at the City Council workshop on September 23, 2020.  The presentation
has been attached for your review.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Continental Carbon Group, Inc. bid
2. Workshop PowerPoint Presentation

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 49

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601329114x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601329044x_at.pdf


October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 50



Address and mark envelope to: City of Oak Harbor 
City Clerk 

Bidder 

By 

Signature 

Address 

Phone 

865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 982n 

II ODOR CONTROL UNITS" 

Bid Due Date: 10:00 A.m. Friday, September 18, 2020 

Continental Carbon GrouQ_ Inc. 

205 W. Main St., Bldg. B 

Kirkersville, OH 43033 

416-931-6667 

E-mail address DANGL@CONTINENTAL-CARBON.COM 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
Admlnlltndlon 

SEP 1 6 2020 

Rec:elved By: j ~ 
(2: oo P,M.. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 51



Address and mark envelope to: City of Oak Harbor 
City Clerk 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

II ODOR CONTROL UNITS" 

Bidder 

By 

Signature 

Address 

Bid Due Date: 10:00 A.m. Friday, September 18, 2020 

Continental Carbon Group Inc. 

Deepak Angl 

205 W. Main St., Bldg. B 

Kirkersville OH 43033 

Phone ~4_1_6-_9_31_-_66_6_7~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

E-mail address DANGL@CONTINENTAL-CARBON.COM 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 52



SECTION II 

BID PROPOSAL 

ODOR CONTROL UNITS 

TO: Oak Harbor City Council 
Oak Harbor, Washington 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The undersigned hereby certifies that he has read the "Call for Bids", "Instructions to Bidders", and the 
"Specifications" pertaining to this bid proposal and that he thoroughly understands and agrees to furnish the 
equipment and/or services in the time and at the prices set forth below: 

Fee Proposal 

Two (2) Odor Control Units 

Make and Model 

Sales Tax (8.9%) 

Grand Total 

The bid shall be quoted F.O.B. Oak Harbor, Washington. 

$ 46,600.00 ------''---------
C CG HFVS-3000-SS 

$ ___ 4~14_7_.4_0 __ _ 

$ 50,747.40 
-----------

Delivery of the unit will be made within 50 days after receipt of order. Please specify delivery time. 

Descriptive literature and factory guarantee, or warranty of item bid shall be attached to the bid and become a part 
of any contract entered. 

~~~ . . 
One (1) year from delivery of equipment - see warranty document attached 

Deviations to Specifications noted separately. Yes No ...K...:..Do deviations 

Attached hereto is certified check for $ 2,550.00 payable to the Finance Director, Oak Harbor, 
Washington, which amount is 5% or more of the bid. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 53



BID BOND FORM 

Herewith find deposit in the form of certified check, cashier's check, cash or bid bond in the 
amount of$ 2,550.00 which amount is not less than five perce . (5°0) oft total bid. 

/ " 

That we, , as Principal, and , as 
Surety, are held a firmly bound unto the City of Oak Harbor, as Obligee in the penal sum of dollars, for 
the payment of which Principal and the Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns, jo· ly and severally, by these presents. 

The condition of this o · ation is such that if the Obligee shall make any award to the Principal 

according to the terms of the proposal or tr made by the Principal therefore, and the Principal shall duly 
make and enter into a contract with the Oblige · accordance with the terms of said proposal or bid and 
award and shall give bond for the faithful perform e thereof, with Surety or Sureties approved by the 
obligee; or if the Principal shall, in case of failure so t o, pay and forfeit to the Obligee the penal sum 
amount of the deposit specified in the call for bids, then th1 bligation shall be null and void; otherwise it 
shall be and remain in full force and effect and the Surety shal hwith pay and forfeit to the Obligee, as 
penalty and liquidated damages, the amount of this bond. 

SIGNED, SEALED AND DATED ___ DAY OF ____ _ 

Principal 

Surety 

Received return of deposit in the sum of$ ___________ , 

9 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 54



CCG ODOR CONTROL SYSTEMS 

C&ntinental 
Carbon Group 

Standard Warranty 

WARRANTIES: Seller warrants that the carbon adsorption 
system sold hereunder shall be free from defects in materials 
and workmanship for a period of twelve (12) months from the 
date of delivery. The warranty does not apply to problems 
associated with normal wear and tear, improper maintenance, 
negligence, misuse, or the failure to operate the system in 
strict accordance with the operating and maintenance plan 
provided. For those items provided by, but not directly 
manufactured by the Seller, the manufacturer's warranty shall 
apply provided warranty coverage exceeds that which is 
provided by the Seller. All other warranties, either express or 
implied, are hereby disclaimed including but not limited to the 
warranty of merchantability and fitness for a particular 
purpose. 

Seller warrants that any/all activated carbon or other media 
provided hereunder shall conform to the specifications for 
such grade as published from time to time by the Seller. There 
are no warranties made with regard to the activated carbon or 
system to be sold hereunder other than those contained in this 
paragraph or stated elsewhere in the proposal. All other 
warranties express or implied, are hereby disclaimed 
including, but not limited to, the warranty of merchantability 
and fitness for a particular purpose. 

This warranty is limited to the replacement and/or repair by the 
Seller of any parts or materials which in the Seller's 
determination are defective. This warranty does not cover any 
charges by the Buyer for replacement of parts, adjustments or 
repairs, or any other work unless such charges shall be 
assumed or authorized in advance in writing by the Seller. 

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: Seller's liability and the Buyer's 
exclusive remedy for any cause of action arising out of this 
transaction, including but not limited to breach of warranty, 
negligence and/or indemnification is expressly limited to a 
maximum of the purchase price of the carbon adsorption 
system sold hereunder. All claims of whatsoever nature shall 
be deemed waived unless made in writing within forty-five (45) 
days of the occurrence giving rise to the claim. In no event 
shall the Seller for any reason or pursuant to any provision of 
these warranties be liable for incidental or consequential 
damages, or damages in excess of the purchase price of the 
system supplied, nor shall the Seller be liable for loss of profits 
or fines imposed by Governmental agencies. 

FORCE MAJEURE: Except as otherwise provided 
hereafter, neither party shall be liable to the other party for 
failure to perform any of its obligations hereunder due to Act 
of God, accident, fire, flood, riot, war, sabotage, explosion, 
strike, labor disturbance, national defense requirements, 
governmental law, ordinance, rule or regulation, whether 
valid or invalid, extraordinary failure of equipment or 
apparatus, inability to obtain electricity or other type of 
energy, raw material, labor, equipment or transportation, or 
any similar or different contingency beyond the party's 
reasonable control which would make performance 
impractical whether or not the contingency is of the same 
class as those enumerated above. The party invoking Force 
Majeure shall provide the other party of its estimate as to 
when the Force Majeure condition will end. The minimum 
term of this agreement shall be extended by the duration of 
any Force Majeure period. 

SECURITY INTEREST: Buyer represents that the System 
is equipment to be used for business, and shall remain 
personal property. Buyer grants the Seller a security interest 
in the System to secure the payment of the purchase price. 
Buyer will not sell, lease, transfer or encumber the System 
and will keep it free from any and all liens and security 
interests until the Seller has been paid in full and shall 
execute any and all necessary documents to protect such 
security interests. 

MODIFICATION OR WAIVER OF PROVISIONS: This 
proposal cannot be modified except by agreement in writing 
signed by the Seller. A waiver or repeated waiver by the 
Seller of any provision or the breach of any provision shall 
not constitute a further waiver of such provision or breach. 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT: The proposal, as signed by both 
parties, including the General Terms of Sale and any 
attachments referenced in the proposal, embodies the entire 
agreement between Buyer and Seller. The parties shall not 
be bound by or liable for any statement, representation, 
promise or understanding not set forth herein. Nothing 
contained in correspondence or discussions prior to the date 
of the agreement has any effect on this agreement unless 
specifically incorporated herein. No changes, modifications 
of, or additions to any portion of the agreement shall be valid 
unless reduced to writing, agreed to and signed by both 
parties, and incorporated into the agreement. 

CONTINENTAL CARBON GROUP + COPYRIGHT 2020 + ALL RIGHTS RESERVED 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 55



c, nti.nental 
Carbon Group 

* Material of Construction to be all 304 SS per 

bid requirements 

High Flow VENTSORB® Emission Control Unit 
Continental Carbon Group's High Flow 
VENTSORB• (HFVS) emission control units were 
developed to utilize granular activated carbon 
to treat air/vapor containing vollatile organic 
compounds (VOC), acid gases, ammonia, 
hydrogen sulfide, and other contaminant 
emissions from a variety of applications at 
industrial and commercial sites. 

Model Maximum Carbon 
Airflow Capacity, 
Capacity, cfm lbs. 

HFVS500 500 500 

HFVS1000 1,000 1,000 

HFVS2000 2,000 2,000 

HFVS3000 3,000 3,000 

Features and Benefits: 
Easy to install -the HFVS is fitted with fork- lift 
provisions for ease of off-loading and positioning 
near the emission source. 
Ready to use-The units are delivered preloaded 
with granular activated carbon 
(GAC) to minimize labor costs for set-up. 
Available with a fan and skid for a complete 
adsorption system. 
Optimum design - the HFVS units are designed 
to optimize the amount of GAC installedineach 
unittaking into consideration the airflow 
requirements, available space, and low system 
pressure drop. 
Reusable unit-When the GAC in the HFVS is 
spent and cannot remove additional 
contaminants, it can be easily removed and 
refilled using the large 20" diameter man-way 
installed in the top of the unit. 

These units are designed to allow selection of 
the optimum size to economically solve air 
treatment needs and are constructed with 
features that allow for ease of installation and 
operation. The HFVS units are available in 
four canister sizes: 500 cfm, 1,000 cfm, 2,000 
cfm, and 3,000 cfm. 

Shipping 
Weight, 
lbs. 

1,100 

2,000 

3,700 

5,500 

Corrosion resistant - The HFVS units are 
constructed of 9f:i18*Y liAeel aAEl l:laiAteel eaiton 304 stainless 
steel with a stainless steel bed support. 
Effective treatment of a wide variety of 
contaminants-the HFVS can befilledwith 
different types of GAC to provide treatment 
tailored to your specific requirements. 
Continuous treatment-the HFVS unit works 24 
hours per day to remove contaminants from 
air emissions regardless of fluctuations of air 
flow rate. 
Flexibilitytomeetavarietyofneeds-The 
HFVS unit requires relatively little space. 
When necessary, the units can be installed 
side by side then piped for either series or 
parallel operation. If higher flows or high 
concentrations of contaminates are involved, 
Continental Carbon Group's larger HECA or 
HDB units should be considered. 
Purchase or lease options are available. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 56



c, ntinental 
Carbon Group 

A 

Standard HFVS Dimensions 

Flow Dim A Dim B DimC 

HFVS 500 3611 2411 6611 

0 8 

DimD DimE Dim F DimG DimH 

311 511 1811 1011 57 5/15 
II 

HFVS 1000 4511 3911 6811 311 811 22 1'211 1011 58 5/15" 

HFVS2000 7211 4811 

HFVS3000 7211 7211 

7611 311 1211 

7911 311 1411 

c , ntinental 
Carbon Group 

3611 11 1/12 
II 64 3/e11 

3611 12 1/12'' 67'' 

Continental Carbon Group is constantly striving to improve its products and capabilities and to provide the best product to it customers 
Continental Carbon Group may from time to time develop product improvements or alterations (including, without limitation, 

revisions to product specifications), and may implement such Product Improvements without notice to the Buyer. 

Making Air Safer and Cleaner 

SAFETY MESSAGE 
Wet activated carbon removes oxygen from air, causing a severe hazard to workers inside carbon vessels. Confined space/low 
oxygen procedures should be put in place before any entry is made. Such procedures should comply with all applicable local, 
state and federal guidelines. 

For More Information: 
Continental Carbon Group 2 
www.continental-carbon.com I info@continental-carbon.com I 905.643.7615 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 57



Ci ntinental 
Carbon Group Primary Media - 60 cu ft per unit 

CC-4x8S Coconut-Shell Based Granular Activated Carbon 

DESCRIPTION: 

CC-4x8S is a granular activated carbon that is ideal for most air purification purposes. Made from selected grades 
of coconut shell, its superior level of hardness makes it cleaner than most other carbons and gives it a longer 
life expectancy. This, combined with its high activity level, makes it well-suited for use in any kind of carbon 
filter or system. Aside from general air purification and deodorization, coconut shell carbon is also very effective 
in solvent recovery applications. 

STANDARD PACKAGING: 

CC-4x8S is available in 55 lb. bags or 1,100 lb. bulk bags. Other sizes available upon request. 

SPECIFICATIONS: 

• U.S. standard series sieve size: 4 x 8 mesh 

o Less than No. 8: 5% (max) 

o Greater than No. 4: 5% (max) 

• CCl4 Activity: 60% (min) 

• Iodine No.: 1200 mg/g (min) 
• Hardness: 98% (min) 
• Ash content: 4% (average) 
• Moisture (as packaged): 5% (average) 

• Typical density: 29-32 lbs/ft3 (0.47 -0.50 g/cc) 

SAFETY MESSAGE 
Wet activated carbon removes oxygen from air, causing a severe hazard to workers inside carbon vessels. Confined space/low 
oxygen procedures should be put in place before any entry is made. Such procedures should comply with all applicable local, 
state and federal guidelines. 

For More Information: 
Continental Carbon Group 
www.continental-carbon.com I info@continental-carbon.com I 905.643. 7615 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 58



SAFETY DATA SHEET 

SECTION 1: PRODUCT AND COMPANY INFORMATION 
PRODUCT TYPE: Activated Carbon 

PRODUCT NAME: CC-4x8S 

COMPANY ID: Continental Carbon Group Inc. 
321 -1100 South Service Road, Stoney Creek, Ontario L8E OC5 

TELEPHONE NUMBER: INFORMATION: CORPORATE 905.643.7615 
MEDICAL EMERGENCY: CHEMTREC 800.424.9300 
TRANSPORTATION EMERGENCY: CHEMTREC 800.424.9300 

DATE PREPARED: Mav 30 2016 I REVISION: 0 

SECTION 2: HAZARD S IDENTIFICATION 
HMIS RATINGS 

HEALTH 

FLAMMABILITY 

EH:YSICAL! HAZARD 

PERSONAL PROTECTION 

PICTOGRAM 

• • 0 

E 

NFPA RATINGS 

SIGNAL WORD 

WARNING 

GUIDE 

4 - EXTREME/SEVERE 
3 - HIGH/SERIOUS 
2-MODERATE 
1 - SLIGHT 
0-MINIMUM 
W-WATER REACTIVE 
OX - OXIDIZER 

HAZARD STATEMENT 

H315: Causes skin irritation 
H320: Causes eye irritation 

PRECAUTIONARY STATEMENT S 
PREVENTION 

RESPONSE 

P261: Avoid breathing dusUfume 
P264: Wash thorou hi after handlin . 
P305: IF IN EYES: Irrigate for 15 minutes 

--~~~~~~~~~~-+--P~30~4_: ~IFINHALED:Remove~to_f_re_s_h _ai_r~~~~~~~~~~ 
STORAGE 

OTHER HAZARDS 
NONE 

P402: Store in a dry place. 
P403: Store in a well ventilated place. 
P404: Store in a closed container. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 59



SAFETY DATA SHEET 

SECTION 3: COMPOSITION/INFORMATION ON INGREDIENTS 
PERCENT BY WEIGHT COMMON NAME CAS NO. IMPURITIES 

(Ingredient/ Comoonent) 

100% Activated Carbon 7440-44-0 NONE 

NOTE: The remaining components are considered non-hazardous according to the criteria of the OSHA 
Hazard Communication Standard (29 CFR 1910.1200). 

SECTION 4: FIRST-AID MEASURES 
NECESSARY FIRST AID INSTRUCTIONS 

INHALATION FIRST AID Remove affected person to fresh air. Give artificial respiration 
ONLY if breathing has stopped and give CPR ONLY if there is 
no breathing and no pulse. Obtain medical attention 
immediatelv. 

SKIN CONT ACT FIRST AID Wash skin for 5 minutes with flowing water and soap. Clothing 
should be washed before reuse. Obtain medical assistance if 
irritation develoos. 

EYE CONTACT FIRST AID Immediately irrigate eyes with flowing water continuously for 15 
minutes while holding eyelids open. Contacts should be 
removed before or during flushing. Get medical assistance if 
irritation develoos. 

INGESTION FIRST AID: Drink olentv of water. Obtain medical attention immediatelv. 
DESCRIPTION OF MOST IMPORT ANT SYMPTOMS 
No Additional Information Available. 

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR IMMEDIATE MEDICAL CARE 
No Additional Information Available. 

SECTION 5: FIRE-FIGHTING MEASURES 
SUITABLE EXTINGUISHING MEDIA Water spray, Carbon Dioxide, Foam or Dry Chemical 

UNSUITABLE EXTINGUISHING MEDIA None known 

SPECIFIC HAZARDS Avoid producing suspensions of dust during handling and avoid 
exposure of suspensions to sources of ignition. Suspensions of 
- 40 mesh particles may explode if exposed to strong ignition 
sources. 

Carbon monoxide and carbon dioxide gas may be emitted upon 
combustion of material 

Contact with strong oxidizers such as ozone or liquid oxygen 
mav cause raoid combustion. 

PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT In the event of a fire, wear full protective clothing and NIOSH 
approved self-contained breathing apparatus with full face piece, 
operated in oositive pressure mode. 

SECTION 6: ACCIDENTAL RELEASE MEASURES 
PERSONAL PRECAUTIONS, PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT AND EMERGENCY PROCEDURES 
PERSONAL PRECAUTIONS Handle in accordance with good industrial hygiene and safety 

practices. These practices include avoiding unnecessary 
exposure and removal of a material from eyes, skin, and 
clothinQ. 

Pages 2 of 5 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 60



SAFETY DATA SHEET 

ENVIRONMENT AL PRECAUTIONS The material, in its original state, is not harmful to the 
environment. 

CONTAINMENT AND CLEAN-UP Clean up spills in a manner that does not disperse dust into the 
air. Avoid introducing materials into waterway. 

OTHER INFORMATION None. 

SECTION 7: HANDLING AND STORAGE 
PRECAUTIONS FOR SAFE HANDLING Avoid dispersion into air. Keep containers dry and closed. Follow 

good handling and housekeeping practices to minimize spills, 
generation of airborne dusts, and accumulation of dusts on 
exposed surfaces. Use with adequate exhaust ventilation to 
draw dust away from workers' breathing zones. Prevent or 
minimize exposures to dusts by using appropriate respirators, 
gloves and eye protection. Wash exposed skin areas thoroughly 
with soap and water. Use caution when pouring, using 
pneumatic transport, swirling, etc. as this material can become 
electrostatically charged and present a dust explosion hazard. 

CONDITIONS FOR SAFE STORAGE Avoid spilling material so as to avoid creating a dust suspension. 
Store at ambient atmospheric conditions. Product should be 
stored in a closed dry container. Maintain good housekeeping 
procedures. Store away from strong oxidizers such as ozone, 
liquid oxygen, chlorine, permanganate, etc. 

SECTION 8: EXPOSURE CONTROLS/PERSONAi:. PROTECTION 
ENGINEERING CONTROLS Provide ventilation if necessary to minimize exposure. General 

ventilation is usually acceptable, but local mechanical exhaust 
ventilation is preferred at. sources of air contamination such as 
ooen orocess eauioment. 

RESPIRATORY PROTECTION If use conditions generate dust levels above the TLV / PEL, wear 
a NIOSH-approved particulate respirator or a NIOSH-approved 
cartridge respirator fitted with dust filters. 

SKIN PROTECTION Wear aooropriate dust resistant clothing and gloves. 
EYE/FACE PROTECTION Safety glasses with side shields. If eye contact or dusty 

conditions are likelv wear dust tioht ooooles. 
EXPOSURE LIMITS/GUIDELINES Exposure limits have not been established for this material. 

However, the following are widely accepted limits for exposure to 
otherwise nontoxic oarticulates: 

RESULT OSHAS HR ACGIH TLV 8 HR 
ma/m3 ma/m3 

PARTICULATES NOT OTHERWISE 
TWA 

15 (total) - -
REGULATED (PNOR) 5 (resoirable) -- -
PARTICULATES NOT OTHERWISE 

TWA 
- - 10 (inhalable) 

CLASSIFIED (PNOC) -- - 3 (resoirable) 

SECTION 9: PHYSICAL AND CHEMICAL PROPERTIES 
COLOR Black MOLECULAR WEIGHT NA 
ODOR NONE ODOR THERSHOLD NONE 
pH VALUE NA VAPOR PRESSURE 0 
MELTING POINT NA VAPOR DENSITY SOLID 
FREEZING POINT NA RELATIVE DENSITY 0.4 to 0.7 a/cc 
INITIAL BOILING POINT NA SOLUBILITY NOT SOLUBLE 
FLASHPOINT NA PARTITION COEFFICEINT NA 
EVAPORATION RATE NA AUTO IGNITION TEMP. >400" C 
FLAMMABILITY >400° C DECOMP. TEMP. NA 
UEL NA VISCOSITY NA 
LEL NA 
Pages 3 of 5 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 61



SAFETY DATA SHEET 

SECTION 1 O: ST ABILITY AND REACTIVITY 
REACTIVIVITY NA 

CHEMICAL ST ABILITY Stable 

POSSIBILITY OF HAZARDOUS None 
REACTIONS 
CONDITIONS TO AVOID Contact with strong oxidizers such as ozone, liquid oxygen, 

chlorine, permanganate, etc. may result in rapid combustion. 
Avoid contact with strona acids. 

HAZAROUS DECOMPOSITION PRODUCTS Hazardous decomposition will produce carbon oxides. 

SECTION 11: TOXICOLOGICAL INFORMATION 
INHALATION ACUTE Inhalation of carbon dust is mildly irritating to the lungs and 

can immediately give rise to an increased mucociliary 
transport and airway resistance mediated by the vagus. 
Inhalation LC50 (Rat) > 64.4 ma / I 

CHRONIC There are no known chronic inhalation effects 
SKIN ACUTE Skin contact is expected to be slightly irritating. The primary 

skin irritation index (rabbit) is 0. 
CHRONIC There are no known chronic dermal effects. 

EYE ACUTE Eye contact can cause conjunctivitis, epithelial hyperplasia 
of the cornea, as well as eczematous inflammation of the 
evelids. 

INGESTION ACUTE Activated carbon is practically nontoxic. The probable oral 
lethal dose (human) is greater than 15 g / kg; more than one 
auart (2.2 lbs) for a 150 lb person. 

CHRONIC There are no known chronic inaestion effects. 
LD50 
LC50 
ACUTE TOXICITY ESTIMATES 
CARCINOGENICITY/MUTAGENICITY There are no known carcinoaenic/mutaaenic effects. 
REPRODUCTIVE EFFECTS There are no known reproductive effects. 

NEUROTOXICITY There are no known neurotoxic effects. 
OTHER EFFECTS No other effects of carbon are known. 
TARGET ORGANS Target organs include the respiratory system and the 

cardiovascular svstem. 

SECTION 12: ECOLOGICAL INFORMATION 
The material in its ori inal state is not harmful to the environment. 

SECTION 13: DISPOSAL CONSIDERATIONS 
SPILULEAK Clean spills in a manner that does not disperse dust into the air, preferably a 
PROCEDURES wet-down procedure or vacuum. 
CLEANUP If material is not contaminated, spilled media can be re-bagged. Material that 

cannot be used or chemically reprocessed and empty containers should be 
disposed of in accordance with all applicable regulations. Product containers 
should be thorouahlv emptied before disposal. 

REGULATORY Generators of waste material are required to evaluate all waste for compliance 
REQUIREMENTS with RCRA and any local disposal procedures and regulations. NOTE: State and 

local reaulations mav be more strinaent than federal reaulations. 
DISPOSAL Material that cannot be used or chemically reprocessed and empty containers 

should be disposed of in accordance with all applicable regulations. Product 
containers should be thorouahlv emptied before disposal. Warnina: Wet 

Pages 4 of 5 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 62



SAFETY DATA SHEET 

activated carbon depletes oxygen from the air and therefore dangerously low 
levels of oxygen may be encountered. Whenever workers enter a vessel 
containing activated carbon, the vessel's oxygen content should be determined 
and work procedures for potentially low oxygen areas should be followed. 

SECTION 14: TRANSPORT INFORMATION 
LAND-DOT UN/NA IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: Not Aoolicable to unused finished oroduct 

UN-PROPER SHIPPING NAME: Not Aoolicable to unused finished oroduct 
TRANSPORT HAZARD CLASS: Not Aoolicable to unused finished oroduct 
PACKING GROUP: Not Aoolicable to unused finished oroduct 
MARINE POLLUTANT: Not Aoolicable to unused finished oroduct 
HAZARD CLASS: Not Aoolicable to unused finished oroduct 

WATER - IMO/IMDG UN/NA IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: Not Aoolicable to unused finished oroduct 
UN-PROPER SHIPPING NAME: Not Aoolicable to unused finished oroduct 
TRANSPORT HAZARD CLASS: Not Aoolicable to unused finished oroduct 
PACKING GROUP: Not Aoolicable to unused finished oroduct 
MARINE POLLUTANT: Not Aoolicable to unused finished oroduct 

AIR - ICAO/IAT A UN/NA IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: Not Aoolicable to unused finished oroduct 
UN-PROPER SHIPPING NAME: Not Aoolicable to unused finished oroduct 

For product quantities TRANSPORT HAZARD CLASS: Not Aoolicable to unused finished product 
less than 0. 5 Kg PACKING GROUP: Not Applicable to unused finished oroduct 

MARINE POLLUTANT: Not Aoolicable to unused finished oroduct 

This material does not meet the definition of a self-heating substance (Class 4.2) as determined by the test 
protocol for a "self-heating substance" United Nations Transportation of Dangerous Goods, Manual of Tests 
and Criteria, Part Ill, Section 33.3.1 .6 - Test N.4 - Test Method for Self-Heating Substances. 

SECTION 15: REGULATORY INFORMATION 
OSHA Hazard Communication Standard: Irritant 

OSHA Process Safety Standard: No 

CAA Section 112r: No 

CERCLA Section 103: No RO: None 

SARA Section 302: No; SARA Section 304: No; SARA Section 313: No 

SARA HAZARD Acute: Yes Chronic: No Fire: No Reactive: No 
CATEGORIES 311/312 Sudden Pressure Release: No 
TSCA The ingredients of this product are on the TSCA Inventory List. 

SECTION 16: OTHER INFORMATION 
DISCLAIMER: The information contained herein is based on data considered accurate. 

However, no warranty is expressed or implied regarding the accuracy of these 
data or the results to be obtained from the user thereof. It is the buyer's 
responsibility to ensure that its activities comply with federal, state, provincial 
and local laws. 

REVISION INDICATOR: Revision 0: (This SDS replaces the former MSDS for this product pursuant to 
OSHA 1910.1200(9) Appendix D. The MSDS for this product should be 
considered obsolete). 

321-1100 South Service Road, Stoney Creek, Ontario L8E OC5 I Tel : 905 643 7615 I Fax: 905 643 5403 

www.continental-carbon.com sales@continental-carbon.com 

Pages 5 of 5 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 63



c, ntinental 
Carbon Group 

Polishing Media - 30 cu ft per unit 

CC-CPIIZ Impregnated Media for Odor Control 

DESCRIPTION: 

CC-CPIIZ is a silicate compound impregnated with potassium permanganate (KMn04). It is ideal for those 
applications where activated carbon is ineffective, such as in the adsorption and oxidization of polar or lower 
molecular weight compounds. It was created to oxidize gaseous pollutants such as: hydrogen sulfide, sulfur 
dioxide, formaldehyde, ethylene, mercaptans, and various aldehydes and alcohols. CC-CPIIZ contains a higher 
percentage of potassium permanganate than similar products, thus giving it a longer service life. 

APPLICATIONS: 

Effective for treatment in air dryers, scrubber tanks, compressor tanks, exhaust systems, computer rooms, general 
HVAC applications, and fresh fruit, vegetable and flower storage & transportation. CC-CPIIZ has a density of 60 
pounds per cubic foot versus SO pounds per cubic foot for activated alumina. When the media is placed in a 
scrubber/filter (or any fixed space) there are less open spaces or voids (approximately 20% less). Pollutant air is 
filtered more efficiently when void spaces are minimized. It also generates less dust than other products when 
agitated, making for easier and cleaner handling and use. 

TYPICAL PROPERTIES: 
Media Type: 
US standard series sieve size: 
Active Ingredient: 
Moisture content: 
Bulk Density: 

STANDARD PACKAGING: 

Granular 
4x 8 mesh 
Potassium Permanganate 6% 
12% (average) 
60 lbs/ ft3 (min)/ 0.96 g/cc (min) 

60 lb. box or 2,000 lb. bulk bag. Other sizes available upon request. 

For More Information: 
Continental Carbon Group 
www.continental-carbon.com I sales@continental-carbon.com I 905.643.7615 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 64



c, ntinental 
Carbon Group 

CC-CPIIZ Material Safety Data Sheet 

Revision date : 10/1/2017 

SECTION 1: Identification of the substance/mixture and of the company/undertaking 1.1 -

Product Identifier 

Product Name: CC-CPIIZ 

1.2 - Relevant identified uses of the substance or mixture and uses advised against 

Use of the substance/mixture : Vapor Phase Adsorption 

1.3 - Details of the supplier of the safety data sheet 

Continental Carbon Group 

321-1100 South Service Road, Stoney Creek, ON L8E OC5 

T: 905-643-7615 

www.continental-carbon.com 

Section 2 - Material Identification and Information 
ll - Classification of the substance or mixture GHS-US 

classification 
Ox. Sol. 2 H272 
STOT SE 3 H335 

2.2 - Label Elements 
GHS-US labelling 

Hazard pictograms (GHS-US) : 

Signal word (GHS-US) : Danger 
Hazard statements (GHS-US) : 

GHS03 

H272 - May intensify fire; oxidizer H335 - May 
cause respiratory irritation 

Precautionary statements (GHS-US) : 

GHS07 

P210 - Keep away from heaVsparks/open flames/hot surfaces - No smoking P220- Keep/Store 
away from clothing/combustible materials 
P221 - Take any precaution to avoid mixing with combustibles P261 - Avoid 
breathing dust/fume/gas/mist/vapours/spray P271 - Use only outdoors or in a 
well-ventilated area 
P280 - Wear protective gloves/protective clothing/eye protection/face protection P304+P340 - IF INHALED: 
Remove person to fresh air and keep comfortable for breathing P312- Call a POISON CENTER/doctor/if you 
feel unwell 
P370+P378 - In case of fire: Use for extinction 
P403+P233 - Store in a well-ventilated place. Keep container tightly closed P405 - Store 
locked up 
P501 - Dispose of contents/container 

U - Other Hazards 
No additional information available 

2.4 - Unknown acute toxicity (GHS US) No 
data available 

SECTION 3: Composition/Information on Ingredients 
ll - Substances 
Not applicable 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 65



li - Mixture ---
Product GHS-US 

Name Identifier % Classification 

(CAS No.) 79.5 -
Zeolite 1318-02-1 81.5 STOT SE 3, H335 

--
(CAS No.) 12.5 -

Water 7732-18-5 14.5 Not classified 

Potassium (CAS No.) 6 - 8 Ox. Sol. 2, H272 
permanganate 7722-64-7 Acute Tox. 4 (Oral), 

H302 

SECTION 4: First aid measures 

4.1 - Description of first aid measures 
First-aid measures after inhalation : Remove person to fresh air. If not breathing, administer CPR or artificial respiration. Get 
immediate medical attention. 
First-aid measures after skin contact : If skin reddening or irritation develops, seek medical attention. 
First-aid measures after eye contact : Immediately flush eyes with plenty of water for at least 15 minutes. If irritation persists get medical 
attention. 
First-aid measures after ingestion: If the material is swallowed, get immediate medical attention or advice. DO NOT induce vomiting 
unless directed to do so by medical personnel. 

4.2 - Most important symptoms and effects, both acute and delayed Symptoms/injuries after inhalation : 
May cause respiratory irritation. Symptoms/injuries after skin contact : Causes skin irritation. May stain 
body tissue. Symptoms/injuries after eye contact : Causes serious eye irritation. 

Symptoms/injuries after ingestion : May be harmful if swallowed. 

~ - Indication of any immediate medical attention and special treatment needed No additional 
information available 

SECTION 5: Firefighting measures 
il - Extinguishing media 
Suitable extinguishing media : Use extinguishing media appropriate for surrounding fire Unsuitable 
extinguishing media : None 
~ - Special hazards arising from the substance ormixture Fire hazard : 
May intensify fire; oxidizer 
Explosion hazard : None known 

Qd -Advice forfirefighters 
Protection during firefighting : Firefighters should wear full protective gear 

SECTION 6: Accidental release measures 
2:.1 - Personal precautions. protective equipment and emergency procedures General measures 
: Avoid contact with the skin and the eyes 
For non-emergency personnel : No additional information available For emergency 
responders : No additional information available 

~ - Environmental precautions None 

§d - Methods and material for containment and cleaning up For 
containment : If possible, stop flow of product 
Methods for cleaning up : Shovel or sweep up and put in a closed container for disposal 

6.4 - Reference to other sections No 
additional information available 

SECTION 7: Handling and storage 

L.! - Precautions for safe handling 
Precautions for safe handling : Avoid contact with eyes 

7.2 - Conditions for safe storage. including any incompatibilities 
Storage conditions : Protect containers from physical damage. Store in dry, cool, well-ventilated area 7.3 - No additional 

information available 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 66



SECTION 8: Exposure controls/personal protection 

!U - Control parameters 

No additional information available 

8.2 - Exposure controls 
Appropriate engineering controls : Local exhaust and general ventilation must be adequate to meet exposure standards 
Hand protection : Use impervious gloves to minimize skin contact 

2014 EN {English) 3/5 
Eye protection : Safety glasses 

Skin and body protection : Wear suitable working clothes 
Respiratory protection: If airborne concentrations are above the applicable exposure limits, use NIOSH approved respiratory 
protection 

SECTION 9: Physical and chemical properties 
9.1 - Information on basic physical and chemical properties 
Physical state : Solid 
Appearance : Granules 
Colour : Purple 
Odour : No data available 
Odour threshold : No data available pH : No 
data available 
Relative evaporation rate {butylacetate=1): No data available Melting point: 
No data available 
Freezing point : No data available Boiling 
point : No data available Flash point : No 
data available 
Self ignition temperature : No data available Decomposition 
temperature : No data available Flammability {solid, gas) : 
No data available Vapour pressure : No data available 
Relative vapour density at 20 °C : No data available Relative 
density : 59-61 lb/ft3 
Solubility : No data available Log 
Pow : No data available Log Kow : 
No data available 
Viscosity, kinematic: No data available Viscosity, 
dynamic : No data available Explosive properties 
: No data available Oxidising properties : No data 
available Explosive limits : No data available 

9.1 - Other information 
No additional information available 

SECTION 1 O: Stability and reactivity 
.1QJ. - Reactivity 
None known 

10.2 - Chemical stability 
Stable under normal conditions 

1-Q& - Possibility of hazardous reactions Will not 
occur 

10.4 - Conditions to avoid 
None 

10.5 - Incompatible materials None 

10.6 - Hazardous decomposition products None 

SECTION 11: Toxicological information 
11.1 - Information on toxicological effects 

Acute toxicity : Not classified 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 67



Zeolite (1318-02-1) 

LD50 oral rat 5000 mg/kg 

LD50 dermal rabbit > 2000 mg/kg 

LC50 inhalation rat (mg/I) 2.4 mg/I (Exposure time: 1 h) 

ATE (oral) 5000 mg/kg 

-

Potassium permanganate (7722-64-7) 

LD50 oral rat 750 mg/kg 

Skin corrosion/irritation : Causes skin irritation 
Serious eye damage/irritation : Causes serious eye irritation 
Respiratory or skin sensitisation : Not classified 
Germ cell mutagenicity : Not classified 
Carcinogenicity : Not classified 

Zeolite (1318-02-1) 

IARCgroup 

Reproductive toxicity : Not classified 
Specific target organ toxicity (single exposure) : Not classified 
Specific target organ toxicity (repeated exposure) : Not classified 
Aspiration hazard : Not classified 

SECTION 12: Ecological information 
12 1 - Toxicity 

- -
Zeolite (1318-02-1) 

LC50 fishes 1 
1800 mg/I (Exposure time: 96 h - Species: 
Brachydanio rerio [semi-static)) 

-
EC50 Daphnia 1 

1000 - 1800 mg/I (Exposure time: 48 h - Species: 
Daphnia magna) 

EC50 other aquatic 18 mg/I (Exposure time: 96 h - Species: 
organisms 1 Desmodesmus subspicatus) 

LC50 fish 2 
3200 - 5600 mg/I (Exposure time: 96 h - Species: 
Oryzias latipes [semi-static)) 

Potassium permanganate (7722-64-7) 

LC50 fishes 1 

LC50 fish 2 

12.2 - Persistence and degradability No 
additional information available 

12.3 - Bioaccumulative potential 

3.3 - 3.93 mg/I (Exposure time: 96 h -
Species: Carassius auratus (static)) 

2.97 - 3.11 mg/I (Exposure time: 96 h -
Species: Cyprinus carpio) 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 68



Potassium hydroxide (1310-58-3) 

Log Pow 

12.4 - Mobility in soil 
No additional information available 

12.5 - Other adverse effects 
No additional information available 

SECTION 13: Disposal considerations 
13.1 - Waste treatment methods 

I 0.65 

Waste disposal recommendations : Dispose of contents/container in accordance with 
local/regional/national/international regulations 

SECTION 14: Transport Information 
In accordance with DOT/ ADR /RID/ ADNR / IMDG /!CAO/ IATA 

HJ. - UN number 
Not applicable 

14.2 - UN proper shipping name Not 
applicable 

SECTION 15: Regulatory Information 
15.1 - US Federal regulations 

Potassium permanganate (7722-64-7) 

Listed on the United States TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act) inventory 

1§1. - US State regulations 

Potassium permanganate (7722-64-7) 

U.S. - Massachusetts - Right To Know List 
U.S. - New Jersey - Right to Know Hazardous Substance List 
U.S. - Pennsylvania - RTK (Right to Know) List 

SECTION 16: Other information 
Full text of H-phrases: -- -
Acute Tox. 3 (Oral) 0.65 

Eye lrrit. 2A 
Serious eye damage/eye 
irritation Category 2A 

Skin Corr. 1A 
skin corrosion/irritation Category 1A 

-
Skin lrrit. 2 

skin corrosion/irritation Category 2 

H301 Toxic if swallowed 

H314 
Causes severe skin burns and eye 
damage 

H315 Causes skin irritation 

H319 Causes serious eye irritation 

. . .. 
NFPA health hazard : 1 - Exposure could cause 1mtat1on but only minor residual 1nJury even if no treatment is given 
NFPA fire hazard : 1 - Must be preheated before ignition can occur 
NFPA reactivity : 0 - Normally stable, even under fire exposure conditions, and are not reactive with water 

This information is based on our current knowledge and is intended to describe the product for the purposes of health, safety and 
environmental requirements only. It should not therefore be construed as guaranteeing any specific property of the product. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 69



72" 
(1828mm 

E 
• IE N OI 
I'- N 

CX) 
~ 

E 
~I~ CANISTER 

OI 

E:-1-------------------~----
• E 
l'l <O 

t=. 

E IE ~1~ ~! 
"8 ~ ~ 

N 

36" 
914mm 

PLAN 
SCALE: 1" -

1·-0· 

72• 
1828mm 

E I ~ I I I • E I I 
VN 

~ ._.. 

1/2" DRAIN ELEVATION 
SCALE: 1" -

1·-0· 

20" MANWAY 

A] 

14" OUTLET NOZZLE 
(150# ORIWNG) 

E . IE ~~ 
Ill l'l 

1J 

- Qty. Two (2) Units Proposed, 304SS construction 

- Media volume per unit: 90 cu ft 

- Pressure drop across adsorber@ 3,000 CFM: estimated 7-8" w.g. 

72• 
(1829mm) 

39• 

I 
(990mm) 

cl CANISTER 

l I 
""' I 

-- I 

:._'.; ,''.=: .. -.~-:-· : '.· .. ~ . .. ·-:::: -:,_->-_::·y >.::.:·:·:':'. ~--">. :.·.::-· __ .: ·._;. ~ -.:: :i: 
---------------1----------------

-- I 
I 

H I J 

VIEW A-A 
SCALE: 1" -

1·-0· 

i . 
~ 
" 

\ 1/2" DRAIN 

NET WT. = 2600 LBS 

filllES; 

1. MATERIALS OF CONSTRUCTION: 
STAINLESS STEEL 304 AND BUNA-N GASKETS. 

2. DESIGN PARAMETERS: MEDIA VOLUME: 90 CU FT 
CFM: 3000 
PRESSURE: 3 PSI @ 140.F. 

MS 19119G NII DDDI IS 1IE MDf"ERff a, 
CDftlEJIDL CMIOtl GRalJP NIii IS NOi' 1V E 

REV 0£SCRtPTION Al'PI ll4IE' 
RE.VISIONS 

IPbE8MCE:i Cvn• ottwr«ilt MIFffltcf) 
- OIi># - (2 PUCO) ....... 
,_ ld/r - (J PUICD) ........ 
DECIIIIL (I l'UOl)_UII IIEDIW. (4 l'IIIID) "-"""" 

Ctntinental 
Carbon Group 

~·~..=~=m:rnCi.JENr 
allD ar CONINNW. CllfllON GROLP. 1115 .......0 
UWED ltaECf fl> IE'IUIN CII IJDWtD. - IM7£ 
ORAF1£R Ml SEP 9,2020 
OE5IGNER 
CHECKER 
APPROVAL 

~ STANDARD 

11TI.E 
HFVS-3000 

VAPOR CANISTER 
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT 

~- D l~~ 1 OF 1 ISCAlfs NOTEl 

~ 90300914 IR£v. o 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 70



ORIGIN ID:YHMA (905) 643-7615 
Dee~akAngl 
ContinentafCarbon Group 
1100 South Service Rd Suite 321 

STONEY CREEK, ON L8EOC5 
CANADA.CA 

TO City Clerk 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 

OAK HARBOR, WA 98277 
UNITED STATES, US 

SHIP DATE: 15SEP20 
ACTWGT: 1.00 LB 
CAD: 103900174/INET4282 

BILL SENDER 
EINNAT: 

(360) 279-4500 

~~ 
Express 

(US) 'E1 ~ 
L5J i AWB ~ 

1111111111 n 1111111 
XHODWA 

DSR 
PKG:ENV 

TRK# 7715 2479 0397 

12:00P 
INTL PRIORITY 

REF: 
DESC1:BUSINESS DOCUMENT 
DESC2: -
DESC3: 
DESC4: 

COUNTRY MFG: CA 
CARRIAGE VALUE: 0.00 CAD 
CUSTOMS VALUE: 1.00 CAD 

Fann 
0430 

These commodities, tedlnology, or software were expo,ted from 
Canada in aa:on!ance with the export adminislra1ioo regulations. 
Dtvemon contrary to l:.1nodi;ln law prnhibiled. The WaJSBW 
Convention ma~ !!Pl)ly and wil govern and in mast cans !mil the 
lbllty of Federal E!<JllUSO for loss or delay of or damage to 
your shlpmenl Subject to the conditions of the c:on1racL 

SIGN: Deepak Angl 
TIC: S 312101653 
D/T: S 312101653 

FEDEX AWB COPY - PLEASE PLACE IN POUCH 

>-
0. 
0 
0 
Ill 
Ill 

z --Cl C: 
- GI cn E z a. 
0 :c 
0 "' 
Q . ::i z a, 0 
5: .5 ::>.. 
111i g 
m C .-:: 

~-~s 
c( a ., 
.J .c: 'O 
0.. a,~ 
w £.c 
Cll Cl u 

:; .Q &. 
.J ., Cl 

0. a, " 

:g >- ~ :~ 
!~-g-5; 
:g O c .E 
Ulm ·a di 

~~lj 
"[l.j; ~ 
l@&a: 
<(tLr-N 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 71



A
ft

e
r 

pr
in

~n
g 

th
is

 la
be

l 

~ I C
l 

(/
) 

><
 

:::c
 

0 C
 ~ 

C
O

N
S

IG
N

E
E

 C
O

P
Y

· 
P

L
E

A
S

E
 P

L
A

C
E

 IN
 F

R
O

N
T

 O
F

 P
O

U
C

H
 

1.
 F

ol
d 

th
e 

pr
in

te
d 

pa
ge

 a
lo

ng
 t

he
 h

on
zo

nt
a

l l
in

e
. 

2
. P

la
ce

 la
be

l i
n 

sh
ip

pi
ng

 p
ou

ch
 a

nd
 a

ff
ix

 It
 to

 y
ou

r 
sh

ip
m

en
t. 

c en
 - 56B

J6
/1

54
5I

B7
66

 

C
D

 

i=
 

en
 

m
 

:z
 

C
J
 

m
 

::
0

 

LE
G

A
L 

TE
R

M
S

 A
N

O
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S
 O

F 
FE

 D
E

X
 S

H
IP

P
IN

G
 D

E
FI

N
m

O
N

S
 O

n 
th

is
 A

Jr
W

ay
bi

l, 
'w

e
",

 ·o
u~

. "
us

', 
an

d 
'F

ed
E

x"
 r

er
er

 to
 F

ed
er

al
 E

xp
re

s,
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n,
 it

s 
su

bS
1d

1a
ne

s 
an

d 
br

an
ch

es
 a

nd
 th

e
 r 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 a
ge

nt
s,

 a
nd

 U
ld

ep
en

cl
en

t c
on

tra
ct

or
s 

Th
e 

te
rm

s 
"y

ou
· a

nd
 "

yo
ur

" 
re

fe
r t

o 
th

e 
sh

ip
pe

r 
its

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s,

 p
nn

ap
al

s 
an

d 
ag

en
ts

 I
f y

ou
r 

st
vp

m
en

t o
ng

1n
at

es
 o

ut
si

de
 th

e 
U

nr
te

d 
S

ta
te

s,
 y

ou
r c

on
tra

ct
 o

f c
ar

na
ge

 
is

 w
ith

 th
e 

F
ed

E
x 

su
bs

id
ia

ry
, b

ra
nc

h 
or

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t c

on
tr

ac
to

r w
ho

 o
ng

in
aN

y 
ac

ce
pt

s 
th

e 
sh

tp
m

en
t f

ro
m

 y
ou

 T
he

 te
rm

 "
pa

ck
ag

e•
 m

ea
ns

 a
ny

 c
on

ta
in

er
 o

r 
en

ve
lo

pe
 th

at
 1

s 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 b

y 
us

 fo
r 

de
liv

er
y,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
an

y 
su

ch
 it

em
s 

te
nd

er
ed

 b
y 

yo
u 

ut
iliz

in
g 

ou
r 

au
to

m
at

ed
 s

ys
te

m
s 

m
et

er
s,

 m
an

ife
st

s 
or

w
ay

bi
lls

 T
he

 te
rm

 ·s
tu

pm
en

t" 
m

ec
11

s 
al

l p
ac

ka
ge

s 
w

tu
ch

 a
re

 te
nd

er
ed

 to
 a

nd
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

b
y 

us
 o

n 
a 

si
ng

le
 ~

r 
W

ay
b1

M
 A

IR
 

C
liR

R
IA

G
E

 N
O

TI
C

E
. F

or
 a

ny
 in

te
rn

at
io

na
l s

hi
pm

en
ts

 b
y

 a
ir.

 th
e 

W
ar

s'
il!

N
 C

on
ve

nt
io

n,
 a

s 
am

en
de

d,
 m

ay
 b

e 
ap

pl
 c

ab
le

 T
he

 W
ar

s'
iff

i C
on

ve
nt

io
n,

 a
s 

am
en

de
d,

 W
U 

th
en

 g
ov

er
n 

an
d 

in
 m

os
t c

as
es

 k
m

it 
Fe

dE
x'

s 
ha

bi
lit

yf
or

lo
ss

. d
el

ay
 o

f, 
or

 d
am

ag
e 

to
 y

ou
r 

sh
ip

m
en

t 
Th

e 
W

'ilf
S

'ilN
 C

on
ve

nb
on

, a
s 

am
en

de
d,

 ti
m

its
 F

ed
E

x'
s 

lra
bl

kt
y 

Fa
r e

xa
m

pl
e 

m
 th

e 
U

S
 l

1a
bi

ht
y1

s 
lim

ite
d 

to
 $

9 
07

 p
er

 p
ou

nd
 (

20
$ 

pe
r k

ilo
gr

am
), 

un
le

ss
 a

 h
ig

he
r 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
ca

rri
ag

e 
is

 d
ec

la
re

d 
as

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 b

el
ow

 a
nd

 y
ou

 p
ay

 a
rry

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 s

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 r
ha

rg
es

 T
he

 in
te

l'J
)R

!ta
tD

n 
an

d 
op

er
ab

on
 o

f t
he

 W
ar

sa
w

 C
on

ve
nt

io
n'

s 
lia

bU
ity

 li
m

its
 m

ay
 Y

af
Y 

in
 e

ac
h 

co
un

try
 T

he
re

 a
re

 
no

 s
pe

ci
fic

 s
to

pp
in

g 
pl

ac
es

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 a

gr
ee

d 
to

 a
nd

 F
ed

E
x 

re
se

rv
es

 th
e 

rig
ht

 to
 r

ou
te

 th
e 

sh
ip

m
en

t. 
in

 a
rr

yw
ay

F
ed

E
xd

ee
m

s 
ap

pr
op

na
te

 R
O

A
D

 T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T 
N

O
TI

C
E

 S
hi

pm
en

ts
 tr

an
sp

or
te

d 
so

le
ly

 b
y 

ro
ad

 to
 o

r 
fro

m
 a

 cc
N.

m
try

 w
hk

:h
 is

 a
 p

ar
ty

 ta
 th

e 
W

ar
sa

N
 C

on
ve

nt
io

n 
or

 th
e 

C
on

tra
ct

 fo
r U

'le
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l C

ar
ria

ge
 o

f G
oo

ds
 b

y 
R

oa
d 

(th
e 

·c
M

R
")

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
of

 th
e 

C
M

R
, n

D
lW

lth
st

an
di

og
 a

rry
 o

th
er

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 th

is
 A

ir 
W

ay
bi

ll 
to

 th
e 

co
nt

ra
ry

 F
or

 th
os

e 
sh

ip
m

en
ts

 tr
an

sp
or

te
d 

so
le

ty
 b

y 
ro

ad
, I

f a
 c

on
fh

ct
 a

ns
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
pr

1M
s1

on
s 

of
 th

e 
C

M
R

 a
nd

 th
is

 A
Jr

 W
ay

bi
ll,

 th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 th
e 

C
M

R
 s

ha
U 

pr
ev

a~
 L

IM
IT

AT
IO

N
 

O
F 

LI
AB

IL
IT

Y 
If 

no
t g

ov
er

ne
d 

by
 th

e 
W

ar
s'i

N
V 

C
on

ve
nt

io
n,

 th
e 

C
M

R
, o

r o
th

er
 tn

te
m

ab
O

na
l t

re
ab

es
, l

aw
s.

 D
th

er
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

, o
rd

er
s,

 o
r r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

, F
ed

E
x'

s 
m

ax
im

um
 l1

ab
~i

ty
 fo

r d
am

ag
e,

 lo
ss

, d
el

ay
, 

sh
or

ta
ge

, m
is

-d
el

iv
er

y,
 n

on
de

liv
er

y,
 m

is
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
or

 ra
ilu

re
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
fo

rm
at

um
 N

1 c
on

ne
cb

on
 w

ith
 y

au
r 

sh
ip

m
en

t i
s 

hm
rte

d 
b

y 
th

is
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t a
nd

 a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 o

r c
ar

na
ge

 
P

le
as

e 
re

fe
r 

to
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 o

f c
ar

ria
ge

 s
et

 fo
rth

 in
 th

e 
ap

pf
fc

ab
le

 F
ed

E
x 

S
eM

ce
 G

ui
de

 o
r i

ts
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t t
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l N
m

ita
tJ

on
 F

ed
E

x 
do

es
 n

ot
 p

nM
C

le
 c

ar
go

 tt
ab

iiit
y 

or
 a

ll-
ris

k 
1n

su
ra

nc
e,

 b
ut

 y
ou

 m
ay

 
pa

y 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

ha
rg

e 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 a

dc
hb

on
a1

 U
S

 $
10

0 
(o

re
qU

M
1l

en
tk

>c
al

 c
ur

re
nc

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
tJ

yo
f o

ng
m

) 
of

 d
ec

la
re

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

ca
rn

ag
e 

tr 
a 

h
ig

h
e

r~
u

e
 fo

r 
ca

rn
ag

e 
IS

 d
ec

la
re

d 
an

d 
th

e 
ad

dt
bo

na
l c

ha
rg

e 
1s

 p
ai

d
, 

Fe
dE

x'
s 

m
ax

im
um

 li
ab

iit
yw

ll 
be

 th
e 

le
ss

er
 c

l t
he

 d
ec

la
re

d 
va

lu
e 

ro
r c

ar
na

ge
 o

r y
ou

r 
ac

tu
al

 d
am

ag
es

 U
AB

H
JT

IE
S 

N
O

T 
A

S
S

U
M

E
D

 I
N 

N
W

 E
VE

IT
T,

 F
ED

E>
< 

W
O

N
'T

 B
E

 L
IA

B
LE

 F
O

R
 N

W
 D

A
M

A
G

E
S

, W
H

E
TH

E
R

 
D

IR
E

C
T,

 IN
D

IR
E

C
T,

 IN
C

ID
E

IT
TA

L,
 S

P
E

C
IA

L 
O

R
 C

O
N

S
E

O
U

E
N

llA
L 

IN
 E

X
C

E
S

S
 O

F 
TH

E
 D

E
C

LA
R

E
D

 V
AL

U
E 

FO
R

 C
A

R
R

L'
IG

E
 (

IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 B
U

T 
N

O
T 

LI
M

IT
ED

 T
O

 L
O

S
S

 O
F 

IN
C

O
M

E
 O

R
 P

R
O

FI
TS

) 
O

R
 T

H
E

 
A

C
TU

A
L 

VA
LU

E 
O

F 
TH

E
 S

H
IP

M
EI

TT
, I

F 
LO

W
E

R
, W

H
E

TH
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
T 

FE
DE

><
 H

A
D

 N
W

 K
N

O
'M

..E
D

G
E

 T
H

A
T 

S
U

O
l D

A
M

A
G

E
S

 M
IG

H
T 

B
E

 IN
C

U
R

R
E

D
 F

ed
E

x 
w

on
~ 

be
 H

ab
le

 fo
r y

ou
r a

ct
s 

or
 o

m
1S

S1
on

s, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 in
co

rr
ec

t d
ec

la
ra

tm
n 

of
 c

ar
go

, m
pr

op
er

 o
r i

ns
uf

fic
ie

nt
 p

ac
ka

gm
g

. s
ec

un
ng

. m
ar

km
g 

or
 a

dc
te

ss
1n

g 
of

 th
e 

sh
ip

m
en

t. 
or

 fo
r t

he
 a

ct
s 

or
 o

m
1s

s1
on

s 
of

 th
e 

re
ci

pi
en

t o
r 

an
yo

ne
 e

ls
e 

W
ith

 a
n 

in
te

re
st

 in
 th

e 
sh

ip
m

en
t o

r v
io

la
tio

ns
 b

y 
an

y 
pa

rty
 o

f t
he

 te
rm

s 
of

 th
ts

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

Fe
dE

x 
w

on
't 

be
 li

ab
le

 fo
r 

da
m

ag
e,

 lo
ss

. d
el

ay
. s

ho
rta

ge
, r

nt
s-

de
hv

er
y 

no
n-

de
kv

er
y,

 r
nt

sm
to

rm
ab

on
 o

r f
ai

lu
re

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
fo

rm
ab

on
 m

 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

w
ith

 s
hi

pm
en

ts
 o

f c
as

h,
 c

ur
re

nc
y 

or
 o

th
er

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d 

ite
m

s 
or

 1
r1

1r
1s

ta
nc

es
 b

ey
on

d 
ou

r c
on

tro
l, 

su
ch

 a
s 

ac
ts

 o
f G

od
. p

er
ils

 d
 t

he
 a

ir,
 w

ea
th

er
 c

on
di

bo
ns

, m
ec

ha
nK

:a
l d

el
ay

s,
 a

ct
s 

of
 p

ub
lic

 e
ne

m
 e

s,
 w

ar
, 

st
rik

e,
 c

iv
il 

co
m

m
ot

io
n,

 o
r 

ac
ts

 o
r o

m
is

sK
Jn

s 
or

 p
ub

lic
 a

ut
ho

rit
1e

s(
N

1c
lu

di
ng

 c
us

to
m

s 
an

d 
he

al
th

 o
tft

c1
al

s)
 w

ith
 a

ct
ua

l o
r a

pp
ar

en
t a

uU
lo

nt
y 

N
O

 W
A

R
R

A
N

TY
 W

e 
m

ak
e 

no
 w

ar
ra

nu
es

, e
xp

re
ss

 o
r 1

m
pM

ed
 C

l.A
IM

S
 F

O
R

 
LO

S
S

, D
AM

AG
E 

O
R

 D
E

LA
Y

 A
LL

 C
LA

IM
S 

M
U

S
T 

B
E

 M
A

D
E

 IN
 W

R
m

N
G

 A
N

D
 W

TT
HI

N 
S

TR
IC

T 
TI

M
E 

LI
M

IT
S 

S
E

E
 O

U
R

 T
A

R
IF

F,
 A

P
P

LI
C

A
B

LE
 F

ED
E>

< 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
 G

U
ID

E
, O

R
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

 O
F 

C
A

R
R

IA
G

E
 F

O
R

 O
ET

AN
..S

 T
he

 W
ar

sa
N

 C
on

ve
nt

10
n 

pr
ov

id
es

 s
pe

ci
fic

 w
rit

te
n 

cl
ai

m
s 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 fo

r 
da

m
ag

e
, d

el
ay

 C
J' 

no
n-

de
ltv

er
y 

of
 y

ou
r 

sh
ip

m
en

t 
M

or
eo

ve
r, 

th
e 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
op

er
at

Jo
n 

of
 th

e 
W

ar
'S

ifN
 

C
on

ve
nt

io
n'

s 
cl

ai
m

s 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 m
ay

 v
ar

y 
in

 e
ac

h 
co

un
try

 R
ef

er
 to

 th
e 

C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

to
 d

et
en

ni
ne

 th
e 

cl
ai

m
s 

pe
no

d 
fo

r )
O

U
f 
sh

ip
m

en
t 

Th
e 

ng
ht

 to
 d

am
ag

es
 a

ga
in

st
 u

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
e,

dJ
ng

u1
sh

ed
 u

nl
es

s 
an

 a
cb

on
 •s

 b
ro

ug
ht

 
w

ith
m

 tw
o 

ye
ar

s,
 a

s 
se

t f
or

th
 in

 th
e 

C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

Fe
dE

x 
1s

 n
ot

 o
bl

ig
at

ed
 to

 a
ct

 o
n 

ar
ry

 c
la

im
 u

nt
il 

al
l t

ra
ns

po
rta

bo
n 

ch
ar

ge
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pc

Hd
 T

he
 c

la
im

 a
m

ou
nt

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

de
du

ct
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

ch
ar

ge
s 

tf 
th

e 
re

ci
pi

en
t a

cc
ep

ts
 t

he
 s

hi
pm

en
t w

ith
ou

t n
ot

in
g 

an
y 

da
m

ag
e 

on
 th

e 
de

lN
er

y 
re

co
rd

, F
ed

E
x 

w
ilt 

as
sl.

KT
le

 th
e 

sh
ip

m
er

t w
as

 d
ek

ve
re

d 
1r1

 g
oo

d 
co

nd
iti

on
 I

n 
or

de
r f

or
 u

s 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
a 

cl
ai

m
 fo

r 
da

m
ag

e,
 th

e 
co

rt
en

ts
, 

or
ig

 n
al

 s
hi

pp
in

g 
ca

rto
n 

an
d 

pa
ck

m
g 

m
us

t b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ad
ab

le
 to

 u
s 

fo
r 

1n
sp

ec
bo

n 
M

A
N

D
A

TO
R

Y
 L

A
W

 I
ns

of
ar

 a
s 

an
y 

fl'D
VI

S!
Dn

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 o

r r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 1n
 th

is
 A

ir 
W

ay
bi

ll 
m

a
y 

be
 c

on
tra

ry
 to

 a
rry

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

in
te

rn
at

io
na

l t
re

at
ie

s,
 la

w
s,

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t r

eg
ul

ab
on

s,
 o

rd
er

s 
or

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 s
uc

h 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 s
ha

N 
re

m
ai

n 
1n

 e
ffe

ct
 a

s 
a 

pa
rt 

of
 o

ur
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

at
 it

 is
 n

ot
 o

ve
rr

id
de

n 
Th

e 
in

va
lid

ity
 o

r u
ne

nf
or

ce
ab

tN
ty

 o
f 

an
y 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 s

ha
H 

no
t a

ffe
ct

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
P-

Jr 
W

ay
bi

ll 
U

nk
!s

s 
ot

he
M

1s
e 

m
dt

c:
at

ed
, F

E
D

E
R

A
L 

E
X

P
R

E
S

S
 C

C
R

P
O

R
A

TI
O

N
, 2

00
5 

C
or

po
ra

te
 A

ve
nu

e,
 M

em
ph

is
, T

N
 3

91
32

, U
SA

. tS
 th

e 
fir

st
 e

ar
ne

r 
of

 th
is

 
sh

ip
m

en
t 

E
m

ai
l a

dd
re

ss
 lo

ca
te

d 
at

 w
w

w
 .fe

d e
x 

co
m

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 72



Commercial Invoice 
This Invoice must be completed In English. Page of 

EXPORTER: Ship Date: 

Tax ID#: 15 Sep, 2020 

Contact Name: Deepak Angl Air Waybill No./ Tracking No.: 

Telephone No.: (905) 643-7615 771524790397 

E-Mail: dangl@continental-carbon.com Invoice No.: Purchasa Order No.: 

Company Name/Addrass: 
Payment Terms: Bill of Lading: Continental Carbon Group 

1100 South Service Rd Suite 321 
Purpose of Shipment: 

NOT_SOLD 

STONEY CREEK ON L8EOC5 
Country/Territory: CANADA 
Parties to Transaction: 

0Related [R] Non-Related 

CONSIGNEE: SOLD TO/ IMPORTER (If dlfferant from Consignee): 

Tax ID#: IX) Same as CONSIGNEE: 
Contact Name: City Clerk 
Telephone No.: (360) 279-4500 Tax ID#: 

E-Mail: 

Company Name/Addrass: Company Name/Addrass: 

City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 

OAK HARBOR WA 98277 
Country/Territory: UNITED STATES OF AMERICA country/Territory: UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
If there Is a designated broker for this shipment, please provide contact Information. 

Name of Broker Tel. No. Contact Name 

Duties and Taxes Payable by [!] Exporter D Consignee Oother If Other, please specify 

No.of No. of Net Weight Unit of 
Description of Goods 

Harmonized Country of Unit Total 
Packages Units (LBSIKGS) Measure Tariff Number Manufacture Value Value 

1 1.00 1.00 PCS BUSINESS DOCUMENT CA 1.000000 1.00 

Total Total Total Net (Indicate Total Gross (Indicate 1erms 

Pkgs Units Weight LBS/KGS) Weight LBS/KGS) of Sale: Subtotal: 1.00 

1 1.00 1.00 LB 1.00 LB Insurance: 0.00 

Special Instructions: 
Fralght: 0.00 

Packing: 0.00 

Declaration Statement(&): 
Handling: 0.00 

Other: 
0.00 

I declara that all the Information contained In this Invoice to be true and correct. Invoice Total: 1.00 

I originator or Name of company Representative Ir the Invoice Is being completed on behalf or a company or lndlvldual: 
Currency Code: 

CAD 
Deepak Angl I 

Signature/ Tltlo / Date: t_) ;{..JI 15 Sep, 2020 

REV. 04.10.13-1.08 

' 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 73



Commercial Invoice 
This Invoice must be completed In English. Page or 
EXPORTER: Ship Date: 

Tax ID#: 15 Sep, 2020 

Contact Name: DeepakAngl Air Waybill No./ Tracking No.: 

Telephone No.: (905) 643-7615 771524790397 

E-Mall: dangl@continental-carbon.com Invoice No.: Purchase Order No.: 

Company Name/Address: 
Payment Terms: BIii of Lading: Continental Carbon Group 

1100 South Service Rd Suite 321 
Purpose of Shipment: 

NOT_SOLD 

STONEY CREEK ON LBEOC5 
Country/Territory: CANADA 
Partle& to Transaction: 

0Related [R] Non-Related 

CONSIGNEE: SOLD TO/ IMPORTER (If different from Consignee): 

Tax ID#: [Rj Same as CONSIGNEE: 
Contact Name: City Clerk 
Telephone No.: (360) 279-4500 Tax ID#: 

E-Mall: 

Company Name/Address: Company Name/Address: 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 

OAK HARBOR WA 98277 
Country/Territory: UNITED STATES OF AMERICA Country/Territory: UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
If there Is a designated broker for this shipment, please provide contact Information. 

Name of Broker Tel.No. Contact Name 

Duties and Taxes Payable by [!] Exporter D Consignee Oother If Other, please specify 

No.of No. of Net Weight Unit of 
Description of Goods 

Harmonized Country of Unit Total 
Packages Units (LBS/KGS) Measure Tariff Number Manufacture Value Value 

1 1.00 1.00 PCS BUSINESS DOCUMENT CA 1.000000 1.00 

Total Total Total Net (Indicate Total Gross (Indicate Terms 

Pkgs Units Weight LBS/KGS) Weight LBS/KGS) of Sale: Subtotal: 1.00 

1 1.00 1.00 LB 1.00 LB Insurance: 0.00 

Special Instructions: 
Freight: 0.00 

Packing: 0.00 

Declaration Statement(s): 
Handling: 0.00 

Other: 
0.00 

I declare that all the Information contained In this Invoice to be true and correct. Invoice Total: 1.00 

Originator or Name of Company Representative If the Invoice Is being completed on behalf of a company or Individual: 
Currency Code: CAO 

DeepakAngl 

Signature / TIiie / Date: UM 15 Sep, 2020 

' REV. 04.10.13-1.08 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 74



This Invoice must be completed In English. 
Commercial Invoice 

Page of 

EXPORTER: Ship Date: 

Tax ID#: 15 Sep, 2020 

Contact Name: DeepakAngl Air Waybill No./ Tracking No.: 

Telephone No.: (905) 643-7615 771524790397 

E-Mail: dangl@contlnental-carbon.com Invoice No.: Purchase Order No.: 

Company Name/Address: 
Payment Terms: BIii of Lading: Continental Carbon Group 

1100 South Service Rd Suite 321 
Purpose of Shipment: 

NOT_SOLD 

STONEY CREEK ON L8EOC5 
Country/Territory: CANADA 
Parties to Transaction: 

0Related [&] Non-Related 

CONSIGNEE: SOLD TO/ IMPORTER (If different from Consignee): 

Tax ID#: 00 Same as CONSIGNEE: 
Contact Name: City Clerk 
Telephone No.: (360) 279-4500 Tax ID#: 

E-Mail: 
Company Name/Address: Company Name/Address: 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 

OAK HARBOR WA 98277 
Country/Territory: UNITED STATES OF AMERICA Country/Territory: UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
If there Is a designated broker for this shipment, please provide contact Information. 

Name of Broker Tel.No. Contact Name 

Duties and Taxes Payable by [!] Exporter D Conalgnee Oother If Other, please specify 

No.of No. of Net Weight Unit of 
Description of Goods 

Harmonized Country of Unit Total 
Packages Units (LB8/KG8) Measure Tariff Number Manufacture Value Value 

1 1.00 1.00 PCS BUSINESS DOCUMENT CA 1.000000 1.00 

Total Total Total Net (Indicate Total Gross (Indicate Terms 
Pkgs Units Weight LBSIKGS) Weight LBS/KGS) of Sale: Subtotal: 1.00 

1 1.00 1.00 LB 1.00 LB Insurance: 0,00 

Special Instructions: 
Freight: 0.00 

Packing: 0.00 

Declaration Statement(s): 
Handling: 0.00 

Other: 
0.00 

I doclara that ail the Information contained In this Invoice to be true and correct. Invoice Total: 1.00 

I Originator or Name of company Representative tr tne Invoice Is being completll<I on benarr of a company or Individual: 
Currency Code: CAD 

DeepakAngl .. 
Signature /THlo/ Dato:/~ 15 Sep, 2020 

-- REV. 04.10.13-1.08 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 75



9/28/2020

1

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
BIOSOLIDS ODOR 

CONTROL

9/23/2020

City Council Workshop

BACKGROUND

The biosolids facility at the Clean Water 
Facility went into operation September 2019.

The facility experienced varying levels of odor 
emission since then.

There were numerous reasons for the odors 
and solutions were potentially very expensive.

Biosolids Odor Control

1

2

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 76



9/28/2020

2

RESOLUTION PROCESS

 The cause of the odors were complex and the 
relationship with Haarslev impacted the operation.

Many sources of the odors resulted from operational 
practices and staff had a stiff learning curve without 
vendor support.

 There were mechanical/ventilation system issues 
that contributed to the problem.

 Getting to the bottom of these issues would 
substantially reduce the cost of odor control 
equipment initially estimated at over $750,000

Biosolids Odor Control

CURRENT STATE

The operators learned the system and made 
modifications to improve odor capture.

Staff gradually reduced the odor emissions.

While further operational reductions are 
possible, staff feels additional investments in 
odor control are justified and cost effective. 

Biosolids Odor Control

3

4

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 77



9/28/2020

3

EQUIPMENT

After achieving the significant odor emission 
reductions,  detailed testing determined the 
type and amounts of compounds remaining.

Based on that information we were able to 
select a suitable media and container that 
removes the odorous compounds.

Biosolids Odor Control 

IMPLEMENTATION

Bids were advertised for the odor control devices
The low bidder submitted a bid for $51,000
Additional fan capacity may be required that 

would cost approximately $50,000 more.  
Staff would install the equipment.
Funds are available in thecurrent operations 

wastewaater budget however a budget year 
carryover may occur depending on the schedule.

Biosolids Odor Control

5

6

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 78



9/28/2020

4

NEXT STEPS

Staff will continue to review the bids 

A recommendation to award the bid will be 
presented at the October 6th Council Meeting.

Upon Council approval, staff will purchase and 
install the system.

Biosolids Odor Control

Questions?

Biosolids Odor Control

7

8

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 79



9/28/2020

5

9

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 80



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4.d.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Historic Preservation

Commission Appointment of
Lorraine Johnson-Coleman

FROM: David Kuhl, AICP, Director, Development Services

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirmation of the Mayoral Appointment of Lorraine Johnson-Coleman to the Historic
Preservation Commission, Position 2. Term of service October 2020 – October 2023.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
OHMC Section 18.50.040(1) states, “ Creation and Size. There is hereby established a city of Oak
Harbor historic preservation commission, consisting of five members, as provided in subsection
(2) of this section. Members of the city of Oak Harbor (hereinafter city) historic preservation
commission shall be appointed by the mayor and approved by the city council and shall be
residents of the city of Oak Harbor, except as provided in subsection (2)(b) of this section.”

OHMC Section 18.50.040(2)(b) states, “The commission shall always include at least two
professionals who have experience in identifying, evaluating, and protecting historic resources and
are selected from among the disciplines of architecture, history, architectural history, planning,
prehistoric and historic archaeology, folklore, cultural anthropology, curation, conservation, and
landscape architecture, or related disciplines. The commission action that would otherwise be
valid shall not be rendered invalid by the temporary vacancy of one or all of the professional
positions, unless the commission action is related to meeting certified local government (CLG)
responsibilities cited in the certification agreement between the mayor and the State Historic
Preservation Officer on behalf of the state. Furthermore, exception to the residency requirement of
commission members may be granted by the mayor and city council in order to obtain
representatives from these disciplines.” (Ord. 1822 § 1, 2018).

Lorraine Johnson-Coleman meets and exceeds the requirements to fill the professional position on
the Historic Preservation Commission.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 81



OHMC Section 18.50.040

FISCAL IMPACT
 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Biography form: Lorraine Johnson-Coleman

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 82

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601423785x_at.pdf


Boards & Commissions - Biography Form                                                                                            12/2019 

Boards and Commissions  
Biography Form  

  
 
 
Board Appointment for (name of board): Historic Preservation Commission 
 
Name: Lorraine Johnson-Coleman Date: 23-September-2020 
  
Address: 1210 SE Pioneer Way 
  
City, State, Zip:  Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
  
Phone Number: 480-634-3505 Email Address: Lorraine.johnson.coleman@gmail.com 
 
Mailing Address: (if different from above)  
  
Resident in Oak Harbor City Limits?  
If yes, how long? 

2 years 

 
Occupation and Place of Employment:  
(if retired, reference previous occupation(s)) 

Retired 

  
 
 
 
 
 
Local Group or Civic Affiliations:  
N/A 
 
 
 
  
Special Qualifications or Interests: See attached professional profile 
 
 
 
 
 
Education and Other General Comments: See attached professional profile 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Please email to lfelix@oakharbor.org or deliver to the Mayor’s Office at City Hall  

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 83



 Lorraine Johnson-Coleman 
 Taking the message of ‘just plain folks’ on the road... 
 

       400 McGrath Darby Blvd, Suite 309  ·  Mt. Pleasant, South Carolina 29464 · 843-856-6830 ·   ljctale@yahoo.com 

 
 
Keynote Addresses 
 

Ø 2003 Leadership South Carolina, statewide leadership conference (keynoted 4 years in a row) 
Ø 2003 North Carolina Reading Association annual conference 
Ø 2002 African American Preservation Alliance annual meeting 
Ø 2002 Stanford University Black History Month Celebration 
       (this 30 day celebration selected “Just Plain Folks as the theme for 2002) 
Ø 2002 Missouri Governor’s conference on tourism 
Ø 2001 Hewlett Packard Black History Month Celebration 
Ø 2001 International Reading Association annual conference.(20,000+ attendees) 
Ø 2001 Association of Partners of Public Lands annual conference 
Ø 2000 National Trust for Historic Preservation annual conference 
Ø 2000 National Storytelling Network annual conference 
Ø 2000 South Carolina Municipal Association annual conference 
Ø 2000 Southeastern Regional American Library Association annual conference. 
Ø 2000 National Association of Heritage Areas annual conference 
Ø 2001 Alabama Library Association annual conference. 
Ø 2000 National Storytelling Network annual conference. 
Ø 1999 South Carolina Municipal Association annual conference 

 
Public Radio 
 

q Regular commentator for National Public Radio’s Morning Edition.  Ongoing diverse commentaries ranging in 
topic from culture to current events to perspectives on life. 

May 1998 - Present  
 

q Served as Artistic Director, Script Writer and Assistant Producer for “Just Plain Folks: Wisdoms From The Front 
Porch,” the 13 part series of storytelling and blues developed by the South Carolina Educational Radio Network 
for national distribution by National Public Radio. ‘The Tale Tellin’ Blues’ episode of this series won the 
prestigious Jade Crystal Award of Excellence.  Concept based on the original proposal by Lorraine Johnson-
Coleman. 

June 1998-August 1998  Series Aired 1999 
 
 
Literary  Works 
 

q Commissioned by the Ford Foundation sponsored initiative “Animating Democracy” as a writer for a “critical 
perspectives” paper on interpreting African American historic sites to stimulate racial dialogue.  Also commissioned 
to create and perform an original monologue for the St. Augustine’s Episcopal church’s historic slave gallery; 2002-
2003. 

 
q Just Plain Folks, a collection of short stories and essays that document many compelling aspects of African 

American folklife - oral traditions, religious lore, African American naming practices, burial traditions, belief 
systems, community lore and vernacular architecture.  Just Plain Folks was a national best seller, a critically 
acclaimed work and a featured selection by the Literary Guild in November 1998.  The audiobook, performed by 
Lorraine Johnson-Coleman won a 1998 Publishers Weekly Listen Up Award. 

  1997-1998 Release 
 

q Larissa’s Breadbook, a unique collection of food memories, character sketches, anecdotes and recipes.  Named a 
notable book for 2001 by newspapers around the country. 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 84



 Lorraine Johnson-Coleman 
 Taking the message of ‘just plain folks’ on the road... 
 

       400 McGrath Darby Blvd, Suite 309  ·  Mt. Pleasant, South Carolina 29464 · 843-856-6830 ·   ljctale@yahoo.com 

Diversity, Preservation and Tourism 
 

q Selected for participation in an international community tourism summit by the Rockefeller Brothers Fund as one of 
the twenty-five world best in the field.  Also selected to write the report, which will be circulated globally,  to 
document the event. 
 

q Conducted 3 sessions, including the “Emerging Leaders” and “A Sense of Place” workshops as part of the 2002 
National Trust for Historic Preservation annual conference; October 2001. 

 
q Developed for the Kellogg Foundation Mid-South Delta Initiative (15 counties in  Louisiana, Mississippi, and 

Arkansas) an Institute that would allow grassroots community groups to learn the tools that would enable them to 
begin implementing heritage tourism and cultural preservation initiatives in their own communities.  The curriculum 
for the Institute was based on the Journeys HomeTM process created by Lorraine Johnson-Coleman. 

April 2001 
 

q General session speaker for Southeast and Northwest regional conferences of the National Parks Service  
Superintendents as well as, the Southeast regional conference of National Parks Service Interpreters;  

  2001-2002. 
 

q Developed heritage tours around the themes of “Freedom Saga” and “Health and Wellness” based on the Journeys 
HomeTM - Battle Creek, Michigan strategic plan and available research.  Also organized heritage tourism 
symposium featuring prominent national speakers as a means of further educating the grass roots community.  
Implemented Journeys HomeTM planning phase in the community of Battle Creek Michigan, developing 
comprehensive strategic plan detailing such needs as development of heritage tourism, community outreach 
programming, educational materials and marketing materials, as well as tour guide training and the forming of 
strategic partnerships; 2000 

 
q Commissioned by the South Carolina Department of Parks, Recreation and Tourism to develop a 

comprehensive report assessing  the state of African American heritage tourism nationwide and the opportunities for 
the state of South Carolina to develop their own African American heritage corridors; completed June 2000. 

 
q Contracted by Portland State University to conduct workshop on the “Drama of Ordinary Living” for community 

residents.  Also developed a plan, incorporating input from the community that would allow community residents to 
be trained to create and perform in an original theatrical production on the story of place, that would be part of the 
2002 Portland International Performance Festival; January 2001. 

 
q Selected as part of National Trust for Historic Preservation Main Street Program Resource Team to evaluate 

and make recommendations for improvement, the preservation program in process in one  of Baltimore’s historic 
African American neighborhoods; May 2001 

 
q Created JOURNEYS HOMETM - An African American Heritage Preservation and Cultural Arts Initiative.  

This program will assist rural African American communities in the south to develop and implement a regional 
grass roots based cultural arts and tourism plan.  Individual components of the plan will be developed through the 
use of (a) community outreach to improve the understanding of folk arts and cultural traditions, and their uses in 
developing tourism and economic development opportunities; (b) community self-inventory of African American 
arts, crafts, music, woodworking, foods and other cultural traditions; (c) community action to develop African 
American cultural plans in each county, that will be linked to form a regional cultural arts-environmental protection 
plans and tourism strategies.  This innovative linking of folk arts, traditions, community activism, environmental 
protection planning and tourism development initiatives; March 1997 - Concept Paper Complete. 

 
 
ØPraise for Lorraine as Consultant & Conference Presenter 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 85



 Lorraine Johnson-Coleman 
 Taking the message of ‘just plain folks’ on the road... 
 

 
 

       400 McGrath Darby Blvd, Suite 309  ·  Mt. Pleasant, South Carolina 29464 · 843-856-6830 ·   ljctale@yahoo.com 

“While thinking about the future often focuses on the fast-moving and pervasive changes powered by technological 
breakthroughs and globalization, Lorraine Johnson-Coleman speaks to more timeless dimensions of the heart and soul.  
Lorraine is one of the worlds’s great storytellers.   She enables us to respect and enjoy each other as human beings, 
transcending race, geography, and material circumstances.” 

Peter Brink, Senior Vice President of Programs 
National Trust for Historic Preservation 

 
“Lorraine has inspired people from all walks of life in our community to have a greater appreciation of their personal 
family stories and the stories of others....  Local educators, historians and students have directly benefitted from Lorraine’s 
expertise.  Her ability to blend history, folklore, humor and performance art make her a truly masterful presenter.” 

Michael Evans, Administrator 
Sojourner Truth Institute of Battle Creek, Michigan 

 
“Lorraine captivated over 700 museum professionals with a dazzling combination of storytelling, shrewd observations 
about museums and museum goers, and wise advice on connecting with multi-cultural audiences.  In their conference 
evaluations, participants commented favorably on Lorraine’s lively style and pertinent subject matter, and many cited her 
presentation as one of the highlights of that annual meeting....  In my estimation, Lorraine would be a major asset to the 
program of any cultural organization or association...she is a fabulous performer, a wise and witty speaker, and a gifted 
teacher...” 

Pamela Meister, former Executive Director 
Southeast Museums Association 

 
ØPraise for Lorraine as Writer 
 
“..stories communicate the terrifying complexities of our American experience of race, and they do so by capturing the 
verbal energy and wit and resilience of African Americans as they live and breathe and talk and cajole and sing and scold 
and sometimes even fall silent.  Whether it is a great aunt or a kid on the street or her grandparents advising Bill and 
Hillary, Johnson-Coleman has a perfect pitch for the language of “just plain folks”.  Her stories tell of the past and the 
present, of idiosyncratic individuals and universal human values.  They tell us who we are, and who we are capable of 
becoming...language [is] colorful and nuanced and often poetic.” 

Dr. Lois Zamora, Dean of Humanities, University of Houston 
 
“..an informative and richly textured contribution to our understanding of African American culture.” 

Publishers Weekly 
 
“Lorraine’s stories warm your heart and keep you laughing..her words pump such life into the characters, we see them all 
around us…” 
  Southern Living Magazine 
 
“Excellent storytelling..Johnson-Coleman manages to make commonplace events and people interesting. Highly 
recommended.” 
  Library Journal 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 86



Lorraine Johnson-Coleman Biography 

 

“Begin with art, because art tries to take the us outside ourselves. It is a matter of trying to create an 
atmosphere and context so conversation can flow back and forth. And we can influence each other” 

 W.E.B. DuBois 

Lorraine Johnson-Coleman is a culturalist, master storyteller and acclaimed author who has 
consulted for organizations such as the National Parks Service, National Trust for Historic 
Preservations, W. K. Kellogg Foundation, Ford Foundation and Hewlett Packard.   

Lorraine has been commissioned by the Ford Foundation sponsored initiative "Animating 
Democracy" as a writer for a "critical perspectives" paper on interpreting African American 
historic sites to stimulate racial dialogues.  The Harvard Review said of Animating Democracy –  

“Each of the thirteen writers whose essays form this collection, presents a unique perspective on the role 
of the arts in creating civic dialogue and makes a powerful case for collaborative writing from the 
artistic, scholarly and community development worlds.. Lorraine Johnson-Coleman offers a personal and 
poetic narrative of the history and importance of slave galleries that incorporates her childhood 
memories, personal reflections and prayer.” 

Her work “The Colored Water Fountain” was later selected by the Yale University national 
initiative to strengthen teachers in the skill of telling difficult stories along with the Pulitzer Prize 
winning "Eyes on the Prize," Martin Luther King Jr's "I have a dream" speech and the court 
records of the Brown vs Board of Education" case, as the only materials used to talk to students 
of all ages about the language and issues of race.  Lorraine has also been honored to be 
chosen by the Brown family as the keynote speaker for an event to commemorate the 50 year 
anniversary of the landmark Brown vs. Board of Education Supreme Court decision of 1954. 
Most recently, she was the featured speaker in the closing planetary session for the W. K. 
Kellogg Foundation at their April 2013 conference " America's Healing: Reclaiming the 
Narrative” 

Lorraine’s first book “Just Plain Folks” received rave reviews from major media outlets and was 
a literary guild selection. The audiobook for Just Plain Folks won the prestigious Listen Up 
Award. And the National Public Radio series of blues and storytelling based on the work won a 
Jade Crystal Award. Both the audiobook and NPR radio series featured Lorraine as the 
storyteller.  

She has spoken on how storytelling can be used by businesses to create community and 
facilitate difficult discussions, to executives at both the Hewlett Packard and W.K. Kellogg 
Foundation headquarters. Locally, Lorraine has conducted a two day workshop for Mt. Rainier 
staff on how to use storytelling in diversity messenging, community outreach and niche 
marketing.  

 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 87



Additionally, Lorraine has appeared on the Oprah Winfrey show and was a recurring 
commentator on NPR Morning Edition for five years. She has also been a keynote or featured 
presenter at over 100 major conferences and special events such as 

· African American Museums Association Annual Conference 
· National Association of Heritage Areas Annual Conference 
· Dedication of Sojourner Truth Monument 
· National Trust for Historic Preservation Annual Conference 
· National Association for Interpretation Annual Conference 
· Stanford University Black History Month Celebration 
· Southeastern Booksellers Association Annual Conference 
· Northern California Association of Independent Booksellers 
· Southeastern Museums Association Annual Conference  
· International Reading Association Annual Conference (over 20,000 in audience) 
· Keynote speaker for Missouri Governors Conference on Tourism 

 
Lastly, Lorraine is proud to have also worked to spread the message of storytelling as a bridge 
of understanding by speaking at Eldridge Synagogue in New York ,1996 Olympics and dozens 
of universities. 

 
What others have said about Lorraine Johnson-Coleman 

“While thinking about the future often focuses on the fast-moving and pervasive changes powered by 
technological breakthroughs and globalization, Lorraine Johnson-Coleman speaks to more timeless 
dimensions of the heart and soul. Lorraine is one of the world's great storytellers. She enables us to 
respect and enjoy each other as human beings, transcending race, geography, and material 
circumstances."  

Peter Brink,  
Retired Senior Vice President of Programs 
National Trust for Historic Preservation 

 
I will close with Lorraine’s own words… 
 
When you know someone’s story, you are forever connected.    Story is a powerful tool and I hope to help 
as many as possible to find their voice in order to better connect, communicate and share their story with 
others. ...  
  Lorraine Johnson-Coleman 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 88



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No4. e.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Interlocal Agreement-NPP GOV

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing staff to enter into a Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with NPPGov.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
NPPGov is a national cooperative procurement organization based in Seattle, WA offering
publicly solicited contracts to government entities nationwide. Their contracts are created through
a public solicitation by a Lead Public Agency. Access to their cooperative contracts is
complimentary with no purchasing obligations.

NPPGov serves a variety of Government and Nonprofit organizations. Public Safety GPO and
Law Enforcement GPO are programs of NPPGov with contracts that focus on Fire/Rescue and
Law Enforcement members’ needs. All members have access to a broad range of publicly solicited
contracts along with individual discount programs and negotiated contracts for below threshold
purchases.

Competitively bid, no additional RFP necessary
Saves time and money in your procurement process
Live contract support
NPPGov is the government division of National Purchasing Partners, owned by non-profit
hospitals and supporting their research and healthcare initiatives.

Participation in NPPGov is free and will provide the City the legally required competition for
contracts on commonly purchased products and services.  This will help increase our efficiency,
shorten our delivery time, and stretch our tax dollars.  Staff will ensure that the City complies with
all state purchasing laws when used.       

LEGAL AUTHORITY

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 89



OHMC 2.320.100 Cooperative Purchasing - The City Council authorizes the use of cooperative
purchasing arrangements with other public agencies similarly authorized when the best interests of
the city would be served thereby.  Any cooperative purchasing agreement shall set forth fully the
purposes, powers, rights, objectives and responsibilities of the contracting parties and shall be
governed by the requirements of state law in regard to competitive bidding when applicable.
Approval of such cooperative purchasing arrangements shall be by the City Council prior to use by
the City (Ord. 1470 § 3, 2006).

FISCAL IMPACT
 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. NPPGov Agreement

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 90

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601329489x_at.pdf


League of Oregon Cities IGA   V1.0 

 

Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement 
 
This Intergovernmental Agreement (Agreement) is by and between the “Lead Contracting 
Agency” and participating government entities (“Participating Agencies”), that are 
members of National Purchasing Partners (“NPPGov”), including members of Public 
Safety GPO, First Responder GPO, Law Enforcement GPO, Education GPO and EMS 
GPO that agree to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  The Lead Contracting 
Agency and all Participating Agencies shall be considered as “parties” to this agreement. 
 
WHEREAS, upon completion of a formal competitive solicitation and selection process, 
the Lead Contracting Agency has entered into Master Price Agreements with one or more 
Vendors to provide goods and services, often based on national sales volume projections; 
 
WHEREAS, NPPGov provides group purchasing, marketing and administrative support 
for governmental entities.  NPPGov’s marketing and administrative services are free to its 
membership, which includes participating public entities and nonprofit institutions 
throughout North America.  
 
WHEREAS, NPPGov has instituted a cooperative purchasing program under which 
member Participating Agencies may reciprocally utilize competitively solicited Master 
Price Agreements awarded by the Lead Contracting Agency; 
 
WHEREAS, the Master Price Agreements provide that all qualified government members 
of NPPGov may purchase goods and services on the same terms, conditions and pricing as 
the Lead Contracting Agency, subject to applicable local and state laws of the Participating 
Agencies; 
 
WHEREAS, the parties agree to comply with the requirements of the Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Act as may be applicable to the local and state laws of the Participating 
Agencies; 

 
WHEREAS, the parties desire to conserve and leverage resources, and to improve the 
efficiency and economy of the procurement process while reducing solicitation and 
procurement costs; 

 
WHEREAS, the parties are authorized and eligible to contract with governmental bodies 
and Vendors to perform governmental functions and services, including the purchase of 
goods and services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties desire to contract with Vendors under the terms of the Master Price 
Agreements; 

 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: D3B4CAB0-871C-4962-802D-06ECC64C7B3A

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 91



League of Oregon Cities IGA   V1.0 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1: LEGAL AUTHORITY 
 
Each party represents and warrants that it is eligible to participate in this Agreement 
because it is a local government created and operated to provide one or more governmental 
functions and possesses adequate legal authority to enter into this Agreement.  
 
ARTICLE 2: APPLICABLE LAWS 
 
The procurement of goods and services subject to this Agreement shall be conducted in 
accordance with and subject to the relevant statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations 
that govern each party’s procurement policies.  Competitive Solicitations are intended to 
meet the public contracting requirements of the Lead Contracting Agency and may not be 
appropriate under, or satisfy Participating Agencies’ procurement laws.  It is the 
responsibility of each party to ensure it has met all applicable solicitation and 
procurement requirements.  Participating Agencies are urged to seek independent review 
by their legal counsel to ensure compliance with all local and state solicitation 
requirements. 
 
ARTICLE 3: USE OF BID, PROPOSAL OR PRICE AGREEMENT 
 

a. A “procuring party” is defined as the Lead Contracting Agency or any 
Participating Agency that desires to purchase from the Master Price 
Agreements awarded by the Lead Contracting Agency. 
 

b. Each procuring party shall be solely responsible for their own purchase of 
goods and services under this Agreement.  A non-procuring party shall not be 
liable in any fashion for any violation of law or contract by a procuring party, 
and the procuring party shall hold non-procuring parties and all unrelated 
procuring parties harmless from any liability that may arise from action or 
inaction of the procuring party. 
 

c. The procuring party shall not use this agreement as a method for obtaining 
additional concessions or reduced prices for similar goods and services outside 
the scope of the Master Price Agreement. 

 
d. The exercise of any rights or remedies by the procuring party shall be the 

exclusive obligation of such procuring party. 
 

e. The cooperative use of bids, proposals or price agreements obtained by a party 
to this Agreement shall be in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 
bid, proposal or price agreement, except as modified where otherwise allowed 
or required by applicable law, and does not relieve the party of its other 
solicitation requirements under state law or local policies.   

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D3B4CAB0-871C-4962-802D-06ECC64C7B3A

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 92



League of Oregon Cities IGA   V1.0 

 

 
 
ARTICLE 4: PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS 
 
The procuring party will make timely payments to Vendors for goods and services received 
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the procurement.  Payment for goods and 
services, inspections and acceptance of goods and services ordered by the procuring party 
shall be the exclusive obligation of such procuring party.  Disputes between procuring party 
and Vendor shall be resolved in accordance with the law and venue rules of the state of the 
procuring party. 

 
ARTICLE 5: COMMENCEMENT DATE 
 
This Agreement shall take effect after execution of the “Lead Contracting Agency 
Endorsement and Authorization” or “Participating Agency Endorsement and 
Authorization,” as applicable.   

 
ARTICLE 6: TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement shall remain in effect until terminated by a party giving 30 days written 
notice to “Lead Contracting Agency” 
 
ARTICLE 7: ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement and any attachments, as provided herein, constitute the complete 
Agreement between the parties hereto, and supersede any and all oral and written 
agreements between the parties relating to matters herein. 
 
ARTICLE 8: CHANGES AND AMENDMENTS 
 
This Agreement may be amended only by a written amendment executed by all parties, 
except that any alterations, additions, or deletions of this Agreement which are required by 
changes in Federal and State law or regulations are automatically incorporated into this 
Agreement without written amendment hereto and shall become effective on the date 
designated by such law or regulation. 
 
ARTICLE 9: SEVERABILITY 
 
All parties agree that should any provision of this Agreement be determined to be invalid 
or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect any other term of this Agreement, 
which shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
THIS INSTRUMENT HAS BEEN EXECUTED IN TWO OR MORE ORIGINALS BY 
EXECUTION AND ATTACHMENT OF “THE LEAD CONTRACTING AGENCY 
ENDORSEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION” OR “PARTICIPATING AGENCY 
ENDORSEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION,” AS APPLICABLE.  ONCE EXECUTED, IT 
IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF EACH PARTY TO FILE THIS AGREEMENT WITH THE 
PROPER AGENCY IF REQUIRED BY LOCAL OR STATE LAW. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D3B4CAB0-871C-4962-802D-06ECC64C7B3A

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 93



League of Oregon Cities IGA   V1.0 

 

 
 

LEAGUE OF OREGON CITIES 
ENDORSEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION 

 
The undersigned acknowledges, on behalf of the League of Oregon Cities (“Lead 
Contracting Agency”) that he/she has read and agrees to the general terms and conditions 
set forth in the enclosed Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement regulating 
use of the Master Price Agreements and purchase of goods and services that from time to 
time are made available by the League of Oregon Cities to Participating Agencies locally, 
regionally, and nationally through NPPGov.  Copies of Master Price Agreements and any 
amendments thereto made available by the League of Oregon Cities will be provided to 
Participating Agencies and NPPGov to facilitate use by Participating Agencies. 
 
The undersigned understands that the purchase of goods and services under the provisions 
of the Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is at the absolute discretion 
of the Participating Agencies. 
 
The undersigned affirms that he/she is an agent of the League of Oregon Cities and is duly 
authorized to sign this League of Oregon Cities Endorsement and Authorization.   
 
  
________________________________________  Date:______________ 
BY:   
ITS:   
 
League of Oregon Cities Contact Information: 
 
Contact Person:  Mike Culley 
Address:  1201 Court St NE #200, Salem, OR 97301 
Telephone No.: 503-588-6550 
Email: mculley@orcities.org 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: D3B4CAB0-871C-4962-802D-06ECC64C7B3A

3/26/2020

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 94



League of Oregon Cities IGA   V1.0 

 

 
PARTICIPATING AGENCY 

ENDORSEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION 
 
The undersigned acknowledges, on behalf of ______________ (“Participating Agency”) 
that he/she has read and agrees to the general terms and conditions set forth in the enclosed 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement regulating use of the Master Price 
Agreements and purchase of goods and services that from time to time are made available 
by the Lead Contracting Agency to Participating Agencies locally, regionally, and 
nationally through NPPGov.   
 
The undersigned further acknowledges that the purchase of goods and services under the 
provisions of the Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is at the absolute 
discretion of the Participating Agency and that neither the Lead Contracting Agency nor 
NPPGov shall be held liable for any costs or damages incurred by or as a result of the 
actions of the Vendor or any other Participating Agency.  Upon award of contract, the 
Vendor shall deal directly with the Participating Agency concerning the placement of 
orders, disputes, invoicing and payment. 
 
The undersigned affirms that he/she is an agent of __________________ and is duly 
authorized to sign this Participating Agency Endorsement and Authorization.   
 
______________________________  Date:______________ 
BY:  _________________________ 
ITS:  _________________________ 
 
Participating Agency Contact Information: 
 
Contact Person:  ________________________ 
Address:  ______________________________ 
______________________________________ 
______________________________________ 
Telephone No.:__________________________ 
Email:_________________________________ 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D3B4CAB0-871C-4962-802D-06ECC64C7B3A

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 95



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4.f.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Interlocal Agreement-TIPS

purchasing cooperative

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
This purpose of this agenda bill is to enter into a Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with TIPS.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
TJIPS is a national purchasing cooperative offering competitively solicited contracts to education,
government and nonprofit agencies, saving them both time and money.  TIPS provide a proven,
streamlined process that eliminates the purchasing stress for members.  TIPS members can save
time and money without the delay and expense because TIPS complete the competitive bid process
for its members.  Staff will ensure that the City complies with all state purchasing laws when used.

Participation in TIPS is free and will provide the City the legally required competition for
contracts on commonly purchased products and services.  This will help increase our efficiency,
shorten our delivery time, and stretch our tax dollars.        

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.320.100 Cooperative Purchasing - The City Council authorizes the use of cooperative
purchasing arrangements with other public agencies similarly authorized when the best interests of
the city would be served thereby.  Any cooperative purchasing agreement shall set forth fully the
purposes, powers, rights, objectives and responsibilities of the contracting parties and shall be
governed by the requirements of state law in regard to competitive bidding when applicable.
Approval of such cooperative purchasing arrangements shall be by the City Council prior to use by
the City (Ord. 1470 § 3, 2006).

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 96



 

ATTACHMENTS
1. TIPS Agreement

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 97

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601309350x_at.pdf


 

Region 8 ESC TIPS Interlocal Agreement for Washington State Members                               Revised 8‐12‐2019 ‐ RP 
Page 1 of 4 
 
 

AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
Between Region 8 Education Service Center and a 
STATE OF WASHINGTON PUBLIC AGENCY 

as provided in RCW 39.34.030 et seq 
 
     _____     _________-__________ 
WASHINGTON PUBLIC AGENCY NAME                            Control Number (TIPS will Assign)                        
                                                                                                          
 
Region 8 Education Service Center 225    -   950          
Pittsburg, Texas County-District Number 
 
This Agreement must be approved by the governing bodies of the participating public agencies.  
 
Texas Education Code §8.002 permits regional education service centers, at the direction of the 
Commissioner of Education, to provide services to assist school districts, colleges and universities in 
improving student performance and increasing the efficiency and effectiveness of school, college and 
university operations.  Authority for an Interlocal agreement to provide such services is granted under 
Texas Government Code § 791 et seq as amended. Cooperative Purchasing Services under this agreement 
are extended to all Texas State, City or County Government Agencies, or any other legally eligible Local 
Government Entity as defined in the Texas Government Code § 791.003. 
 
This Interlocal Agreement (hereinafter the “Agreement”) is   effective and its 
duration shall be one year and upon the end of the one-year term, shall be automatically renewed annually 
unless either party gives sixty (60) days prior written notice of non- renewal. This Agreement may be 
terminated without cause by either party upon (60) days prior written notice, or may also be 
terminated for cause at any time upon written notice stating the reason for and effective date of such 
terminations and after giving the affected party a thirty (30) day period to cure any breach. 
 
Statement of Services to be Performed: 
Region 8 Education Service Center, by this Agreement, agrees to provide cooperative purchasing services 
to the above-named public entity through a Program known as the The Interlocal Purchasing System 
(TIPS) Program. 
 
The purpose of the TIPS Program shall be to improve procurement process efficiencies and assist in 
achieving best value for participating School District, University, College, Community College, City, 
County or Other Public Agencies through cooperative purchasing. 
 
Roles of the TIPS Purchasing Cooperative: 

 Provide for the organizational structure of the program. 
 Provide staff for efficient operation of the program. 
 Promote marketing of the TIPS Program. 
 Coordinate the Competitively Bid Process for all Vendor Awarded Contracts. 
 Provide members with procedures for placing orders through TIPS PO System. 
 Maintain filing system for Due Diligence Documentation. 
 Collect fees from vendors to support the costs of operations of TIPS. 

  
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 98



 

Region 8 ESC TIPS Interlocal Agreement for Washington State Members                               Revised 8‐12‐2019 ‐ RP 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

Role of the Washington State Public Agency 
 Commit to participate in the program by an authorized signature on membership forms. 
 Designate a Primary Contact and Secondary Contact for entity. 
 Commit to purchase products and services from TIPS Vendors when in the best interest of the 

entity. 
 Submit Purchase Orders and/or Vendor Contracts through the TIPS PO System by emailing the 

pdf document to tipspo@tips-usa.com. 
 Accept shipments of products ordered from Awarded Vendors. 
 Process Payments to Awarded Vendors in a timely manner. 

 
General Provisions: 
 
No additional or other organization is created or jointly held property is acquired by this Agreement, and 
thus, no method to finance a created entity and no method of disposition of jointly held property is 
required.  
 
Financing of this Agreement shall be by Vendor’s rendering of fees to TIPS in accordance with the TIPS 
cooperative Vendor’s Agreement for each sale to a TIPS cooperative Member.  There is no cost paid by 
the Washington State Agency to TIPS under this Agreement. 
 
The Parties agree to comply fully with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, ordinances, rules, 
and regulations in connection with the programs contemplated under this Agreement. This Agreement 
is subject to all applicable present and future valid laws governing such programs. 
 
This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the State of Texas and venue shall be in the county in 
which the administrative offices of RESC 8 are located which is Camp County, Texas. 
 
This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties hereto with respect to the matters 
covered by its terms, and it may not be modified in any manner without the express written consent of the 
Parties. 
 
If any term(s) or provision(s) of this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 
The Parties to this Agreement expressly acknowledge and agree that all monies paid, if any are paid, 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be paid from legally appropriated and budgeted available funds for the 
current fiscal year of each such entity. 
 
Before any party may resort to litigation, any claims, disputes or other matters in question between the 
Parties to this Agreement shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation.  The site of the mediation shall be 
in Camp County, Texas or a site mutually agreed by the parties.  The selection of the mediator shall be 
mutually agreed.  The cost of mediation shall be shared equally. No Party to this Agreement waives or 
relinquishes any immunity or defense on behalf of themselves, their directors, officers, employees, and 
agents as a result of its execution of this Agreement and performance of the functions and obligations 
described herein. 
 
No Party to this Agreement waives or relinquishes any immunity or defense on behalf of themselves, 
their directors, officers, employees, and agents as a result of its execution of this Agreement and 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 99



 

Region 8 ESC TIPS Interlocal Agreement for Washington State Members                               Revised 8‐12‐2019 ‐ RP 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

performance of the functions and obligations described herein. 
 
This Agreement may be negotiated and transmitted between the Parties by electronic means and the terms 
and conditions agreed to are binding upon the Parties. 
 
TIPS designates the TIPS Vice President of Operations as the administrator for the Cooperative and the 
Washington state agency shall designate herein an administrator below to represent its interests in the 
cooperative undertaking. 
 
Authorization: 
 
Region 8 Education Service Center and The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) Program have entered 
into an Agreement to provide cooperative purchasing opportunities to public agencies. 
This Agreement was approved by the governing boards of the respective parties at meetings that were 
posted and held in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code Chapter 551. 
(If required by the entity.) 
 
The individuals signing below are authorized to do so by the respective parties to this Agreement. 
 
Member Entity:                                                         Purchasing Cooperative Lead Agency: 
 

 
 

Entity or District Name 
 
By:                                 
                     Authorized Signature  

Region 8 Education Service Center 
 
 
By:    
                    Authorized Signature 
 
Dr. David Fitts  
Title: Executive Director Region 8 ESC

Print Name: ____________________________ 
 
Title:     

  

 
  

Date Date 
 

 
Washington Public Entity Designated Administrator Information 
 

 
Primary Administrator’s Name 
 

 
Street Address 
 

 
City, State Zip 
 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 100



 

Region 8 ESC TIPS Interlocal Agreement for Washington State Members                               Revised 8‐12‐2019 ‐ RP 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

Telephone Number 
 

 
Fax Number 
 

 
Primary Administrator Email Address 
 

 
Secondary Contact Name 
 

 
Secondary Contact Email Address 

 
 

Email completed Interlocal Agreement to tips@tips-usa.com. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 101



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4.g.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Interlocal Agreement with Oak

Harbor School District - School
Resource Officer for 2020-2021
School Year

FROM: Kevin Dresker, Police Chief

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Interlocal Agreement with the Oak Harbor School District for a
School Resource Officer for the 2020-2021 School Year.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
"A School Resource Officer (SRO) is a career law enforcement officer with sworn authority who
is deployed by an employing police department or agency in a community-oriented policing
assignment to work in collaboration with one or more schools." A SRO is a valuable position and
studies have shown many benefits of the program.

The City of Oak Harbor and the Oak Harbor School District have worked together to assign a SRO
to the local schools in Oak Harbor for many years. The new contract continues  the agreement
through the 2020-2021 school year and adds language and duties to be consistent with new state
requirements.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The Oak Harbor School District reimburses the City for SRO related expenses as noted in the
contract.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 102



Council approved an Interlocal Agreement with the Oak Harbor School District for a SRO for the
2019-2022 School Years on June 4th, 2019.

ATTACHMENTS
1. OHSD SRO Interlocal for 2020-2021 School Year
2. OHSD SRO Interlocal for 2019-2022 School Years

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 103

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1600963651x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1600963604x_at.pdf


October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 104



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 105



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 106



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 107



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 108



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 109



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 110



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 111



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 112



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 113



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 114



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 115



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 116



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4.h.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Purchase Authorization-

Automated Solid Waste
Replacements

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the use of the “piggyback” statute per RCW 39.34 to purchase two (2)
Peterbilt/Labrie automated residential trucks utilizing the Sourcewell bid contract #081-716-PMC
Peterbilt Motors Company and #112014-LEG Labrie in the amount of $670,287.40.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The 2021-2022 biennial budgets will include the replacement of two (2) 2015 Peterbilt residential
trucks.  The City utilizes these residential trucks daily to pick up 4,000 tons of solid waste each
year and are interchangeable with the recycle trucks.  These trucks have been evaluated for
replacement and the repair and maintenance reports analyzed. 

Due to the delivery time of 9-12 months, staff is asking to order the trucks now for delivery in
2021. 

The proposed funding has been included in the chart below for your review:

Vehicle Budgeted Amount Replacement
Available

Replacement Amount

#45 2015 Peterbilt
Residential Truck

$350,000.00 $349,999.62 $335,143.70

#46 2015 Peterbilt
Residential Truck

$350,000.00 $350,000.62 $335,143.70

TOTALS $700,000.00 $700,000.24 $670,287.40

Funding:  The funding for these replacements has been set aside in the Equipment Rental
Replacement Fund. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 117



Staff has determined to pursue the “piggyback” method to save on advertising costs and to keep
the fleet consistent.  The “piggyback” method is a purchasing tool that allows for
intergovernmental purchases and bidding per RCW 39.34.030, another section of the Interlocal
Cooperation Act, authorizes cooperative action, including joint purchases, by different
governmental entities.
 
In the past, the City of Oak Harbor has used the City of Tacoma’s bid via the “piggyback”
method.  The City of Tacoma’s bid expired at the end of 2018; therefore, staff looked for other
interlocal agreements that would allow the City to save on costs and keep the fleet consistent. 
 
In 2006, the City of Oak Harbor entered into an interlocal agreement with the National Joint
Purchasing Alliance, otherwise known as NJPA.  They have since changed their name to
Sourcewell. 
 
Cooperative purchasing is “procurement conducted by, or on behalf of, one or more Public
Procurement Units” as defined by the American Bar Association Model Procurement Code for
State and Local Governments.  Sourcewell takes care of the entire competitive solicitation process
—both request for proposals on general purchases and invitations to bid on construction
contracting.  They save City’s time and money by combining the buying power of 50,000
government, education, and nonprofit organizations.  Sourcewell's analysts streamline the
procurement process by developing RFPs and IFBs for national, competitive solicitations that
meet or exceed local requirements.  Their rigorous process is continually refined to best meet
member needs and allows them to offer exceptional products from nationally acclaimed vendors.
 
Staff has reviewed Sourcewell’s solicitation process and made sure that it follows the City’s
purchasing policy and ordinances.  Therefore, staff is proposing to replace these 2 trucks using the
agreements in place through Sourcewell. 
 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:          $670,287.40                                       

Appropriation Source:            502.10.594.018.6400             

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented at the City Council workshop on September 23, 2020.  The presentation
has been attached for your review.

ATTACHMENTS

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 118



1. Criteria Sheet #45
2. Criteria Sheet #46
3. Agreement for Sourcewell Bid-Recycle Trucks
4. Workshop PowerPoint

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 119

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601326668x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601326686x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601326714x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601326857x_at.pdf


October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 120



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 121



 

 

WESTERN PETERBILT, INC. 
3801 Airport Way South 

Seattle, Washington, 98108 

(206) 624-7383 

3801 Airport Way South 

Seattle, WA, 98108 

(206) 624-7383 

FAX: (206) 340-0416 

1-800-255-7383 

2028 Rudkin Rd. 

Yakima, WA, 98909 

(509) 453-3700 

FAX: (509) 457-0702 

1-800-734-7383 

3443 20th Street, E. 

Fife, WA, 98424 

(253) 922-7383 

FAX: (253) 927-7931 

1-800-439-7383 

15330 Smokey Point Blvd 

Marysville, WA, 98271 

(360) 659-7383 

FAX: (360) 659-1705 

1-888-755-7383 

6214 E Broadway 

Spokane, WA, 99212 

(509) 535-4241 

FAX: (509) 536-3949 

1-800-572-6219 

1435 E. Hillsboro St. 

Pasco, WA, 99301 

(509) 545-3700 

FAX: (509) 545-1454 

1-888-330-7383 

2200 Spar Ave. 

Anchorage, AK, 99501 

(907) 276-2020 

FAX: (907) 276-2164 

 

Sept 15, 2020 
 
Sandra Place 
Centralized Purchasing and Contract Coordinator 
 
Steve Bebee 
Sanitation Supervisor 
 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA  98277 
 
REF: AGREEMENT FOR SOURCEWELL BID  CONTRACT #081-716-PMC PETERBILT MOTORS 
COMPANY &112014-LEG LABIRE. 
 
 
Western Peterbilt, Inc. would like to formally extend all bid prices, terms, and conditions to the City of Oak 
Harbor for the purchase of (2) two or more Peterbilt Right Hand Drive ASL chassis with Labrie Automizers 
per Sourcewell Contract #081-716-PMC-Peterbilt Motors and Contract#112014-LEG-Labrie.  
 
Following, please find the breakdown of the base prices and options: 
  

 
 
-2021 Peterbilt 520 Right Hand Drive Automated Side Loader  
 Chassis per the City of Oak Harbor specifications. Current list price  
 $246,578.00 minus 41.32% discount of $101,886.03 for a total of 
 $144,691.97.          $144,691.97 
 
-Floorplan or interest cost of 220 days at $16.54 per day or $3,640.53 $    3,640.53 
  
-Doc fees.           $       150.00 
 
-Detailing.          $       275.00 
 
-Fuel.           $       200.00 
 
-Subtotal for chassis per unit         $148,957.50 

 
 
-2020 Labrie Automizer 29 yard Automated Side Loader 
 bodies per the City of Oak Harbor specifications.    $147,499.80 
 
-Body PDI          $    1,250.00 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 122



 

-Freight to Oak Harbor.        $     8,360.00  
 
Subtotsl for body per unit          $157,109.80    
 
-Sub Total            $306,067.30 
-Extension                  X2 
 
-Sub Total            $612,134.60 
  
-Washington State Sales Tax (9.5%)                                                                          $  58,172.79   
 
Total             $670,287.39 
                    ===========  

 
An early pay option of $2,800.00 per chassis before tax is available if the chassis are paid for upon shipment 
of the chassis to Labrie. 
 

         
Thank you for the opportunity to earn your business! 
 

 
 

Stu FoxStu FoxStu FoxStu Fox    
 
 
Stu Fox 
Director of Refuse Sales 
Western Peterbilt, Inc. Dobbs Peterbilt 
 

 

 

 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 123



9/28/2020

1

2020 VEHICLE & 
EQUIPMENT 

REPLACEMENTS

9/23/2020

City Council Workshop

Municipal fleets provide a variety of services to city 
residents.

 In many cases these services are provided on wheels.

 The ability to provide services in an effective and 
efficient manner is partly dependent on a fleet of 
vehicles and other equipment.

ER&R PROGRAM OVERVIEW

1

2

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 124



9/28/2020

2

 The mission of the Equipment Replacement fund is to provide 
safe, efficient and economical fleet replacements and 
effective and economical technology services for the City and 
to be recognized by our customers as improving their 
efficiency and effectiveness. 

 Individual departments contribute towards future purchases 
over time in order to have adequate cash to fully fund the 
purchase of the asset with no short-term borrowing. 

ER&R PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
CONTINUED

 Equipment Rental and Revolving Funds (ER&R) authorized by 
RCW 35.21.088

 OHMC 3.20 Equipment Rental Fund
 Established in 1998 by Ordinance 1125

 Used as the Equipment Rental Fund for all City departments

 Fund 501 Operating Costs

 OHMC 3.21 Equipment Replacement Fund
 Established in 2006 by Ordinance 1475

 Fund 502 Replacement Fund

ER&R PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
CONTINUED

3

4

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 125



9/28/2020

3

 Replacements are approved by City Council during bi-annual 
budget process
 Detailed list of vehicles and anticipated replacement costs provided.

 OHMC requires formal bids for purchases over $30,000, City 
Council approval mandatory

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 
AUTHORIZATION

2019-2020 
Budgeted 
Vehicle & 
Equipment 
Replacements

Asset # Year Description 2019 2020

0 1996 Advantage Lift 150,000$      

1 1999 Dodge Stratus 30,000$        

9 2004 Chevrolet Pick Up 25,000$        

#13 1999 '99 Ford Tractor Loader 100,000$      

16 1998 CAT Backhoe 175,000$      

17 2007 Ford Pick Up 30,000$        

#26 2008 '08 GMC Refuse Truck 150,000$      

30 2007 Ford Pick UP Dump 50,000$        

34 2004 Kubota Mower 50,000$        

63 2006 '06 Peterbilt YW Trk 350,000$      

78 2003 Chevrolet Pick Up 30,000$        

#82 1999 99 Ford F350 ‐ Body 21,000$        

E‐2 1999 Blazer Pavement cutter 10,000$        

E‐38 1999 Emergency Trailer‐Barrica 5,000$           

E‐43 2005 Sucker Pump and Trailer 50,000$        

E‐48 2005 Radar Trailer 15,000$        

E‐6 1988 Cleasby Sprayer 20,000$        

E‐8 2001 Ground Airator 10,000$        

F‐03 1992 Chevrolet Van 50,000$        

P‐04 2007 Chevy Impala COP 50,000$        

P‐21 2005 Chevrolet Grand Caravan 30,000$        

Bear Lift 20,000$        

21 Camera Equipment‐ext lif 75,000$        

Covered Storage 400,000$      

Water Meters 175,000$       175,000$      

22 1990 International 10 Yarder 200,000$      

42 2003 Chevrolet Pick Up 25,000$        

60 1999 Peterbilt Roll Off Truck 250,000$      

74 2012 Peterbilt Recycle Truck 350,000$      

75 2012 Peterbilt Recycle Truck 350,000$      

76 2012 Peterbilt Recycle Truck 350,000$      

E‐65 1998 Stanley Hydraulic Powerunit 5,000$           

SCBAS 350,000$      

5

6

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 126



9/28/2020

4

ADVANTAGE LIFT MITSUBISHI OUTLANDER

COMPLETED 2019-2020 
REPLACEMENTS

2 REFUSE TRUCKS ROLL OFF TRUCK

COMPLETED 2019-2020 
REPLACEMENTS

7

8

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 127



9/28/2020

5

MOWER COMMAND TRUCK

COMPLETED 2019-2020 
REPLACEMENTS

 One of the most difficult issues concerning municipal 
fleets is determining the ideal time to replace vehicles 
and equipment.  How Oak Harbor addresses this:

 Initial life cycle based on APWA Planned Fleet Replacement (page 
13) and/or past experience
 23 years of R&M and replacement history available 

 We do not replace a vehicle simply because we have the funds to 
do so

WHEN TO REPLACE

9

10

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 128



9/28/2020

6

 Detailed analysis before we recommend replacing 
vehicles/equipment

 Annual review of O&M costs vs. replacement costs

 Replacement criteria worksheet

 Changing needs

 Job duties

 Staffing levels

 Need for additional vehicle or back up vehicle

 Level of service impact

WHEN TO REPLACE

 Current and future needs
 What is available on the market?
 Are special features required?
 Could a smaller, more economical vehicle be used?
 Would a vehicle/equipment from a more centralized “motor pool” 

be more cost effective?
 Would a multi-use vehicle be a good fit?
 Is there an EV option available?
 Effective June 1, 2018, all local government subdivisions of the state, to 

the extent determined practicable by the rules adopted by the 
Department of Commerce (DOC), pursuant to RCW 43.325.080, are 
required to satisfy 100% of their fuel usage for operating publicly owned 
vessels, vehicles, and construction equipment from electricity or biofuel. 

WHAT TO PURCHASE AS A 
REPLACEMENT

11

12

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 129



9/28/2020

7

 State & Federal Contract
 State’s formal bid process meets City requirements
 Benefit of “bulk” purchases

 Interlocal Purchasing Agreement
 Bids
 OHMC requires formal bids for purchases over $30,000
 Under $30,000 must obtain informal quotes

 Sole Source
 Single source or supplier

REPLACEMENT PURCHASING 
PROCESS

PUBLIC WORKS
MOTOR POOL

10 YARD DUMP 
TRUCK 
REPLACEMENT

13

14

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 130



9/28/2020

8

1990 International Dump Truck
Oldest vehicle in the fleet besides 1942 International 

Fire Truck (Wally)
 2014 the City owned 2 10-yard dump trucks
 2014 the City moved to 5-yard swap loaders which 

provided a way for staff to decrease the fleet 1 10-
yard dump truck

 Used by all Public Works divisions and resides in the 
Motor Pool fund

10 YARD DUMP TRUCK 
REPLACEMENT

 Meets replacement criteria
 Mechanical issues
 Hard to find parts due to age
 Steering box needs fixed-no seal kit available; therefore, mechanics continue to 

patch and make it work
 Operator issues
 Capacity too small for current needs moving from 10 to 12 yards

 Longer distance to get materials, more capacity fewer trips
 TBD, staff anticipates putting down more asphalt

 Does not include a drop-axle, which allows for full capacity and saves roads in 
the long run by distributing the weight capacity.  The proposed truck includes a 
drop-axle

 Not efficient for snow needs-has a plow attachment, but no sander 
 Safety issues
 Due to age no air bags, no anti-lock brakes, and not eco-friendly

10 YARD DUMP TRUCK 
REPLACEMENT

15

16

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 131



9/28/2020

9

Budgeted $200,000.00

Funds available $231,136.46

State Contract Pricing $188,548.46
Two bids for chassis received-lower bid proposed 

and keeps fleet consistent

Two bids for body received-lower bid proposed

10 YARD DUMP TRUCK 
REPLACEMENT

 Currently 10 yarder does not have a sander, not 
efficient for snow removal

 Current plows will not fit on new truck

 Hydraulics will be new technology and will not work 
with current plows

 Safer for operators for hooking and unhooking the 
plow and new technology for removal of materials for 
the sander

SANDER, PLOW AND HYDRAULICS

17

18

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 132



9/28/2020

10

 Proposing to purchase a sander in the amount of $37,348.02
 Proposing to replacing 2 plows with 1 plow in the amount of 

$19,029.73
 Hydraulic system to run both sander and plow will  be $34,608.01
 Total of $90,985.76
 Funds available $72,245.32
 Savings from chassis and dump body $42,588.00
 Replacement funds for sander $6,716.32
 Replacement funds for plows $22,941.00

 Difference needed $18,740.44
 Proposing to use 510.50 operating budget from capital equipment savings for 

2020
 State contract pricing

SANDER, PLOW AND HYDRAULICS

FIRE 
DEPARTMENT

SCBA 
REPLACEMENT

19

20

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 133



9/28/2020

11

SCBA REPLACEMENT

SCBA stands for Self-contained Breathing 
Apparatus

Current SCBA’s purchased in 2005

Life span of these packs and bottles is 15 years

Not permitted to be upgraded to the 2018 
Edition of the Standard; therefore, replacement 
required by end of 2020

SCBA REPLACEMENT CONTINUED

Funds have been set aside in the 502 
replacement fund since 2007
Funds budgeted $350,000.00

Funds available $364,999.80  

FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant has 
been applied for, however we have not 
received notification of approval

21

22

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 134



9/28/2020

12

SCBA REPLACEMENT CONTINUED

Formal bid required for this procurement due 
to mandatory PPE testing

Purchasing will begin the bid process on 
October 1, 2020

Bid award to City Council on November 3, 
2020

POLICE 
DEPARTMENT

FORD SUV 
HYBRID PATROL 
CAR PURCHASE 

23

24

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 135



9/28/2020

13

FORD SUV HYBRID PURCHASE

 Chief Dresker had mentioned the potential need for an 
additional patrol car when the reorganization occurred with 
the jail and transition from 26 officers to 28.  

 This SUV is needed due to the additional staff and the 
reorganization, which includes forming the Special Services 
Division unit.  

 It provides for adequate transportation for times when more 
officers are working and also mitigates increased wear on 
other vehicles. 

 OHPD will use existing funds to purchase another SUV, which 
will fil l  a vehicle slot which has been open since selling a 
motorcycle that had been used for patrol.  

FORD SUV HYBRID PURCHASE

P-07 totaled on October 14, 2019
Due to be replaced in 2022
 Insurance paying for full replacement
Due to unique opportunity, proposing to use funds set 

aside for that replacement to purchase another patrol 
SUV
Does not increase fleet due to sale of 1 motorcycle used 

for patrol
 This will be a “Hybrid” vehicle, bring OHPD’s fleet up to 2 

Hybrids

25

26

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 136



9/28/2020

14

With the addition of this new SUV, OHPD’s 
fleet contribution will be approximately 
$2,000 lower than in 2020
R&M costs will increase, but will be offset by 

fuel savings from hybrid feature.
Staff feels confident, that this is the way to go 

in order to save on on-going fleet costs and to 
fulfill the Department of Commerce 
requirement to implement EV vehicles when 
feasible.

FORD SUV HYBRID PURCHASE

Not budgeted, asking for permission to use the 
following funds due to special circumstances

 Funds available $79,484.16
 P-07 $52,382.16
 P-20 left over balance $27,102.00

 Funds necessary approximately $68,000.00
State Contract Pricing and Outfitting done by 

Systems for Public Safety
Ordering for new year open now-year turn around

FORD SUV HYBRID PURCHASE

27

28

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 137



9/28/2020

15

SILVER IMPALA

SILVER IMPALA

 In 2018, this 2007 Chevrolet Impala was used as 
a Captain’s car until it was replaced with a Ford 
SUV due to functionality.

At that time City Council authorized staff to keep 
the Impala active to be used by the second 
Captain while staff reviewed the OHPD fleet 
structure.

 In 2019, City Council authorized staff to 
purchase a Ford SUV to move the 2nd Captain to 
the same mobile command platform.

29

30

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 138



9/28/2020

16

SILVER IMPALA CONTINUED

Staff is now seeking City Council authorization to 
keep the Silver Impala to be used for volunteers 
and for a travel vehicle.

There will be ongoing R&M costs and a minimal 
amount of funds will be put into replacement for 
this vehicle.  

Those numbers have been included in the 2021-
2022 budget, which is still $2,000 less than 
2020.                                               

LOOKING 
AHEAD-

SOLID WASTE 
DIVISION

REFUSE TRUCK 
REPLACEMENTS

31

32

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 139



9/28/2020

17

 Replacing two 2015 Peterbilt/Wayne side arm loader trucks 
used for residential pickup

 Proposing to purchase two 2021 Peterbilt/Labrie side arm 
loader trucks

 Normal turn around time has been 10 months, with COVID-
19 it is a year or more

 Proposing to order now for delivery next year when 
budgeted, funds are available now

 Meet replacement criteria

REFUSE TRUCK REPLACEMENTS

2021-2022 
Proposed 
Vehicle & 
Equipment 
Replacements

Asset # Description 2021 2022

#34  04 Kubota Mower 50,000$           

#26  08 GMC Refuse Truck 250,000$         

SCBA's, Comp, Mobile Air System 400,000$         

#22  90 Int'l 10 Yd Dump Truck 150,000$         

#G‐10 92 Onan Generator 75,000$           

#G‐10 92 Onan Generator 75,000$           

#M‐02 1998 Boat Engines (2) + Installati 25,000$           

#57  15 X Mark Mower 30,000$           

#E‐25 94 Vermeer Chipper 40,000$           

#45  14 Peterbilt Refuse Trk 350,000$         

#46  14 Peterbilt Refuse Trk 350,000$         

#67  06 Silverado Pick Up 40,000$           

#78  03 Chevy Silverado Pick up 40,000$           

#E‐10B 00 Interstate Trailer (Paint) 10,000$           

#E‐18 85 Ziem Tilt/Roller Flatbed Traile 50,000$           

#E‐48 05 Radar Trailer 10,000$           

LED Signs (Peds) 50,000$           

#E‐43(1) 05 Sucker Pump and Trailer 80,000$           

#17  07 Ford Ranger 35,000$           
Water Meters 175,000$          175,000$         

#F‐04 04 Chevrolet Tahoe 70,000$           

#F‐07 04 Chevrolet Tahoe 70,000$           

#P‐06 07 Chevrolet Pickup 40,000$           

#P‐13 15 Ford SUV 65,000$           

#P‐14 15 Ford SUV 65,000$           

#68  12 Exmark Mower ‐$                  

#E‐9  89 Trailking TKT40 Trailer 30,000$           

#E‐32 98 Ideal Trailer (Big Black) 10,000$           

#76  12 Peterbuilt Recycle Truck 350,000$         

#42  03 Chevrolet Pickup 35,000$           

#73  10 Swartz Sweeper 350,000$         

#79  Deweeze Slope Mower 75,000$           

#E‐41 90 Frink Snow Plow (#22) 15,000$           

#E‐42 00 Tammer Snow Tamer (#27) 15,000$           

33

34

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 140



9/28/2020

18

Both trucks have control panel issues
 Manufacturer of controls no longer in business
 Replaced one control in the amount of $11,000, the other 

truck on hold until decision on replacement has been made
 Floors are poorly made
 They have been fixed 2 times already, 3rd time close at hand.  
 Typically you replace the floor 1 time per life cycle

Wayne body is the issue
 City of Mt. Vernon and City of Tacoma have the same issues

Reliability is essential
 City can’t afford downtime due to small fleet 
 Used daily Monday-Friday

REFUSE TRUCK REPLACEMENTS 
CONTINUED

 Budgeted amount $700,000.00

 Funds available $700,000.24

 Total needed $670,287.39

 Savings $29,712.61

 Utilizing Sourcewell Bid Contract #081-816 

Keep fleet standardized for operator and mechanic 
efficiency

REFUSE TRUCK REPLACEMENTS 
CONTINUED

35

36

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 141



9/28/2020

19

WASTEWATER 
COLLECTIONS

CAMERA 
EQUIPMENT 
REPLACEMENT

 Included in the 2019-2020 budget is the replacement of 
existing video equipment used by the Wastewater 
Collections division to inspect and maintain City sewer and 
storm drain lines.

 In addition, it is used to inspect new developments, 
troubleshoot issues and complaints, to determined future 
replacement of City infrastructure and help reduce water 
line infiltration in order to reduce water flows.

CAMERA VAN VIDEO EQUIPMENT

37

38

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 142



9/28/2020

20

 This equipment is inside the City’s 2006 Chevrolet Camera 
Van.  The van itself is in great condition and does not need to 
be replaced.

 The last time this equipment was upgraded was in 2016 and 
that was mainly software upgrades.  This upgrade will be 
mainly for hardware.

 The current hardware is outdated, support is expiring and new 
technology is available.

CAMERA VAN VIDEO EQUIPMENT 
CONTINUED

 Budgeted $75,000.00

 Funds available $207,101.00

 Total needed $108,134.00

 Staff is proposing to use the sole source 
procurement purchasing tool that allows the City to 
waive the formal bid requirements when the 
purchase is clearly and legitimately limited to a 
single source or supply.  

CAMERA VAN VIDEO EQUIPMENT 
CONTINUED

39

40

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 143



9/28/2020

21

CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
& QUESTIONS

41

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 144



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4.i.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Purchase Authorization-Camera

Van Equipment

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing the sole source purchase camera van hardware from Cues in the amount
$109,380.25.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Included in the 2019-2020 biennial budget is $75,000.00 to replace existing hardware in the City’s
2006 Chevrolet camera van.  This system is used by the Wastewater and Storm Drain divisions to
provide new inspections on lines installed by contractors, conduct maintenance inspections on
existing lines, to troubleshoot issues and complaints, to determined future replacement of our
infrastructure and lastly, to help reduce water line infiltration in order to reduce water flows.

The current hardware is outdated, the support is expiring, and new technology is available.  The
van itself is in great condition and does not need to be replaced.  Therefore, staff is proposing to
use the sole source procurement tool that allows the City to waive the formal bid requirements
when the purchase is clearly and legitimately limited to a single source or supply.  Cues is the
single source due to the existing software that does not need to be upgraded. 

Sole Source procurement is a purchasing tool that allows the City to waive the formal bid
requirements when the purchase is clearly and legitimately limited to a single source or supply.  In
order to utilize this purchasing tool a resolution must be passed, and the sole source justification
documented. 

The sole source justification and resolution have been completed.  Therefore, staff is proposing to
use sole source procurement to continue to use Cues in order to stay compatible with existing
equipment and services.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 145



OHMC 2.320.120 Sole source procurement.

A contract for the purchase of materials, supplies or equipment may be awarded without
complying with the bidding requirements of this chapter when the purchasing coordinator
determines in writing, subject to the approval of the finance director or such other person
appointed by the mayor to review the determination, after conducting a good faith review of
available sources, that there is only one source for the required materials, supplies or equipment.
The purchasing coordinator shall conduct negotiations, as appropriate, as to price, terms, and
delivery time. A record of sole source procurements shall be maintained that lists each contractor’s
name, the amount and type of each contract, and a listing of the item(s) procured under each
contract. Sole source determinations in excess of $30,000 shall be made by the city council. (Ord.
1470 § 3, 2006).

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                      $109,380.25                           

Appropriation Source:            502.10.594.18.6400               

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented at the City Council workshop on September 23, 2020.  The presentation
has been attached for your review.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Sole Source Justification
2. Sole Source Resolution
3. Exhibit "A"
4. Exhibit "B"

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 146

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601343723x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601343708x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601387724x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601387741x_at.pdf


 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SOLE SOURCE 
 
To:  City Council 

 

From:  Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 

 

Subject:  Sole Source Request for the Purchase Of: CUES Camera Van Components 

 

Requested Supplier: _____CUES_________________ 

 

Cost Estimate: ___________$109,380.25  

 

Sole source purchases are defined as clearly and legitimately limited to a single supplier. Sole source purchases are normally 

not allowed except when based upon strong technological ground such as operational compatibility with existing equipment 

and related parts or upon a clearly unique and cost effective feature requirement. The use of sole source purchases shall be 

limited only to those specific instances which are totally justified to satisfy compatibility or technical performance needs. 

 

STATEMENT OF NEED: 

My department's recommendation for sole source is based upon an objective review of the product/service required and 

appears to be in the best interest of the City. I know of no conflict of interest on my part or personal involvement in any 

way with this request. No gratuities, favors or compromising action have taken place. Neither has my personal familiarity 

with particular brands, types of equipment, materials or firms been a deciding influence on my request to sole source this 

purchase when there are other known suppliers to exist. 

 

Refer to the attached sole source justification as prepared by our department, to the attached review of available 

products/services and to my completed Purchase Requisition. 

 

 

Requestor Department Head 

 

 

_________________________/________________ ___________________________/________________ 

  

 Signature                                Date  Signature  Date 

 

 

  

Finance Director City Administrator 

 

 

_________________________/________________ ___________________________/________________ 

  

 Signature                                Date  Signature  Date 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 147



SOLE SOURCE JUSTIFICATION 

 

Requisition Item: Lamp 2 upgrade with options       

 

Requisition Number:  10690   

 

 

o   Please describe the item and its function: 

The camera van is an essential tool to the Wastewater and Storm Drain Divisions. It is used to do new inspections 

and maintenance inspections of all City sewer lines.  It is a tool that is used to troubleshoot issues in the City’s 

sewer lines and also to determine future replacements of our infrastructure.  Lastly, it is used to help reduce water 

line infiltration in order to reduce water flows. 

 

 

2. This is a sole source* because: 

 

       X sole provider of a licensed or patented good or service  

X sole provider of items that are compatible with existing equipment, inventory, systems, programs or services  

o sole provider of goods and services for which the City has established a standard"  

X  sole provider of factory-authorized warranty service sole provider of goods or services that will meet the 

specialized needs of the City or perform the intended function (please detail below or in an attachment)  

o the vendor/distributor is a holder of a used item that would represent good value and is advantageous to the City 

(please attach information on market price survey, availability, etc.) 

 

3.    What necessary features does this vendor provide which are not available from other vendors? 

  

Please be specific.  

There are other providers of this type of system, however they are not compatible with our existing system which is not in 

need of total replacement, just an upgrade to the hardware.  It would cost the City thousands more to upgrade both the 

hardware and software and that is not warranted at this time.      

 

4. What steps were taken to verify that these features are not available elsewhere? 

 

Staff requested a letter from Cues indicating that they are the sole manufacturer and supplier of OEM parts and services 

for our existing Cues TV equipment.  We have determined that this upgrade is more cost effective than replacing the 

entire camera system.   

 

*Sole Source: only one vendor possesses the unique and singularly available capability to meet the requirement of the 

solicitation.  Procurements of items for which the City has established a standard by designating a brand or manufacturer 

or by pre-approving via a testing shall be competitively bid if there is more than one vendor of the item. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 148



RESOLUTION NO.  20-26   

 

 

RESOLUTION DECLARING CUES A SOLE SOURCE FOR PURPOSES OF PURCHASING THE LAMP 2 

UPGRADE WITH OPTIONS THAT ARE COMPATIBLE WITH OUR EXISTING SYSTEM. 

  

WHEREAS, the City is interested in purchasing certain property described in Exhibit "A" hereto attached; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Central Services Supervisor has determined in writing, subject to the approval of the Finance 

Director, that the items specified in Exhibit "A" subject to the approval of the Finance Director, that the items 

specified in Exhibit "A" and Exhibit “B” are only reasonably obtainable from Cues, 3600 Rio Vista Avenue, 

Orlando, Florida 32805; now, therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor as follows: 

 

1. That the supplier above-named is the sole source supplier of the property identified in Exhibit "A" and 

Exhibit “B” hereto attached; 

 

2. That the City is authorized to purchase the same without proceeding to secure competitive bids. 

 

PASSED and approved by the City Council this 6th day of October, 2020. 

 

       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

 

 

              

      Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

       

City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

 

       

City Attorney 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 149



Tuesday, September 29, 2020 
 
Steve Bebee 
Oak Harbor, City of 
865 S.E. Barrington Dr 
Oak Harbor, WA  98277 
 
RE: Lamp 2 upgrade 
 
Dear Steve: 
Here is the pricing information you requested to upgrade from LAMP 1 to the LAMP 2 launcher unit.  Please see 
attached component list for greater detail. 
 
Lamp 2 upgrade 

• Lamp 2 launcher unit 
• Pan and tilt mainline camera with zoom 
• Fixed view lateral camera with built in sonde and self-leveling image 
• Reel for customer supplied red cable and 120’ blue launch cable 
• Pigtail lock 
• Wheel kits 
• Installation and training 
• delivery 

 
Total    $89,264 
Discounted total  $75,950 + WA sales tax 
 
FOB: Destination 
Terms: Net 30 
Delivery: 8-12 weeks ARO 
 
Optional: 
Pan and tilt lateral camera in lieu of fixed view     $18,425 
Power boom crane with freight and labor to move reels over and install  $6,320 
Deduct lateral camera        -$4,399 deduction 
Add drawer under power crane       $1,145 
Crate and ship folding bumper for customer install     $3,000 
 
Total with all options/deductions and 8.9% tax rate    $109,380.25 
 
Feel free to call me with any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Gillian Wilson 
Cues NW Territory Manager 
 

 
3600 Rio Vista Avenue 
Orlando, FL 32805 
Toll Free: 800-327-7791 
Phone: 407-849-0190 
Fax: 407-425-1569 
Web site: 
www.cuesinc.com 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 150



 
 

 
 
 
 

CUES Sole Source Statement 2020-2026 
 

 
 

 
CUES is the sole manufacturer and supplier of OEM (Original Equipment Manufacturer) 
parts and service for your existing CUES TV equipment.   Due to compatibility and 
warranty issues CUES recommends the purchase of “Original” components and parts 
for your existing CUES TV unit.  This includes Granite XP, Gnet and all related software 
and support plans. 
 
Cues NW is the sole supplier for Cues equipment in WA. Pricing is factory direct without 
dealer mark up, so is the lowest pricing Cues offers. 
 
GXP and Gnet computers are built in house and are constructed for a mobile outdoor 
environment.  Purchasing a Cues built computer enables use of our free loaner program 
in the even t of service needs.  In addition, software is installed in house and tested 
prior to shipping.  Cues is not responsible for troubleshooting, maintenance, or support 
on any 3rd party hardware used with GXP or Gnet software. 
 
Cues Summit electronics are made by and for Cues to run your Cues inspection 
equipment and work seamlessly with the Gnet software.  Use of any other 
manufacturers electronics will damage your equipment and are not supported. This 
includes the LAMP2 lateral system.   
 
Cues Power Boom crane is made in partnership with Western Mule and is exclusive to 
Cues. 
 
 
CUES will not be responsible for damage resulting from the use of other manufactures 
components or parts that are not 100% compatible with your existing CUES TV 
equipment.  
 
The main benefits of CUES OEM purchases are: 
 
1.  Continuation of Warranty 
2.  Life Time Loaner Policy on CUES Equipment 
3.  Maintain Standardization of Equipment 

 
EXHIBIT “B” 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 151



4.  CUES has the only factory direct service & support facility in the NW that includes 3 full time 
employees. 

5.  100% compatibility without modifications to Cues electronics. 
 
 
CUES will insure that customers using the sole source or piggy-back method receive 
"as if bid" prices, which can be substantiated by previously quoted prices or actual 
prices from bid documents/piggy-back purchases of similar recent equipment sales.  
 
 
Gillian Wilson, Cues NW Territory Manager   9/29/2020 
Gillian Wilson 
 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 152



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4.j.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Purchase Authorization-Dump

Truck Replacement

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the use of the “piggyback” statute per RCW 39.34 to purchase one (1)
 Freightliner 114SD Drop-Axle 12 yard Dump/Plow Chassis utilizing the State Contract #01513 in
the amount of $141,491.11; and, one (1) dump body, snow plow, sander, controls and hydraulic
system utilizing the State Contract #01117 in the amount of $139,078.59.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The 2019-2020 biennial budget includes the replacement of one (1) 1990 International dump
truck.  The City only has one 10-yard dump truck that is used by all Public Works divisions.  It is
checked out per job using a motor pool system.

This vehicle meets replacement criteria based on the Heavy Truck/Equipment Replacement
Scoring Guidelines.  It has mechanical issues and has been patched up many times due hard to find
parts.  In addition to mechanical issues, this truck no longer meets the City’s needs.  The capacity
is too small, does not include a drop-axle and does not have adequate safety tools due to its age.   

Staff solicited bids from the two chassis vendors off the State Contract.  Pricing has been included
for your review:

VENDOR PRICE
Freightliner Northwest  $  141,491.11
RCW International  $  141,183.46

Staff is proposing to accept the bid from Freightliner Northwest to keep our fleet consistent.

Staff solicited bids from the two body vendors off the State Contract.  They include the pricing for
the sander, plow and hydraulic system.  Pricing has been included for your review:

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 153



 
 

VENDOR PRICE
Northend Truck  $                139,078.59
Fab Shop  $                153,675.00

 
Staff is proposing the lower bid for this award.  Staff has used Northend Truck in the past and their
quality is outstanding, and their customer service is top-notch.
 
The total needed to purchase the chassis, body, sander, plow and hydraulics with tax is
$280,569.70.
 
The proposed funding has been included in the chart below for your review:
 

Vehicle Budgeted Amount Replacement Available
#22 1990 International

dump truck
$200,000.00 $231,136.46

#E-41 1990 Frink snowplow Not budgeted $11,946.00

#E-42 2000 Tammer
snowplow

Not budgeted $10,995.00

#E-44 & #E-45 Hiway
Sanders

Not budgeted $2,480.32

#E-30 1996 County Sander Not budgeted $4,236.00
TOTALS $200,000.00 $260,793.78

 
Funding:  The funding for these replacements has been set aside in the Equipment Rental
Replacement Fund.
 
The remaining funds needed are $19,775.93.  Staff is proposing to use 510.50 operating budget
funds to make up the difference needed for this acquisition.
 
By purchasing from the State Contract, the City fulfills our bidding obligations as required by City
ordinance and saves costs by allowing the State to perform the bidding process.
 
There is no electric dump truck on the State Contract at this time to fulfill the RCW requiring all
local government subdivisions of the state, to the extent determined practicable by the rules
adopted by the Department of Commerce (DOC), pursuant to RCW 43.325.080, are required to
satisfy 100% of their fuel usage for operating publicly owned vessels, vehicles, and construction
equipment from electricity or biofuel. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 154



FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:          $280,569.70                                       

Appropriation Source:            502.10.594.018.6400             

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented at the City Council workshop on September 23, 2020.  The presentation
has been attached for your review.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Criteria Scoring Sheet #22
2. Heavy Truck or Equipment Replacement Scoring Guidelines
3. Freightliner proposal
4. Northend Truck proposal
5. Workshop PowerPoint

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 155

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601394052x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601394070x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601394089x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601394106x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601394136x_at.pdf


October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 156



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 157



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 158



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 159



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 160



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 161



9/28/2020

1

2020 VEHICLE & 
EQUIPMENT 

REPLACEMENTS

9/23/2020

City Council Workshop

Municipal fleets provide a variety of services to city 
residents.

 In many cases these services are provided on wheels.

 The ability to provide services in an effective and 
efficient manner is partly dependent on a fleet of 
vehicles and other equipment.

ER&R PROGRAM OVERVIEW

1

2

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 162



9/28/2020

2

 The mission of the Equipment Replacement fund is to provide 
safe, efficient and economical fleet replacements and 
effective and economical technology services for the City and 
to be recognized by our customers as improving their 
efficiency and effectiveness. 

 Individual departments contribute towards future purchases 
over time in order to have adequate cash to fully fund the 
purchase of the asset with no short-term borrowing. 

ER&R PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
CONTINUED

 Equipment Rental and Revolving Funds (ER&R) authorized by 
RCW 35.21.088

 OHMC 3.20 Equipment Rental Fund
 Established in 1998 by Ordinance 1125

 Used as the Equipment Rental Fund for all City departments

 Fund 501 Operating Costs

 OHMC 3.21 Equipment Replacement Fund
 Established in 2006 by Ordinance 1475

 Fund 502 Replacement Fund

ER&R PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
CONTINUED

3

4

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 163



9/28/2020

3

 Replacements are approved by City Council during bi-annual 
budget process
 Detailed list of vehicles and anticipated replacement costs provided.

 OHMC requires formal bids for purchases over $30,000, City 
Council approval mandatory

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 
AUTHORIZATION

2019-2020 
Budgeted 
Vehicle & 
Equipment 
Replacements

Asset # Year Description 2019 2020

0 1996 Advantage Lift 150,000$      

1 1999 Dodge Stratus 30,000$        

9 2004 Chevrolet Pick Up 25,000$        

#13 1999 '99 Ford Tractor Loader 100,000$      

16 1998 CAT Backhoe 175,000$      

17 2007 Ford Pick Up 30,000$        

#26 2008 '08 GMC Refuse Truck 150,000$      

30 2007 Ford Pick UP Dump 50,000$        

34 2004 Kubota Mower 50,000$        

63 2006 '06 Peterbilt YW Trk 350,000$      

78 2003 Chevrolet Pick Up 30,000$        

#82 1999 99 Ford F350 ‐ Body 21,000$        

E‐2 1999 Blazer Pavement cutter 10,000$        

E‐38 1999 Emergency Trailer‐Barrica 5,000$           

E‐43 2005 Sucker Pump and Trailer 50,000$        

E‐48 2005 Radar Trailer 15,000$        

E‐6 1988 Cleasby Sprayer 20,000$        

E‐8 2001 Ground Airator 10,000$        

F‐03 1992 Chevrolet Van 50,000$        

P‐04 2007 Chevy Impala COP 50,000$        

P‐21 2005 Chevrolet Grand Caravan 30,000$        

Bear Lift 20,000$        

21 Camera Equipment‐ext lif 75,000$        

Covered Storage 400,000$      

Water Meters 175,000$       175,000$      

22 1990 International 10 Yarder 200,000$      

42 2003 Chevrolet Pick Up 25,000$        

60 1999 Peterbilt Roll Off Truck 250,000$      

74 2012 Peterbilt Recycle Truck 350,000$      

75 2012 Peterbilt Recycle Truck 350,000$      

76 2012 Peterbilt Recycle Truck 350,000$      

E‐65 1998 Stanley Hydraulic Powerunit 5,000$           

SCBAS 350,000$      

5

6

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 164



9/28/2020

4

ADVANTAGE LIFT MITSUBISHI OUTLANDER

COMPLETED 2019-2020 
REPLACEMENTS

2 REFUSE TRUCKS ROLL OFF TRUCK

COMPLETED 2019-2020 
REPLACEMENTS

7

8

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 165



9/28/2020

5

MOWER COMMAND TRUCK

COMPLETED 2019-2020 
REPLACEMENTS

 One of the most difficult issues concerning municipal 
fleets is determining the ideal time to replace vehicles 
and equipment.  How Oak Harbor addresses this:

 Initial life cycle based on APWA Planned Fleet Replacement (page 
13) and/or past experience
 23 years of R&M and replacement history available 

 We do not replace a vehicle simply because we have the funds to 
do so

WHEN TO REPLACE

9

10

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 166



9/28/2020

6

 Detailed analysis before we recommend replacing 
vehicles/equipment

 Annual review of O&M costs vs. replacement costs

 Replacement criteria worksheet

 Changing needs

 Job duties

 Staffing levels

 Need for additional vehicle or back up vehicle

 Level of service impact

WHEN TO REPLACE

 Current and future needs
 What is available on the market?
 Are special features required?
 Could a smaller, more economical vehicle be used?
 Would a vehicle/equipment from a more centralized “motor pool” 

be more cost effective?
 Would a multi-use vehicle be a good fit?
 Is there an EV option available?
 Effective June 1, 2018, all local government subdivisions of the state, to 

the extent determined practicable by the rules adopted by the 
Department of Commerce (DOC), pursuant to RCW 43.325.080, are 
required to satisfy 100% of their fuel usage for operating publicly owned 
vessels, vehicles, and construction equipment from electricity or biofuel. 

WHAT TO PURCHASE AS A 
REPLACEMENT

11

12

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 167



9/28/2020

7

 State & Federal Contract
 State’s formal bid process meets City requirements
 Benefit of “bulk” purchases

 Interlocal Purchasing Agreement
 Bids
 OHMC requires formal bids for purchases over $30,000
 Under $30,000 must obtain informal quotes

 Sole Source
 Single source or supplier

REPLACEMENT PURCHASING 
PROCESS

PUBLIC WORKS
MOTOR POOL

10 YARD DUMP 
TRUCK 
REPLACEMENT

13

14

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 168



9/28/2020

8

1990 International Dump Truck
Oldest vehicle in the fleet besides 1942 International 

Fire Truck (Wally)
 2014 the City owned 2 10-yard dump trucks
 2014 the City moved to 5-yard swap loaders which 

provided a way for staff to decrease the fleet 1 10-
yard dump truck

 Used by all Public Works divisions and resides in the 
Motor Pool fund

10 YARD DUMP TRUCK 
REPLACEMENT

 Meets replacement criteria
 Mechanical issues
 Hard to find parts due to age
 Steering box needs fixed-no seal kit available; therefore, mechanics continue to 

patch and make it work
 Operator issues
 Capacity too small for current needs moving from 10 to 12 yards

 Longer distance to get materials, more capacity fewer trips
 TBD, staff anticipates putting down more asphalt

 Does not include a drop-axle, which allows for full capacity and saves roads in 
the long run by distributing the weight capacity.  The proposed truck includes a 
drop-axle

 Not efficient for snow needs-has a plow attachment, but no sander 
 Safety issues
 Due to age no air bags, no anti-lock brakes, and not eco-friendly

10 YARD DUMP TRUCK 
REPLACEMENT

15

16

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 169



9/28/2020

9

Budgeted $200,000.00

Funds available $231,136.46

State Contract Pricing $188,548.46
Two bids for chassis received-lower bid proposed 

and keeps fleet consistent

Two bids for body received-lower bid proposed

10 YARD DUMP TRUCK 
REPLACEMENT

 Currently 10 yarder does not have a sander, not 
efficient for snow removal

 Current plows will not fit on new truck

 Hydraulics will be new technology and will not work 
with current plows

 Safer for operators for hooking and unhooking the 
plow and new technology for removal of materials for 
the sander

SANDER, PLOW AND HYDRAULICS

17

18

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 170



9/28/2020

10

 Proposing to purchase a sander in the amount of $37,348.02
 Proposing to replacing 2 plows with 1 plow in the amount of 

$19,029.73
 Hydraulic system to run both sander and plow will  be $34,608.01
 Total of $90,985.76
 Funds available $72,245.32
 Savings from chassis and dump body $42,588.00
 Replacement funds for sander $6,716.32
 Replacement funds for plows $22,941.00

 Difference needed $18,740.44
 Proposing to use 510.50 operating budget from capital equipment savings for 

2020
 State contract pricing

SANDER, PLOW AND HYDRAULICS

FIRE 
DEPARTMENT

SCBA 
REPLACEMENT

19

20

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 171



9/28/2020

11

SCBA REPLACEMENT

SCBA stands for Self-contained Breathing 
Apparatus

Current SCBA’s purchased in 2005

Life span of these packs and bottles is 15 years

Not permitted to be upgraded to the 2018 
Edition of the Standard; therefore, replacement 
required by end of 2020

SCBA REPLACEMENT CONTINUED

Funds have been set aside in the 502 
replacement fund since 2007
Funds budgeted $350,000.00

Funds available $364,999.80  

FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant has 
been applied for, however we have not 
received notification of approval

21

22

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 172



9/28/2020

12

SCBA REPLACEMENT CONTINUED

Formal bid required for this procurement due 
to mandatory PPE testing

Purchasing will begin the bid process on 
October 1, 2020

Bid award to City Council on November 3, 
2020

POLICE 
DEPARTMENT

FORD SUV 
HYBRID PATROL 
CAR PURCHASE 

23

24

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 173



9/28/2020

13

FORD SUV HYBRID PURCHASE

 Chief Dresker had mentioned the potential need for an 
additional patrol car when the reorganization occurred with 
the jail and transition from 26 officers to 28.  

 This SUV is needed due to the additional staff and the 
reorganization, which includes forming the Special Services 
Division unit.  

 It provides for adequate transportation for times when more 
officers are working and also mitigates increased wear on 
other vehicles. 

 OHPD will use existing funds to purchase another SUV, which 
will fil l  a vehicle slot which has been open since selling a 
motorcycle that had been used for patrol.  

FORD SUV HYBRID PURCHASE

P-07 totaled on October 14, 2019
Due to be replaced in 2022
 Insurance paying for full replacement
Due to unique opportunity, proposing to use funds set 

aside for that replacement to purchase another patrol 
SUV
Does not increase fleet due to sale of 1 motorcycle used 

for patrol
 This will be a “Hybrid” vehicle, bring OHPD’s fleet up to 2 

Hybrids

25

26

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 174



9/28/2020

14

With the addition of this new SUV, OHPD’s 
fleet contribution will be approximately 
$2,000 lower than in 2020
R&M costs will increase, but will be offset by 

fuel savings from hybrid feature.
Staff feels confident, that this is the way to go 

in order to save on on-going fleet costs and to 
fulfill the Department of Commerce 
requirement to implement EV vehicles when 
feasible.

FORD SUV HYBRID PURCHASE

Not budgeted, asking for permission to use the 
following funds due to special circumstances

 Funds available $79,484.16
 P-07 $52,382.16
 P-20 left over balance $27,102.00

 Funds necessary approximately $68,000.00
State Contract Pricing and Outfitting done by 

Systems for Public Safety
Ordering for new year open now-year turn around

FORD SUV HYBRID PURCHASE

27

28

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 175



9/28/2020

15

SILVER IMPALA

SILVER IMPALA

 In 2018, this 2007 Chevrolet Impala was used as 
a Captain’s car until it was replaced with a Ford 
SUV due to functionality.

At that time City Council authorized staff to keep 
the Impala active to be used by the second 
Captain while staff reviewed the OHPD fleet 
structure.

 In 2019, City Council authorized staff to 
purchase a Ford SUV to move the 2nd Captain to 
the same mobile command platform.

29

30

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 176



9/28/2020

16

SILVER IMPALA CONTINUED

Staff is now seeking City Council authorization to 
keep the Silver Impala to be used for volunteers 
and for a travel vehicle.

There will be ongoing R&M costs and a minimal 
amount of funds will be put into replacement for 
this vehicle.  

Those numbers have been included in the 2021-
2022 budget, which is still $2,000 less than 
2020.                                               

LOOKING 
AHEAD-

SOLID WASTE 
DIVISION

REFUSE TRUCK 
REPLACEMENTS

31

32

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 177



9/28/2020

17

 Replacing two 2015 Peterbilt/Wayne side arm loader trucks 
used for residential pickup

 Proposing to purchase two 2021 Peterbilt/Labrie side arm 
loader trucks

 Normal turn around time has been 10 months, with COVID-
19 it is a year or more

 Proposing to order now for delivery next year when 
budgeted, funds are available now

 Meet replacement criteria

REFUSE TRUCK REPLACEMENTS

2021-2022 
Proposed 
Vehicle & 
Equipment 
Replacements

Asset # Description 2021 2022

#34  04 Kubota Mower 50,000$           

#26  08 GMC Refuse Truck 250,000$         

SCBA's, Comp, Mobile Air System 400,000$         

#22  90 Int'l 10 Yd Dump Truck 150,000$         

#G‐10 92 Onan Generator 75,000$           

#G‐10 92 Onan Generator 75,000$           

#M‐02 1998 Boat Engines (2) + Installati 25,000$           

#57  15 X Mark Mower 30,000$           

#E‐25 94 Vermeer Chipper 40,000$           

#45  14 Peterbilt Refuse Trk 350,000$         

#46  14 Peterbilt Refuse Trk 350,000$         

#67  06 Silverado Pick Up 40,000$           

#78  03 Chevy Silverado Pick up 40,000$           

#E‐10B 00 Interstate Trailer (Paint) 10,000$           

#E‐18 85 Ziem Tilt/Roller Flatbed Traile 50,000$           

#E‐48 05 Radar Trailer 10,000$           

LED Signs (Peds) 50,000$           

#E‐43(1) 05 Sucker Pump and Trailer 80,000$           

#17  07 Ford Ranger 35,000$           
Water Meters 175,000$          175,000$         

#F‐04 04 Chevrolet Tahoe 70,000$           

#F‐07 04 Chevrolet Tahoe 70,000$           

#P‐06 07 Chevrolet Pickup 40,000$           

#P‐13 15 Ford SUV 65,000$           

#P‐14 15 Ford SUV 65,000$           

#68  12 Exmark Mower ‐$                  

#E‐9  89 Trailking TKT40 Trailer 30,000$           

#E‐32 98 Ideal Trailer (Big Black) 10,000$           

#76  12 Peterbuilt Recycle Truck 350,000$         

#42  03 Chevrolet Pickup 35,000$           

#73  10 Swartz Sweeper 350,000$         

#79  Deweeze Slope Mower 75,000$           

#E‐41 90 Frink Snow Plow (#22) 15,000$           

#E‐42 00 Tammer Snow Tamer (#27) 15,000$           

33

34

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 178



9/28/2020

18

Both trucks have control panel issues
 Manufacturer of controls no longer in business
 Replaced one control in the amount of $11,000, the other 

truck on hold until decision on replacement has been made
 Floors are poorly made
 They have been fixed 2 times already, 3rd time close at hand.  
 Typically you replace the floor 1 time per life cycle

Wayne body is the issue
 City of Mt. Vernon and City of Tacoma have the same issues

Reliability is essential
 City can’t afford downtime due to small fleet 
 Used daily Monday-Friday

REFUSE TRUCK REPLACEMENTS 
CONTINUED

 Budgeted amount $700,000.00

 Funds available $700,000.24

 Total needed $670,287.39

 Savings $29,712.61

 Utilizing Sourcewell Bid Contract #081-816 

Keep fleet standardized for operator and mechanic 
efficiency

REFUSE TRUCK REPLACEMENTS 
CONTINUED

35

36

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 179



9/28/2020

19

WASTEWATER 
COLLECTIONS

CAMERA 
EQUIPMENT 
REPLACEMENT

 Included in the 2019-2020 budget is the replacement of 
existing video equipment used by the Wastewater 
Collections division to inspect and maintain City sewer and 
storm drain lines.

 In addition, it is used to inspect new developments, 
troubleshoot issues and complaints, to determined future 
replacement of City infrastructure and help reduce water 
line infiltration in order to reduce water flows.

CAMERA VAN VIDEO EQUIPMENT

37

38

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 180



9/28/2020

20

 This equipment is inside the City’s 2006 Chevrolet Camera 
Van.  The van itself is in great condition and does not need to 
be replaced.

 The last time this equipment was upgraded was in 2016 and 
that was mainly software upgrades.  This upgrade will be 
mainly for hardware.

 The current hardware is outdated, support is expiring and new 
technology is available.

CAMERA VAN VIDEO EQUIPMENT 
CONTINUED

 Budgeted $75,000.00

 Funds available $207,101.00

 Total needed $108,134.00

 Staff is proposing to use the sole source 
procurement purchasing tool that allows the City to 
waive the formal bid requirements when the 
purchase is clearly and legitimately limited to a 
single source or supply.  

CAMERA VAN VIDEO EQUIPMENT 
CONTINUED

39

40

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 181



9/28/2020

21

CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
& QUESTIONS

41

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 182



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4.k.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Purchase Authorization-Hybrid

Patrol SUV 

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing staff to purchase one (1) 2021 Ford Police Interceptor AWD SUV Hybrid
from State Contract number 05916 in the amount not to exceed $45,000.00; and, outfitting work to
be done by Systems for Public Safety in the amount not to exceed $20,000.00.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 183



On October 14, 2019, the City’s 2015 Ford Police Interceptor SUV was damaged.  An estimate of
damage was submitted to our insurance company and they declared the vehicle totaled on
November 6, 2019.  The City’s insurance company will be paying for the full value of the
replacement.  This vehicle was due to be replaced in 2022. 
 
Previously Chief Dresker mentioned to City Council the potential need for an additional patrol car
when the reorganization occurred with the jail and the transition from 26 to 28 officers.  This
proposed SUV will fill this need by providing adequate transportation for times when more
officers are working and mitigates increased wear on other vehicles. 
 
This is not a budgeted replacement, but due to this unique situation, staff is proposing to use the
funds set aside for the replacement of P-07 and the leftover funds from the replacement of P-20 to
fund this acquisition.  This will not increase the fleet size, due to the sale of the City’s P-09 Honda
motorcycle.
 

P-07 $52,282.16
P-20 $27,102.00
Total Funds Available $79,484.16
Funds needed for Hybrid SUV $45,000.00
Funds needed for outfitting $20,000.00
Total Funds Needed $65,000.00

 
 
Staff has evaluated the ongoing costs and has prepared to include them in the 2021-2022 biennial
budget draft to City Council.  The contribution numbers for the Police Department are
approximately $2,000 lower than in 2020 and the on-going repair and maintenance will be offset
by the fuel savings from the hybrid feature.
 
Therefore, staff is requesting to replace the 2008 Honda motorcycle, which was sold in 2018, with
a 2021 Ford Police Interceptor SUV Hybrid from State Contract #05916 and outfitting provided by
Systems for Public Safety in an amount not to exceed $20,000.00 utilizing the funds above.
 
By purchasing from the State Contract, the City fulfills our bidding obligations as required by City
ordinance and saves costs by allowing the State to perform the bidding process. Lastly, by
purchasing another hybrid model, the City to fulfills the RCW requiring all local government
subdivisions of the state, to the extent determined practicable by the rules adopted by the
Department of Commerce (DOC), pursuant to RCW 43.325.080, are required to satisfy 100% of
their fuel usage for operating publicly owned vessels, vehicles, and construction equipment from
electricity or biofuel.  This hybrid is not fully electric and/or utilizes biofuel, but it is a step in that
direction.
 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 184



FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:          $65,000.00                             

Appropriation Source:            502.10.594.018.6400                         

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented at the City Council workshop on September 23, 2020.  The presentation
has been attached for your review.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Vehicle Quote Number 2020-9-263
2. Workshop Presentation

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 185

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601341866x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601341893x_at.pdf


From: NOREPLY@des.wa.gov
To: Sandra Place
Cc: Steve.Hatfield@des.wa.gov
Subject: Vehicle Quote - 2020-9-263 - OAK HARBOR, CITY OF - 21503
Date: Monday, September 28, 2020 3:01:36 PM

Vehicle Quote Number: 2020-9-
263

Create Purchase Request      View organization purchase
requests

 

This is a quote only. You must create a purchase request to order this vehicle(s)
 

Contract & Dealer Information

Contract #: 05916
Dealer: Columbia Ford (W403) Dealer Contact: Marie Tellinghiusen

700 7th Avenue Dealer Phone: (360) 423-4321 Ext: 187
 Longview WA 98632 Dealer Email: orders@colford.com
  

Organization Information

Organization: OAK HARBOR, CITY OF - 21503
Email: SPLACE@OAKHARBOR.ORG

Quote Notes:
Vehicle Location: Oak Harbor

Color Options & Qty

 Agate Black (UM) - 1
 
 Tax Exempt: N

Vehicle Options

Order Code Option Description Qty Unit Price Ext. Price
2021-0521-001 2021 Ford Police Interceptor AWD Pursuit-Rated Utility/SUV (K8A/500A) 1 $32,879.00 $32,879.00

2021-0521-012 Alternative Hybrid (HEV) Engine System [318 HP (combined system HP),
285 HP (gas engine) @ 6500 RPM, 260 lb.-ft. Torque @ 4000 RPM)
(6840# GVWR, 1670 # Payload, 5000# Towing Capacity, 7.4in Ground
Clearance) [Includes 3.3L V6 Direct-Injection Hybrid Engine System,
Lithium-Ion Battery Pack (does not intrude into the cargo area), police
calibrated high-performance regenerative braking system, DC/DC
converter 220-Amp (in lieu of alternator), H7 AGM Battery - 800 CCA /
80-Amp, 19-Gallon Fuel Tank, 8-Year/100,000-Mile Hybrid Unique
Component Warranty] (Not compatible with 3.0L V6 EcoBoost option)
(99W/44B)

1 $3,518.00 $3,518.00

2021-0521-016 Rear Lighting Solution [Includes two (2) backlit flashing linear high-
intensity LED lights (driver side red/passenger side blue) mounted to
inside liftgate glass; two (2) backlit flashing linear high-intensity LED
lights (driver side red/passenger side blue) installed on inside lip of
liftgate (lights activate when liftgate is open); LED lights only; Wiring and
controller not included] (Included with Ready for the Road Package
#67H) (When ordered as a stand-alone option, recommend also ordering
Ultimate Wiring Package #67U) (66C)

1 $454.00 $454.00

2021-0521-017 Tail Lamp/Housing Only (Includes pre-existing holes with standard twist
lock sealed capability) (does not include LED strobe) (Not available with
Tail Lamp Lighting Solution #66B or Ready for the Road Package #67H)

1 $60.00 $60.00

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 186

mailto:NOREPLY@des.wa.gov
mailto:splace@oakharbor.org
mailto:Steve.Hatfield@des.wa.gov
https://apps.des.wa.gov/CARS/PurchaseRequest.aspx
https://fortress.wa.gov/es/apps/CARS/OrgRequests.aspx?o=740
https://fortress.wa.gov/es/apps/CARS/OrgRequests.aspx?o=740


(86T)

2021-0521-021 Side Marker LED, Sideview Mirrors (Driver side - Red / Passenger side -
Blue) (Located on backside of exterior mirror housing) (LED lights only.
Wiring and controller are not included.) (Must also order Pre-wiring for
grille lamp, siren and speaker #60A) (63B)

1 $289.00 $289.00

2021-0521-028 Pre-Wiring for Grille LED Lights, Siren and Speaker (60A) 1 $50.00 $50.00

2021-0521-030 Noise Suppression Bonds (Ground Straps)(60R) 1 $100.00 $100.00

2021-0521-031 Switchable Red/White Lighting in Cargo Area (deletes 3rd row map light)
(17T)

1 $50.00 $50.00

2021-0521-033 Dark Car Feature (courtesy lamp disable when any door is opened) (Not
available with Daytime Running Lights #942) (43D)

1 $25.00 $25.00

2021-0521-034 Police Engine Idle Feature (when activated, allows the key to be removed
from ignition while vehicle remains idling, which allows driver to leave the
engine running and prevents vehicle from unauthorized use when driver
is outside of the vehicle) (47A)

1 $259.00 $259.00

2021-0521-037 Heated Sideview Mirrors (included with BLIS #55B)(549) 1 $60.00 $60.00

2021-0521-039 Doors/Locks: Hidden Door Lock Plunger with Rear Door Controls
Inoperable - locks, handles and windows (locks/windows operable from
drivers door switches) (included with Ready for the Road Package #67H)
(52P)

1 $159.00 $159.00

2021-0521-042 Rearview Camera On-Demand (allows driver to enable rear camera on
demand, includes 10-second timer) (19V)

1 $230.00 $230.00

2021-0521-043 Reverse Sensing System (76R) 1 $275.00 $275.00

2021-0521-045 Police Perimeter Alert - detects motion in an approximately 270-degree
radius on sides and back of vehicle (If movement is determined to be a
threat, chime will sound at Level 1; Doors will lock and windows will
automatically go up at Level 2; Includes visual display in center stack with
tracking) (68B)

1 $673.00 $673.00

2021-0521-046 Pre-Collision Assist with Pedestrian Detection (Includes Forward Collision
Warning and Automatic Emergency Braking and unique disable switch for
Law Enforcement use) (Not available with Front Interior Visor Lightbar
#96W) (76P)

1 $144.00 $144.00

2021-0521-048 Remote Keyless Entry with Four (4) FOBS/Transmitters (includes Liftgate
Release Button) (Does not include Keyless Entry Door Keypad) (If ordered
with Fleet Keyed Alike option, fobs are unique and are not fobbed-alike)
(55F)

1 $339.00 $339.00

2021-0521-049 Fleet Keyed Alike (Call dealer for available key codes) (Allowed to also
order Remote Keyless Entry #55F) (KEY)

1 $50.00 $50.00

2021-0521-050 Rear Console Plate (wiring conduit from front console plate to rear seat)
(Included with Ready for the Road Pkg #67H) (Not available with Interior
Upgrade Pkg #65U or Front Console Plate Delete #85D) (85R)

1 $45.00 $45.00

2021-0521-052 Spot Lamp, LED Bulb, Driver Only (Whelen) (51T) 1 $418.00 $418.00

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 187



2021-0521-064 Rear Center Seat Delete (Includes center seat delete tray) (Not available
with Interior Upgrade Pkg #65U or Vinyl Rear Seat) (No credit) (85S)

1 $0.00 $0.00

2021-0521-072 Class III Trailer Tow Lighting Package (Includes 4-pin and 7-pin
connectors and wiring) (Class III Trailer Hitch Receiver w/ 5000#
maximum tow capacity is standard equipment) (52T) NOW STANDARD
EQUIPMENT

1 $0.00 $0.00

2021-0521-073 H8 AGM Battery Upgrade (900 CCA / 92-Amp) (19K) 1 $109.00 $109.00

2021-0521-074 OBD-II Split Connector (Allows up to 2 devices to be connected to the
vehicle OBD-II port (61B)

1 $55.00 $55.00

2021-0521-201 Keys, 2 Extra Keys (for a total of 6 keys) (Cannot order extra RKE Fobs,
max of 4 can be programmed to vehicle) (DLR)

1 $10.00 $10.00

2021-0521-204 Manuals, Service (CD) (DLR) 1 $221.00 $221.00

2021-0521-205 Service Wiring Diagram, Paper (DLR) 1 $87.00 $87.00

Quote Totals

Total Vehicles: 1     
Sub Total: $40,559.00

8.4 % Sales Tax: $3,406.96
Quote Total: $43,965.96

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 188



9/28/2020

1

2020 VEHICLE & 
EQUIPMENT 

REPLACEMENTS

9/23/2020

City Council Workshop

Municipal fleets provide a variety of services to city 
residents.

 In many cases these services are provided on wheels.

 The ability to provide services in an effective and 
efficient manner is partly dependent on a fleet of 
vehicles and other equipment.

ER&R PROGRAM OVERVIEW

1

2

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 189



9/28/2020

2

 The mission of the Equipment Replacement fund is to provide 
safe, efficient and economical fleet replacements and 
effective and economical technology services for the City and 
to be recognized by our customers as improving their 
efficiency and effectiveness. 

 Individual departments contribute towards future purchases 
over time in order to have adequate cash to fully fund the 
purchase of the asset with no short-term borrowing. 

ER&R PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
CONTINUED

 Equipment Rental and Revolving Funds (ER&R) authorized by 
RCW 35.21.088

 OHMC 3.20 Equipment Rental Fund
 Established in 1998 by Ordinance 1125

 Used as the Equipment Rental Fund for all City departments

 Fund 501 Operating Costs

 OHMC 3.21 Equipment Replacement Fund
 Established in 2006 by Ordinance 1475

 Fund 502 Replacement Fund

ER&R PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
CONTINUED

3

4

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 190



9/28/2020

3

 Replacements are approved by City Council during bi-annual 
budget process
 Detailed list of vehicles and anticipated replacement costs provided.

 OHMC requires formal bids for purchases over $30,000, City 
Council approval mandatory

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 
AUTHORIZATION

2019-2020 
Budgeted 
Vehicle & 
Equipment 
Replacements

Asset # Year Description 2019 2020

0 1996 Advantage Lift 150,000$      

1 1999 Dodge Stratus 30,000$        

9 2004 Chevrolet Pick Up 25,000$        

#13 1999 '99 Ford Tractor Loader 100,000$      

16 1998 CAT Backhoe 175,000$      

17 2007 Ford Pick Up 30,000$        

#26 2008 '08 GMC Refuse Truck 150,000$      

30 2007 Ford Pick UP Dump 50,000$        

34 2004 Kubota Mower 50,000$        

63 2006 '06 Peterbilt YW Trk 350,000$      

78 2003 Chevrolet Pick Up 30,000$        

#82 1999 99 Ford F350 ‐ Body 21,000$        

E‐2 1999 Blazer Pavement cutter 10,000$        

E‐38 1999 Emergency Trailer‐Barrica 5,000$           

E‐43 2005 Sucker Pump and Trailer 50,000$        

E‐48 2005 Radar Trailer 15,000$        

E‐6 1988 Cleasby Sprayer 20,000$        

E‐8 2001 Ground Airator 10,000$        

F‐03 1992 Chevrolet Van 50,000$        

P‐04 2007 Chevy Impala COP 50,000$        

P‐21 2005 Chevrolet Grand Caravan 30,000$        

Bear Lift 20,000$        

21 Camera Equipment‐ext lif 75,000$        

Covered Storage 400,000$      

Water Meters 175,000$       175,000$      

22 1990 International 10 Yarder 200,000$      

42 2003 Chevrolet Pick Up 25,000$        

60 1999 Peterbilt Roll Off Truck 250,000$      

74 2012 Peterbilt Recycle Truck 350,000$      

75 2012 Peterbilt Recycle Truck 350,000$      

76 2012 Peterbilt Recycle Truck 350,000$      

E‐65 1998 Stanley Hydraulic Powerunit 5,000$           

SCBAS 350,000$      

5

6

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 191



9/28/2020

4

ADVANTAGE LIFT MITSUBISHI OUTLANDER

COMPLETED 2019-2020 
REPLACEMENTS

2 REFUSE TRUCKS ROLL OFF TRUCK

COMPLETED 2019-2020 
REPLACEMENTS

7

8

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 192



9/28/2020

5

MOWER COMMAND TRUCK

COMPLETED 2019-2020 
REPLACEMENTS

 One of the most difficult issues concerning municipal 
fleets is determining the ideal time to replace vehicles 
and equipment.  How Oak Harbor addresses this:

 Initial life cycle based on APWA Planned Fleet Replacement (page 
13) and/or past experience
 23 years of R&M and replacement history available 

 We do not replace a vehicle simply because we have the funds to 
do so

WHEN TO REPLACE

9

10

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 193



9/28/2020

6

 Detailed analysis before we recommend replacing 
vehicles/equipment

 Annual review of O&M costs vs. replacement costs

 Replacement criteria worksheet

 Changing needs

 Job duties

 Staffing levels

 Need for additional vehicle or back up vehicle

 Level of service impact

WHEN TO REPLACE

 Current and future needs
 What is available on the market?
 Are special features required?
 Could a smaller, more economical vehicle be used?
 Would a vehicle/equipment from a more centralized “motor pool” 

be more cost effective?
 Would a multi-use vehicle be a good fit?
 Is there an EV option available?
 Effective June 1, 2018, all local government subdivisions of the state, to 

the extent determined practicable by the rules adopted by the 
Department of Commerce (DOC), pursuant to RCW 43.325.080, are 
required to satisfy 100% of their fuel usage for operating publicly owned 
vessels, vehicles, and construction equipment from electricity or biofuel. 

WHAT TO PURCHASE AS A 
REPLACEMENT

11

12

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 194



9/28/2020

7

 State & Federal Contract
 State’s formal bid process meets City requirements
 Benefit of “bulk” purchases

 Interlocal Purchasing Agreement
 Bids
 OHMC requires formal bids for purchases over $30,000
 Under $30,000 must obtain informal quotes

 Sole Source
 Single source or supplier

REPLACEMENT PURCHASING 
PROCESS

PUBLIC WORKS
MOTOR POOL

10 YARD DUMP 
TRUCK 
REPLACEMENT

13

14

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 195



9/28/2020

8

1990 International Dump Truck
Oldest vehicle in the fleet besides 1942 International 

Fire Truck (Wally)
 2014 the City owned 2 10-yard dump trucks
 2014 the City moved to 5-yard swap loaders which 

provided a way for staff to decrease the fleet 1 10-
yard dump truck

 Used by all Public Works divisions and resides in the 
Motor Pool fund

10 YARD DUMP TRUCK 
REPLACEMENT

 Meets replacement criteria
 Mechanical issues
 Hard to find parts due to age
 Steering box needs fixed-no seal kit available; therefore, mechanics continue to 

patch and make it work
 Operator issues
 Capacity too small for current needs moving from 10 to 12 yards

 Longer distance to get materials, more capacity fewer trips
 TBD, staff anticipates putting down more asphalt

 Does not include a drop-axle, which allows for full capacity and saves roads in 
the long run by distributing the weight capacity.  The proposed truck includes a 
drop-axle

 Not efficient for snow needs-has a plow attachment, but no sander 
 Safety issues
 Due to age no air bags, no anti-lock brakes, and not eco-friendly

10 YARD DUMP TRUCK 
REPLACEMENT

15

16

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 196



9/28/2020

9

Budgeted $200,000.00

Funds available $231,136.46

State Contract Pricing $188,548.46
Two bids for chassis received-lower bid proposed 

and keeps fleet consistent

Two bids for body received-lower bid proposed

10 YARD DUMP TRUCK 
REPLACEMENT

 Currently 10 yarder does not have a sander, not 
efficient for snow removal

 Current plows will not fit on new truck

 Hydraulics will be new technology and will not work 
with current plows

 Safer for operators for hooking and unhooking the 
plow and new technology for removal of materials for 
the sander

SANDER, PLOW AND HYDRAULICS

17

18

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 197



9/28/2020

10

 Proposing to purchase a sander in the amount of $37,348.02
 Proposing to replacing 2 plows with 1 plow in the amount of 

$19,029.73
 Hydraulic system to run both sander and plow will  be $34,608.01
 Total of $90,985.76
 Funds available $72,245.32
 Savings from chassis and dump body $42,588.00
 Replacement funds for sander $6,716.32
 Replacement funds for plows $22,941.00

 Difference needed $18,740.44
 Proposing to use 510.50 operating budget from capital equipment savings for 

2020
 State contract pricing

SANDER, PLOW AND HYDRAULICS

FIRE 
DEPARTMENT

SCBA 
REPLACEMENT

19

20

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 198



9/28/2020

11

SCBA REPLACEMENT

SCBA stands for Self-contained Breathing 
Apparatus

Current SCBA’s purchased in 2005

Life span of these packs and bottles is 15 years

Not permitted to be upgraded to the 2018 
Edition of the Standard; therefore, replacement 
required by end of 2020

SCBA REPLACEMENT CONTINUED

Funds have been set aside in the 502 
replacement fund since 2007
Funds budgeted $350,000.00

Funds available $364,999.80  

FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant has 
been applied for, however we have not 
received notification of approval

21

22

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 199



9/28/2020

12

SCBA REPLACEMENT CONTINUED

Formal bid required for this procurement due 
to mandatory PPE testing

Purchasing will begin the bid process on 
October 1, 2020

Bid award to City Council on November 3, 
2020

POLICE 
DEPARTMENT

FORD SUV 
HYBRID PATROL 
CAR PURCHASE 

23

24

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 200



9/28/2020

13

FORD SUV HYBRID PURCHASE

 Chief Dresker had mentioned the potential need for an 
additional patrol car when the reorganization occurred with 
the jail and transition from 26 officers to 28.  

 This SUV is needed due to the additional staff and the 
reorganization, which includes forming the Special Services 
Division unit.  

 It provides for adequate transportation for times when more 
officers are working and also mitigates increased wear on 
other vehicles. 

 OHPD will use existing funds to purchase another SUV, which 
will fil l  a vehicle slot which has been open since selling a 
motorcycle that had been used for patrol.  

FORD SUV HYBRID PURCHASE

P-07 totaled on October 14, 2019
Due to be replaced in 2022
 Insurance paying for full replacement
Due to unique opportunity, proposing to use funds set 

aside for that replacement to purchase another patrol 
SUV
Does not increase fleet due to sale of 1 motorcycle used 

for patrol
 This will be a “Hybrid” vehicle, bring OHPD’s fleet up to 2 

Hybrids

25

26

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 201



9/28/2020

14

With the addition of this new SUV, OHPD’s 
fleet contribution will be approximately 
$2,000 lower than in 2020
R&M costs will increase, but will be offset by 

fuel savings from hybrid feature.
Staff feels confident, that this is the way to go 

in order to save on on-going fleet costs and to 
fulfill the Department of Commerce 
requirement to implement EV vehicles when 
feasible.

FORD SUV HYBRID PURCHASE

Not budgeted, asking for permission to use the 
following funds due to special circumstances

 Funds available $79,484.16
 P-07 $52,382.16
 P-20 left over balance $27,102.00

 Funds necessary approximately $68,000.00
State Contract Pricing and Outfitting done by 

Systems for Public Safety
Ordering for new year open now-year turn around

FORD SUV HYBRID PURCHASE

27

28

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 202



9/28/2020

15

SILVER IMPALA

SILVER IMPALA

 In 2018, this 2007 Chevrolet Impala was used as 
a Captain’s car until it was replaced with a Ford 
SUV due to functionality.

At that time City Council authorized staff to keep 
the Impala active to be used by the second 
Captain while staff reviewed the OHPD fleet 
structure.

 In 2019, City Council authorized staff to 
purchase a Ford SUV to move the 2nd Captain to 
the same mobile command platform.

29

30

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 203



9/28/2020

16

SILVER IMPALA CONTINUED

Staff is now seeking City Council authorization to 
keep the Silver Impala to be used for volunteers 
and for a travel vehicle.

There will be ongoing R&M costs and a minimal 
amount of funds will be put into replacement for 
this vehicle.  

Those numbers have been included in the 2021-
2022 budget, which is still $2,000 less than 
2020.                                               

LOOKING 
AHEAD-

SOLID WASTE 
DIVISION

REFUSE TRUCK 
REPLACEMENTS

31

32

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 204



9/28/2020

17

 Replacing two 2015 Peterbilt/Wayne side arm loader trucks 
used for residential pickup

 Proposing to purchase two 2021 Peterbilt/Labrie side arm 
loader trucks

 Normal turn around time has been 10 months, with COVID-
19 it is a year or more

 Proposing to order now for delivery next year when 
budgeted, funds are available now

 Meet replacement criteria

REFUSE TRUCK REPLACEMENTS

2021-2022 
Proposed 
Vehicle & 
Equipment 
Replacements

Asset # Description 2021 2022

#34  04 Kubota Mower 50,000$           

#26  08 GMC Refuse Truck 250,000$         

SCBA's, Comp, Mobile Air System 400,000$         

#22  90 Int'l 10 Yd Dump Truck 150,000$         

#G‐10 92 Onan Generator 75,000$           

#G‐10 92 Onan Generator 75,000$           

#M‐02 1998 Boat Engines (2) + Installati 25,000$           

#57  15 X Mark Mower 30,000$           

#E‐25 94 Vermeer Chipper 40,000$           

#45  14 Peterbilt Refuse Trk 350,000$         

#46  14 Peterbilt Refuse Trk 350,000$         

#67  06 Silverado Pick Up 40,000$           

#78  03 Chevy Silverado Pick up 40,000$           

#E‐10B 00 Interstate Trailer (Paint) 10,000$           

#E‐18 85 Ziem Tilt/Roller Flatbed Traile 50,000$           

#E‐48 05 Radar Trailer 10,000$           

LED Signs (Peds) 50,000$           

#E‐43(1) 05 Sucker Pump and Trailer 80,000$           

#17  07 Ford Ranger 35,000$           
Water Meters 175,000$          175,000$         

#F‐04 04 Chevrolet Tahoe 70,000$           

#F‐07 04 Chevrolet Tahoe 70,000$           

#P‐06 07 Chevrolet Pickup 40,000$           

#P‐13 15 Ford SUV 65,000$           

#P‐14 15 Ford SUV 65,000$           

#68  12 Exmark Mower ‐$                  

#E‐9  89 Trailking TKT40 Trailer 30,000$           

#E‐32 98 Ideal Trailer (Big Black) 10,000$           

#76  12 Peterbuilt Recycle Truck 350,000$         

#42  03 Chevrolet Pickup 35,000$           

#73  10 Swartz Sweeper 350,000$         

#79  Deweeze Slope Mower 75,000$           

#E‐41 90 Frink Snow Plow (#22) 15,000$           

#E‐42 00 Tammer Snow Tamer (#27) 15,000$           

33

34

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 205



9/28/2020

18

Both trucks have control panel issues
 Manufacturer of controls no longer in business
 Replaced one control in the amount of $11,000, the other 

truck on hold until decision on replacement has been made
 Floors are poorly made
 They have been fixed 2 times already, 3rd time close at hand.  
 Typically you replace the floor 1 time per life cycle

Wayne body is the issue
 City of Mt. Vernon and City of Tacoma have the same issues

Reliability is essential
 City can’t afford downtime due to small fleet 
 Used daily Monday-Friday

REFUSE TRUCK REPLACEMENTS 
CONTINUED

 Budgeted amount $700,000.00

 Funds available $700,000.24

 Total needed $670,287.39

 Savings $29,712.61

 Utilizing Sourcewell Bid Contract #081-816 

Keep fleet standardized for operator and mechanic 
efficiency

REFUSE TRUCK REPLACEMENTS 
CONTINUED

35

36

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 206



9/28/2020

19

WASTEWATER 
COLLECTIONS

CAMERA 
EQUIPMENT 
REPLACEMENT

 Included in the 2019-2020 budget is the replacement of 
existing video equipment used by the Wastewater 
Collections division to inspect and maintain City sewer and 
storm drain lines.

 In addition, it is used to inspect new developments, 
troubleshoot issues and complaints, to determined future 
replacement of City infrastructure and help reduce water 
line infiltration in order to reduce water flows.

CAMERA VAN VIDEO EQUIPMENT

37

38

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 207



9/28/2020

20

 This equipment is inside the City’s 2006 Chevrolet Camera 
Van.  The van itself is in great condition and does not need to 
be replaced.

 The last time this equipment was upgraded was in 2016 and 
that was mainly software upgrades.  This upgrade will be 
mainly for hardware.

 The current hardware is outdated, support is expiring and new 
technology is available.

CAMERA VAN VIDEO EQUIPMENT 
CONTINUED

 Budgeted $75,000.00

 Funds available $207,101.00

 Total needed $108,134.00

 Staff is proposing to use the sole source 
procurement purchasing tool that allows the City to 
waive the formal bid requirements when the 
purchase is clearly and legitimately limited to a 
single source or supply.  

CAMERA VAN VIDEO EQUIPMENT 
CONTINUED

39

40

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 208



9/28/2020

21

CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
& QUESTIONS

41

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 209



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4.l.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Resolution 20-24: Island County

Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard
Mitigation Plan

FROM: Ray Merrill, Fire Chief

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign Resolution 20-24, Island County Multi-jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation
Plan.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor, in partnership with Island County participates in the Island County Multi-
Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan. This plan is a requirement of the Disaster Mitigation Act of
2000 and is required in order to qualify for disaster funding from FEMA. This plan was previously
adopted in 2015 and is required to be updated every five (5) years. Each jurisdiction that
participates my, by Resolution, adopt this plan.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 39.34 Interlocal Cooperation Act

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented at the September 23, 2020 workshop

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 20-24 Island County Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 210

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1600874852x_at.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 20-24 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF THE ISLAND COUNTY MULTI-

JURISDICTION HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 

WHEREAS, all of Island County has exposure to natural hazards that increase the risk to life, property, environment and 

the County’s economy; and 

 

WHEREAS; pro-active mitigation of known hazards before a disaster event can reduce or eliminate long-term risk to life 

and property; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (Public Law 106-390) established requirements for pre and post 

disaster hazard mitigation programs requiring that “local and tribal government applicants for sub-grants must have an 

approved local mitigation plan in accordance with 44 CFR 201.6 prior to receipt of a Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 

sub-grant funding.”  The purpose of such local mitigation plan is to represent the Multi-Jurisdcition’s commitment to 

reduce risks from natural and man-made hazards; and 

 

WHEREAS,  pursuant to 44 CFR 201.6, a coalition of Island County stakeholders with like planning objectives was 

formed to pool resources and create consistent mitigation strategies to be implemented within each partner’s identified 

capabilities within the  Island County Planning Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, the coalition has completed a planning process that engages the public, assesses the risk and vulnerability to 

the impacts of natural hazards, develops a mitigation strategy consistent with a set of uniform goals and objectives, and 

creates a plan for implementing, evaluating and revising this strategy; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 44 CFR 201.6, the Island County Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan has been 

reviewed and found to meet the regulatory criteria, and following adoption by participating jurisdictions, will be 

approved by FEMA, making all adopting jurisdictions eligible for mitigation project grants. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby resolved by the  City Council of Oak Harbor Washington that: 

 

The Island County Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan is hereby adopted in its entirety, including the City of Oak 

Harbor’s Jurisdictional Annex, which represents each planning partner’s commitment to reduce risks from natural and 

man-made hazards. 

 

Passed by the City Council this 6th  day of October, 2020  

 

        

 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

        

___________________________ 

       Robert Severns, Mayor    

 

 

 

 

 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 211



 

 

ATTEST:    

 

 

Julie Lindsey        

City Clerk  

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

Anna Thompson      

City Attorney 

         

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 212



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4.m.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Waterfront Pedestrian

Improvements - Final Contract
Voucher Certificate

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Jim Bridges, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to authorize the Mayor to sign the Final Contract Voucher Certificate with PNW Civil Inc
for the Waterfront Pedestrian Improvements project.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The contract with PNW Civil Inc. for the construction of the Waterfront Pedestrian Improvements
project was approved by the City Council at the March 17th, 2020 Council meeting. This project
installed a mid-block crossing on SE Bayshore Drive near the ballfields and replaced 340 feet of
sidewalk and 6 ADA curb ramps along SE Bayshore Drive. Minor drainage improvements were
also completed as part of this work. 

The original construction contract was $122,463.75. A $30,000 change order allowance was
approved at the July 7th, 2020 council meeting to upgrade the ADA improvements at the
intersection of SE Dock Street and SE Bayshore Drive in advance of the upcoming overlay project.

All work was completed August 10th and the final cost of construction was $151,915.33.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:  N/A
Appropriation Source:  N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 213



July 24, 2019 - City Council Workshop, the project was discussed.

September 3, 2019 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the Professional Services
Agreement with TranspoGroup for their professional services on the Waterfront Pedestrian
Improvements project in time and materials, not to exceed amount of $41,000.00.

March 17, 2020 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the construction contract with PNW
Civil Inc for the Waterfront Pedestrian Improvements project in the amount of $122,463.75 and
authorize the City Engineer to add up to 21 contract days in total.

July 7, 2020 – City Council authorized the City Engineer to execute contract changes up to
$30,000.00 for the construction contract with PNW Civil Inc for the Waterfront Pedestrian
Improvements project.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Final Contract Voucher Certificate

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 214

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1600283385x_at.pdf


October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 215



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 7.a.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Resolution 20-25: 2021-2022

Cost of Living Adjustment
(COLA) Contingent for Non-
Represented Employees

FROM: Emma House, Director Human Resources

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution No. 20-25 as presented. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 216



Pursuant to OHMC 2.34.080, it is the policy of the City of Oak Harbor to pay adequate levels of
compensation to City employees. Providing adequate compensation to City employees promotes
productivity, reduces turnover, and improves the City’s ability to attract and retain qualified
personnel to carry out the functions of city government.  

The proposed resolution reflects that compensation levels reflect the market for such personnel in
the region. This proposed Resolution is intended to authorize wage adjustments for non-
represented employees, as long as funding is available, as a Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA).
The proposed COLA does not impact employees' regularly scheduled step increases.

The City and its unions are scheduled for negotiations of collective bargaining agreements for
represented employees. At this time, non-represented employees do not have a COLA to wage and
salary increases for 2021-2022 established. There is a need to balance the financial needs of the
City by providing competitive wages and salaries to both represented and non-represented
employees.

Due to the current crisis related to the novel coronavirus and the economic uncertainty, the City is
unable to fully predict the potential financial impact on the City. 

Staff proposes that Council adopt Resolution 20-25 to adjust wages and salaries of non-
represented employees with a COLA effective January 1, 2021 and January 1, 2022 contingent on
a finding that funding is available pursuant to OHMC 2.34.080. Staff requests that Council
exercise it’s budgetary discretion on whether there are sufficient revenues available to fund the
COLAs.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 35A.11.020; OHMC 2.34.080

FISCAL IMPACT
COLA adjustment to non-represented employees.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 20-25

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 217

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1600894112x_at.pdf


Resolution No. 20-25 re: COLA for non-represented 

employees contingent on available funding 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-25 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AUTHORIZING IMPLEMENTATION 

OF COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT WAGE INCREASES FOR NON-REPRESENTED 

EMPLOYEES CONTINGENT ON AVAILABLE FUNDING 

 

WHEREAS, the City adopts biennial budgets and is in the process of developing the 

2021-2022 budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, due to the current crisis related to the novel coronavirus and the economic 

uncertainty, the City is unable to fully predict the potential financial impact on the City; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City and its unions are scheduled for negotiations of collective 

bargaining agreements for represented employees; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to balance the financial needs of the City by 

providing competitive wages and salaries to both represented and non-represented 

employees; and 

 

WHEREAS, non-represented employees do not have a cost of living adjusment (COLA) 

to wage and salary increases for 2021-2022 established at this time; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council to adjust wages and salaries of non-

represented employees with a COLA effective January 1, 2021 and January 1, 2022 

contingent on a finding that funding is available; and 

 

WHEREAS, available sources of funding may not be known until the first quarter of 

2021 therefore necessitating the final decision of any COLA to wages and salaries of 

non-represented employees until after January 1, 2021; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor as 

follows: 

 

1.   During 2021, implementation of a retroactive COLA wage and salary increase 

commencing January 1, 2021 for non-represented employees, is hereby authorized, 

providing it is comparable to the percentage increase of represented employees, and 

provided that in the discretion of the City Council sufficient revenue is available and/or 

forecasted to be able to cover the increase without detrimental financial impact to the 

City. 

 

2. During 2022, implementation of a COLA wage and salary increase commencing January 

1, 2022 for non-represented employees, is hereby authorized if approved in the 2021-

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 218



Resolution No. 20-25 re: COLA for non-represented 

employees contingent on available funding 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

2022 adopted City budget or an amendment thereto, provided in the discretion of the City 

Council sufficient revenue is available and/or forecasted to cover the increase without 

detrimental financial impact to the City. 

 

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this ______ day of October, 2020. 

        

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

 

__________________________ 

      Robert Severns, Mayor 

 

Attest:        

 

 

      

Julie Lindsey, City Clerk   

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

      

Grant Weed, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2020\COLA Resolution - Non-represented employees.docx 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 219



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.a.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Finance Director Employment

Contract

FROM: Emma House, Director Human Resources

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm Mayor's appointment of David Goldman to the position of Finance Director.

Approve the employment agreement with David Goldman as the Finance Director for the City of
Oak Harbor and authorize the Mayor to sign.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
David Goldman was selected during the interview process for Finance Director. Mayor Severns
appointed David Goldman as the Finance Director.

The Mayor recommends the attached employment contract for David Goldman to assume the
position of Finance Director.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Oak Harbor Municipal Code
Chapter 2.07 FINANCE DIRECTOR AND FINANCE DEPARTMENT

2.07.020 Appointment – Term.

The finance director shall be appointed by the mayor and confirmed by the city council. The
finance director shall serve at the pleasure of the mayor pursuant to an employment contract
proposed by the mayor and approved by the city council. (Ord. 1628 § 3, 2012; Ord. 1117 § 3,
1997; Ord. 546 § 3, 1979).

FISCAL IMPACT

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 220

file:///C:/Windows/TEMP/BCL%20Technologies/easyPDF%208/%22%22https:/www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1628.pdf%22%22
file:///C:/Windows/TEMP/BCL%20Technologies/easyPDF%208/%22%22https:/www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1117.pdf%22%22


This is a current position which was budgeted as part of the biennial budget. The total cost of the
contract is $134,064 annually.

The proposed contract specifies conditions of employment and sets working conditions for the
Finance Director, including but not limited to:

Salary: Starting base salary $134,064 annually, with a provision for annual cost of living
adjustments.
Severance Package: Severance pay for at-will termination in the amount of six (6) months'
salary. No severance pay for termination by resignation or for cause.
Vacation: Initial bank of forty (40) hours and accrual rate of ten (10) hours per month.
Other Benefits: Same as provided for general City employees, including but not limited to,
retirement, medical, dental, and vision insurance,

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Finance Director Contract with David Goldman
2. David Goldman Resume

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 221

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601580618x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601580589x_at.pdf


  Oak Harbor Finance Director 
   Employment Agreement 
  Page 1 of 5 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
Finance Director of Oak Harbor 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT effective October 6, 2020, by and between the City of Oak Harbor, hereinafter 
referred to as “City”, and David Goldman, hereinafter referred to as “Finance Director”.  
 
WHEREAS, the Finance Director has been selected by the Mayor through a competitive process to 
undertake the duties of the position of Finance Director, and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to OHMC 2.34.055 department heads employed by the City shall be offered 
employment agreements, and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City to provide certain benefits, establish certain conditions of 
employment, and to set working conditions for the position of Finance Director, and,  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to OHMC 2.05.010 the City Council has confirmed the Mayor’s appointment of 
David Goldman as Finance Director for the City of Oak Harbor, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Finance Director agrees to serve in that capacity subject to the terms and conditions set 
forth in this Employment Agreement, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF the terms and conditions hereinafter set 
forth, the City and Finance Director agree as follows: 
 
1. Employment.  The City hereby employs the Finance Director to serve in the position of Finance 

Director for the City of Oak Harbor.  The duties of said position shall be to perform all duties 
assigned to the position of Finance Director as provided in the job description, the Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code, and Washington State law, together with such other and further duties and 
special projects as may be assigned to the Finance Director by the City’s Mayor.  Pursuant to 
OHMC 2.05.010 and 2.34.055 the Finance Director shall serve at the pleasure and at the 
discretion of the City’s Mayor. 

 
2. Duration of Employment.  This Employment Agreement shall become effective on or about 

thirty (30) days after October 6, 2020, based on Council approval, and shall continue indefinitely 
thereafter unless sooner terminated by the parties as provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 below. 

 
3. “At Will” – Termination by the City.   The Finance Director shall at all times during his 

employment be considered an “At Will” employee, subject to termination by the City’s Mayor at 
any time with or without cause.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed other than an “At 
Will” employment relationship between the City and the Finance Director and the Finance 
Director expressly acknowledges that no contrary representations have been made by the City. 

 
4. Resignation – Termination by the Finance Director.  The Finance Director reserves the right to 

resign from employment at any time with or without cause.  The Finance Director agrees to give 
the City not less than thirty (30) days’ notice prior to the effective date of any such resignation. 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 222



  Oak Harbor Finance Director 
   Employment Agreement 
  Page 2 of 5 

5. Compensation:  The Finance Director shall be compensated for services rendered during the term 
of this Agreement as follows: 

 
a. Base Salary.  The Finance Director shall receive a monthly salary of $11,172.00 per 

month.  The rate of pay may be adjusted annually thereafter consistent with the salary 
range and steps established for this position and equal to the cost-of-living and/or cost-of-
market increase given to the other Department Heads.  

 
b. Salary and Wage Study. In the event that a salary and wage study is conducted, the 

Finance Director position shall be included.  
 

c. Benefits.  The Finance Director shall be entitled to sick leave accrual as set forth in the 
City Personnel Policies, and ten (10) paid holidays, plus two (2) floating holidays on a 
day of choice, to total twelve (12) paid holidays annually.  The Finance Director shall 
receive an initial bank of forty (40) hours of vacation leave as of the effective date of this 
employment agreement.  The Finance Director shall be entitled to vacation leave accrual 
as set forth in the City Personnel Policy at a rate of eight (10) hours per month equivalent 
to one hundred-twenty (120) hours annually.  The Finance Director shall also receive all 
other benefits provided by the City of Oak Harbor to regular employees as follows: 

 
• Medical insurance, premium paid 100% and 75% premium paid for spouse and 

dependent children 
• Dental insurance, premium paid 100% and 75% premium paid for spouse and 

children 
• Standard Insurance life insurance policy of $25,000 paid for employee only 
• Enrollment in Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) retirement system 

 
The Finance Director shall also be entitled to elect other voluntary benefit options as they 
exist now or as they are modified in the future.  The following describes the voluntary 
benefits as they exist on the effective date of the Agreement: 

 
• Self-paid individual and/or family supplemental insurance coverage for Short-

term Disability, Cancer Care, and Critical Illness 
• Pre-tax deductions for Unreimbursed Medical expenses and/or Dependent Day 

Care 
• Additional self-paid Voluntary Group Life Insurance 
• Self-paid enrollment in the choice of two Deferred Compensation Plans 
• Health Saving Account (HSA) with enrollment in the high deductible health plan 

 
d. Timing of Monthly Payments – Deductions.  All monthly payments of salary and benefits 

shall be made at the same time and on the same date as the City’s regular payroll.  All 
such monthly payments shall be subject to all required state and federal deductions, 
including income tax, social security, and any other deduction required and authorized by 
law.   The City agrees to pay all employer contributions to FICA, worker’s compensation, 
and similar programs as required by law. 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 223



  Oak Harbor Finance Director 
   Employment Agreement 
  Page 3 of 5 

6. Work Schedule.  The Finance Director is a confidential, exempt employee for purposes of the 
Federal Fair Labor Standards Act and as such shall not work a fixed forty (40) hour per week 
schedule.  The Finance Director shall generally work at Oak Harbor City Hall during regular 
business hours of the City, Monday through Friday, provided, that the Finance Director shall 
receive time off for holidays according to the holiday schedule customarily observed by the City.  
The Finance Director is also required to attend all meetings of the Oak Harbor City Council and 
such other council committee, city board, commission and staff meetings as requested by the 
Mayor or as required by the duties of the position.  

 
7. Severance Package.   
 

a. Severance for At Will Termination.  In the event the Finance Director employment with 
the City is terminated for any reason other than those delineated in subparagraph (b) 
below, the City will provide the Finance Director severance payment for a period of six 
(6) months after the effective date of termination.  The monthly amount shall be paid in 
accord with the same schedule as the regular city payroll, and shall be subject to the same 
mandatory deductions as the Finance Director’s salary was prior to termination. 

 
i. Reference.  In the event of termination of the Finance Director’s employment by 

the City, the Finance Director shall be entitled to an employment reference from 
the City, the language of which shall be agreed upon by the parties, provided, that 
in the event the parties cannot agree on the form of the reference, the City will 
provide only the dates of the Finance Director’s employment, the last position 
held, the last salary received, the fact that the Finance Director is no longer 
employed by the City. 

 
  ii. Unemployment Benefits.  The City will not oppose any unemployment benefit  

  claims  made by the Finance Director. 
  
b. Termination by Resignation or for Cause.  The severance package provided for in 

subparagraph (a) above shall not be available to the Finance Director if the termination of 
the Finance Director’s employment with the City is due to: 

 
i. Resignation.  The Finance Director’s voluntary resignation from employment.  

For purposes of this paragraph, “voluntary resignation” means a resignation of 
employment resulting from the free choice of the Finance Director and not the 
result of a suggestion to resign in lieu of termination made by formal action of the 
Mayor or City Council. 

 
ii. Misconduct.  Criminal conduct, commission of any crime, abuse of public office, 

or other gross misconduct, including, but not limited to, fraud, deceit, 
embezzlement, theft of funds or property, assault, or sexual, racial, or other 
harassment; or  

 
iii. Job Performance.  Insubordination, incompetence, inadequacy, or inefficiency of 

the Finance Director in the performance of his official duties.   
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 224



  Oak Harbor Finance Director 
   Employment Agreement 
  Page 4 of 5 

c. Construction.  The severance package provided in subparagraph (a) above shall not be 
construed as an extension of the Finance Director’s employment beyond the termination 
date.  The Finance Director shall not, during the period between the termination date and 
the end of the severance payments, accrue any additional sick leave, vacation, leave, or 
other benefit accorded active City employees. 

 
8. Professional Memberships, Dues & Subscriptions.  The City agrees to pay the reasonable 

professional dues and subscriptions necessary for continuation, enrollment and full participation 
of continued education in the financial management services profession.  In addition, the City 
may pay for membership in such other associations or organizations, and may reimburse the 
Finance Director for attendance at annual conferences or the same and for such other 
professional development activities as the Mayor may approve and as may be annually budgeted 
by the City Council. 

 
9. Liability Insurance.  The City agrees to cover the Finance Director on the City’s liability 

insurance policies to the same extent as any regular employee of the City is covered for acts, 
errors, or omissions within the scope of employment.  All such liability insurance coverage shall 
be provided at the City’s sole cost and expense. 

 
10. Hold Harmless.  The City of Oak Harbor agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Finance 

Director from any and all costs, risk or liability associated with or arising out of acts or failures 
to act which are performed within the scope of his employment as the Finance Director including 
the reasonable cost of legal defense by counsel appointed by the City or its insurance carrier, as 
applicable. This promise to indemnify shall exclude only criminal acts of the Finance Director 
and acts or failure to act which would constitute an intentional tort or intentional wrongdoing 
knowingly committed by the Finance Director without the express direction of the Mayor or City 
Council of the City of Oak Harbor.  This promise to hold harmless and indemnify shall survive 
beyond the employment of the Finance Director with the City of Oak Harbor in order that the 
Finance Director shall be held harmless, indemnified and defended in the future for all acts taken 
as the Finance Director subject to the limitations contained herein. 

 
11. Severability.  If any paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Agreement shall be held by a 
 court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, said invalidity or unenforceability 
 shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase, 
 and to that end the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement shall be severable. 
 
12. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between 

the parties as to the terms and conditions of the Finance Director’s employment by the City and 
no other agreements or understandings, oral or otherwise, exist or shall be deemed binding upon 
the parties.  The Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument duly executed by both 
parties. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 225



  Oak Harbor Finance Director 
   Employment Agreement 
  Page 5 of 5 

 
Dated this __________________ day of __________________, 2020. 
 
 
        For the City of Oak Harbor:    
  
 
        ____________________________________ 
        Robert Severns, Mayor    
  
 
 
               
        David Goldman, Finance Director  
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Julie Lindsey, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
        
Grant Weed, City Attorney 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 226



   
   

DAVID GOLDMAN     
 

WORK EXPERIENCE 
 
JULY ’20 – PRESENT ‘20  MGMT. & BUDGET DEPARTMENT CONTRACTOR (WORKING REMOTELY) 

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

• Grant Writing. 

• Capital Improvement Program and Capital Budget Development. 

• Intergovernmental coordination. 
 
JUNE ’19 – JUNE ‘20  FINANCE & ADMIN. DEPT.  DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & 
    CITY OF KIRKLAND   ADMINISTRATION 

• Assisted with the management of 41 employees in the Finance and Administration Department which included the 
City's Fiscal Planning, Accounting, Payroll, Procurement, Treasury, Debt, Customer Accounts, and City Clerk 
functions. 

• Responsible for developing and monitoring the City's $789 million 18 fund biennial budget and $827 million 6-year 
capital improvement program. 

• Responsible for financial forecasts and financial models. 

• Oversaw the City's Financial Planning, Budget, Treasury and Debt functions. 
 
FALL '16 – JUNE ‘19  MGMT. & BUDGET DEPARTMENT MGMT. AND BUDGET DIRECTOR 

 SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

• Developed and administrated an annual operating budget of $169 Million, capital budget of $528 Million, and 
Capital Improvement Program of $5.1 Billion.   

• Administrated the District’s centralized grants writing and compliance functions. 

• Conducted detailed financial analysis and managed the District’s financial forecast models. 

• Organized fiscal sustainability strategies that focus on increasing profitability and reducing reliance on Federal and 
State funding sources. 

• Developed performance management and peer review analytics. 

• Facilitated the development of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and audit. 

• Assisted with the management of 48 employees consisting of the budget, grants, payroll, billing and revenue 
collection, accounts payable, pension, treasury, human resources, risk management, and real estate functions of the 
District. 

 

SUMMER '07 – FALL ‘16  MGMT. & BUDGET DEPARTMENT MGMT. AND BUDGET DIRECTOR 
 CITY OF MIRAMAR, FL    

• Organized the City’s first Management and Budget Department in a very fast-growing community.  Developed and 
administrated an annual 28 fund operating budget of $222 Million with over 1,000 FTEs and 5-year capital 
improvement Program (FY 2016 – FY 2020) of $86 Million for the 14th largest city in the State of Florida.  
Developed a highly motivated, experienced, and skilled team of eight. 

• Member of City’s Executive Management Team. 

• Led the city-wide transition from a line-item budget to a program/performance-based budget with 19 departments 
and 28 funds.  Revised the City’s budget process.   

• Assisted with the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

• Developed financial innovations and strategies, with buy-in from stakeholders, that enabled the City to recover 
from the great recession with minimal disruption to services and operations. 

• Represented the financial arm of the City in collective bargaining negotiations.  Testified in impasse hearings. 

• Functioned as City’s economist: Prepared forecasts of future conditions using multiple scenarios; reviewed trends 
impacting the City.  

• Developed numerous sophisticated financial and real estate related models and analytical tools. 

• Developed utility rate, development impact fees, and cost allocation studies. 

• Bond issuance and rating agency collaboration.  

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 227



  

• Selected and implemented Tyler’s Munis Enterprise Resource Planning program 

• Implemented the City’s Visual Budget and Open Checkbook financial transparency initiative. 

• City champion for Lean Six Sigma process improvement program. 
 
AUG '97 – SUMMER ‘07  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPT. SENIOR PLANNER / 

 CITY OF MIRAMAR, FL   SPECIAL PROJECTS MANAGER 

• Special Projects for the City Manager. 

• Organization-wide productivity enhancements through innovation and technology. 

• Development planner for the award winning, transit-oriented, mixed-use Miramar Town Center. 

• Created the City’s first mixed-use (Traditional Neighborhood Development) zoning regulations. 

• Created the City’s first affordable housing regulations and administered the program. 

• Chairperson of the City’s Development Review Committee which consists of representatives from each 
development-related functional area of the City. 

• Presentations to City Commission, committees, boards, business, neighborhood, and interest groups. 

• Lead site plan reviewer for hundreds of land development applications.  Helped guide the City’s growth from a 
bedroom/retirement community of 47,000 to a full-service community of over 138,000. 

• Developed the City’s fiscal impact analysis 20-year forecasting model. 
 
EDUCATION   
 
DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY IN PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION, (coursework completed) Expected Degree Date: Fall 2022  
Florida Atlantic University; Boca Raton, FL 

• Public policy, finance & budget, and taxation 
 

MASTER OF URBAN AND REGIONAL PLANNING 
Virginia Polytechnic and State University (Virginia Tech); Blacksburg, VA 

• Fiscal impact analysis, economic development, and urban design 
 

BACHELOR OF ARTS, URBAN STUDIES 
Rutgers University, Rutgers College; New Brunswick, NJ 

• Fiscal impact analysis research directly under Robert Burchell at the Center for Urban Policy Research 

• Real Estate Development certificate 
 

MEMBERSHIPS AND CERTIFICATIONS 
 

• Government Finance Officers Association  

• American Institute of Certified Planners since 2001  

• American Planning Association  

• American Society for Public Administration  

• Congress for the New Urbanism 

• Florida State University - Certified Public Manager Program 

• Director of Section Affairs for the Broward County Section of the Florida Chapter of the American Planning 
Association, 2003 – 2005 

• Miramar Management Pension Board Trustee, 2015 - 2016 

• Board of Adjustment – City of Fort Lauderdale, Florida, 2006 - 2009 

• Licensed Florida Real Estate Agent since 2005 and Washington Real Estate Broker since 2019 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 228



 

 

Bill No. [8.b.
Date: October 6th, 2020 

Subject: Water System Plan Limited Update 

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 

Jim Bridges, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 

Bob Severns, Mayor 

Blaine Oborn, City Administrator 

VACANT, Finance Director 

Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

I move to authorize the Mayor to sign Professional Services Agreement for the Water System Plan Limited 

Update with Gray and Osborne, Inc. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION 

The Washington State Department of Health requires that the City of Oak Harbor update the Water System Plan 

every six years.  

The City of Oak Harbor Water System Plan provides a planning strategy for the City’s water utility over 6- and 

20-year periods.  The plan must be prepared consistent with Department of Health requirements as specified in

the Washington Administrative Code (WAC) Chapter 246-290.  The plan represents a commitment by the City

to pursue and implement the Plan’s recommendations and capital improvements.

Since there has been limited system improvements and growth from the prior plan that was prepared in 

September 2014, the Department of Health allows for a “Limited Update” to the plan. 

The City has selected Gray and Osbourne, Inc. to prepare this limited update per the attached Scope of Services 

proposal. The Scope of Services identifies the cost to prepare the Water System Plan Limited Update as 

$34,700  

LEGAL AUTHORITY 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Funds Required:  $37,500 

Appropriation Source: 401.00.534.00.4100 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Agenda Bill 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 229



 

 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT 

 

None. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Professional Services Agreement 

2. Scope of Services Proposal 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 230



1 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 And GRAY & OSBORNE, INC. 

FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 

 

 
Project Name: Water System Plan Limited Update 

Agreement Number: ENG-20-08 

Agreement Amount: $34,700 
Expiration Date: December 31st, 2021 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement’) is made and entered into by and between the City of Oak 
Harbor, a Washington State municipal corporation (“City”), and Gray & Osborne, Inc,  a 
Washington corporation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performances 
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the City with consultant services regarding 
preparation and delivery of a Water System Plan Limited Update as described in Article II. The 
general terms and conditions of the relationship between the City and the Consultant are 
specified in this Agreement. 
 
 ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The Scope of Services is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this 
reference (“Scope of Services”).  All services and materials necessary to accomplish the tasks 
outlined in the Scope of Services shall be provided by the Consultant unless noted otherwise in 
the Scope of Services or this Agreement.  All such services shall be provided in accordance with 
the standards of the Consultant’s profession. 
 
 ARTICLE III.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT 
 
(1) Minor Changes in Scope.  The Consultant shall accept minor changes, amendments, or 

revision in the detail of the Scope of Services as may be required by the City when such 
changes will not have any impact on the service costs or proposed delivery schedule.   

 
 Extra work, if any, involving substantial changes and/or changes in cost or schedules will 

be addressed as follows: 
 

Extra Work.  The City may desire to have the Consultant perform 
work or render services in connection with each project in addition 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 231



2 
 

to or other than work provided for by the expressed intent of the 
Scope of Services.  Such work will be considered as extra work 
and will be specified in a written supplement to the Scope of 
Services, to be signed by both parties, which will set forth the 
nature and the scope thereof.  All proposals for extra work or 
services shall be prepared by the Consultant at no cost to the City.  
Work under a supplemental agreement shall not proceed until 
executed in writing by the parties. 

 
(2) Work Product and Documents.  The work product and all documents produced under this 

Agreement shall be furnished by the Consultant to the City, and upon completion of the 
work shall become the property of the City, except that the Consultant may retain one 
copy of the work product and documents for its records.  The Consultant will be 
responsible for the accuracy of the work, even though the work has been accepted by the 
City. 

 
 In the event that the Consultant shall default on this Agreement or in the event that this 

Agreement shall be terminated prior to its completion as herein provided, all work 
product of the Consultant, along with a summary of work as of the date of default or 
termination, shall become the property of the City.  Upon request, the Consultant shall 
tender the work product and summary to the City.  Tender of said work product shall be a 
prerequisite to final payment under this Agreement.  The summary of work done shall be 
prepared at no additional cost to the City. 

 
 Consultant will not be held liable for reuse of documents produced under this Agreement 

or modifications thereof for any purpose other than those authorized under this 
Agreement without the written authorization of Consultant. 

 
(3) Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on October 7th, 2020 and shall 

terminate at midnight, December 31st, 2021.  The parties may extend the term of this 
Agreement by written mutual agreement. 

 
(4) Nonassignable.  The services to be provided by the Consultant shall not be assigned or 

subcontracted without the express written consent of the City. 
 
(5) Employment.  Any and all employees of the Consultant, while engaged in the 

performance of any work or services required by the Consultant under this Agreement, 
shall be considered employees of the Consultant only and not of the City, and any and all 
claims that may or might arise under the Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any 
said employees while so engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a 
consequence of any negligent act or omission on the part of the Consultant or its 
employees while so engaged in any of the work or services provided herein shall be the 
sole obligation of the Consultant. 

 
(6) Indemnification/Hold Harmless.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, 

its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 232



3 
 

injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from 
the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, except 
for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 

 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to 
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to 
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of 
the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the 
Consultant's liability, including the duty and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the 
extent of the Consultant’s negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood 
that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Consultant’s waiver of immunity 
under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification.  
This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  The provisions of this section 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
a. Insurance Term.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of 

the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees. 

 
b. No Limitation.  The Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by the 

Agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the 
coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any 
remedy available at law or in equity. 

 
c. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  The Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types 

and coverage described below: 
 

i. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and 
leased vehicles.  Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services 
Office (ISO) form CA 00 01. 

 
ii. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad as ISO 

occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, stop-gap independent contractors and personal injury and 
advertising injury.  The City shall be named as an additional insured under 
the Consultant’s Commercial General Liability insurance policy with 
respect to the work performed for the City using an additional insured 
endorsement at least as broad as ISO CG 20 26. 

 
iii. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance 

laws of the State of Washington. 
 
iv. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant’s profession. 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 233



4 
 

d. Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  The Consultant shall maintain the following 
insurance limits: 

 
i. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for 

bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 
 
ii. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no 

less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 
 
iii.  Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 

$1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 
 

e. Other Insurance Provision.  The Consultant’s Automobile Liability and 
Commercial General Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 
contain, that they shall be primary insurance with respect to the City.  Any 
insurance, self-insurance, or self-insured pool coverage maintained by the City 
shall be in excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 

f. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 
A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII. 

 
g. Verification of Coverage.  The Consultant shall furnish the City with original 

certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements including, but not 
necessarily limited to, the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the 
insurance requirements of the Consultant before commencement of the work. 

 
h. Notice of Cancellation.  The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice 

of any policy cancellation within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 
 

i. Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Failure on the part of the Consultant to maintain 
the insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of Agreement, upon 
which the City may, after giving five business days' notice to the Consultant to 
correct the breach, immediately terminate the Agreement or, at its discretion, 
procure or renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection 
therewith, with any sums so expended to be repaid to the City on demand, or at 
the sole discretion of the City, offset against funds due the Consultant from the 
City. 

 
j. City Full Availability of Consultant Limits.  If the Consultant maintains higher 

insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the City shall be insured for the 
full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or Umbrella liability 
maintained by the Consultant, irrespective of whether such limits maintained by 
the Consultant are greater than those required by this Agreement or whether any 
certificate of insurance furnished to the City evidences limits of liability lower 
than those maintained by the Consultant. 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 234



5 
 

(7) Discrimination Prohibited and Compliance with Equal Opportunity Legislation.  The 
Consultant agrees to comply with equal opportunity employment and not to discriminate 
against client, employee, or applicant for employment or for services because of race, 
creed, color, religion, national origin, marital status, sex, sexual orientation, age or 
handicap except for a bona fide occupational qualification with regard, but not limited to, 
the following:  employment upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment or any 
recruitment advertising; layoff or terminations; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; selection for training, rendition of services.  The Consultant further agrees 
to maintain (as appropriate) notices, posted in conspicuous places, setting forth the 
provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.  The Consultant understands and agrees that 
if it violates this nondiscrimination provision, this Agreement may be terminated by the 
City, and further that the Consultant will be barred from performing any services for the 
City now or in the future, unless a showing is made satisfactory to the City that 
discriminatory practices have been terminated and that recurrence of such action is 
unlikely. 

 
(8) Unfair Employment Practices.  During the performance of this Agreement, the 

Consultant agrees to comply with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair employment 
practices. 

 
(9) Legal Relations.  The Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and 

ordinances applicable to work to be done under this Agreement.  The Consultant 
represents that the firm and all employees assigned to work on any City project are in full 
compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing activities to be 
performed and that all personnel to be assigned to the work required under this 
Agreement are fully qualified and properly licensed to perform the work to which they 
will be assigned.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Washington.  Venue for any litigation commenced relating to this 
Agreement shall be in Island County Superior Court. 

 
(10) Independent Contractor.   

 
a. The Consultant and the City understand and expressly agree that the Consultant is 

an independent contractor in the performance of each and every part of this 
Agreement.  The Consultant expressly represents, warrants and agrees that his/her 
status as an independent contractor in the performance of the work and services 
required under this Agreement is consistent with and meets the six-part 
independent contractor test set forth in RCW 51.08.195 or as hereafter amended.  
The Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility 
for carrying out and accomplishing the services required under this Agreement.  
The Consultant shall make no claim of City employment nor shall claim any 
related employment benefits, social security, and/or retirement benefits. 

b. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for paying all taxes, deductions, and 
assessments including, but not limited to, federal income tax, FICA, social 
security tax, assessments for unemployment and industrial injury, and other 
deductions from income which may be required by law or assessed against either 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 235



6 
 

party as a result of this Agreement.  In the event the City is assessed a tax or 
assessment as a result of this Agreement, the Consultant shall pay the same before 
it becomes due. 
 

c. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent 
contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs 
hereunder. 
 

d. Prior to commencement of work, the Consultant shall obtain a business license 
from the City. 

 
(11) Conflicts of Interest.  The Consultant agrees to and shall notify the City of any potential 

conflicts of interest in Consultant’s client base and shall obtain written permission from 
the City prior to providing services to third parties where a conflict or potential conflict 
of interest is apparent. If the City determines in its sole discretion that a conflict is 
irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement. 

 
(12) City Confidences.  The Consultant agrees to and will keep in strict confidence, and will 

not disclose, communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior written 
consent from the City in each instance, the confidences of the City or any information 
regarding the City or services provided to the City. 

 
(13) Subcontractors/Subconsultants.   

 

a. The Consultant shall be responsible for all work performed by subcontractors/ 
subconsultants pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 

b. The Consultant must verify that any subcontractors/subconsultants they directly 
hire meet the responsibility criteria for the project. Verification that a 
subcontractor/subconsultant has proper license and bonding, if required by statute, 
must be included in the verification process. The Consultant will use the 
following subcontractors/subconsultants or as set forth in Exhibit ____: 

 
         
         
         
          

 
c. The Consultant may not substitute or add subcontractors/subconsultants without 

the written approval of the City. 
 
d. All subcontractors/subconsultants shall have the same insurance coverages and 

limits as set forth in this Agreement and the Consultant shall provide verification 
of said insurance coverage. 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 236



7 
 

 ARTICLE IV.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 
 
(1) Payments.   
 

a. The Consultant shall be paid by the City on a time and materials basis for services 
rendered under this Agreement as described in the Scope of Services and as 
provided in this section.  In no event shall the compensation paid to Consultant 
under this Agreement exceed $34,700.00 without the written agreement of the 
Consultant and the City.  Such payment shall be full compensation for work 
performed and services rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment 
and incidentals necessary to complete the work.  In the event the City elects to 
expand the scope of services from that set forth in Exhibit "A", the City shall pay 
Consultant a mutually agreed amount. 

 
b. The Consultant shall submit a monthly invoice to the City for services performed 

in the previous calendar month.  At a minimum, invoices shall include: 
 

 (i)  a summary of previous invoices;  
(ii)  current invoice amount;  
(iii)  total current monthly billing;  
(iv)  amount authorized under this agreement; and  
(v)  total authorized amount still remaining under the agreement.   
 
The Consultant shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the 
City upon request. 

 
c. The City will pay timely submitted and approved invoices received before the 

20th of each month within thirty (30) days of receipt. 
 
(2) City Approval.  Notwithstanding the Consultant's status as an independent contractor, 

results of the work performed pursuant to this Agreement must meet the approval of the 
City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been completed in 
compliance with the Scope of Services and City requirements. 

 
(3) Maintenance/Inspection of Records.  The Consultant shall maintain all books, records, 

documents and other evidence pertaining to the costs and expenses allowable under this 
Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.  All such books 
and records required to be maintained by this Agreement shall be subject to inspection 
and audit by representatives of the City and/or the Washington State Auditor at all 
reasonable times, and the Consultant shall afford the proper facilities for such inspection 
and audit.  Representatives of the City and/or the Washington State Auditor may copy 
such books, accounts and records where necessary to conduct or document an audit.  The 
Consultant shall preserve and make available all such books of account and records for a 
period of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement.  In the event that any 
audit or inspection identifies any discrepancy in such financial records, the Consultant 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 237



8 
 

shall provide the City with appropriate clarification and/or financial adjustments within 
thirty (30) calendar days of notification of the discrepancy. 

 
 ARTICLE V.  GENERAL 
 
(1) Notices.   
 

Notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: 
 
James L. Bridges, PE, 

City Engineer 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

865 SE BARRINGTON DRIVE 

OAK HARBOR, WA 98277 
 
 Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 
 

Michael B. Johnson, PE,  President 

Gray & Osborne 

1130 Rainier Avenue S. 
Seattle, WA 98144 

  
 Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) days after deposit of written 

notice in the U.S. mail with proper postage and address. 
 
(2) Termination.  The right is reserved by the City to terminate this Agreement in whole or in 

part at any time upon ten (10) calendar days' written notice to the Consultant. 
 

If this Agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City for its convenience, the City 
shall pay the Consultant for satisfactory services performed through the date of 
termination in accordance with payment provisions of Section IV(1). 

 
(3) Disputes.  The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation and 

compromise, any unresolved dispute arising under this Agreement may be resolved by a 
mutually agreed-upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 

 
(4) Extent of Agreement/Modification.  This Agreement, together with attachments or 

addenda, represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the parties and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.  
This Agreement may be amended, modified or added to only by written instrument 
properly signed by both parties. 
 

(5) Severability.   
 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this 
Agreement to be illegal or invalid, in whole or in part, the validity of the 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 238



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 239



G&O #PR206.21 Page 1 of 3 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

WATER SYSTEM PLAN 2021 UPDATE 

 

The following scope of work is proposed based on our understanding of the project.  The 

Scope of Work has been developed based upon the anticipated effort to extend the 

existing 2014 Water System Plan for four more years per the Washington Department of 

Health’s new policy.  The Water System Plan update will be prepared to meet the 

requirements of WAC 246-290-100.     

 

This scope of work is predicated on the City being able to submit an extension and have 

it approved.  If at any time during the extension effort, Gray & Osborne determines that 

the City is not eligible for or is not likely to receive the extension, the work on the 

extension will cease and the City will be notified.  It is expected that the scope of work 

would be renegotiated at that time to include the preparation of a full water system plan 

meeting the requirements of WAC 246-290-100. 

 

Task 1 – Prepare Extension Approval Document 

 

Based upon a Pre-Plan Meeting with the Department of Health, the following will be 

prepared for the extension approval. 

 

Data Collection and Review 

 

A. Develop list of required information and submit to Oak Harbor staff. 

 

B. Review existing information including historical operating data and water 

consumption/production data since the completion of the 2014 Water 

System Plan. 

 

Task 2 – Basic Planning Data and Water Demand Forecasting 

 

A. Quantify current population, service connections, water consumption, 

water production, and non-revenue water.   

 

B. Determine existing average day, maximum day, and maximum 

instantaneous demand for the service area. 

 

C. Estimate distribution system leakage based upon production and 

consumption assumptions. 

 

D. Estimate water use by ERU. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 240



G&O #PR206.21 Page 2 of 3 

 

E. Compare existing use with the projections in the Water System Plan to 

confirm that the Water System Plan projections and system analysis are 

still valid, specifically for the next four years. 

 

Task 3 – Conservation (Water Use Efficiency) Program 

 

A. Provide narrative on water use efficiency efforts. 

 

B. Identify updated Water Use Efficiency Goals.  Evaluate appropriate 

measures for the system. 

 

Task 4 – Water System Capital Improvement Program 

 

A. Provide a narrative on projects completed since the adoption of the Water 

System Plan. 

 

B. Provide narrative on storage project and distribution system 

improvements. 

 

C. Provide summary of projects remaining in CIP. 

 

D. Revise CIP as necessary to meet the project water system demands. 

 

Task 5 – Financial Program 

 

A. Review Oak Harbor’s historical finances since the adoption of the Water 

System Plan. 

 

B. Account for the cost of replacement of the entire system and include 

reserves within the financial analysis. 

 

C. Provide updated financial budget for the next 4 years. 

 

D. Describe funding sources available for the financial program. 

 

Task 6 – Update City Plans and Programs 

 

A. Provide updated coliform monitoring plan. 

 

B. Provide updated cross connection control plan. 

 

C. Prepare water rights self-assessment. 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 241



G&O #PR206.21 Page 3 of 3 

Task 7 – Complete Draft Plan for Submittal to WSDOH 

 

A. Compile a complete extension application including appendices. 

 

B. Distribute the draft application to affected agencies and groups. 

 

C. Submit draft extension application to Island County for concurrence. 

 

D. If requested by the City, Gray & Osborne will be present at one public 

meeting suggested by DOH to inform customers of the extended plan and 

the revised Water Use Efficiency goals. 

 

Task 8 – Complete Final Plan 

 

A. Incorporate comments from various agencies in the final document. 

 

B. Compile complete final document. 

 

C. Distribute final document. 

 

Deliverables 

 

Project deliverables will include the following: 

 

1. Five copies of draft extension (pdf version, hard copy). 

 

2. Five copies of the final extension (pdf version, hard copy). 

 

3. Two copies of a CD with all electronic files included in the Plan (pdf 

version, Microsoft Word and Excel files). 
 

ANTICIPATED SCHEDULE 

 

Notice to Proceed ............................................................................................. October 2020 

Obtain System Data from Oak Harbor......................................................... November 2020 

Submit Draft Extension to Oak Harbor ........................................................... January 2021 

Submit Draft to DOH and other agencies ...................................................... February 2021 

90 Day Comment Period Ends .............................................................................. May 2021 

Submit Final Extension ......................................................................................... June 2021 

Adopt Final Extension ........................................................................................... July 2021 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 242



Principal

Hours

Project

Manager

Hours

Civil Eng.

Hours

AutoCAD/

GIS Tech./

Eng. Intern

Hours

Develop List of Required Information 1 2

Review Existing Information 4 8

Review Population and Water Use 2 2 4

Compare to Water System Plan Projections and System Analysis 2 4 16

 Water Use Efficiency Program 4 4

 Provide CIP Update 2 8 16

 Revise CIP 4 8

 Review of Financial Data 2 4 8

 Develop System Replacement Cost 2 8 16

 Projection of Future Revenue/Expenses 4 12

 Coliform Monitoring Plan 4 12 4

 Cross Connection Control Plan 4 12

 Water Rights Self-Assessment 2 4

Review/Compile Draft Extension 2 4 16 8

Reproduce and Distribute Draft Extension 2 8

Incorporate Comments from agencies 2 4

Compile  Final Extension 2 4 4

Reproduce and Distribute Final Extension 4

12 63 158 16

$185 $175 $125 $95

$2,220 $11,025 $19,750 $1,520

Total Fully Burdened Labor Cost: 34,515$

Direct Non-Salary Cost:

Mileage & Expenses (Mileage @ current IRS rate) 185$

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: 34,700$

*

Task 7 - Complete Draft Plan for Submittal to WSDOH

 Task 8 - Complete Final Plan

Actual labor cost will be based on each employee's actual rate.  Estimated rates are for determining total estimated cost only.  Fully burdened

billing rates include direct salary cost, overhead, and profit.

Water System Plan 2021 Update
G&O # PR206.21

Task 2 - Basic Planning Data and Water Demand Forecasting

Task 3 - Conservation (Water Use Efficiency) Program

Task 4 - Water System Capital Improvement Program

EXHIBIT "B"

ENGINEERING SERVICES

SCOPE AND ESTIMATED COST

City of Oak Harbor

Tasks

Hour Estimate:

Estimated Fully Burdened Billing Rate:*

Fully Burdened Labor Cost:

Task 1 - Prepare Extension Document

Task 5 - Financial Plan

Task 6 - Update City Plans and Programs

G&O #PR206.21 Page 1 of 1

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 243



Principal
Hours

Project
Manager

Hours
Civil Eng.

Hours

AutoCAD/
GIS Tech./
Eng. Intern

Hours

Develop List of Required Information 1 2
Review Existing Information 4 8

Review Population and Water Use 2 2 4
Compare to Water System Plan Projections and System Analysis 2 4 16

 Water Use Efficiency Program 4 4

 Provide CIP Update 2 8 16
 Revise CIP 4 8

 Review of Financial Data 2 4 8
 Develop System Replacement Cost 2 8 16
 Projection of Future Revenue/Expenses 4 12

 Coliform Monitoring Plan 4 12 4
 Cross Connection Control Plan 4 12
 Water Rights Self-Assessment 2 4

Review/Compile Draft Extension 2 4 16 8
Reproduce and Distribute Draft Extension 2 8

Incorporate Comments from agencies 2 4
Compile  Final Extension 2 4 4
Reproduce and Distribute Final Extension 4

12 63 158 16
$185 $175 $125 $95
$2,220 $11,025 $19,750 $1,520

Total Fully Burdened Labor Cost: 34,515$
Direct Non-Salary Cost:

Mileage & Expenses (Mileage @ current IRS rate) 185$

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: 34,700$

*

Task 7 - Complete Draft Plan for Submittal to WSDOH

 Task 8 - Complete Final Plan

Actual labor cost will be based on each employee's actual rate.  Estimated rates are for determining total estimated cost only.  Fully burdened
billing rates include direct salary cost, overhead, and profit.

Water System Plan 2021 Update
G&O # PR206.21

Task 2 - Basic Planning Data and Water Demand Forecasting

Task 3 - Conservation (Water Use Efficiency) Program

Task 4 - Water System Capital Improvement Program

EXHIBIT "B"

ENGINEERING SERVICES
SCOPE AND ESTIMATED COST

City of Oak Harbor

Tasks

Hour Estimate:
Estimated Fully Burdened Billing Rate:*
Fully Burdened Labor Cost:

Task 1 - Prepare Extension Document

Task 5 - Financial Plan

Task 6 - Update City Plans and Programs

G&O #PR206.21 Page 1 of 1

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 244



G&O #PR206.21 Page 1 of 3 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

WATER SYSTEM PLAN 2021 UPDATE 

 

The following scope of work is proposed based on our understanding of the project.  The 

Scope of Work has been developed based upon the anticipated effort to extend the 

existing 2014 Water System Plan for four more years per the Washington Department of 

Health’s new policy.  The Water System Plan update will be prepared to meet the 

requirements of WAC 246-290-100.     

 

This scope of work is predicated on the City being able to submit an extension and have 

it approved.  If at any time during the extension effort, Gray & Osborne determines that 

the City is not eligible for or is not likely to receive the extension, the work on the 

extension will cease and the City will be notified.  It is expected that the scope of work 

would be renegotiated at that time to include the preparation of a full water system plan 

meeting the requirements of WAC 246-290-100. 

 

Task 1 – Prepare Extension Approval Document 

 

Based upon a Pre-Plan Meeting with the Department of Health, the following will be 

prepared for the extension approval. 

 

Data Collection and Review 

 

A. Develop list of required information and submit to Oak Harbor staff. 

 

B. Review existing information including historical operating data and water 

consumption/production data since the completion of the 2014 Water 

System Plan. 

 

Task 2 – Basic Planning Data and Water Demand Forecasting 

 

A. Quantify current population, service connections, water consumption, 

water production, and non-revenue water.   

 

B. Determine existing average day, maximum day, and maximum 

instantaneous demand for the service area. 

 

C. Estimate distribution system leakage based upon production and 

consumption assumptions. 

 

D. Estimate water use by ERU. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 245



G&O #PR206.21 Page 2 of 3 

 

E. Compare existing use with the projections in the Water System Plan to 

confirm that the Water System Plan projections and system analysis are 

still valid, specifically for the next four years. 

 

Task 3 – Conservation (Water Use Efficiency) Program 

 

A. Provide narrative on water use efficiency efforts. 

 

B. Identify updated Water Use Efficiency Goals.  Evaluate appropriate 

measures for the system. 

 

Task 4 – Water System Capital Improvement Program 

 

A. Provide a narrative on projects completed since the adoption of the Water 

System Plan. 

 

B. Provide narrative on storage project and distribution system 

improvements. 

 

C. Provide summary of projects remaining in CIP. 

 

D. Revise CIP as necessary to meet the project water system demands. 

 

Task 5 – Financial Program 

 

A. Review Oak Harbor’s historical finances since the adoption of the Water 

System Plan. 

 

B. Account for the cost of replacement of the entire system and include 

reserves within the financial analysis. 

 

C. Provide updated financial budget for the next 4 years. 

 

D. Describe funding sources available for the financial program. 

 

Task 6 – Update City Plans and Programs 

 

A. Provide updated coliform monitoring plan. 

 

B. Provide updated cross connection control plan. 

 

C. Prepare water rights self-assessment. 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 246



G&O #PR206.21 Page 3 of 3 

Task 7 – Complete Draft Plan for Submittal to WSDOH 

 

A. Compile a complete extension application including appendices. 

 

B. Distribute the draft application to affected agencies and groups. 

 

C. Submit draft extension application to Island County for concurrence. 

 

D. If requested by the City, Gray & Osborne will be present at one public 

meeting suggested by DOH to inform customers of the extended plan and 

the revised Water Use Efficiency goals. 

 

Task 8 – Complete Final Plan 

 

A. Incorporate comments from various agencies in the final document. 

 

B. Compile complete final document. 

 

C. Distribute final document. 

 

Deliverables 

 

Project deliverables will include the following: 

 

1. Five copies of draft extension (pdf version, hard copy). 

 

2. Five copies of the final extension (pdf version, hard copy). 

 

3. Two copies of a CD with all electronic files included in the Plan (pdf 

version, Microsoft Word and Excel files). 
 

ANTICIPATED SCHEDULE 

 

Notice to Proceed ............................................................................................. October 2020 

Obtain System Data from Oak Harbor......................................................... November 2020 

Submit Draft Extension to Oak Harbor ........................................................... January 2021 

Submit Draft to DOH and other agencies ...................................................... February 2021 

90 Day Comment Period Ends .............................................................................. May 2021 

Submit Final Extension ......................................................................................... June 2021 

Adopt Final Extension ........................................................................................... July 2021 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 247



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.c.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Interlocal Agreement with

South Correctional Entity
(SCORE) - Inmate Housing

FROM: Kevin Dresker, Police Chief

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Interlocal Agreement with the South Correctional Entity
(SCORE) for inmate housing.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor and Yakima County entered into an interlocal agreement for inmate
housing in May of 2019.  Primarily as a result of COVID-19, facility reallocation and other
circumstances, the City was notified that Yakima County is terminating their contact with the
City.  Additionally, they are not taking any contract inmates for the remainder of the year. 

The Oak Harbor Police Department has communicated with and visited the SCORE (“South
Correctional Entity”) facility located near SeaTac airport.  Staff would like to initiate a contract
with SCORE for the housing of inmates, to take the place of the contract which will be ending
with Yakima County.  The contract would be for “one bed, for one year” and would be a
commitment of $46,720.  OHPD can send additional inmates as necessary, paying additional “bed
space” costs for those inmates. 

While SCORE charges a higher rate, they do have room and don’t anticipate any issues from them
which would cause them to terminate this contract.  They also have additional capabilities, to
include in-house medical staff, equipment (such as an X-Ray machine), mental health counselors,
etc. 

OHPD would still maintain our jail for short term inmates and longer-term inmates could be sent
to SCORE.  OHPD and the City will continue to look at other mid to long range jail options,
including working with Island County on possible options.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 248



 

FISCAL IMPACT
Budgeted item. Base annual fee of $46,720.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Council approved an interlocal agreement with Yakima County for inmate housing on May 21,
2019.

ATTACHMENTS
1. SCORE Interlocal Housing Agreement Oct. 2020
2. SCORE Jail Services

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 249

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1600989768x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1600989811x_at.pdf


South Correctional Entity (SCORE) Housing Agreement 
Updated: 07/17/2020 | Page 1 of 17 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR INMATE HOUSING 

THIS  INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR  INMATE HOUSING (hereinafter “Agreement”)  is made and 
entered into by and between the SOUTH CORRECTIONAL ENTITY, a governmental administrative agency 
formed pursuant to RCW 39.34.030(3) (“SCORE”) and the CITY OF OAK HARBOR a municipal corporation 
organized under the laws of the State of Washington (hereinafter the “Contract Agency” together with 
SCORE, the “Parties” or individually a “Party”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS,  SCORE  was  formed  by  its  Owner  Cities  (as  defined  herein)  as  a  governmental 
administrative agency pursuant to RCW 39.34.030(3) to operate and maintain a consolidated correctional 
facility located in the city of Des Moines (the “SCORE Facility”) to serve the Owner Cities, federal and state 
agencies and other local governments that contract with SCORE from time to time to provide correctional 
services essential to the preservation of the public health, safety and welfare; and 

WHEREAS, the Contract Agency desires to transfer custody of certain inmates to SCORE to be housed 
at the SCORE Facility; and 

WHEREAS, this Agreement is entered into by and between the Parties pursuant to chapters 39.34 and 
70.48 RCW, which provide for interlocal agreements for sharing of correction/detention facilities between 
local governments; 

In  consideration of  the mutual  covenants,  conditions,  and promises  contained herein,  the  Parties 
hereto mutually agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS.   
Terms defined  in the recitals of  this Agreement are  incorporated herein as  if  fully set  forth  in this 
Agreement.  Capitalized terms used herein shall have the following meanings.  Terms not otherwise 
defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Interlocal Agreement. 
 
Detainer means a legal order authorizing or commanding another agency a right to take custody of a 
person. 

Commencement Date means ____October 7th, 2020_________. 

Contract Agency Inmate means a person or persons subject to the Contract Agency’s custody who is 
transferred to SCORE’s custody under this Agreement. 

Daily Bed Rate means the daily rate the Contract Agency is charged to occupy a general population 
bed, as set forth in Exhibit A. 

Daily  Surcharge  Rates means  any  of  the  following  special  charges  as  defined  in  Exhibit  A:    Daily 
Surcharge Rates: Medical‐Acute; Mental Health‐Acute; and Mental Health‐General Population. 

Guaranteed Bed Rate means a reduced Daily Bed Rate ‐ Guaranteed, as set forth in Exhibit A.  

Inmate means a person or persons transferred to SCORE’s custody to be housed at the SCORE Facility.  
The term “Inmates” includes Contract Agency Inmates. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 250



South Correctional Entity (SCORE) Housing Agreement 
Updated: 07/17/2020 | Page 2 of 17 

Interlocal Agreement means  the Amended and Restated  SCORE  Interlocal Agreement dated as of 
October  1,  2009  and  amended  December  11,  2019,  executed  among  the  parties  thereto  for  the 
purpose of forming SCORE.  

Mental Health ‐ Residential Beds means Inmates clinically determined by SCORE Health Services 
Provider, or its successor charged with the same duties, as needing ongoing mental health care 
services and specialized housing in SCORE’s Mental Health ‐ Residential Unit.     

Medical – Acute Beds means an Inmate clinically determined by SCORE Health Services Provider, or 
its  successor  charged with  the  same duties,  as needing  the  level  of medical  services  and housing 
provided in SCORE’s medical clinic.  

Mental Health – Acute Beds means an Inmate clinically determined by SCORE Health Services Provider, 
or  its  successor  charged  with  the  same  duties,  as  needing  the  level  of  psychiatric  services  and 
specialized housing in SCORE’s Mental Health ‐ Acute Unit.   

Owner City has the meaning set forth in the Interlocal Agreement. 

Non‐Guaranteed Bed Rate means a higher daily housing bed rate and subject to availability, as set 
forth in Exhibit A. 

SCORE Facility means the correctional facility maintained and operated by SCORE located at 20817 
17th Avenue South, Des Moines, WA 98198. 

Termination Date means ___October 7th, 2021__________.   

SECTION 2. TERM.   
This Agreement shall commence at 12:00 a.m. PST on the Commencement Date and terminate at 
11:59 p.m. PST on the Termination Date, unless sooner terminated by either Party in accordance with 
this Agreement. This Agreement may be renewed for any successive period by written addendum 
under terms and conditions acceptable to the Parties. 

SECTION 3. INMATE HOUSING AND SERVICES.   
Subject to the terms of this Agreement, SCORE hereby agrees to accept Contract Agency Inmates and 
to provide housing, care, and custody of those Contract Agency Inmates pursuant to SCORE policies 
and procedures.  Additional related services and associated fees, if any, to be provided to Contract 
Agency Inmates and/or the Contract Agency are listed in Exhibit A. 

To the greatest extent permitted by law, SCORE shall have the right to refuse to accept an individual 
in custody of the Contract Agency or to return any Contract Agency Inmate to the Contract Agency for 
any reason, including but not limited to if, in the sole discretion of SCORE, such individual presents a 
substantial  risk of escape, of  injury  to  self or other persons or property, of  adversely affecting or 
significantly disrupting the operations of the SCORE Facility, and/or has a medical illness or injury that 
makes housing such  individual not  in  the best  interest of SCORE or other  Inmates as described  in 
Exhibit D.  Final acceptance of an individual based on illness or injury is determined upon approval of 
medical staff at the time of booking.   

SECTION 4. COMPENSATION.   
In consideration of SCORE’s commitment to provide housing and related services for Contract Agency 
Inmates, the Contract Agency agrees to pay SCORE the fees and charges set forth in Exhibit A.  Such 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 251



South Correctional Entity (SCORE) Housing Agreement 
Updated: 07/17/2020 | Page 3 of 17 

fees and charges may include, but are not limited to, booking, daily bed rate, medical and specialty, 
mental health, transportation, security, other charges and/or negotiated fees. 

SCORE may from time to time revise the fees and charges for housing and related services under this 
Agreement during the term of this Agreement.  SCORE shall give advance notice of any change to its 
fees and charges for such service in order to allow the Contract Agency sufficient time to adjust its 
annual budget.  Unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties hereto, any new fees and charges under a 
new fee schedule shall become effective on January 1 of the following year.   

The Contract Agency shall acknowledge receipt of the rates and charges schedule in writing and such 
acknowledgement shall be deemed to be an amendment to this Agreement and incorporated as if 
fully  set  forth  herein without  the  necessity  of  a  formal  amendment  or  separate  approval  by  the 
legislative authority of the Contract Agency or the Administrative Board of SCORE.   

SECTION 5. TRANSPORTATION, BOOKING, CLASSIFICATION, DISCIPLINE AND RELEASE PROCEDURES. 
A. Transportation.  The Contract  Agency  is  responsible  for  the  transportation of  Contract Agency 

Inmates to the SCORE Facility, including all costs associated therewith.   

B. Booking.   Contract Agency  Inmates shall be booked pursuant  to SCORE’s booking policies and 
procedures.    Pursuant  to  RCW 70.48.130,  and  as  part  of  the  booking  procedure,  SCORE  shall 
obtain general  information concerning the Contract Agency Inmate’s ability to pay for medical 
care,  including  insurance  or  other medical  benefits  or  resources  to  which  a  Contract  Agency 
Inmate is entitled.  The information is used for third party billing. 

C. Classification.    Contract  Agency  Inmates  shall  be  classified  pursuant  to  SCORE’s  classification 
policies and procedures, and within the sole discretion and reasonable judgment of SCORE.  The 
Contract Agency shall provide sufficient information regarding each Contract Agency Inmate as 
needed to allow SCORE to make such classification.  Contract Agency Inmates shall be assigned to 
housing  pursuant  to  SCORE’s  policies  and  procedures,  and  within  the  sole  discretion  and 
reasonable judgment of SCORE as provided in Exhibit F. 

D. Inmate Discipline. SCORE shall discipline Contract Agency  Inmates according  to SCORE policies 
and procedures and in the same manner which other Inmates are disciplined; provided, however, 
nothing contained herein shall be construed to authorize the imposition of a type of discipline 
that would not be imposed on a comparable Inmate, up to and including the removal of earned 
early release credits as approved by the Contract Agency. 

E. Release.    Except  for work programs or health  care,  and during  emergencies,  Contract Agency 
Inmates  shall  not  be  removed  and/or  released  from  the  SCORE  Facility  without  written 
authorization  from  the Contract Agency or  by  the  order  of  a  court  of  competent  jurisdiction.  
Other jurisdictions may “borrow” a Contract Agency Inmate according to policies and procedures 
of SCORE and as listed in Exhibit G.   

Contract Agency Inmates will be transported at the time of release as follows:   SCORE will release 
each Contract Agency Inmates to the Contract Agency at a mutually agreeable location.  Alternatively, 
SCORE will  provide  transportation upon  release  to  either  the  closest Owner City of  arrest,  or  the 
Owner City of residence, whichever is closer, unless confirmed transportation is available at the time 
of release.  Additional fees, if any, for transportation outside of King County are included in Exhibit A.   

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 252



South Correctional Entity (SCORE) Housing Agreement 
Updated: 07/17/2020 | Page 4 of 17 

Contract Agency Inmates for whom bail is posted, or who otherwise have a right to be released, may 
choose to remain in custody at the SCORE Facility by signing written waiver and return to the Contract 
Agency by the regularly scheduled transport, be released to a family Owner or friend with confirmed 
transportation, or be released via private taxi. 

SECTION 6. INMATE MEDICAL RECORDS, CLOTHING, BEDDING, PROPERTY AND WORK PROGAMS. 
A. Inmate Medical Records.   Should a Contract Agency  Inmate receive medical care for  injuries or 

illness at the time of arrest and prior to booking at the SCORE Facility, the Contract Agency shall 
provide medical documentation pertaining to injury or illness to SCORE at the time of booking if 
the Contract Agency has  access  to  such  records.      If  the Contract Agency  cannot provide  such 
records, SCORE, in its sole discretion, may refuse to accept a Contract Agency Inmate. 

B. Inmate  Property.    SCORE  agrees  to  provide  each  Contract  Agency  Inmate  with  necessary  or 
appropriate clothing and essential hygiene items.  SCORE shall accept, hold and handle, and return 
any Contract Agency Inmate property in accordance with SCORE’s policies and procedures, and 
shall be responsible only  for Contract Agency  Inmate property actually delivered  into SCORE’s 
possession.  In the event a Contract Agency Inmate is being transported from a Contract Agency 
designated detention or correction facility, it will be the responsibility of the Contract Agency to 
process  the  Contract  Agency  Inmate’s  property  not  delivered  and  accepted  into  SCORE’s 
possession as provided in Exhibit E. 

C. Work Programs.  SCORE may assign Contract Agency Inmates to work programs such as inside and 
outside work crews, kitchen and facility duties, and other appropriate duties pursuant to SCORE’s  
policies and procedures and within the sole discretion and judgment of SCORE. 

D. Visitation.   SCORE  shall  provide  reasonable  scheduled  visitation  for  Contract  Agency  Inmates.  
Inmate  visitation  may  be  accessible  via  video  connection  by  third  party  provider  at  off‐site 
locations for an access fee.  Complimentary video visit access is available at the SCORE Facility.    
Confidential  telephones or  visitation  rooms  shall  be  available  to  a Contract Agency  Inmate  to 
communicate with his or her legal counsel.   

E. Inmate Accounts.   SCORE shall establish and maintain a non‐interest bearing account  for each 
Contract Agency Inmate.  Upon returning custody of a Contract Agency Inmate to the Contract 
Agency, SCORE shall transfer the balance of that Contract Agency Inmate’s account that  is not 
subject to charges, to the Contract Agency Inmate or to the Contract Agency in the form of cash, 
check, debit card or other agreed upon method in the name of the Contract Agency Inmate. 

SECTION 7. HEALTH CARE.   
SCORE  shall  provide  in‐facility  medical  care  commonly  associated  with  corrections  operations  as 
guided by American Correctional Association (ACA) or National Commission on Correctional Health 
Care (NCCHC).  

Contract Agency Inmates shall be responsible for co‐payment for health services according to SCORE 
policy.    The  Contract  Agency  shall  not  be  responsible  to  SCORE  for  Contract  Agency  Inmate  co‐
payments.  No Contract Agency Inmate shall be denied necessary health care because of an inability 
to pay for health services. 

In‐facility medical, dental, and mental health services are included in the daily rate set forth in Exhibit 
A.   Should a Contract Agency Inmate require medical, mental health, dental, and/or other medical 
services  at  an  outside  medical  or  health  care  facility,  SCORE  shall  notify  the  Contract  Agency’s 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 253



South Correctional Entity (SCORE) Housing Agreement 
Updated: 07/17/2020 | Page 5 of 17 

designee (either by written or electronic means) within a reasonable time period before the Contract 
Agency  Inmate  receives  such  medical,  mental  health,  dental  or  any  other  medical  services.  
Notwithstanding  the  foregoing,  the  Contract  Agency  acknowledges  that  such  notice  may  not  be 
reasonably possible prior to emergency care. 

Except to the extent that a Contract Agency Inmate can pay pursuant to Section 5.B, the Contract 
Agency shall pay for all medical, mental health, dental or any other medical services or equipment 
that are required to care for Contract Agency Inmates outside of the SCORE Facility in addition to the 
charges listed in Exhibit A.  Lack of prior notice shall not excuse the Contract Agency from financial 
responsibility  for  such  expenses,  and  shall  not  be  a  basis  for  imposing  financial  responsibility  for 
related  medical  expenses  on  SCORE.  SCORE  shall  bear  the  expense  of  any  such  medical  care 
necessitated by improper conduct of SCORE, or of its officers or agents. 

If a Contract Agency Inmate is admitted to a hospital, the Contracting Agency will be responsible for 
hospital security unless other arrangements are made with SCORE.  SCORE, in its sole discretion, may, 
or at  the request of  the Contract Agency shall, provide hospital  security services  for an additional 
charge as provided in Exhibit A. 
 

SECTION 8. DETAINERS.    
Warrants and Contract Agency Inmates in a “Detainer” status shall be handled according to SCORE 
policies and procedures and as provided in Exhibit B attached hereto.   

SECTION 9. RELEASE OF HOLDS AND COURT APPEARANCES.   
If a court of limited jurisdiction releases a hold on a Contract Agency Inmate still incarcerated at the 
SCORE Facility, SCORE will not facilitate further court appearances of that Contract Agency  Inmate 
except if the Contract Agency wishes to use the video arraignment system at the SCORE Facility.   

SECTION 10. ESCAPE; DEATH.   
If a Contract Agency Inmate escapes SCORE’s custody, SCORE shall notify the Contract Agency as soon 
as reasonably possible.  SCORE shall use all reasonable efforts to pursue and regain custody of escaped 
Contract Agency Inmates. 

If a Contract Agency Inmate dies while in SCORE custody, SCORE shall notify the Contract Agency as 
soon as reasonably possible.  The King County Medical Examiner shall assume custody of the Contract 
Agency Inmate’s body.  Unless another agency becomes responsible for investigation, one or more 
Owner City shall investigate and shall provide the Contract Agency with a report of its investigation.  
The Contract Agency may participate in the investigation.  If another agency becomes responsible for 
investigation,  SCORE  shall  serve  as  a  liaison  or  otherwise  facilitate  the  Contract  Agency’s 
communication with and receipt of reports from the other agency. 

The Contract Agency shall provide SCORE with written instructions regarding the disposition of the 
Contract Agency Inmate’s body.  The Contract Agency shall pay for all reasonable expenses for the 
preparation  and  shipment  of  the  body.    The  Contract  Agency may  request  in writing  that  SCORE 
arrange  for  burial  and  all matters  related  or  incidental  thereto  and  the  Contract  Agency  shall  be 
responsible for all costs associated with this request. 
 

SECTION 11. REPORTING AND INSPECTION.   
SCORE agrees to use reasonable efforts to work with the Contract Agency to provide access to and/or 
reports  from  jail  management  systems  that  provide  statistical  information  about  Inmates.    The 
Contract Agency shall have the right, upon reasonable advance notice, to inspect the SCORE Facility 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 254



South Correctional Entity (SCORE) Housing Agreement 
Updated: 07/17/2020 | Page 6 of 17 

at reasonable times.  During such inspections, the Contract Agency may interview Contract Agency 
Inmates and review Contract Agency Inmates’ records.  The Contract Agency shall have no right to 
interview Inmates housed for other jurisdictions or to review their records, unless Contract Agency is 
properly authorized to do so by the Inmate or the other jurisdiction. 

SECTION 12. TECHNOLOGY.   
SCORE  and  the  Contract  Agency  may  each  permit  the  other  continuous  access  to  its  computer 
database regarding all Contract Agency Inmates housed by SCORE.   This continuous access feature 
may be accomplished through a computer  link between a computer(s) designated by the Contract 
Agency and appropriate computer(s) of SCORE. 

SECTION 13. BILLING AND PAYMENT.   
SCORE  shall  provide  the  Contract  Agency  with  monthly  statements  itemizing  the  name  of  each 
Contract Agency Inmate; the number of days of housing, including the date and time booked into the 
SCORE Facility and date and time released  from SCORE; and  itemization of any additional charges 
including a description of the service provided, date provided and reason for service.  Payment shall 
be due to SCORE within 30 days from the date the bill is received.  SCORE may bill the Contract Agency 
electronically.  Payments not received by the 30th day shall bear interest at the rate of 1% per month 
until payment is received.  Any fees or charges for Inmates housed on charges from multiple agencies 
(including but not limited to outside medical care) will be divided equally among those agencies. 

SECTION 14. BILLING DISPUTE RESOLUTION.   
The Contract Agency must provide written notice of dispute to SCORE within 60 days of billing or other 
disputed charges.  SCORE shall respond in writing to such disputes within 60 days of receipt of such 
disputes.  SCORE and the Contract Agency shall attempt to resolve the dispute by negotiation.  If such 
negotiation  is unsuccessful, either Party may refer the dispute to the SCORE Operations Board for 
resolution.  The decision of the SCORE Operations Board is the final internal administrative remedy 
the Contract Agency must exhaust before pursuing other contractual, legal, equitable, or alternative 
dispute resolutions. 

SECTION 15. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.   
In providing services under this Agreement, SCORE is an independent contractor and neither it nor its 
officers, nor  its  agents nor  its  employees are employees of  the Contract Agency  for  any purpose, 
including responsibility  for any federal or state tax,  industrial  insurance, or Social Security  liability.  
Neither shall the provision of services under this Agreement give rise to any claim of career service or 
civil service rights, which may accrue to an employee of the Contract Agency under any applicable law, 
rule or regulation.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to create an interest in or give a benefit to 
third persons not signing as a Party to this Agreement. 

SECTION 16. HOLD HARMLESS, DEFENSE, AND INDEMNIFICATION.   
SCORE shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the Contract Agency, its elected officials, officers, 
employees,  and  agents  from  and  against  any  and  all  suits,  actions,  claims,  liability,  damages, 
judgments, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) (also including but not limited 
to claims related to false arrest or detention, alleged mistreatment, alleged violation of civil rights, 
injury, or death of any Contract Agency Inmate, or loss or damage to Contract Agency Inmate property 
while in SCORE custody) that result from or arise out of the acts or omissions of SCORE, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, and agents in connection with or incidental to the performance or non‐
performance of SCORE’s services, duties, and obligations under this Agreement. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 255



South Correctional Entity (SCORE) Housing Agreement 
Updated: 07/17/2020 | Page 7 of 17 

The Contract Agency shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify SCORE, its elected officials, officers, 
employees,  and  agents  from  and  against  any  and  all  suits,  actions,  claims,  liability,  damages, 
judgments, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) (also including but not limited 
to claims related to false arrest or detention, alleged mistreatment, alleged violation of civil rights, 
injury, or death of any Contract Agency Inmate, or loss or damage to Contract Agency Inmate property 
while in SCORE custody) that result from or arise out of the acts or omissions of the Contract Agency, 
its  elected  officials,  officers,  employees,  and  agents  in  connection  with  or  incidental  to  the 
performance or non‐performance of the Contract Agency’s services, duties, and obligations under this 
Agreement. 

In  the event  the acts or omissions of  the officials, officers,  agents,  and/or employees of both  the 
Contract Agency and SCORE in connection with or incidental to the performance or non‐performance 
of the Contract Agency’s and or SCORE’s services, duties, and obligations under this Agreement are 
the subject of any liability claims by a third party, the Contract Agency and SCORE shall each be liable 
for its proportionate concurrent negligence in any resulting suits, actions, claims, liability, damages, 
judgments, costs and expenses and for their own attorney’s fees. 

Nothing contained in this section or this Agreement shall be construed to create a right in any third 
party to indemnification or defense. 

SCORE and the Contract Agency hereby waive, as to each other only, their immunity from suit under 
industrial insurance, Title 51 RCW.  This waiver of immunity was mutually negotiated by the Parties 
hereto. 

The provisions of this section shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

SECTION 17. INSURANCE.   
SCORE and the Contract Agency shall provide each other with evidence of insurance coverage, in the 
form of a certificate or other competent evidence from an insurance provider, insurance pool, or of 
self‐insurance sufficient to satisfy the obligations set forth in this Agreement. 

SCORE and the Contract Agency shall each maintain throughout the term of this Agreement coverage 
in minimum liability limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and two million dollars 
($2,000,000)  in  the  aggregate  for  its  liability  exposures,  including  comprehensive  general  liability, 
errors  and  omissions,  auto  liability  and  police  professional  liability.    The  insurance  policies  shall 
provide coverage on an occurrence basis. 

Each  Party  shall  provide  to  the  other  Party  at  least  30  days  advance  notice  of  any  cancellation, 
suspension or material change in coverage. 

SECTION 18. TERMINATION.  
Either Party may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, by providing the other Party with 
90 days written notice of termination as provided in RCW 70.48.090. 
 

SECTION 19. RECORDS.   
The Parties hereto shall maintain all  records,  reports, and documents created, held or maintained 
under this Agreement and the services to be provided hereunder in accordance with chapter 42.56 
RCW (the Washington Public Records Act), chapter 40.14 RCW (Preservation and Destruction of Public 
Records) and all other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations. 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 256



South Correctional Entity (SCORE) Housing Agreement 
Updated: 07/17/2020 | Page 8 of 17 

SECTION 20. OPERATION OF SCORE FACILITY; PRISON RAPE ELIMINATION ACT.   
SCORE  shall  manage, maintain,  and  operate  the  SCORE  Facility  in  compliance  with  all  applicable 
federal, state, and local laws and regulations.  SCORE acknowledges and complies with the terms of 
the Prison Rape Elimination Act regarding custodial sexual misconduct as set forth in Exhibit C. 
 

SECTION 21. HIPAA AND HITECH COMPLIANCE.   
The  Parties  shall  comply  with  all  requirements  of  the  Federal  Health  Insurance  Portability  and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and the Federal Health Information and Technology for Economic 
and Clinical Health Act (HITECH Act) as applicable, which relate to the Parties’ responsibilities under 
this Agreement, as well as state laws and regulations including chapter 70.02 RCW. 
 

SECTION 22. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY.   
Neither Party  shall  discriminate  against  any person on  the  grounds of  race,  creed,  color,  religion, 
national  origin,  sex,  age,  marital  status,  sexual  orientation,  veterans  and military  status,  political 
affiliation or belief or the presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap in violation of any 
applicable  federal  law, Washington  State  Law Against  Discrimination  (chapter  49.60  RCW)  or  the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (42 USC 12110 et seq.).   

SECTION 23. MISCELLANEOUS. 
A. Real or Personal Property.  It is not anticipated that any real or personal property will be acquired 

or purchased by the Parties solely because of this Agreement. 

B. Assignment.  This Agreement, or any interest herein, or claim hereunder, shall not be assigned or 
transferred in whole or in part by a Party to any other person or entity without the prior written 
consent of  the other Party.    In  the event  that  such prior written  consent  to  an  assignment  is 
granted, then the assignee shall assume all duties, obligations, and liabilities of the assigning Party 
stated herein. 

C. Non‐Waiver.  The failure of either Party to insist upon strict performance of any provision of this 
Agreement  or  to  exercise  any  right  based  upon  a  breach  thereof  or  the  acceptance  of  any 
performance during such breach shall not constitute a waiver of any right under this Agreement. 

D. Severability.    If  this Agreement, or any portion of  this Agreement,  is held  invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

E. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Washington.  If any dispute arises between the Parties under any of the provisions 
of this Agreement, resolution of that dispute shall be available only through the jurisdiction, venue 
and rules of the King County Superior Court, King County, Washington. 

F. Attorneys’ Fees. In any claim or lawsuit for damages arising from the Parties’ performance of this 
Agreement, each Party shall be responsible for payment of its own legal costs and attorney’s fees 
incurred in defending or bringing such claim or lawsuit; however, nothing in this subsection shall 
limit the each Parties’ right to indemnification under this Agreement. 

G. Approval and Filing.  Each Party shall approve this Agreement by resolution, ordinance, motion or 
otherwise  pursuant  to  the  laws  of  the  governing  body  of  each  Party.    The  signatures  of  the 
authorized  signatories  below  shall  constitute  a  presumption  that  such  approval was  properly 
obtained.  A copy of this Agreement shall be filed and/or posted pursuant to chapter 39.34 RCW. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 257



South Correctional Entity (SCORE) Housing Agreement 
Updated: 07/17/2020 | Page 9 of 17 

H. Amendment.  Except as otherwise provided in Section 4 of this Agreement, no waiver, alteration, 
or modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be binding unless evidenced in 
writing signed by duly authorized representatives of both Parties. 

I. No Joint Venture or Partnership.  No joint venture, separate administrative or governmental entity, 
or partnership is formed as a result of this Agreement  

J. Compliance with Applicable Laws and Standards.  SCORE agrees to manage the Contract Agency 
Inmates  and  the  SCORE  Facility  in  accordance  with  applicable  federal  and  state  laws  and 
regulations and to maintain staffing levels at the SCORE Facility in sufficient numbers and rank to 
maintain the safety of the public, staff, Inmates, and to reasonably carry out the provisions of this 
Agreement.    

K. Continuation of Performance.  In the event that any dispute or conflict arises between the Parties 
while this Agreement is in effect, the Parties hereto agree that, notwithstanding such dispute or 
conflict, they shall continue to make a good faith effort to cooperate and continue work toward 
successful completion of assigned duties and responsibilities. Provided that if the Contract Agency 
fails to pay for the services provided by the SCORE, SCORE can cease providing such services until 
payment is made. 

L. Representatives;  Notices.    The  individuals  listed  below  the  signature  blocks  included  in  this 
Agreement are designated as representatives of the respective Parties.  The representatives shall 
be  responsible  for  administration  of  this  Agreement  and  for  coordinating  and  monitoring 
performance under this Agreement.    In the event such representatives are changed,  the Party 
making  the  change  shall  notify  the  other  Party.  Any  notice  or  other  communication  given 
hereunder shall be deemed sufficient, if in writing and delivered personally to the addressee, or 
sent  electronically  or  by  certified  or  registered  mail,  return  receipt  requested,  addressed  as 
provided after the signature blocks included in this Agreement, or to such other address as may 
be designated by the addressee by written notice to the other Party. 

M. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, together with any subsequent amendments, constitutes the 
entire Agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior agreements for inmate housing 
between the Parties.   

SECTION 24. EXECUTION. 
This Agreement shall be executed by the Parties hereto by their duly authorized representative.  This 
Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 258



South Correctional Entity (SCORE) Housing Agreement 
Updated: 07/17/2020 | Page 10 of 17 

THIS AGREEMENT is hereby effective as of the Commencement Date.  
 
 

SOUTH CORRECTIONAL ENTITY 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Signature 

City of Oak Harbor, WA 
Contract Agency Name 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Signature          Mayor Robert Severns 
 

______________________________________ 
Date 

______________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Signature 
 
 

NOTICE ADDRESS:  NOTICE ADDRESS: 
 
SOUTH CORRECTIONAL ENTITY 
20817 17th Avenue South 
Des Moines, WA  98198 
 
Attention:  Executive Director Devon Schrum 

Email: dschrum@scorejail.org 

Telephone: 206‐257‐6262 

Fax: 206‐257‐6310 

 

 
City of Oak Harbor, Police Department 
860 SE Barrington 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 
Attention:  Police Chief Kevin Dresker 

Email: kdresker@oakharbor.org 

Telephone: 360‐279‐4601 

Fax: 360‐279‐4609 

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR PURPOSES OF 
THIS AGREEMENT: 
 

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR PURPOSES 
OF THIS AGREEMENT: 

Name: 
 
 

Name: Kevin Dresker 

Title:  Title: Chief of Police 
 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 259



South Correctional Entity (SCORE) Housing Agreement 
Updated: 07/17/2020 | Page 11 of 17 

Exhibit A 

FEES AND CHARGES AND SERVICES 

Booking Fee:1          $35.00    Waived until Dec. 31, 2021 
 
Daily Housing Rates: 

General Population – Guaranteed  Beds    $128.00  Number of Beds: One (1)
  General Population – Non‐Guaranteed Beds  $184.00 

 
Daily Rate Surcharges: 2 
  Mental Health – Residential Beds    $159.00 
  Medical ‐ Acute Beds        $217.00 
  Mental Health – Acute Beds      $278.00 
     
Health Care Services: 3 
  In‐Facility Care          Included  
  Co‐Payments          Inmate responsibility 
  Outside Medical Services      Contract Agency billed 
  Emergency Care        Contract Agency billed 
  Pharmaceuticals        Medications billed to Contract Agency   
 
Transportation Fees: 
  SCORE Officer Transport      $65.00/per hour 
  Released at Owner City4 Location    Included 
             
Security Services: 
  Hospital Security        $65.00/per hour 
 
Video Court: 
  In‐Custody Arraignment       Included  
     
Other Terms & Conditions: 
 

 
 
     

 
1Charged to the jurisdiction responsible for housing the inmate 
2 Surcharges are in addition to daily housing rates and subject to bed availability 
3 Guided by American Correctional Association(ACA) and/or National Commission on Correctional Health Care (NCCHC) 
4 Auburn, Burien, Des Moines, Renton, SeaTac, Tukwila 

 
 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 260



South Correctional Entity (SCORE) Housing Agreement 
Updated: 07/17/2020 | Page 12 of 17 

Exhibit B 

WARRANTS/OTHER COURT ORDERS/DETAINERS 

 

The following shall apply to Contract Agency Inmates who are subject to warrants from other jurisdictions 
or to other court orders for confinement or detainers: 

1. When  receiving  a  Contract  Agency  Inmate,  the  booking  officers  at  SCORE  shall  review  all 
paperwork provided by the Contract Agency for all grounds to hold the Contract Agency Inmate. 

2. Prior to releasing a Contract Agency Inmate, SCORE shall check the NCIC and WACIC systems to 
determine if the Contract Agency Inmate is subject to any valid warrants or other detainers. 

a) If the Contract Agency Inmate is subject to a warrant that is limited to King County, SCORE 
will, upon receiving written permission (e‐mail) from the Contract Agency, transport the 
Inmate  to  the  custodial  agency  for  the  jurisdiction  that  issued  the warrant.  However, 
SCORE will not assume responsibility to serve any such warrants. 

b) If  the  Contract  Agency  Inmate  is  subject  to  a  warrant  from  a  western  Washington 
jurisdiction outside King County, SCORE will either process the Inmate for transfer on the 
Cooperative  Transport  Chain  or  provide  transfer  to  a  jurisdiction  that  participates  in 
Cooperative Transport Chain. 

c) If  the  Contract  Agency  Inmate  is  subject  to  a  warrant  from  an  eastern  Washington 
jurisdiction,  SCORE  will  send  the  Inmate  to  a  jurisdiction  that  participates  in  the 
Cooperative Transport Chain. 

d) If, upon return from SCORE to the Contract Agency, the Inmate is subject to a warrant 
that provides  for  statewide extradition,  SCORE will  either  transport  the  Inmate  to  the 
detention/correction  facility  in King County designated by  the  agency/jurisdiction  that 
issued the warrant if it is in King County, or will send the Inmate to the agency/jurisdiction 
that issued the warrant on the Mini‐ Chain. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 261



 

 
South Correctional Entity (SCORE) 

Housing Agreement 
Page 13 

 

Exhibit C 

PREA ACKNOWLEDGMENT ‐ CUSTODIAL AND SEXUAL MISCONDUCT 

 

1. Compliance 
SCORE agrees to ensure that all of its employees, contractors, vendors, and volunteers that have 
contact with Contract Agency Inmates comply with all federal and state laws regarding sexual 
misconduct including, but not limited to: 

a) The Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003 (PREA) 

b) The standards for adult Prisons and Jails or Community Confinement Facilities, whichever is 
applicable, as promulgated by the US Attorney, and 

c) Zero tolerance toward all forms of sexual abuse and sexual harassment. 

 

2. Monitoring 
SCORE agrees to provide the Contract Agency documented compliance with the Federal Prison 
Rape Elimination Act standards.  Monitoring may include, but is not limited to: 

a) Site visits, 

b) Access to facility data, and 

c) Review of applicable documentation. 

 
3.  Contract Agency may terminate this Agreement  

a) Should SCORE fail to provide documentation that demonstrates that the SCORE is 
actively and effectively working toward and is making substantive progress toward 
achieving compliance; or 

b) Should SCORE fail to maintain PREA compliance between auditing periods, after being 
given a reasonable opportunity to cure. 

 
4.  The Contract Agency will terminate this Agreement  

a) Should SCORE elect to discontinue pursuit of PREA compliance;  

b) Should SCORE be found in noncompliance through a PREA Audit and fail to cure such 
noncompliance within the identified time‐frames; or 

c) Should SCORE be found to be in egregious violation of PREA. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 262



 

 
South Correctional Entity (SCORE) 

Housing Agreement 
Page 14 

 

Exhibit D 

MEDICAL ACCEPTABILITY 

SCORE shall determine the medical and mental acceptability of  Inmates for booking or housing using the 
following  guidelines.    However,  final  acceptance  is  based  upon  approval  of medical  staff  at  the  time of 
booking.  Excluding criteria include but are not limited to: 

 
1. Signs of untreated broken bones or dislocated joints. 

2. Any injury or illness requiring emergency medical treatment. 

3. Unconsciousness. 

4. Inmates unable  to  stand and walk under  their own power, unless  they normally use an assistive 
device, such as a wheelchair, for mobility. 

5. Bed bound individuals. 

6. Individuals with attached IV or requiring IV medications. 

7. Individuals requiring the use of oxygen tanks. 

8. AMA (Against Medical Advice) from the hospital. 

9. Individuals having had major invasive surgery within the last 72 hours. Non‐invasive surgery such as 
oral surgery, laser‐eye surgery and minor surgery may be evaluated on a case by case basis. 

10. Wounds with drainage tubes attached. 

11. Persons with Alzheimer’s, dementia or other psychological conditions to the point where the Inmate 
cannot perform activities of daily living (“ADL’s”) or who do not have the capacity to function safely 
within a correctional environment. 

12. Persons  who  are  diagnosed  as  developmentally  delayed  and  who  do  not  have  the  capacity  to 
function safely within a correctional environment or who cannot perform ADL’s. 

13. Persons undergoing chemotherapy and/or radiation treatment. 

14. Persons undergoing dialysis. 

15. Persons with suicidal ideations or gestures within the past 72 hours. 

16. Persons, if prescribed, who have not taken psychotropic medications for at least 72 hours. 

17. Persons who have by self‐disclosure, admitted to attempting suicide within the last 30 days. 

18. Persons who have attempted suicide during their current incarceration. 

19. Persons displaying current psychotic episode. 

 

 

 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 263



 

 
South Correctional Entity (SCORE) 

Housing Agreement 
Page 15 

 

Exhibit E 

PROPERTY 

 
1. SCORE will not accept or transport the following: 

a) Backpacks, suitcases, etc. 

b) Unpackaged food products. 

c) Food products in packaging that have been opened. 

d) Any type of weapon (includes pocket knives). 

e) Liquids. 

f) Helmets or any kind. 

g) Large items that will not fit into a common paper grocery bag. 

h) Material deemed to be contraband. 

 

SCORE will limit property returned with the Inmate to the Contract Agency according to these criteria. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 264



 

 
South Correctional Entity (SCORE) 

Housing Agreement 
Page 16 

 

Exhibit F 

CLASSIFICATION 

SCORE maintains a classification plan to guide staff in the processing of individuals brought into the facility. 
The plan includes an initial screening process, as well as a process for determining appropriate  housing  
assignments    (28   CFR   115.42) and uses an objective screening instrument and procedures for making 
decisions  about  classification  and  housing  assignments.  The  plan  includes,  and  not  limited  to,  an 
evaluation of the following criteria: 

 
1. Behavior during arrest and intake process 

2. Potential risk of safety to others or self 

3. Medical needs 

4. The inmate's own perception of his/her vulnerability 

5. Any other criteria as deemed appropriate by the Executive Director or designee 

 

The Contract Agency shall supply SCORE with the following Classification related information, if known to 
or in possession of the Contract Agency: 

 

1. If the Contract Agency Inmate has been classified to a special housing unit. 

2. If the Contract Agency Inmate has been classified as protective custody. 

3. If the Contract Agency Inmate: 

a) Is a violent offender or has displayed violent behavior during present or past 
incarcerations 

b) Is identified as a threat to law enforcement 

c) Is an escape risk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 265



 

 
South Correctional Entity (SCORE) 

Housing Agreement 
Page 17 

 

  
Exhibit G 

BORROWING 

One contracting agency may “borrow” another Contract Agency’s Inmate as follows: 

 

1. If a Contract Agency requests the transport of another contracting agency’s Inmate from SCORE the 
requesting agency must notify each agency with rights to custody of the Inmate, and if each agency 
with rights to custody of the Inmate notifies SCORE in writing (e‐mail) of its approval, SCORE shall 
provide the requested transport to the requesting agency.  SCORE will complete a custody transfer 
form that lists all outstanding detainers.  The custody transfer paperwork will accompany the Inmate. 

2. Once custody of the Inmate has been transferred to the requesting agency, it is the responsibility of 
the requesting agency to determine whether the Inmate shall be returned to the custody of SCORE, 
and if so, the requesting agency shall make all necessary and proper arrangements with SCORE and 
any agency with rights to custody of the Inmate, for the Inmate’s return according to the terms of 
this Agreement.  The requesting agency, to the full extent permitted by law, defend, indemnify, save 
and hold harmless SCORE as provided in Section 16 of the Agreement. 

3. SCORE will not track the Inmate once he or she has left the SCORE Facility. 

4. If the Inmate is returned to the custody of SCORE, the requesting agency shall provide SCORE with 
sentencing/charge  information.    The  requesting  agency  shall  supply  all  pre‐sentence,  and  post‐
sentence paperwork from agreeing agencies that authorized the borrowing of the Inmate.  This will 
aid SCORE in determining split billing and release dates. 

5. SCORE will transport the Inmate only to an agency that also contracts with SCORE for Inmate housing. 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 266



SOUTH  CORRECTIONAL ENTITY 

JAIL SERVICES 
 

MARCH 2020 

OVERVIEW 

SCORE and its six Member Cities comprised of Auburn, 
Burien, Des Moines, Renton, SeaTac, and Tukwila are 
committed to providing efficient and effective jail ser-
vices.   

SCORE has contracted with national and local community 
service providers who lead the industry in medical, men-
tal health, and inmate services. Our service providers 
specialize in meeting specific needs of an incarcerated 
population.  Inmates at SCORE have the opportunity to 
connect with more than fifty organizations in the region.   

JAIL SERVICES  

Booking Services 

Booking including fingerprinting, medical screening, in-
take questionnaire, and securing of personal property.  

In-Custody Escorts  
Custody escorts inmates to video court hearings and 
medical appointments.     

Video Court 
Video Court allows inmates to appear in court without 
being transported outside the facility.  This reduces 
transportation costs and reduces the security risk associ-
ated with transporting inmates outside the secure       
facility.   

Court Borrows  
SCORE facilitates access to inmates for multiple court 
appearances during an inmates’ stay.  Requesting agen-
cies may be charged a fee.    

Medical Services 
SCORE provides in-facility medical care commonly associ-
ated with corrections operations as guided by American 
Correctional Association or National Commission on Cor-
rectional Health Care.  

Specialized Housing 
Dedicated living units specializing in:  

 Medical - Acute 
 Mental Health - Residential 
 Mental Health - Acute 

Hospital Security  
Custody Escort in a hospital setting for a fee. 

SCORE SINGLE CARE PLAN 

SCORE offers individualized care with a variety of on-site 
medical services in a secure setting. SCORE contracts 
with a national correctional medical service provider, to 
support a 24-Hour medical staff. SCORE has access to 24-
hour on-call medical doctors or nurse practitioner and a 
24-hour on-call mental health nurse practitioner.  

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 267



SOUTH  CORRECTIONAL ENTITY 

MEDICAL SERVICES 
 

MARCH 2020 

MEDICAL STAFFING OVERVIEW 

 National Correctional Medical Service Provider 

 24/7 Nursing Care 

 Health Services Administrator  

 Director of Nursing  

 Director of Mental Health  

 Medical Doctor  

 Medical ARNP  

 Psychiatric ARNP  

 (4) Masters level Mental Health Professionals 

 Dentist 

 Dental Assistant 

 Sick Call Nurse 

 Licensed Practical Nurses – All shifts 

 Registered Nurses - All shifts 

 
INITIAL ASSESSMENTS 

All inmates receive screenings at intake that include a 
receiving screening, health assessment, mental health 
screening, and Tuberculosis screening.  All inmates re-
ceive each of these screenings before entering the gen-
eral population.  SCORE’s medical service provider utiliz-
es an electronic health records system which makes 
providing care more efficient. 

DENTAL HEALTH 

Dental services are provided for all inmates.  This service 
keeps costs down by not having to transport inmates to 
the dentist for routine dental care.  SCORE also provides: 

 Dental education video to all inmates (Produced by 
Highline College) 

 Extractions if necessary 
 Fillings temporary and permanent 
 Annual cleaning for individuals staying over one year. 

 

 

 

MEDICAL CLINIC - SICK CALL 

SCORE provides sick call services for further evaluation of 
inmates with non-emergent medical needs.  Preventative 
treatment plans are also developed.        

X-RAY SERVICES 

SCORE provides medical x-ray services to all inmates.  
This reduces transportation and security costs associated 
with outside medical trips to hospitals or clinics for x-
rays.  X-Rays are taken on site and evaluated by a techni-
cian contracted by SCORE’s medical services provider.  

FLU SHOTS 

Flu shots are provided for all chronic care inmates for the 
prevention of complications with illnesses.  This is pro-
vided free of charge to all agencies and is covered by our 
medical provider contract.  SCORE is the only facility to 
provide flu shots for free.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 268



SOUTH  CORRECTIONAL ENTITY 

MEDICATION ASSISTED TREATMENT 
 

MARCH 2020 

Clinical Opiate Withdrawal Scale 

 COWS (Opioids):  Assessed by medical staff several 
times daily. Individuals will be housed in medical if 
medication detox protocols (Subutex) is initiat-
ed.  Once stable they will return to general housing.  

Clinical Institute Withdrawal Assessment  

 CIWA - A (Alcohol):  Medication provided for medi-
cally qualifying individual for advanced care for medi-
cal detox from alcohol for potential Delirium Tre-
mens. Housed in medical for 72 hours. 

 CIWA - B (Benzodiazepines):  Medication provided 
for medically qualifying individual for advanced care 
for medical detox from Benzodiazepines. 

 

MEDICATION ASSISTED TREATMENT PROGRAMS 

Methadone  

 SCORE’s medical services provider provides continues 
treatment for individuals enrolled in an outside Meth-
adone program. SCORE averages approximately 15-20 
inmates per day. Enrollment is confirmed by medical 
documentation brought in by the inmate or verifica-
tion from medical staff. 

 Courtesy dosing is provided by off-site contract ser-
vice providers once medication is verified. 

 Pregnant women who state or test positive for opi-
oids have treatment initiated at SCORE and are en-
rolled with Swedish Ballard. 

 SCORE has approximately an 86% success rate for 
pregnant women entering the treatment program 
and staying at least one week. 

 Psychosocial and physical assessments are completed 
on-site and initial dose established at SCORE. 

Buprenorphine  

 Monitored by medical staff. 

 Individuals with a COWS score of 9 or higher are initi-
ated on a 5-day taper of Buprenorphine. 

 Buprenorphine continuation is offered to those cur-
rently enrolled in an outside program. 

 Treatment continuation is confirmed by medical doc-
umentation brought in by the inmate or by verifica-
tion from medical staff. 

 Treatment programs will be re-initiated if the individ-
ual has been enrolled in a community treatment pro-
gram within the last 6 months.  

 Inmate must be clean for 72 hours. 

 Courtesy dosing is provided by onsite medical staff 
once medication is verified. 

Vivitrol 

 SCORE medical service provider offers Vivitrol as a 
drug treatment option. 

 First dose in-house by medical staff. Must meet crite-
ria for initiation. SCORE coordinates offsite provider 
appointment for subsequent dosing. 

 Medication effective for approximately 30 days. 

 Funded by Vivitrol manufacturer. 

Addiction Education  

Overdose Prevention Classes Include: 

 Narcan as a preventative measure 
 Treatment education  
 Informational handouts on various programs  
 

 

DETOX MONITORING 

SCORE’ health services provider monitors all patients 
that test positive for drug and alcohol use. SCORE’s 
medical service provider uses the following protocols: 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 269



SOUTH  CORRECTIONAL ENTITY 

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
 

MARCH 2020 

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES  

SCORE offers a clinical and administrative mental health 
team that works closely with local mental health agen-
cies to effectively manage inmates and plan for their care 
after release. 

SCORE’s mental health program is built on a foundation 
of quality staff that focus on: 

 Proactive identification of persons with suicidal or 
behavioral health issues through comprehensive 
mental health screenings, 

 Stabilization, 

 Continued monitoring, 

 Rapid crisis intervention, 

 Effective programming, 

 Constant, clear and effective communication with 
facility security leadership and staff, and 

 Collaboration with community mental health provid-
ers at discharge. 

 

SCORE medical services uses corrections-specific elec-
tronic health records system, which allows medical pro-
fessionals to electronically flag an inmate’s health record 
if his/her responses during intake indicate the need for 
additional mental healthcare.  This means that SCORE’s 
health services staff can identify inmates with suicidal 
tendencies, as well as acute and chronic behavioral 
health issues rapidly. 

Information entered in electronic health records system 
alerts the clinical staff to take action, such as: 

 Contacting custody about an issue and/or 

 Placing an inmate on suicide precautions and/or 

 Assigning special housing  
 

MASTERS LEVEL MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 

 Mental Health Screenings 

 Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner 
(PMHNP) assessment for all diagnosis Mental Health 
(MH) patients, with continuation of medication.  

 PMHNP Assessment for patient needing to be pre-
scribed Mental Health Medication Initiation. 

 SCORE offers these therapeutic groups in the Mental 

Health Units:  Dialectical Behavior Therapy, Seeking 
Safety and Aggression Replacement Therapy.     

 All the Mental Health Professionals (MHPs) provide 
milieu groups in all 3 Mental Health Units, providing 
case management, release planning, and recreation-
al activities.    

 The Mental Health Director, working with SCORE and 
King County, has started a High Utilizer Group that 
includes community providers, first responders and 
hospitals.   

 The team continues to work with any community 
provider that wants to engage with clients that are 
incarcerated at SCORE.   

 Mental Health monitoring if needed. 

 Suicide Watch monitoring in medical housing. 

 

ON-SITE COMPENTENCY EVALUATIONS 

SCORE partners with Western State Hospital to provide a 
Forensic Psychologist on site to perform competency 
evaluations. SCORE’s average wait time for evaluations is 
3 days which significantly reduces the costs to all agen-
cies by reducing length of stay thereby reducing billable 
days as a direct result.  Other jails length of wait time for 
competency evaluations is often approximately 30 to 90 
days.  

 

MENTAL HEALTH PARTNERSHIPS 

Various mental health agencies access SCORE regularly 
to provide a wide variety of mental health services.  
SCORE provides case managers’ access to their clients to 
continue the care or provide release planning while they 
are incarcerated.   

These agencies provide access to inpatient/outpatient 
treatment and assist the inmates with navigating the 
healthcare system.  

Two of the five managed care organizations provide re-
lease planning for their membership through one-on-one 
interviews, telephone, or video interviews.   

Public Health - Seattle & King County Health Public 
Health Educators provides health education classes to 
the inmates on various topics. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 270



SOUTH  CORRECTIONAL ENTITY 

PROGRAMS 
 

MARCH 2020 

ON-SITE PATIENT REFERRALS, TREATMENT & CARE 

 Sound Mental Health  

 Valley Cities Counseling 

 REACH - Behavioral Health 

 CReW - Counseling, Recovery and Wellness Program 

 Seattle Indian Health Board  

 Cowlitz Indian Tribe Mental Health  

 Muckleshoot Behavioral Health Program  

 START - Duel diagnosis/Case Management/Housing 

 HEN - Housing and Essential Needs 

 LINC - Mental Health Diversion 

 Familiar Faces - Continuing Care Services 

 Evergreen Treatment Service - Vivitrol, Methadone, 
Suboxone Treatment 

 Criminal Justice Initiative - Early Release to In-Patient 
Treatment 

 

OFF-SITE PATIENT REFERRALS, TREATMENT & CARE 

 Swedish Ballard Treatment Center - Opioid treatment 
for pregnant females 

 Muckleshoot Child & Family Services  

 NAVOS  

 Transitional Resources  

 Community Psychiatric Clinic  

 DESC - Behavioral Health 

 Youth and Family Services  

 Consejo Counseling  

 Greater Lakes Mental Healthcare 

 Northwest Psychiatry 
 

 ADDITIONAL PROGRAM CONNECTIONS 

 Rebuilding Hope Sexual Assault Center 

 Lakeside Milam - Treatment 

 Lifelong Alliance - HIV Management 

 FISH Program - Forensic Intensive Supported Housing  

 EDIE - Emergency Department Information Exchange - 
Cross Agency Continuation of Care 

 United Health Care - Women’s Health Classes  

 King County Public Health - Family Planning 

 Familiar Faces - Continuity of Care 

INTEGRATED STATE PROGRAMS AT SCORE 

 WA State DSHS - Food Stamps/Housing Essential 
Needs 

 DSHS - AppleCare 

 Western State Hospital - Forensic Psychiatrist On-Site 
Competency Evaluations 

 King County - DCR Involuntary Hospitalization 

 Department of Veterans Affairs  State and Federal  - 
Release Planning 

 Department of Corrections - Opioid Treatment and 
Diversion 

 King County Mental Health BHO - Continuity of Care  

 King County Reentry - Various Programs 

 King County Crisis and Commitment Services - Diver-
sion & Release Planning 

  

RELIGIOUS CONNECTIONS 

Various religious representatives access SCORE regularly 
and provide a variety of religious services. 

EDUCATION PARTNERSHIPS 

 Highline College 

 South Seattle College 
 

MEMBER - WA STATE OPIOID TREATMENT NETWORK 

SCORE is a sub-recipient of a $7.6 million federal grant 
awarded to the WA Health Care Authority to provide 
Medication Assist-ed Treatment as part of the WA State 
Opioid Treatment Network 

 SCORE MAT Program Funding per year $363,000 

 Year 1 funding awarded (1/2019 to 9/29/2019) 

 Year 2 funding pending (9/30/2019 to 9/29/2020) 
 

LIBRARY SYSTEM 

SCORE offers a dedicated volunteer run library system 
with weekly book rotations and  opportunities to make 
special requests.    

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 271



DLR GROUP RECEIVES “CITATION AWARD” FOR SCORE’S   
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN  
In 2014, the American Institute of Architects Washington Council honored DLR 
Group at its Civic Design Awards. To be eligible, projects must either be de-
signed by architects from Washington or be located in this state. Projects 
were judged on design, utility, economy, environmental harmony, sustainabil-
ity, accessibility, aesthetic delight, creativity, craftsmanship and innovation. 

 

"It is clear to us that the design team moved the client to rethink security con-
trol, which we thought was done in very humane and efficient ways."   - AIA 
Jury 

 

SCORE EARNS NATIONAL ACCREDITATION FROM THE NATIONAL   
COMMISSION ON HEALTH CARE (NCCHC) 
SCORE is one of approximately 250 jails in the United States to earn the 
NCCHC accreditation and only 8% of jails are nationally accredited.  When it 
comes to delivering quality care in correctional settings, the NCCHC Standards 
provide the framework to ensure that systems, policies and procedures are in 
place to produce the best outcomes in the most cost-efficient and effective 
manner. 

Developed by leading experts in the fields of health, law and corrections, the 
Standards are our recommendations for managing the delivery of medical and 
mental health care in correctional systems.  These essential resources have 
guided the field toward continual improvement of care for the incarcerated, 
strengthening organizational effectiveness and reducing the risk of adverse 
legal judgments.  The Standards are also the foundation of NCCHC's accredita-
tion program.   

 
SCORE RECEIVES 100% ON PRISON RAPE ELIMINATION ACT (PREA) 
COMPLIANCE 
In 2015, SCORE completed the agency’s first PREA (Prison Rape Elimination 
Act) audit, demonstrating 100% compliance on all forty-one applicable PREA 
Standards for Adult Detention facilities. Standards included an audit on agency 
policies that included prevention planning,  response planning, training and 
education, screening for risk of sexual victimization and abusiveness, re-
porting, official response following report, investigations, discipline, medical 
and mental health care, data collection and review. 

SOUTH  CORRECTIONAL ENTITY 

ACHIEVEMENTS  & ACCREDITATION 
 

MARCH 2020 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 272



SOUTH  CORRECTIONAL ENTITY 

ACHIEVEMENTS  & ACCREDITATION 
 

MARCH 2020 

SCORE CORRECTIONS OFFICERS EARN NATIONAL JAIL CERTIFICATIONS 
SCORE Corrections Officers have received the national designation of Certified Jail 
Officer (CJO)  and Certified Jail Manager (CJM) by the authority of the American Jail 
Association through the Jail Manager Certification Commission (JMCC).  The CJO 
Program provides jail officers with an opportunity to demonstrate their 
knowledge, skills and abilities as well as their commitment to the corrections pro-
fession on a national level. The CJM certification process focusing specifically on 
the individual providing documented evidence to the public that the individual has 
been examined by an independent professional organization and found to possess 
current competency in his/her field.  Currently, SCORE has fifteen Certified Jail 
Officers and two Certified Jail Managers. 

 

SCORE JAIL AWARDED FIRST WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF  
SHERIFFS AND POLICE CHIEFS (WASPC) JAIL ACCREDITATION 
In 2016, The South Correctional Entity (SCORE) was awarded accreditation through 
the Washington Association of Sheriffs and Police Chiefs (WASPC) by proving com-
pliance with 150 applicable WASPC jail standards and demonstrates SCORE is oper-
ating under industry best practices and standards. Agencies seeking accreditation 
must prove compliance with standards addressing major areas of oversight such as 
use of force, records management, information technology, investigations func-
tions, evidence and property control, health and safety, fiscal management, in-
mate management and communication, sanitation and maintenance, security, re-
cruitment and training. 

 

DISABILITY RIGHTS WASHINGTON CONCLUDES SCORE JAIL STUDY  
In August 2015, Disability Rights Washington's (DRW) started monitoring SCORE in 
an effort to make improvements in the lives of inmates with disabilities.  In August 
2017, DRW published a report regarding the cooperative relationship between 
DRW and SCORE and the positive changes that have been made for inmates with 
disabilities which demonstrated a path forward for all Washington jails.  Based on 
DRW’s monitoring of visits and the review of records, DRW decided to end their 
active work at the jail. They recognized SCORE’s genuine dedication to meeting the 
needs of inmates with mental illness and shared their appreciation for the willing-
ness to work with DRW legal team over a two year span.  

 

After receiving positive feedback about mental health programming at the jail, 
DRW confirmed that inmates are receiving psychiatric evaluation and medication 
in a timely fashion. Mental health staff are generally providing individualized treat-
ment plans and regular follow up for inmates who have serious mental illness. 
SCORE is proactively engaging with community service providers to improve pro-
gramming, coordination of care, and re-entry planning.  

Source:  Disability Rights Washington 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 273



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.d.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Interagency Agreement with the

Washington State Department
of Commerce, CARES Act
Funds for Local Governments,
Amendment 1: Date Extension
and Additional Funds

FROM: Sabrina Combs, Public Information Officer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Recommended motion:

Move to authorize Mayor Severns to sign the Amendment to the Interagency Agreement for the
Coronavirus Relief Fund for Local Governments Grant increasing the total grant amount to
$1,033,650.00 and extending end date to November 30, 2020.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor signed the agreement with the Washington State Department of
Commerce for CARES Act Funds for Local Governments in Washington State. The grant is being
used to fund “Costs incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the Coronavirus
Disease 2019 (COVID-19) during the period of March 1, 2020 thru October 31, 2020.” This
amendment will extend the end date of the grant from October 31, 2020 to November 30, 2020
providing staff more time to identify and charge costs to the grant for eligible items and increase
the grant amount from $689,100 to $1,033,650.00.

The City originally received $689,100 from Commerce, and dedicated $344,550 of that to the
North Whidbey Island Small Business Relief Grant Program via Resolution 20-18. This additional
money from Commerce as part of this contract amendment will provide an additional $344,550,
bringing the City’s CARES Funds available to $689,100.

The City has already spent CARES funds on purchase of Personal Protective Equipment necessary
for employee needs; Labor & Industries required improvements to buildings; technology to
support remote work and virtual meetings; and staff time related to increased or modified work
due to COVID-19. An update on the approximate amount spent to date will be provided at the

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 274



October 6 City Council Meeting.

The City has the opportunity to use this additional funding and time to spend it to purchase a
modular structure to meet Labor & Industries compliance for Engineering staff, which will be
presented as a subsequent item at this meeting.

Historical information about the original Commerce Contract for CARES Funds

The City receives reimbursement for allowable expenses as identified in the Scope of Work or as
authorized in advance by Commerce as reimbursable.

Scope of Work

1. Are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID–19); AND

2. Are not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020 (the date of
enactment of the CARES Act) for the State or government.

Revenue replacement is not a permissible use of Fund payments.

Allowable expenditures include, but are not limited to:

1. Medical expenses such as:

a. COVID-19-related expenses of public hospitals, clinics, and similar facilities.

b. Expenses of establishing temporary public medical facilities and other measures to increase
COVID-19 treatment capacity, including related construction costs.

c. Costs of providing COVID-19 testing, including serological testing.

d. Emergency medical response expenses, including emergency medical transportation, related to
COVID-19.

e. Expenses for establishing and operating public telemedicine capabilities for COVID-19-related
treatment.

2. Public health expenses such as:

a. Expenses for communication and enforcement by State, territorial, local, and Tribal
governments of public health orders related to COVID-19.

b. Expenses for acquisition and distribution of medical and protective supplies, including
sanitizing products and personal protective equipment, for medical personnel, police officers,
social workers, child protection services, and child welfare officers, direct service providers for
older adults and individuals with disabilities in community settings, and other public health or
safety workers in connection with the COVID-19 public health emergency.

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 275



c. Expenses for disinfection of public areas and other facilities, e.g., nursing homes, in response to
the COVID-19 public health emergency.

d. Expenses for technical assistance to local authorities or other entities on mitigation of COVID-
19-related threats to public health and safety.

e. Expenses for public safety measures undertaken in response to COVID-19.

f. Expenses for quarantining individuals.

3. Payroll expenses for public safety, public health, health care, human services, and similar
employees whose services are substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-
19 public health emergency.

4. Expenses of actions to facilitate compliance with COVID-19-related public health measures,
such as:

a. Expenses for food delivery to residents, including, for example, senior citizens and other
vulnerable populations, to enable compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions.

b. Expenses to facilitate distance learning, including technological improvements, in connection
with school closings to enable compliance with COVID-19 precautions.

c. Expenses to improve telework capabilities for public employees to enable compliance with
COVID-19 public health precautions.

d. Expenses of providing paid sick and paid family and medical leave to public employees to
enable compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions.

e. COVID-19-related expenses of maintaining state prisons and county jails, including as relates to
sanitation and improvement of social distancing measures, to enable compliance with COVID-19
public health precautions.

f. Expenses for care for homeless populations provided to mitigate COVID-19 effects and enable
compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions.

5. Expenses associated with the provision of economic support in connection with the COVID-19
public health emergency, such as:

a. Expenditures related to the provision of grants to small businesses to reimburse the costs of
business interruption caused by required closures.

b. Expenditures related to a State, territorial, local, or Tribal government payroll support program.

c. Unemployment insurance costs related to the COVID-19 public health emergency if such costs
will not be reimbursed by the federal government pursuant to the CARES Act or otherwise.

6. Any other COVID-19-related expenses reasonably necessary to the function of government that

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 276



satisfy the Fund’s eligibility criteria.

The City is receiving reimbursement under the Grant for City eligible expense related to 1)
Medical, 2) Public Health, 3) Payroll, 4) Actions to Comply with Public Health Measures, 5)
Economic Support, and 6) Other Covid-19 Expenses. Economic support efforts for local
businesses is funded by Island County and City of Oak Harbor Funds.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Department of Commerce and the City enter into this Contract pursuant to the authority granted by
the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 39.34 RCW.

Funds under the Contract are made available and are subject to Section 601(a) of the Social
Security Act, as amended by section 5001 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
Act (CARES Act), and Title V and VI of the CARES Act.

FISCAL IMPACT
Provides relief for unbudgeted necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency
with respect to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID–19). This is a reimbursable agreement with
ambiguous guidelines, and additional guidelines are still being developed, causing a higher risk of
post expenditure disallowance than typical grants.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
May 20, 2020 – City Council Workshop

June 2, 2020 – City Council Meeting

ATTACHMENTS
1. Interagency Agreement through the Coronavirus Relief Fund for Local Governments
2. Interagency Agreement through the Coronavirus Relief Fund for Local Governments
Amendment

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 277

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601598400x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601598334x_at.pdf


•"" a Washington State 
• • Department of 
•4 •• Commerce 

Interagency Agreement with 

City of Oak Harbor 

through 

For 

the Coronavirus Relief Fund for Local Governments 

Costs incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to 
the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) during the period of 
March 1, 2020 thru October 31, 2020. 

Start date: March 1, 2020 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 278



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Special Tems and Conditions 

1. AuthOfity ........ ... .... ............ , ...... ............. .... ....... .......... ....... . ... .... .... .. .......... .. . .... .. .. .... 1 
2. Aeknowledgement of Federal Funding ...... ......... ..... ................. ... ... .. ........... 1 
3. Contract Management ...... ................. .............. ..................... ....... ............. ..... ..... ... 1 
4. C,ompensa-tion ........... ......... ..... .................................... .... ...... ............... ...... .......... ....................... ~ ... -····· 1 
5. Expenses ......... ....................... .............. .. ............... ..... ... ....... ... ... ... ...... 1 
6. Indirect CQsts ................. ............... .................... ... ......................... ........ 1 
7. Billing Procedures and Payment ... .................................................. ..... ..... ............. 1 
8. Audit .. I 'I Ir O t r f'PO' rr•• PO' r• • r• • r • • ••4 •4+•'1+••1 ...... ..... •• •• • 11•• ••••• I • ••••• . ....... ••••++++•+t • +•• • 11 • • •• • •• ••• .2 
9. Debarment. ................ . .... .. ... .. ...... ........... .. ......... ... ...... . .. .... ...... ..... ........ 3 

10. Laws ... ..................................... ............... .............................. ........... .......... ........ ..... 3 
11. Order of Precedence ....... ..... ....................................... ............... ................. ........... 4 

General Terms and Cooditions 

1. Oefinitions ............. ..... ...... .... ............................................... ...... ............................. 5 
2. All Writings COntain.ed Herein ........ ...... ... ................ ....... ............... ......................... 5 
3. Amendmen-ls .... ......... ····· ....... ...... .. .................... . , ............ ................. •+•+ • ......... . '" . , . .... . ... .... ...... ........... . 5 
4. Assignment' ............. ·~ . ,. •+• ... . ... •+• , .•+• ........... .................. I . . . . .... .. . ................... .... r+ • +4 ~·· .... . ,. 11 1 • +• . ... ..... .. . .. .. 5 
s. Confidentitallty and Safeguarding of lnfotmation .............................................. ...... 5 
6. Copyright. .................... ....... .................. ........... ... ............. ....................................... 6 
7. Disputes .... ............ ............. ........................... .. ...... ................... ....... ... •4 . ·~ .4 .. . ........ .. ..... .. ~· ... ........ ... ........ 6 
6. Govemmg I.aw and Venue .. ... ........... ... .. .............. ............. .................................... 6 
9. lndemnffication .... ... ..... ... .......... ............. ... ....................................... ..... ..... ............. 7 

10. Ucens.lng. Accreditation and Registration ...................... ....... ............................. ... 7 
11 . Recapture ..... ...... ... .............. ........... ........ .... ... .... . , ..... .................... .... ..... .. ............ ................. ....... 4 .... . ,. 7 
12. Records Maintenance ..... .............................. ........... .......... ..... .......... ..................... 7 
13. Savings ............................ ........ ..................... ......................................................... 7 
14. Severabttity .. ... ....... .... ...................................... .................... ........................... ....... 7 
15. Subcontracting ..... ... .......... ..................................... ....... ... .................. .................. .. 7 
16. SUrvfVaJI ....................... .... .......... , .... ....... .................... ..... .. ......... ...... ............................ ~~ -...... ....... ........ .. ...... 8 
17. Tennmation for Cause ..................... .............................. ............................ ............ 8 
18. Termination for Convenience ......... ........ ..... ...... ..... ........... ....... ....................... ..... .. 8 
19. Termination Procedures ...... ............... ........ ... ... ............ ... ........... ......................... .. 8 
20. Treatment of Assets ........ ..... ... ............ ........ ... ..................................... ................... 9 
21. Waiver .......... ............... ..... .......... .. ................................ ... ~~·· .. ·~ ... ......... .............. ... .. ......... ............ ....... ._ 1 o 

Attadlment A, Scope of Work ....... .. .... ....... : ........ ............. ................ ... ....... ... ........ ............. ..... .. 11 
AttacJvnent B, Budget & lnvoi(:ing ................. ....... .................. ........ .......... ........ ... ...................... 13 
Attachment C, A·19 Certification ................. .. ....................................... ...................................... 14 
Attachment D, A-19 Activity Report .... .................... ......... .. ..... ... ................................................ 15 

ii 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 279



1. Contractor 

City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, Washington 98277-4092 

3. Contractor Representative 

BlaineObom 
City Administrator 
(360) 279-450 I 
bobom@oakharbor.org 

FACE SHEET 

Washington State Department of Commerce 
Local Government Division 

Community Capital Facilities Unit 
Coronavirus Relief Fund for Local Governments 

Contract Number: 20-6541C-270 

2. Contractor Doing Business As (optional) 

4. COMMERCE Representative 

Kari Sample PO Box 42525 
Project Manager 101 l Plum Street SE 
(360) 764-3090 Olympia, WA 98504-2525 
Fax 360-586-5880 
Kari.sample@commerce.wa.gov 

5. Contract Amount 

$689,100.00 

6. Funding Source 7. Start Date 

March I, 2020 

8. End Date 

October 31, 2020 Federal: X State: Other: NIA: 

9. Federal Funds (as applicable) 

$689,100.00 

Federal Agency: 

US Dept. of the Treasury 

10. Tax ID## 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxx 
]]. swv ## 

S WVOO I 9248-00 

14. Contract Purpose 

CFDA Number: 

21.999 

12. UBI## 

153000005 

Indirect RBte (ifapplicable): 

10.00% 

13. DUNS## 

054009196 

To provide funds for costs incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVJD-19) 
during the period of March I, 2020 thru October 31, 2020. Final invoices must be received by November 15, 2020. 

15. Signing Statement 

COMMERCE, defined as the Department of Commerce, and the Contractor, as defined above, acknowledge and accept the terms of 
this Contract and Attachments and have executed this Contract on the date below and warrant they are authorized to bind their 
respective agencies. The rights and obligations of both parties to this Contract are governed by this Contract and the following 
documents hereby incorporated by reference: Attachment "A" - Scope of Work, Attachment "B" - Budget & Invoicing, Attachment 
"C" - A-19 Certification, Attachment ·'D" - A-19 Activity Report 

Date 

FOR COMMERCE 

Date 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY BY ASSISTANT 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 05-01-2020. 
APPROVAL ON FILE. 

iii 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 280



1. AUTHORITY 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

COMMERCE and Contractor enter into this Contract pursuant to the authority granted by the lnterlocal 
Cooperation Act, Chapter 39.34 RCW. 

2. ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF FEDERAL FUNDS 

Funds under the Contract are made available and are subject to Section 601 (a) of the Social Security 
Act, as amended by section 5001 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES 
Act), and Title V and VI of the CARES Act. 

The Contractor agrees that any publications (written, visual, or sound) but excluding press releases, 
newsletters, and issue analyses, issued by the Contractor describing programs or projects funded in whole 
or in part with federal funds under this Contract, shall contain the following statements: 

"This project was supported by a grant awarded by US Department of the Treasury. Points of 
view in this document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position 
or policies of the US Department of the Treasury. Grant funds are administered by the Local 
Government Coronavirus Relief Fund thru the Washington State Department of Commerce." 

3. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 

The Representative for each of the parties shall be responsible for and shall be the contact person for all 
communications and billings regarding the performance of this Contract. 

The Representative for COMMERCE and their contact information are identified on the Face Sheet of 
this Contract. 

The Representative for the Contractor and their contact information are identified on the Face Sheet of 
this Contract. 

4. COMPENSATION 

COMMERCE shall pay an amount not to exceed the contract amount listed on the Face Sheet for the 
performance of all things necessary for or incidental to the performance of work under this Contract as set 
forth in the Scope of Work (Attachment A). 

5. EXPENSES 

Contractor shall receive reimbursement for allowable expenses as identified in the Scope of Work 
(Attachment A) or as authorized in advance by COMMERCE as reimbursable. 

Travel expenses may include airfare (economy or coach class only), other transportation expenses, and 
lodging and subsistence necessary during periods of required travel. Contractor shall receive compensation 
for travel expenses at current state travel reimbursement rates. 

6. INDIRECT COSTS 

Contractor shall provide their indirect cost rate that has been negotiated between their entity and the federal 
government. If no such rate exists a de minimis indirect cost rate of 10% of modified total direct costs 
(MTDC) will be used. 

7. BILLING PROCEDURES AND PAYMENT 

COMMERCE shall reimburse the Contractor for eligible Project expenditures, up to the maximum payable 
under this Contract. When requesting reimbursement for expenditures made, Contractor shall submit all 
Invoice Vouchers and any required documentation electronically through COMMERCE's Contracts 
Management System (CMS), which is available through the Secure Access Washington (SAW) portal. If 
the Contractor has constraints preventing access to COMMERCE's online A-19 portal, a hard copy A-19 
form may be provided by the COMMERCE Project Manager upon request. 

State of Washington 
Department or Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement Version 072019 
Page 1 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 281



SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

The voucher must be certified by an official of the Contractor with authority to bind the Contractor. The final 
voucher shall be submitted to COMMERCE no later than November 15, 2020. 

COMMERCE will pay Contractor upon acceptance of services provided and receipt of properly completed 
invoices, which shall be submitted to the Representative for COMMERCE not more often than monthly. 

The invoices shall describe and document, to COMMERCE's satisfaction, reimbursable expenditures as 
set forth under the Scope of Work (Attachment A) and Budget & Invoicing (Attachment B). The invoice shall 
include the Contract Number as stated on the Face Sheet. 

Each voucher must be accompanied by an A-19 Certification (Attachment C) and A-19 Activity Report 
(Attachment D). The A-19 Certification must be certified by an authorized party of the Contractor to certify 
and attest all expenditures submitted on the voucher are in compliance with the United States Treasury 
Coronavirus Relief Fund ("Fund") Guidance for State, Territorial, Local, and Tribal Governments: 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Guidance-for-State-Territorial-Local
and-Tribal-Govemments.pdf 

The A-19 Activity Report must be submitted which describes, in Excel spreadsheet and narrative form, a 
detailed breakdown of the expenditures within each applicable budget sub-category identified in the 
voucher, as well as a report of expenditures to date. COMMERCE will not release payment for any 
reimbursement request received unless and until the A-19 Certification and A-19 Activity Report is received. 
After approving the Invoice Voucher, A-19 Certification and Activity Report, COMMERCE shall promptly 
remit a warrant to the Contractor. 

Payment shall be considered timely if made by COMMERCE within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt 
of properly completed invoices. Payment shall be sent to the address designated by the Contractor. 

COMMERCE may, in its sole discretion, terminate the Contract or withhold payments claimed by the 
Contractor for services rendered if the Contractor fails to satisfactorily comply with any term or condition of 
this Contract. 

No payments in advance or in anticipation of services or supplies to be provided under this Agreement shall 
be made by COMMERCE. 

Duplication of Billed Costs 

The Contractor shall not bill COMMERCE for services performed under this Agreement, and COMMERCE 
shall not pay the Contractor, if the Contractor is entitled to payment or has been or will be paid by any other 
source, including grants, for that service. 

Disallowed Costs 

The Contractor is responsible for any audit exceptions or disallowed costs incurred by its own organization 
or that of its subcontractors. 

Should the Contractor be found to spent funds inconsistent with federal laws, rules, guidelines, or otherwise 
inappropriately, it is the responsibility of the Contractor to reimburse Commerce for any amount spent on 
disallowed costs. 

8. AUDIT 

Contractor shall maintain internal controls providing reasonable assurance it rs managing federal awards 
in compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a 
material effect on each of its federal programs; and prepare appropriate financial statements, including a 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 

If the Contractor is a subrecipient and expends $750,000 or more in federal awards from any and/or all 
sources in any fiscal year, the Contractor shall procure and pay for a single audit or a program-specific 
audit for that fiscal year. Upon completion of each audit, the Contractor shall: 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement Version 072019 
Page2 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 282



SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

A. Submit to COMMERCE the reporting package specified in 0MB Super Circular 2 CFR 200.501, 
reports required by the program-specific audit guide (if applicable), and a copy of any management 
letters issued by the auditor. 

B. Submit to COMMERCE follow-up and developed corrective action plans for all audit findings. 

If the Contractor is a subrecipient and expends less than $750,000 in federal awards from any and/or all 
sources in any fiscal year, the Contractor shall notify COMMERCE they did not meet the single audit 
requirement. 

The Contractor shall send all single audit documentation to auditreview@commerce.wa.gov. 

9. DEBARMENT 

A. Contractor, defined as the primary participant and it principals, certifies by signing these General Terms 
and Conditions that to the best of its knowledge and belief that they: 

i. Are not presenUy debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency. 

ii. Have not within a three-year period preceding this Contract, been convicted of or had a civil 
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection 
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public or private agreement or transaction, 
violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, receiving 
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction of justice; 

iii. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 
(1)(b) offederal Executive Order 12549; and 

iv. Have not within a three-year period preceding the signing of this Contract had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause of default. 

B. Where the Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Contract, the Contractor shall 
attach an explanation to this Contract. 

C. The Contractor agrees by signing this Contract that it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by COMMERCE. 

D. The Contractor further agrees by signing this Contract that it will include the clause titled MCertification 
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered 
Transaction," as follows, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions: 

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

i. The lower tier Contractor certifies, by signing this Contract that neither it nor its principals is 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 

ii. Where the lower tier Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Contract, 
such contractor shall attach an explanation to this Contract. 

E. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, 
person, primary covered transaction, principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this section, 
have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive 
Order 12549. You may contact COMMERCE for assistance in obtaining a copy of these regulations. 

10. LAWS 

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes, regulations, and policies of local. 
state, and federal governments, as now or hereafter amended, including, but not limited to: 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement Version 072019 
Page 3 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 283



SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

United States Laws, Regulations and Circulars (Federal) 

Contractor shall comply with Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirement 
for Federal Award, 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements. 

Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, including any future 
amendments to 2 CFR Part 200, and any successor or replacement Office of Management and Budget 
(0MB) Circular or regulation. 

Contractor shall comply with Omnibus Crime Control and Safe streets Act of 1968, Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and The 
Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations, 28 C.F.R. Part 42, Subparts C.D.E. and G, and 28 
C.F.R. Part 35 and 39. 

11. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 

ln the event of an inconsistency in this Contract, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence 
in the following order: 

• Applicable federal and state of Washington statutes and regulations 

• Special Terms and Conditions 

• General Terms and Conditions 

• Attachment A - Scope of Work 

• Attachment B - Budget & Invoicing 

• Attachment C -A-19 Certification 

• Attachment D - A-19 Activity Report 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement Verslon 072019 
Page4 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 284



1. DEFINITIONS 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

As used throughout this Contract, the following terms shall have the meaning set forth below: 

A. "Authorized Representative" shall mean the Director and/or the designee authorized in writing to 
act on the Director's behalf. 

B. "COMMERCE" shall mean the Department of Commerce. 

C. "Contract" or "Agreement" means the entire written agreement between COMMERCE and the 
Contractor, including any attachments, documents, or materials incorporated by reference. E-mail 
or facsimile transmission of a signed copy of this contract shall be the same as delivery of an 
original. 

D. "Contractor" shall mean the entity identified on the face sheet performing service(s) under this 
Contract, and shall include all employees and agents of the Contractor. 

E. "Personal Information" shall mean information identifiable to any person, including, but not limited 
to, information that relates to a person's name, health, finances, education, business, use or receipt 
of governmental services or other activities, addresses, telephone numbers, social security 
numbers, driver license numbers, other identifying numbers, and any financial identifiers. 

F. "State" shall mean the state of Washington. 

G. "Subcontractor" shall mean one not in the employment of the Contractor, who is performing all or 
part of those services under this Contract under a separate contract with the Contractor. The terms 
"subcontractor" and "subcontractors" mean subcontractor(s) in any tier. 

2. ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN 

This Contract contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No other 
understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Contract shall be deemed to 
exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. 

3. AMENDMENTS 

Thls Contract may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties. Such amendments shall not be 
binding unless they are in writing and signed by personnel authorized to bind each of the parties. 

4. ASSIGNMENT 

Neither this Contract, work thereunder, nor any claim arising under this Contract, shall be transferred 
or assigned by the Contractor without prior written consent of COMMERCE. 

5. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SAFEGUARDING OF INFORMATION 

A. "Confidential Information" as used in this section includes: 

i. All material provided to the Contractor by COMMERCE that is designated as "confidential" by 
COMMERCE; 

ii. All material produced by the Contractor that is designated as "confidential" by COMMERCE; 
and 

iii. All personal information in the possession of the Contractor that may not be disclosed under 
state or federal law. 

B. The Contractor shall comply with all state and federal Jaws related to the use, sharing, transfer, 
sale, or disclosure of Confidential Information. The Contractor shall use Confidential Information 
solely for the purposes of this Contract and shall not use, share, transfer, sell or disclose any 
Confidential Information to any third party except with the prior written consent of COMMERCE or 
as may be required by law. The Contractor shall take all necessary steps to assure that Confidential 
Information is safeguarded to prevent unauthorized use, sharing, transfer, sale or disclosure of 
Confidential Information or violation of any state or federal laws related thereto. Upon request, the 
Contractor shall provide COMMERCE with its policies and procedures on confidentiality. 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreemenl Version 072019 
Page5 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 285



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

COMMERCE may require changes to such policies and procedures as they apply to this Contract 
whenever COMMERCE reasonably determines that changes are necessary to prevent 
unauthorized disclosures. The Contractor shall make the changes within the time period specified 
by COMMERCE. Upon request, the Contractor shall immediately return to COMMERCE any 
Confidential Information that COMMERCE reasonably determines has not been adequately 
protected by the Contractor against unauthorized disclosure. 

C. Unauthorized Use or Disclosure. The Contractor shall notify COMMERCE within five (5) working 
days of any unauthorized use or disclosure of any confidential information, and shall take necessary 
steps to mitigate the harmful effects of such use or disclosure. 

6. COPYRIGHT 

Unless otherwise provided, all Materials produced under this Contract shall be considered "works for 
hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act and shall be owned by COMMERCE. COMMERCE shall be 
considered the author of such Materials. In the event the Materials are not considered "works for hire" 
under the U.S. Copyright laws, the Contractor hereby irrevocably assigns all right, title, and interest in 
all Materials, including all intellectual property rights, moral rights, and rights of publicity to COMMERCE 
effective from the moment of creation of such Materials. 

"Materials" means all items in any format and includes, but is not limited to, data, reports, documents, 
pamphlets, advertisements, books, magazines, surveys, studies, computer programs, films, tapes, 
and/or sound reproductions. "Ownership" includes the right to copyright, patent, register and the ability 
to transfer these rights. 

For Materials that are delivered under the Contract. but that incorporate pre-existing materials not 
produced under the Contract, the Contractor hereby grants to COMMERCE a nonexclusive, royalty
free, irrevocable license (with rights to sublicense to others) in such Materials to translate, reproduce, 
distribute, prepare derivative works, publicly perform, and publicly display. The Contractor warrants and 
represents that the Contractor has all rights and permissions, including intellectual property rights, 
moral rights and rights of publicity, necessary to grant such a license to COMMERCE. 

The Contractor shall exert all reasonable effort to advise COMMERCE, at the time of delivery of 
Materials furnished under this Contract, of all known or potential invasions of privacy contained therein 
and of any portion of such document which was not produced in the performance of this Contract. The 
Contractor shall provide COMMERCE with prompt written notice of each notice or claim of infringement 
received by the Contractor with respect to any Materials delivered under this Contract. COMMERCE 
shall have the right to modify or remove any restrictive markings placed upon the Materials by the 
Contractor. 

7. DISPUTES 

In the event that a dispute arises under this Agreement, it shall be determined by a Dispute Board in 
the following manner: Each party to this Agreement shall appoint one member to the Dispute Board. 
The members so appointed shall jointly appoint an additional member to the Dispute Board. The 
Dispute Board shall review the facts, Agreement terms and applicable statutes and rules and make a 
determination of the dispute. The Dispute Board shall thereafter decide the dispute with the majority 
prevailing. The determination of the Dispute Board shall be final and binding on the parties hereto. As 
an alternative to this process, either of the parties may request intervention by the Governor, as 
provided by RCW 43.17.330, in which event the Governor's process will control. 

8. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 

This Contract shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of Washington, 
and any applicable federal laws, and the venue of any action brought hereunder shall be in the Superior 
Court for Thurston County. 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement Version 072019 
Page6 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 286



9. INDEMNIFICATION 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

Each party shall be solely responsible for the acts of its employees, officers, and agents. 

10. LICENSING, ACCREDITATION AND REGISTRATION 

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal licensing, accreditation and 
registration requirements or standards necessary for the performance of this Contract. 

11. RECAPTURE 

In the event that the Contractor fails to perform this Contract in accordance with state laws, federal 
laws, and/or the provisions of this Contract, COMMERCE reserves the right to recapture funds in an 
amount to compensate COMMERCE for the noncompliance in addition to any other remedies available 
at law or in equity. 

Repayment by the Contractor of funds under this recapture provision shall occur within the time period 
specified by COMMERCE. In the alternative, COMMERCE may recapture such funds from payments 
due under this Contract. 

12. RECORDS MAINTENANCE 

The Contractor shall maintain books, records, documents, data and other evidence relating to this 
contract and performance of the services described herein, including but not limited to accounting 
procedures and practices that sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature 
expended in the performance of this contract. 

The Contractor shall maintain records that identify, in its accounts, all federal awards received and 
expended and the federal programs under which they were received, by Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance (CFDA) title and number, award number and year, name of the federal agency, and name 
of the pass-through entity. 

The Contractor shall retain such records for a period of six (6) years following the date of final payment. 
At no additional cost, these records, including materials generated under the contract, shall be subject 
at all reasonable times to inspection, review or audit by COMMERCE, personnel duly authorized by 
COMMERCE, the Office of the State Auditor, and federal and state officials so authorized by law, 
regulation or agreement. 

If any litigation, claim or audit is started before the expiration of the six (6) year period, the records shall 
be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved. 

13. SAVINGS 

In the event funding from state, federal, or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way 
after the effective date of this Contract and prior to normal completion, COMMERCE may suspend or 
terminate the Contract under the ''Termination for Convenience" clause, without the ten calendar day 
notice requirement. In lieu of termination, the Contract may be amended to reflect the new funding 
limitations and conditions. 

14. SEVERABILITY 

The provisions of this contract are intended to be severable. If any term or provision is illegal or invalid 
for any reason whatsoever, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of 
the contract. 

15. SUBCONTRACTING 

The Contractor may only subcontract work contemplated under this Contract if it obtains the prior written 
approval of COMMERCE. 

If COMMERCE approves subcontracting, the Contractor shall maintain written procedures related to 
subcontracting, as well as copies of all subcontracts and records related to subcontracts. For cause, 
COMMERCE in writing may: (a) require the Contractor to amend its subcontracting procedures as they 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreemenl Version 072019 
Page 7 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 287



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

relate to this Contract; (b) prohibit the Contractor from subcontracting with a particular person or entity; 
or (c) require the Contractor to rescind or amend a subcontract. 

Every subcontract shall bind the Subcontractor to follow all applicable terms of this Contract. Contractor 
shall incorporate 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F audit requirements into all subcontracts. The Contractor 
is responsible to COMMERCE if the Subcontractor fails to comply with any applicable term or condition 
of this Contract. The Contractor shall appropriately monitor the activities of the Subcontractor to assure 
fiscal conditions of this Contract. In no event shall the existence of a subcontract operate to release or 
reduce the liability of the Contractor to COMMERCE for any breach in the performance of the 
Contractor's duties. 

Every subcontract shall include a term that COMMERCE and the State of Washington are not liable for 
claims or damages arising from a Subcontractor's performance of the subcontract. 

16. SURVIVAL 

The terms, conditions, and warranties contained in this Contract that by their sense and context are 
intended to survive the completion of the performance, cancellation or termination of this Contract shall 
so survive. 

17. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 

In the event COMMERCE determines the Contractor has failed to comply with the conditions of this 
contract in a timely manner, COMMERCE has the right to suspend or terminate this contract. Before 
suspending or terminating the contract, COMMERCE shall notify the Contractor in writing of the need 
to take corrective action. If corrective action is not taken within 30 calendar days, the contract may be 
terminated or suspended. 

In the event of termination or suspension, the Contractor shall be liable for damages as authorized by 
law including, but not limited to, any cost difference between the original contract and the replacement 
or cover contract and all administrative costs directly related to the replacement contract, e.g., cost of 
the competitive bidding, mailing, advertising and staff time. 

COMMERCE reserves the right to suspend all or part of the contract, withhold further payments, or 
prohibit the Contractor from incurring additional obligations of funds during investigation of the alleged 
compliance breach and pending corrective action by the Contractor or a decision by COMMERCE to 
terminate the contract. A termination shall be deemed a "Termination for Convenience· if it is 
determined that the Contractor: (1) was not in default; or (2) failure to perform was outside of his or her 
control, fault or negligence. 

The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided in this contract are not exclusive and are in addition 
to any other rights and remedies provided by law. 

18. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 

Except as otherwise provided in this Contract, COMMERCE may, by ten (10) business days written 
notice, beginning on the second day after the mailing, terminate this Contract, in whole or in part. If this 
Contract is so terminated, COMMERCE shall be liable only for payment required under the terms of 
this Contract for services rendered or goods delivered prior to the effective date of termination. 

19. TERMINATION PROCEDURES 

Upon termination of this contract, COMMERCE, in addition to any other rights provided in this contract, 
may require the Contractor to deliver to COMMERCE any property specifically produced or acquired 
for the performance of such part of this contract as has been terminated. The provisions of the 
"Treatment of Assets" clause shall apply in such property transfer. 

COMMERCE shall pay to the Contractor the agreed upon price, if separately stated, for completed 
work and services accepted by COMMERCE, and the amount agreed upon by the Contractor and 
COMMERCE for (i) completed work and services for which no separate price is stated, (ii) partially 
completed work and services, (iii) other property or services that are accepted by COMMERCE, and 
(iv) the protection and preservation of property, unless the termination is for default, in which case the 
Authorized Representative shall determine the extent of the liability of COMMERCE. Failure to agree 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement Version 072019 
Pages 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 288



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

with such determination shall be a dispute within the meaning of the "Disputes" clause of this contract. 
COMMERCE may withhold from any amounts due the Contractor such sum as the Authorized 
Representative determines to be necessary to protect COMMERCE against potential loss or liability. 

The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided in this section shall not be exclusive and are in 
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this contract. 

After receipt of a notice of termination, and except as otherwise directed by the Authorized 
Representative, the Contractor shall: 

A. Stop work under the contract on the date, and to the extent specified, in the notice; 

B. Place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, services, or facilities except as may be 
necessary for completion of such portion of the work under the contract that is not terminated; 

C. Assign to COMMERCE, in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by the Authorized 
Representative, all of the rights, title, and interest of the Contractor under the orders and 
subcontracts so terminated, in which case COMMERCE has the right, at its discretion, to settle or 
pay any or all claims arising out of the termination of such orders and subcontracts; 

D. Settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such termination of orders and 
subcontracts, with the approval or ratification of the Authorized Representative to the extent the 
Authorized Representative may require, which approval or ratification shall be final for all the 
purposes of this clause; 

E. Transfer title to COMMERCE and deliver in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by 
the Authorized Representative any property which, if the contract had been completed, would have 
been required to be furnished to COMMERCE; 

F. Complete performance of such part of the work as shall not have been terminated by the Authorized 
Representative; and 

G. Take such action as may be necessary, or as the Authorized Representative may direct, for the 
protection and preservation of the property related to this contract, which is in the possession of 
the Contractor and in which the Authorized Representative has or may acquire an interest. 

20. TREATMENT OF ASSETS 

Title to all property furnished by COMMERCE shall remain in COMMERCE. Title to all property 
furnished by the Contractor, for the cost of which the Contractor is entitled to be reimbursed as a direct 
item of cost under this contract, shall pass to and vest in COMMERCE upon delivery of such property 
by the Contractor. Title to other property, the cost of which is reimbursable to the Contractor under this 
contract, shall pass to and vest in COMMERCE upon (i) issuance for use of such property in the 
performance of this contract, or (ii) commencement of use of such property in the performance of this 
contract, or (iii) reimbursement of the cost thereof by COMMERCE in whole or in part, whichever first 
occurs. 

A. Any property of COMMERCE furnished to the Contractor shall, unless otherwise provided herein 
or approved by COMMERCE, be used only for the performance of this contract. 

B. The Contractor shall be responsible for any loss or damage to property of COMMERCE that results 
from the negligence of the Contractor or which results from the failure on the part of the Contractor 
to maintain and administer that property in accordance with sound management practices. 

C. If any COMMERCE property is lost, destroyed or damaged, the Contractor shall immediately notify 
COMMERCE and shall take all reasonable steps to protect the property from further damage. 

D. The Contractor shall surrender to COMMERCE all property of COMMERCE prior to settlement 
upon completion, termination or cancellation of this contract 

All reference to the Contractor under this clause shall also include Contractor's employees, agents 
or Subcontractors. 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement Version 072019 
Page 9 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 289



21. WAIVER 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

Waiver of any default or breach shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent default or breach. 
Any waiver shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Contract unless stated to be 
such in writing and signed by Authorized Representative of COMMERCE. 

State ofWashlngton 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement Version 072019 
Page 10 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 290



Attachment A 

Scope of Work 

This funding is made available under section 601(a) of the Social Security Act, as added by section 5001 
of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act") and Section V and VI of the 
CARES Act, for costs incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the Coronavirus Disease 
2019 (COVID-19). Under the CARES Act, the Coronavirus Relief Fund may be used to cover costs that 

1. Are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the 
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19); AND 

2. Are not accounted for In the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020 (the date 
of enactment of the CARES Act) for the State or government. 

These funds may be used to reimburse for expenditures incurred during the period of March 1, 2020 thru 
Oct. 31 , 2020. Please note: In order to ensure all funds have been fully utilized prior to the US 
Treasury's December 30, 2020 end date, the State of Washington must closeout contracts by October 
31, 2020 . All final requests for reimbursement must be received no later than November 15, 2020. 

Expenditures must be used for necessary actions taken to respond to the public health emergency. These 
may include expenditures incurred to allow the local government to respond directly to the emergency, such 
as by addressing medical or public health needs, as well as expenditures incurred to respond to second
order effects of the emergency, such as by providing economic support to those suffering from employment 
or business interruptions due to COVID-19-related business closures. 

Funds may not be used to fill shortfalls in government revenue to cover expenditures that would not 
otherwise qualify under the statute. Although a broad range of uses is allowed, revenue replacement is not 
a permissible use of Fund payments. 

Payments may be used only to cover costs not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of 
March 27, 2020. A cost meets this requirement if either: 

1. The cost cannot lawfully be funded using a line item, allotment, or allocation within that budget; OR 

2. The cost is for a substantially different use from any expected use of funds in such a line item, 
allotment, or allocation. 

The "most recently approved" budget is the enacted budget for the relevant fiscal period for the particular 
government. A cost is not considered to have been accounted for in a budget merely because it could be 
met using a budgetary stabilization fund, rainy day fund, or similar reserve account. 

Allowable expenditures include. but are not limited to: 

1. Medical expenses such as: 
a. COVID-19-related expenses of public hospitals, clinics, and similar facilities. 
b. Expenses of establishing temporary public medical facilities and other measures to increase 

COVID-19 treatment capacity, including related construction costs. 
c. Costs of providing COVID-19 testing, including serological testing. 
d. Emergency medical response expenses, including emergency medical transportation, related 

to COVID-19. 
e. Expenses for establishing and operating public telemedicine capabilities for COVID-19-related 

treatment. 

2. Public health expenses such as: 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnleragency Agreement Vorsion 072019 
Page 11 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 291



Attachment A 

a. Expenses for communication and enforcement by State, territorial, local, and Tribal 
governments of public health orders related to COVID-19. 

b. Expenses for acquisition and distribution of medical and protective supplies, including 
sanitizing products and personal protective equipment, for medical personnel, police officers, 
social workers, child protection services, and child welfare officers, direct service providers for 
older adults and individuals with disabilities in community settings, and other public health or 
safety workers in connection with the COVJD-19 public health emergency. 

c. Expenses for disinfection of public areas and other facilities, e.g., nursing homes, in response 
to the COVlD-19 public health emergency. 

d. Expenses for technical assistance to local authorities or other entities on mitigation of COVID-
19-related threats to public health and safety. 

e. Expenses for public safety measures undertaken in response to COVID-19. 
f. Expenses for quarantining individuals. 

3. Payroll expenses for public safety, public health, health care, human services, and similar 
employees whose services are substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-
19 public health emergency. 

4. Expenses of actions to facilitate compliance with COVID-19-related public health measures, such 
as: 
a. Expenses for food delivery to residents, including, for example, senior citizens and other 

vulnerable populations, to enable compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 
b. Expenses to facilitate distance learning, including technological improvements, in connection 

with school closings to enable compliance with COVID-19 precautions. 
c. Expenses to improve telework capabilities for public employees to enable compliance with 

COVID-19 public health precautions. 
d. Expenses of providing paid sick and paid family and medical leave to public employees to 

enable compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 
e. COVID-19-related expenses of maintaining state prisons and county jails, including as relates 

to sanitation and improvement of social distancing measures, to enable compliance with 
COVID-19 public health precautions. 

f. Expenses for care for homeless populations provided to mitigate COVID-19 effects and enable 
compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 

5. Expenses associated with the provision of economic support in connection with the COVID-19 
public health emergency, such as: 
a. Expenditures related to the provision of grants to small businesses to reimburse the costs of 

business interruption caused by required closures. 
b. Expenditures related to a State, territorial, local, or Tribal government payroll support program. 
c. Unemployment insurance costs related to the COVID-19 public health emergency if such costs 

will not be reimbursed by the federal government pursuant to the CARES Act or otherwise. 

6. Any other COVID-19-related expenses reasonably necessary to the function of government that 
satisfy the Fund's eligibility criteria. 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement Version 072019 
Page 12 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 292



Attachment B 

Budget & Invoicing 

The Contractor shall determine the appropriate budget and use of funds within the following 6 budget 
categories and their sub-categories: 

1. Medical 
2. Public Health 
3. Payroll 
4. Actions to Comply with Public Health Measures 
5. Economic Support 
6. Other Covid-19 Expenses 

The Contractor shall submit invoice reimbursement requests to the Commerce Representative using the 
Commerce Contract Management System's (CMS) Online A-19 Portal. Each reimbursement request must 
include: 

1. A-19 Certification form - An authorized party of the local government will certify each invoice (A 19) 
submitted for reimbursement and attest that all incurred expenditures meet the US Treasury 
Department's guidance: hlllps:t/home.treaswy.govlsvstemf@es/13§lCoronayjru_s_-ReUe~uod
Gufdance-foJ-state-T erritorial-LocaJ-aod-To'bal-Govemments,pdf 

2. A-19 Activity Report 
3. A detailed breakdown of the expenditures incurred within each applicable budget sub-category on 

the A-19 Activity Report. 

The A-19 Certification and Activity Report templates will be provided with the executed contract. The 
documents are included in Attachment C and Attachment D for reference, 

Receipts and proof of payment for costs incurred do not need to be submitted with A-19s. All contractors 
are required to maintain accounting records in accordance with state and federal laws. Records must be 
sufficient to demonstrate the funds have been used in accordance with section 601(d) of the Social Security 
Act. Commerce reserves the right to audit any costs submitted for reimbursement. The Contractor shall 
comply with Commerce A-19 audits and provide the appropriate records upon request. 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement Version 072019 
Page 13 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 293



Attachment C 

. ... ! C\ 

•4•" Co1n1ner< 'P 

I, 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUNDS 
CERTIFICATION 

am the fcrn1E>, of <l.Oc:Al/GDVEINMENTS:, and I certify that: 

l. I have the authority and approval from the governing body on behalf of the Local 
Government to request reimbursement from the Department of Commerce 
(Commerce) per contract number ~COMMERCECONTRACLNU ER;1 from the 
allocation of the Coronavirus Relief Fund as created in section 5001 of H.R.748, the 
coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act rCARES Act") for eligible 
expenditures included on the corresponding A-19 invoice voucher for report period 
~ RT P§@.1Pll_PR°"-1~A-~ . 

2. I understand that as additional federal guidance becomes available, a contract 
amendment to the agreement between Commerce and the Local Government may 
become necessary. 

3. I understand Commerce will rely on this certification as a material representation in 
processing this reimbursement. 

4. I certify the use of funds submitted for reimbursement from the Coronavirus Relief 
Funds under this contract were used only to cover those costs that: 
a. Are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with 

respect to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19); 
b. ~ not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020; 

and 
c. Were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on October 

31,2020. 

5. I understand the use of funds pursuant to this certification must adhere to official 
federal guidance issued or to be issued on what constitutes a necessary expenditure. 
We have reviewed the guidance established by U.S. Department of the Treasury1 and 
certify costs meet the required guidance. Any funds expended by the Local Government 
or its subcontractor(s) in any manner that does not adhere to official federal guidance 
shall be returned to the State of Washington. 

Footnote. 
I - Guidance 11\-.ilable a1 htll)s lhotut.'.tre;uufY 110\"IBJ!etn 1fil~ I 3&'C-Orooa~um-Rebef ~u11d-C,uulanc~-fo1-5tatr
T rin1ou~I-Locnl-,u1d. T ribal-Go•:rmmt'rlt~ p<lf (-'130r.?020) 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreemenl Version 072019 
Page 14 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 294



Attachment C 

LOCAL GOVERN'MENT CORONA VIRUS RELIEF FUNDS CERTIFICATION 
Page:? of2 

6. I understand the Local Government receiving funds pursuant to this certification shall 
retain documentation of all uses of the funds, including but not limited to invoices 
and/or sales receipts in a manner consistent with §200.333 Retention requirements/or 
records of 2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Such documentation shall 
be produced to Commerce upon request and may be subject to audit by the State 
Auditor. 

7. I understand any funds provided pursuant to this certification cannot be used as a 
revenue replacement for lower than expected tax or other revenue collections. 

8. I understand funds received pursuant to this certification cannot be used for 
expenditures for which the Local Government has received any other emergency COVID-
19 supplemental funding (whether state, federal or private in nature) for that same 
expense. 

I certify that 1 have read the above certification and my statements contained herein are true 
and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Printed Name 

Title 

Signature 

Date: 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement Version 072019 
Page 15 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 295



CFF A·19 Activity Report 
INSTRJ:TIONS 

INSTRUCTIONS: 

Attachment D 

A completed CRF A-19 Certification and Activity Report must be submitted with each A-19 reimbursement request 
The A-19 Activity Report must be submitted as an Excel spreadsheet, not a PDF. You must also include a detailed 
breakdown of the individual expenditures reported in Column F for each applicable sub-category included on the A-19 
Activity Report. 

There are 6 primary budget categories; 
1. Medical Expenses 
2. Public Health Expenses 
3. PayroU expenses for public employees dedicated to COVID-19 
4. Expenses to facilitate compliance with COVID-19-measures 
5. Economic Supports 
6. Other COVID-19 Expenses 

Each primary budget category includes sub-categories and provides an option to add •other" sub-categories not 
listed. 

Follow the below instructions when completing the A-19 Activity Report: 

1 REPORT PERIOD • Enter the report period into C•II 01 of the A-19 Activity Report 
a This should match the report period entered on the corresponding A-19. 
b Report period should include MM/YY to MWYYYY, i.e. 03120, March 2020, 0312020, etc. 

2 COLUMN E - Enter the total amount of aH previous reimbursement requests submitted to Commerce for each 
applicable sub-category. 

3 COLUMN F - Enter the total amount being requested in the current reimbursement request for each applicable 
sub-category. 

4 COLUMN H: USE OF FUNDS - You must include a general description of the use of the funds being requested 
for each applicable sub-category. Keep descriptions as concise as possible, but include adequate context to 
demonstrate how these funds helped address the COVID-19 emergency. If applicable, please consider: 

a Providing a brief description of the specific activities performed. 
b Identifying specific populations served. 
c Identifying specific programs created or utilized. 
d Including any known or intended outcomes, results, or community [mpacts. 

5 OTHER SUB.CATEGORIES • Budget categories 1-5 incfude a placeholder to add an additional sub-category if 
necessary. 

a Enter a Tltle for other expenses added within the appropriate budget category. 
b Enter titles into Cells: 010, D19, D27. 036, and D41 . 
c There is only one •other" placeholder in each budget category section. Please combine multiple "other" sub

categories added to the same budget category. 

B OTHER BUDGET CATEGORIES - Budget category 6 is where you should include any eligible expenditures 
lhat don't fall under budget categories 1 ·5. 

a Enter a Tltle for these "other" expenses within budget category 6. 
b Enter litles into Cells D44 • D48. 
c There are only 5 entry fields ava~able within Budget Category 6. 

State of Wash[ngton 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement Version 072019 
Page 16 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 296



Attachment D 

~ llt!lf(r
.i.u J.dMll<tt-,t 

. --~·s-·~·~~~· ... ·-------·· 1 · 11 · 11 =1 I II. T""'@'l':"!'{~~nd!CIII h,ci!ltles I tncrcoocd C•f"<'it( _ __ I - · 

: e?<?-=·m·· -====== == t:: T : : :: :: - ,--- --, ~------~----------- -- -- ----------- --- : . . :- - = 
·---· -SUb-TGlal: • • 

2 Pulllc HNllh ~ 

A. ~P!'-'!"l'.~~~M'iC..~.~~-"-· 11 -II · 11 I I !ill -~~~1.,."l".~~-.•~~H~!'l'f~1-<----"-· -+'"----"--+''----.;.... .. ______________________ -4 
c. ll'tl~J'l*llt""unclfl!nfM•Jt1u ------------ , : ~ ~ ; -!!~=~~~"-~-~-------: ~= : ! :- ~ = -: :: = 

- ----, likl\••••••--n•••n•n••-•-•n•--•••--f.• _....._ ___ -1•1..1------t-•'""------· ----------------------· G. O!l!oor • • • 
• ···~·-···~-~- S..b-Tc,t;. . 

J ..,,..._.. !or p,ilillc ~ dedicated toaM.0-UI 

~ ~~,--:· .............. ····· ............ I·! Ii 1~.-1 1~. I 
........ ~ ................................ _.L_ ----.L------.c.------1 . .----------------------. 

C.~qe,(ffl"O"lt • ••• • ._ .... ... _ • • , _._ .... _. _________ + ·"-, -------------------------

F, 51l!J!r-·------· ...IJ' ------1-E-----' '---------------------------1 SUb-Tacal: - • • 

4 ..-u~~1111thmwo,u--

"- - .. - •• ,U,f""'J1D<af- ..... ..... ~'I II 1 · I . . I S --1 ....... .,.1.-'t,111>-~---- .. ----..--.::: • ~ ?'. ~ 
:-~~;~a~~~~~~-L ... · ~ · ::r · ··- -==~ 

............. 'l""! ..... W<ffll't~ ................ +.a,.-------1-1..1-------+--f-----· ----------------------· 
•- c.rt llt!Ml i«~Hn1'<nfw<-.J"'l""llllafts • •••• ~----"-t+-----"--+!'-----"--+-------------------------I ~ Ollto,- • • • 

··-·--~•••••--• -----·-- SUb-Tatal: • 

$, I~~ 

~ :!'!'!1'¥~"~~~~~-~------ --- 1: - I: - 1•. - 1• I 
C. ~-~--~------ --- - ----- --: ; : - . .1.:Li---.::.--1-.Li----=-+.Lt-----=~------------------------1-

0 othertuVIO-U.~ •• --•-- •- •• •- • .. ••••• .. ••••-:::===;.====..-----:1 -----=============::i 
~ ::: =:== = =:== ==:= = -------- ~ =:::_:_:::= ::_::: Ii Y -I l I I C. ~ ..................... ... - .................. ... 

: ~--.:~:::::.:·.:::.:.:.:::·::..:-:.:::·:.:-:,:.;:;~/ ' . ~ ~ 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

rnteragency Agreem:eot Ve1$lon 071019 
p.age 17 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 297



Amendment 

Department of Commerce 

Contract Number: 20-6541C-270 
 Amendment Number: A 

Washington State Department of Commerce 
Local Government Division 

Community Capital Facilities Unit 
Coronavirus Relief Fund for Local Governments 

 
1. Contractor 2. Contractor Doing Business As (optional) 
City of Oak Harbor 

865 SE Barrington Dr 
OAK HARBOR, Washington 98277-4092 
 

 

3. Contractor Representative (only if updated) 4. COMMERCE Representative (only if updated) 
Blaine Oborn 
City Administrator  

(360) 279-4501 
boborn@oakharbor.org 
 

Tryg Hoff 
Project Manager 
(360) 725-2779 
Fax 360-586-5880 
tryg.hoff@commerce.wa.gov 

PO Box 42525 
1011 Plum St SE 
Olympia, WA  98504-2525 

5. Original Contract Amount 
      (and any previous amendments) 

6. Amendment Amount 7. New Contract Amount 

$689,100.00 $344,550.00 $1,033,650.00 

8. Amendment Funding Source 9. Amendment Start Date 10. Amendment End Date 

Federal: X State:        Other:         N/A:       Date of Execution November 30, 2020 

11. Federal Funds (as applicable): 

$1,033,650.00 

Federal Agency: 

US Dept. of the Treasury 

CFDA Number: 

21.019 

12. Amendment Purpose: 

To provide additional funding for costs incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 
(COVID-19) during the period of March 1, 2020 thru November 30, 2020. Final invoices must be received by December 15, 2020. 
 

COMMERCE, defined as the Department of Commerce, and the Contractor, as defined above, acknowledge and accept the terms 
of this Contract As Amended and attachments and have executed this Contract Amendment on the date below to start as of the date 
and year referenced above.  The rights and obligations of both parties to this Contract As Amended are governed by this Contract 
Amendment and the following other documents incorporated by reference:  Contractor Terms and Conditions including Attachment 
“A” – Scope of Work, Attachment “B” – Budget & Invoicing, Attachment “C” – A-19 Certification, Attachment “D” – A-19 
Activity Report. A copy of this Contract Amendment shall be attached to and made a part of the original Contract between 
COMMERCE and the Contractor. Any reference in the original Contract to the “Contract” shall mean the “Contract as Amended”. 

FOR CONTRACTOR FOR COMMERCE 
 
  
Bob Severns, Mayor 
 
 
  
Date 

 
  
Mark K. Barkley, Assistant Director, Local Government Div 
 
 
  
Date 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY 
 
Sandra Adix  
Assistant Attorney General 

3/20/2014  
Date 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 298



Amendment 

 2 
 

This Contract is amended as follows: 
 

 
Contract amount has been increased by $344,550.00. 
 
Contract end date has been extended from October 31, 2020 to November 30, 
2020. 
 
Final reimbursement request must be received by December 15, 2020. 

 
 
ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN IN FULL FORCE 
AND EFFECT. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 299



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.e.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Purchase Authorization-Aries

Modular Office Space with
CARES Act Funds

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing staff to purchase and install one (1) Aries modular building from KCDA
Contract number 19-255 in the amount not to exceed $315,000.00.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City has been awarded funds through the state’s Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF).  The funds
are available under section 601(a) of the Social Security Act, as added by section 5001 of the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”).  This grant is funded
entirely through the federal stimulus funding under the CARES Act provided by the U.S.
Department of Treasury (US Treasury) to the Governor via the Office of Financial Management
(OFM).  On April 27, 2020, Governor Inslee announced the award of nearly $300 million to local
governments in CRF from the state’s allocation of the CARES Act funding.

There is an eligible cost test consisting of five statements.   If all responses for the particular
incurred cost are “true” for all five statements below, then a jurisdiction can feel confident the cost
is eligible;

1. The expense is connected to the COVID-19 emergency.
2. The expense is “necessary”
3. The expense is not filling a short fall in government revenues.
4. The expense is not funded thru another budget line item, allotment or allocation, as of

March 27, 2020.
5. The expense wouldn’t exist without COVID-19 OR would be for a “substantially different”

purpose.

The Department of Labor & Industries (L&I) required employers to provide a safe and healthy
workplace and to implement the Governor’s proclamation to ensure coronavirus prevention. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 300



Mandatory social distancing is one way that employers must ensure all employees keep at least six
feet away from coworkers and the public, when feasible.  One idea presented by L&I is to move
workstations farther apart.
Staff began the use of plexi glass around April 23, 2020.  They were installed both upstairs and
downstairs City Hall, at the Senior Center and at the Police Department.  Other distancing methods
were also implemented such as on-line meetings, taking separate vehicles, controlling the number
of people entering the buildings and/or offices, etc.  These safety measures were a great start, but
long-term solutions are still needed.
 
Projects that are in motion currently to provide long-term social distancing is a new entry way at
the Senior Center to space out volunteers and staff, walls and doors for the admin cubicles to
provide “working alone” conditions, walls and doors for two staff members downstairs that do not
have complete barriers for “working alone” conditions and proposals to space out the Engineering
staff have been received, but logistically, they create close distancing when outside of their
cubicles due to the lack of square footage necessary to adequately space each cubicle evenly.
 
Staff began researching options to place a modular unit at the Public Works Facility to provide
space for social distancing.  A new modular is available and ready to be installed.  It was originally
going to the Oak Harbor School District (OHSD), but due to COVID-19, it was put on hold.
 
Staff contacted the OHSD to see if they were willing to let the City purchase it due to our need and
short turn around time.  They have agreed and this saves both the City and OHSD money in the
long run. 
 
A few modifications are needed, and the site will need to be prepped in-house to make this
happen.  If approval is given, staff is ready to move fast.  The funds must be spent by November
30, 2020 and the modular occupied by that date as well per the funding requirements.
 
In 2003, City Council authorized an interlocal agreement with the OHSD and the City to be able to
use The King County Directors Association, otherwise known as KCDA.  The purpose of this
association is to create volume purchasing, fulfill bid law requirements, manage centralized
receiving and distribution, and offer a single source for school supplies, furniture and equipment. 
The City of Oak Harbor wanted to take advantage of this association’s buying power, in
accordance with RCW 39.34.  This is the purchasing tool we are proposing to use to purchase the
modular.  The formal bidding has been done on our behalf. 
 
Staff have met with the vendor’s site manager and electrician to determine those costs and the
logistics necessary to bring the modular on site.  The items known at this time and the associated
cost/estimates have been provided in the chart below: 
 

Building $223,080.19
Electrical/communications/fire alarm $88,647.11
Total $311,717.30

 
Staff is proposing to use CARES funding to purchase and install this modular.  It meets the five

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 301



criteria above and it will provide for social distancing, which in turn will provide for a safer and
healthier workplace.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:          Not to exceed $315,000.00 of CARES funds                             

Appropriation Source:            502.10.594.18.6200                           

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Site Plan
2. Modular Pictures

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 302

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601486358x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601486264x_at.pdf


October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 303



October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 304



 

 

 

 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 305



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.f.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Agreement with Island County,

for Coronavirus Relief Fund
Grant (CARES), Amendment 1:
Date Extension

FROM: Sabrina Combs, Public Information Officer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Recommended motion:

Move to authorize Mayor Severns to sign Amendment 1 to the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement
with Island County for the Coronavirus Relief Fund for Local Governments Grant, extending the
date of the agreement to November 30, 2020.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 306



The City of Oak Harbor initially received $689,100 from Washington State Department of
Commerce of CARES Act Funds for Local Governments in Washington State. The City
designated 50% of this, $344,550 for a grant program for small businesses with fewer than 50
employees and up to $10,000 per applicant. The City partnered with Island County Commissioner
Jill Johnson on the North Whidbey Island Small Business Relief Grant. The grant program
included the City of Oak Harbor and the unincorporated area of Island County within the 98277
zip code. Island County received $4,665,100 in CARES Funding; Commissioner Johnson
committed $333,333 to the grant program, for a total of $677,883. The Interlocal Cooperation
Agreement that was approved at the City Council Meeting on July 7, 2020 [Attachment 1] outlines
the relationship between the City and the County in the administration of this grant program.

The Island County Interlocal Agreement for District 2 CARES Business Relief Grant Funds totals
$366,666 with $333,333 for the City/County North Whidbey Island Small Business Relief Grant
program and $33,333 for City program administration. The City’s grant funding program for small
businesses is for the period of March 1, 2020 to September 30, 2020. The County’s additional time
in Amendment 1 [Attachment 2] provides flexibility to the City with the County agreement
terminating on November 30, 2020 with all reimbursement requests from the City due by that date.

Approval of the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with Island County for the Coronavirus Relief
Fund for Local Governments Grant allowed the City and County to provide needed relief to local
small businesses impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Island County and the City of Oak Harbor entered into this Interlocal Cooperation Agreement
under the authority of RCW Chapter 39.34.

Department of Commerce and the City entered into an Interagency Agreement pursuant to the
authority granted by the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 39.34 RCW.

Funds under the Contract are made available and are subject to Section 601(a) of the Social
Security Act, as amended by section 5001 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
Act (CARES Act), and Title V and VI of the CARES Act.

FISCAL IMPACT
Provides relief for unbudgeted necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency
with respect to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID–19). This is a reimbursable agreement with
ambiguous guidelines, and additional guidelines are still being developed, causing a higher risk of
post expenditure disallowance than typical grants.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 307



May 20, 2020 Council Workshop – Overview of COVID-19 Economic Recovery Response
Effort and CARES Funding
June 2, 2020 Council Meeting – Resolution 20-18: Council determination of use of CARES
Funding for North Whidbey Small Business Relief Fund Program; Interagency Agreement
with the Washington State Department of Commerce, CARES Act Funds for Local
Governments; Professional Service Agreement: Greater Oak Harbor Chamber of
Commerce, CARES Grant Coordination
June 17, 2020 Council Special Workshop – Resolution 20-19: Creating the CARES
Selection Committee for the North Whidbey Island Small Business Relief Fund Program;
Update on the Program
July 7, 2020 City Council Meeting – Approved the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with
Island County, for Coronavirus Relief Fund Grant (CARES)
July 14, 2020 City Council Special Meeting – Resolution 20-21 Approving CARES Funding
Selection Committee Awards
August 5, 2020 City Council Special Meeting – Resolution 20-23 Awarding the North
Whidbey Island Small Business Relief Program Grants for applications formerly
disqualified by the CARES Grant Selection Committee
August 23, 2020 City Council Workshop – CARES North Whidbey Island Small Business
Relief Program Update

ATTACHMENTS
1. Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with Island County for the Coronavirus Relief Fund for Local
Governments Grant with Exhibits
2. 1st Amendment to the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement Coronavirus Relief Fund Grant
between City of Oak Harbor and Island County

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 308

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601600396x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601668933x_at.pdf


Contractor: City or Oak Harbor 
PURPOSE: CRF Funds 
CONTRACT#: RM·B0CC·2020-187 

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND GRANT 

This Agreement Is made by and between Island County, Washington ("County''), and City Of Oak 
Harbor ("City"). 

WHEREAS, the County Is a political subdivision organized and existing under the Washington State 
Constitution and the laws of the State of Washington, and particularly those set forth at Revised Code of 
Washington Title 36; 

WHEREAS, City Of Oak Harbor Is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of Washington, and is located within the County; 

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2020 the Coronavlrus Aid, Retief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act was 
signed into law providing for over $2 trillion in relief for American workers, families and small businesses, 
and to preserve jobs for American workers; 

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2020, Washington State announced the allocation of nearly $300 million 
for local governments from the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) available under the CARES Act; 

WHEREAS, the State of Washington allocated $4.6 million from the Coronavirus Relief Fund ("CRF 
allotment'') to Island County; 

WHEREAS, Island County entered Into an lnteragency Agreement with the WA State Department 
of Commerce and said lnteragency agreement specifies the terms and conditions for the County's CRF 
allotment; 

WHEREAS, Island County desires to Immediately allocate Three Hundred Sixty.six Thousand, Six 
Hundred Slxty·slx Dollars ($366,666) to City Of Oak Harbor for the purpose of a Small Business Financial 
Assistance Program for small businesses in Island County that have been adversely Impacted by the 
Coronavirus pandemic; 

WHEREAS, the County and City Of Oak Harbor enter into this lnterlocal Cooperation Agreement 
("Agreement") under the authority of RCW Chapter 39.34; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions set forth below, it Is hereby 
agreed as follows: 

TERMS AND CONDmONS 
1. Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions under which the 

County will provide CRF grant funding to City Of Oak Harbor, as more particularly described in 
Exhibit A Grant Funds & Use of Grant Funds, which is incorporated by reference herein as If 
included in its entirety. 

2. Acknowledgment of Federal Funds. Funds under the Agreement are made available and are 
subject to Section 601(a) of the Social Security Act, as amended by section 5001 of the Coronavfrus 
Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), and Title V and VI of the CARES Act. The City 
agrees that any publications (written, visual, or sound) but excluding press releases, newsletters, 

·1· 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 309



Contractor: City of Oak Harbor 
PURPOSE: CRF Funds 
CONTRACT#: RM·BOCC-2020-187 

and issue analyses, issued by the City describing programs or projects funded in whole or in part 
with federal funds under this Agreement shall contain the following statements: ''This project was 
supported by a grant awarded by US Department of the Treasury. Points of view In this document 
are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the US 
Department of the Treasury. Grant funds are administered by the Local Government Coronavirus 
Relief Fund thru the Washington State Department of Commerce." 

3. Grant Award. The County agrees to provide grant funds to the City not to exceed Three Hundred 
Sixty-six Thousand, Six Hundred Sixty-six Dollars ($366,666) to reimburse costs incurred in 
providing a Small Business Financial Assistance Program as set forth in Exhibit A, in the following 
amounts: 
a) Amount for financial assistance grants for small businesses not to exceed $333,333; and 
b) Amount for administration not to exceed $33,333. 
Said grant funds are made available to the City by the County subject to lnteragency Agreement 
Number 20-6541C-015 between Island County and Washington State Department of Commerce, 
attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein for all intents and purposes. 

4. BIiiing Procedures and Payment. The County shall reimburse the City for eligible expenditures as 
identified in Exhibit A, up to the maximum payable under this Agreement. 

5. Advance Payment. In anticipation of services to be provided under this Agreement, the County 
may make payment in advance to the City. 

6. Representatives. This representative for each of the parties shall be responsible for and shall be 
the contact person for all communications and billings regarding the performance of this 
Agreement. 

Name: 
Title: 
Phone: 
Email: 

City Of Oak Harbor 
Blaine Oborn 
City Administrator 
360.279.4501 
boborn@oakharbor.org 

Island County 
Douglas A Martin 
Budget Manager 
360.678-7254 
DA.Martin@islandcountywa.gov 

7. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall be effective only upon execution by the parties and 
filing with the Island County Auditor or, alternatively, listed by subject on Island County's web site. 
This Agreement shall terminate on October 31, 2020. 

8. Indemnity. Each party agrees to be responsible and assume liability for its own wrongful and/or 
negligent acts or omissions or those of their officials, officers, agents, or employees to the fullest 
extent required by law, and further agrees to save, indemnify, defend, and hold the other party 
harmless from any such liability. It is further provided that no liability shall attach to Island County 
by reason of entering into this lnterlocal Agreement except as expressly provided herein. 

9. Compliance with All Laws. Each party hereto shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, 
regulations and ordinances applicable to the performance of this Agreement. 

10. Conflict of Interest. The elected officials, employees, volunteers, agents and subrecipient of the 
parties shall not have any personal interest, direct or indirect, which gives rise to a conflict of 
interest. The parties warrant that no employee,officer, or agent shall participate in the selection 
or award of funding to businesses under this contract, or the administration of this contract if a 
real or apparent conflict of interest is involved as defined by RCW Chapter 42.23, et. seq. 

11. Maintenance and Audit of Records. The City shall maintain books, records, documents, data and 
other evidence relating to this contract and performance of the services described herein, 
including but not limited to accounting procedures and practices that sufficiently and properly 
reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended in the performance of this contract. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 310



Contractor! City or Oak Harbor 
PURPOSE: CRF funds 
CONTRACT#: RM-BOCC-2020-187 

The City shall retain such records for a period of six (6) years following the date of final payment. 
At no additional cost, these records, including materials generated under this Agreement, shall be 
subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review or audit by the County, personnel duly 
authorized by the County, and the Washington State Auditor's Office. If any litigation, claim or 
audit is started before the expiration of the six (6) year period, the records shall be retained until 
all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved. 

12. On·Site Inspections. Either party or its designee may evaluate the performance of this Agreement 
through on·site inspection to determine whether performance is in compliance with the 
standards set forth in this Agreement, and in compliance with federal, state and local laws, rules, 
regulations and ordinances. 

13. Subrecipient and subcontracting. The City may subrecipient and/or subcontract work 
contemplated under this Agreement with the prior written consent of the County. If the County 
approves subcontracting, the City shall maintain written procedures related subcontracting, as 
well as copies of all subcontracts and records related to subcontracts. Every subrecipient shall 
bind the Subrecipient to follow all applicable terms of this Contract. The City shall incorporate 2 
CFR Part 200, Subpart F audit requirements into all subcontracts. The City is responsible to Island 
County if the Subrecipient fails to comply with any applicable term or condition of this Contract. 
The Contractor shall appropriately monitor the activities of the Subrecipient to assure fiscal 
conditions of this Contract. In no event shall the existence of a subrecipient operate to release or 
reduce the liability of the Contractor to Island County for any breach in the performance of the 
City's duties. 

14. Recapture. In the event that the City fails to perform this Agreement in accordance with state · 
laws, federal laws and/or terms and conditions of this Agreement, the County reserves the right 
to recapture funds in an amount to compensate the County for the noncompliance in addition to 
any other remedies available at law or in equity. Repayment by the City of funds under this 
recapture provision shall occur within 60 days of written notice by the County. In the alternative, 
the County may recapture such funds from payments due under this Agreement. 

15. Termination for Convenience. The County may, by ten (10) days written notice terminate this 
Agreement, in whole or in part. If this Agreement is so terminated, the County shall be liable only 
for payment required under the terms of this Agreement. 

16. Funding Withdrawn. In the event that funding for this service is withdrawn, reduced, or limited 
in any way by Washington State Department of Commerce ("WS DOC") in writing after the 
effective date of this Agreement, the County may summarily terminate this Agreement 
notwithstanding any other termination provision in this Agreement. Termination under this 
subsection shall be effective upon the date specified in the written notice of termination sent by 
County to the City with such WS DOC documentary evidence. After the effective date, no later 
charges incurred under this Contract shall be allowed. 

17. Suspension & Debarment. 
A. City Of Oak Harbor (authorized official signing for the City) certifies to the best of his or her 

knowledge and belief, by signing this Agreement that they: 
a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal Department or Agency; 
b) Have not within a 3·year period preceding this contract been convicted of or had a civil 

judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, 
or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 311



Contractor: City of Oak Harbor 
PURPOSE:CRFFunds 
CONTRACT 11: RM·BOCC-2020-167 

antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

c) Are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental 
entity (Federal, State or local) with the commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (b) above; and 

d) Have not within a 3-year period preceding this agreement had one or more public 
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 

B. City Of Oak Harbor agrees that the City shall provide immediate written notice if at any time 
it learns that this certification has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

C. By signing this Agreement, City Of Oak Harbor agrees that it shall not knowingly enter into 
any lower tier covered transaction if the entity or principal(s) are debarred, suspended, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction. The 
City may rely upon certification of a lower tier covered transaction unless it knows that the 
certification is erroneous. 

18. Waiver Limited. A waiver of any term or condition of this Agreement must be in writing and signed 
by the part. Any express or implied waiver of a term or condition of this Agreement shall apply 
only to the specific act, occurrence or omission and shall not constitute a waiver as to any other 
term or condition of future act, occurrence or omission. 

19. Disputes. Disputes between the City and the County, arising under and by virtue of this contract, 
shall be brought to the attention of the County at the earliest possible time in order that such 
matters may be settled or other appropriate action promptly taken. 

20. Choice of Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue. Prior to pursuing any legal remedy, the parties will 
attempt to resolve through good faith discussions any dispute that arises under this Agreement. 
Any such dispute may at any time, at the election of either party, be referred to the 
Representatives for discussion and possible resolution. This Agreement will be governed by the 
laws of the State of Washington. The venue of any action arising out of this Agreement shall be 
the Superior Court of the State of Washington, in and for Island County. 

21. Assignment. Neither this Agreement, work thereunder, nor any claim arising under this 
Agreement shall be transferred or assigned by the City without prior written consent of the 
County. 

22. Invalid Provisions. The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular term or provision of this 
Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other term or provision and this 
Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable term or provision 
was omitted. 

23. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. Any 
oral or written representations or understandings not incorporated in this Contract are specifically 
excluded. 

APPROVED ~ U \ ~ ] 1 2020 
Board Of County Commissioners 
Island County, WA 

APPROVED 7 -~ j -- - 2020 

City Of Oak Ha~ 

By·l'L/.~ -= -
:~ -Severns, Mayor 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 312



Contractor; Oty of Oak Harbor 
PURPOSE: CRF Funds 
CONTRACT#: RM·BOCC-2020-187 

Attest 

!~~1 
Attest: 

~s. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 313



Contractor: City of Oak Harbor 
PURPOSE: CRF Funds 
CONTRACT#: RM·BOCC-2020-187 

EXHIBIT A 
Grant Funds & Use of Grant Funds 

Island County and the City of Oak Harbor are partners in providing a financial assistance program to 
small businesses located in North Whidbey island (zip code 98277) adversely Impacted by the COVID-19 
public health emergency. The grant funding provided by the County to the City of Oak Harbor is to be 
used for costs incurred by small businesses during the period of March 1, 2020, through October 31, 
2020, and the City's indirect costs for administering this grant. 

The City of Oak Harbor will administer and operate the program, Including but not limited to, as follows: 
1) Establish a Grant Selection Committee with members appointed by both the City and County; 
2) Advertising and public outreach; 
3) Application, selection and reimbursement processes with appropriate internal controls to 

prevent misuse of funds; 
4) Ensure costs qualify as eligible costs for reimbursement as specified In the lnteragency 

Agreement Coronavirus Relief Fund between Island County and Washington State Department 
of Commerce (see Exhibit B); 

5) Recordkeeplng and documentation required by the WA State Department of Commerce, WA 
State Auditor's Office and the County. 

Use of Grant Funds. Grant funds may be used as follows: 
1) Reimburse costs Incurred by small businesses that are necessary and eligible under Exhibit B. 

The City shall determine whether or not an expense is eligible using the "Coronavirus Relief 
Funds for Local Governments Eligible Cost Test'' attached hereto as Exhibit C, and the "WA State 
Department of Commerce's Coronavirus Relief Funds for Local Governments Program 
Guidelines of 05-18-2020" attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

2) Program administration costs Incurred by the City are also eligible for reimbursement. 

The County shall reimburse the City for qualifying costs upon certification by the City and appropriate 
documentation of expenses incurred, so long as requests for reimbursement are submitted on or before 
October 31, 2020, to allow for Island County's November 15, 2020 reporting deadline required by the 
lnteragency Agreement between the County and WA State Department of Commerce attached as 
Exhibit B. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 314



EXHIBIT B 

6<11>• Washington State 
• ~ CDepartment of 
•~ ommerce 

Interagency Agreement with 

For 

Island County GSA 

through 

the Coronavirus Relief Fund for Local Governments 

Costs incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to 
the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) during the period of 
March 1, 2020 thru October 31, 2020. 

Start date: March 1, 2020 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 315



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Special Terms and Conditions 

1. Authority.. .. ...... . ..... .. ................................ ..... ....... ......... .................... 1 
2. Acknowledgement of Federal Funding ............. ............ ....................... .... ..... 1 
3 Contract Management ........................................................................................... 1 
4 . Compensation ... ...... ......... ... ....... . . ...... .. .. . . ..... .... .. .. .. ... .... ..... .... .... 1 
5. Expenses ... .............. ............ ........ ............. ..... ................. ....... .... , ....... 1 
6 . Indirect Costs ....... .......... , ................................ ................... .. .... ....... 1 
7. Billing Procedures and Payment. .......................................................................... 1 
8 Audit. ..........................• , ..... . . .•......... ., .... .. .. ..................... ............... • 2 
9. Debarment ... . ................ ....... ... ................... .. .. .......... .. ....................... J 

10. Laws . ......... .. ........................................................... ............................... .. 3 
11. Order of Precedence ............................................................................................ 4 

General Terms and Conditions 

1. Definitions ............................................. ............................................................. 5 
2. All Wntings Contained Herein ............................................................................ .... 5 
3. Amendments ................................................................................................. 5 
4 Assignment .... ,, ............................................................................................ , 5 
5. Confidentiality and Safeguarding of Information ..•.... , ............................................ 5 
6 Copyright. ...................... ,............ ...... ................. ............ .... .. .......... .... . . . . . 6 
7. Disputes .. ...................................................... ......................................... . , ........ 6 
8. Governing Law and Venue ...... , ......................................................................... 6 
9. lndemnifK:ation .............................................................................................. 7 

10. Licensing, Accreditation and Registration ...•........•..... , ....................................... 7 
11 . Recapture ............................................................................................................. 7 
12. Records Maintenance ................................................................................. 7 
13. Savings ........ , ....................... ................................................................................ 7 
14 Severability ......................................................................................................... 7 
15. Subcontracting .................................................................. ... ..... .............. .............. 7 
16. Survival .................. .................... ... .. ......... ......... .. ... ...... . ................................. 8 
17. Te1TTiination for Cause ................................................................................... ....... 8 
18. Termination for Convenience .............................................................................. 8 
19. Termination Procedures ............ ... .......... ................................. ........................ . 8 
20 Treatment of Assets ........................................... .... ... .. .. ... .................. 9 
21 . Waiver ................................................................................................... 10 

Attachment A, Scope of Work ............................................................................................. 11 
Attachment B, Budget & Invoicing ........ .............................................................................. 13 
Attachment C, A-19 Certification ............................... ..... ......................... .................... 14 
Attachment D, A-19 Activity Report ................................................................................. 16 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 316



FACE SHEET 

Concr:ict Number: 20--654J C.01S 

1. Contnactor 

Island County GSA 
POBOXSOOO 
COUPEVILLE. Washington 98239 

3. Contractor Representative 

Douglas ?vtanin 
Budget Manager 

Washington State Department of Commerce 
Local Government Division 

Community Capital Facilities Unit 
Corona virus Relief Fund for Locsl Governments 

2. Contractor Doing Business As (optional) 

4. COMMERCE Representative 

Chuck Hunter P .0. Box 42525 
Project Milllager IOI I Plum Street SE 

{360) 678-nS-4 (360} 725-2924 Olympia, WA 98S0.\·2S2S 
DA.}.fartin@isJ311dcountyw11.gov Fa.'< 360-S86-S880 

chuck .hunter@commerce.wa.gov 

5. Contract Amount 6. Funding Source 7. St:irt Date 8. End Date 

S4,665, I00.00 Federal; X State; Other: NIA: March I, 2020 October 31, 2020 

9. Federal Funds (as applicable) federal Agency: CFDA Number: Indirect lute {if applicable): 
S-t,665, 100.00 US Dept. of the Treasury 21.999 [I Ol~ 19.36% ' 
10. Tu ID# II.SW\'# 12. UBI# IJ. DUNS# 
:xxxxxxxxxxxxxx SWVOOOO!OJ-33 000000000 N,A 

14, Contract Purpose 

To provide funds for casts incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the Corona.virus Disease 2019 (COVfD-19) 
during the period of March I, 2020 thru October 31, 2020. Final invoices must be received by November IS, 2020. 

1S. Slzn.ini S12tement 

COlvl.MERCE. defin'ed as the Department of Commerce, and the Contractor. as defined above, acknowledge and accept the terms of 
this Contract a.nd Attachments and have executed this Conlract on the: date below and warrant they are authorized to bind their 
respective agencies. The rights and obligations of both plll'tic:s to this Contract are governed by this Contract and the following 
documents hereby incorpor.ited by reference: Anachment -A" -Scope of Work. Attachment "B~ - Budget & Invoicing, Attachment 
.. C" - A-19 Certification, Attachment .. D" - A· 19 Activity Report 

FOR COi'i'TRACTOR FORC:;:,,~ ; :~t~· 
-;: • • t 5-l., 1 (i A11l "r • I r ... un,1 (. ,n 'r- { Man.: I<. e.lrkl'cy, Assistant D1tor. Local Government Division . ..... ,, .. ,. ~ '>"" -t - - ; ....... --· 

L I "l I .. ·· -u tel,~ - _ L _ 
Date: Date 

APPROVED AS TO f'ORM O~L\' BY ASSISTA;\T 
AlTORNEY GENERAL 05-01-2020. 
APPROVAL ON FILE. 

ii• 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 317



1. AUTHORITY 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

COMMERCE and Contractor enter into this Contract pursuant to the authority granted by the lnterlocal 
Cooperation Act, Chapter 39.34 RCW. 

2. ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF FEDERAL FUNDS 

Funds under the Contract are made available and are subject to Section 601 (a) or the Social Security 
Act as amended by section 5001 or the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES 
Act), and Title V and VI of the CARES Act. 

The Contractor agrees that any publications (written, visual, or sound) but excluding press releases. 
newsletters, and issue analyses, issued by the Contractor describing programs or projects funded in whole 
or in part with federal funds under this Contract, shall contain the following statements: 

"This project was supported by a grant awarded by US Department of the Treasury. Points or 
view in this document are those or the author and do not necessarily represent the official position 
or policies of the US Department of the Treasury. Grant funds are administered by the Local 
Government Coronavirus Relief Fund thru the Washington State Department of Commerce." 

3. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 

The Representative for each or the parties shall be responsible for and shall be the contact person for all 
communications and billings regarding the performance of this Contract 

The Representative for COMMERCE and their contact information are identified on the Face Sheet of 
this Contract. 

The Representative for the Contractor and their contact information are identified on the Face Sheet or 
this Contract. 

4. COMPENSATION 

COMMERCE ·shall pay an amount not to exceed the contract amount listed on the Face Sheet for the 
performance of an things necessary for or incidental to the performance of work under this Contract as set 
forth in the Scope of Work (Attachment A). 

5. EXPENSES 

Contractor shall receive reimbursement for allowable expenses as identified in the Scope of Work 
(Attachment A) or as authorized in advance by COMMERCE as reimbursable. 

Travel expenses may include airfare (economy or coach class only), other transportation expenses, and 
lodging and subsistence necessary during periods of required travel. Contractor shall receive compensation 
for travel expenses at current state travel reimbursement rates. 

6. INDIRECT COSTS 

Contractor shall provide their indirect cost rate that has been negotiated between their entity and the federal 
government. If no such rate exists a de minimis Indirect cost rate of 10% of modified total direct costs 
(MTDC) will be used. 

7. BILLING PROCEDURES_ANQ PAVME~T 

COMMERCE shall reimburse the Contractor for eligible Project expenditures, up to the maximum payable 
under this Contract. When requesting reimbursement for expenditures made, Contractor shall submit all 
Invoice Vouchers and any required documentation electronically through COMMERCE's Contracts 
Management System (CMS). which is available through the Secure Access Washington (SAW) portal If 
the Contractor has constraints prevenUng access to COMMERCE's online A-19 portal, a hard copy A-19 
form may be provided by the COMMERCE Project Manager upon request. 

State ofWaahington 
Depa,tment or comme,ce 

lnteragency Agreement Vetslon 072019 
Page 1 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 318



SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

The voucher must be certified by an official of the Contractor with authority to bind the Contractor. The final 
voucher shall be submitted to COMMERCE no laler lhan November 15, 2020. 

COMMERCE will pay Contractor upon acceptance of services provided and receipl of properly compleled 
invoices, which shall be submitted lo lhe Represenlative for COMMERCE not more often than monlhly 

The invoices shall describe and documenl, to COMMERCE's satisfaction, reimbursable expendilures as 
sel forth under the Scope of Work (Atlachment A) and Budget & Invoicing (Attachmenl B). The invoice shall 
include the Contract Number as slated on the Face Sheet. 

Each voucher must be accompanied by an A-19 Certification (Attachment C) and A-19 Activity Report 
(Attachment 0). The A-19 Certification musl be certified by an authorized party of the Contractor to certify 
and attest all expenditures submitted on the voucher are in compliance with the Uniled Slates Treasury 
Coronavirus Relief Fund ("Fund") Guidance for State, Terrilorial, Local. and Tribal Governments: 

https://home.treasury.govtsystemlfiles/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund-Guidance-for-State-Terrilorial-Local
and-Tribal-Govemments pdf 

The A-19 Activity Report musl be submitted which describes, in Excel spreadsheet and narralive form, a 
delailed breakdown of the expenditures wilhin each applicable budget sub-category identified in the 
voucher, as wen as a report of expenditures to date. COMMERCE will not release payment for any 
reimbursement request received unless and until theA-19 Certification and A-19 Activity Report is received. 
After approving the Invoice Voucher, A-19 Certificalion and Aclivily Report, COMMERCE sha11 promplly 
remil a warranl lo lhe Conlractor. 

Payment shall be considered timely if made by COMMERCE within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt 
of properly completed invoices. Payment shall be sent to the address designated by lhe Contractor. 

COMMERCE may. in its sole discretion, terminate the Contract or withhold payments claimed by the 
Contraclor for services rendered if the Contractor fails to satisfactorily comply with any term or condition of 
lh is Contract. 

No paymenls in advance or in anticipation ofservices or supplies to be provided under this Agreement shall 
be made by COMMERCE. 

Duplication of Billed costs 

The Contractor shall not bill COMMERCE for services perfonned under this Agreement, and COMMERCE 
shall not pay the Contractor. If the Contractor is entitled to payment or has been or will be paid by any other 
source, Including grants, for that service. 

Disallowed Costs 

The Contractor is responsible for any audit exceptions or disallowed costs incurred by its own organization 
or that of its subcontractors. 

Should the Contractor be found to spent funds fnconsistent with federal laws, rules, guidelines, or olherwise 
inappropriately, it is the responsibility of the Conlractor to reimburse Commerce for any amount spent on 
disallowed costs. 

8. AUDIT 

Contraclor shall maintain internal controls providing reasonable assurance it is managing federal awards 
in comp6ance with laws, regulabons. and provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a 
material effect on each of its federal programs: and prepare appropriate financial statements, including a 
schedule of expenditures of federal awaf'ds 

lf ~e Contractor is a subrec1pient and expends $750,000 or more in federal awards from any and/or all 
sources in any fiscal year, the Contractor shall procure and pay for a single audit or a program-specific 
audit for lhat fiscal year. Upon completion of each audit. the Contractor shall: 

S1a1e af Washinglon 
Depar1menl ol Commerce 

lnleragency Agreemenl Version 072019 
Page 2 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 319



SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

A. Submit to COMMERCE the reporting package specified in OMS Super Circular 2 CFR 200.501, 
reports required by the program-speclfrc audit gufde (if applicable), and a copy of any management 
letters Issued by the auditor. 

a. Submit to COMMERCE follow-up and developed corrective action plans for all audit findings. 

If the Contractor Is a subreclpient and expends less than $750,000 in federal awards from any and/or all 
sources In any fiscal year, the Contractor shall notify COMMERCE they did not meet the single audit 
requirement. 

The Contractor shall send all single audit documentation to sudltrevlew@commerce wa.qov. 

9. DEBARMENT 

A. Contractor, defined as the primary participant and It principals, certifies by signing these General Terms 
and Conditions that to the best of Its knowledge and belief that they-

i. Are not presently debarred, -suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency. 

Ii. Have not within a three-year period preceding this Contract. been convicted of or had a cMI 
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In connection 
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public or private agreement or transaction, 
violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, receiving 
stolen property, making false cf alms, or obstruction of justice: 

Iii. Are not presently Indicted for or otherwise criminaRy or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(Federal, State, or locaQ with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 
(1){b) of federal Executive Order 12549; and 

iv. Have not within a three-year period preceding the signing of lhis Contract had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause of default. 

B. Where the Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Contract. the Contractor shaU 
attach an explanation to this Contract. 

C. The Contractor agrees by signing this Contract that it shall not knowingly enter into any lower lier 
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by COMMERCE. 

0. The Contractor further agrees by signing this Contract that tt will include the clause titled "Certification 
Regarding Oebannent, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion•Lower Tier Covered 
Transaction." as follows, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions: 

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

i. 

ii. 

The lower tier Contractor certifies, by signing this Contract that neither it nor its principals is 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transactlon by any Federal department or agency. 
Where the lower tier Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements In this Contract, 
such contractor shaR attach an explanation to this Contract. 

E. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, lneliglble, lower tier covered transaction, 
person, primary covered transaction, principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used In this section, 
have the meanings set out In the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive 
Order 12549. You may contact COMMERCE for assistance in obtaining a copy of these regulations. 

10. LAWS 

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes, regulations, and pohcies of local, 
stale, and federal governments, as now or hereafter amended, including, but not limited to: 

State or Washington 
Department of Commerce 

loteragency Agreement Veislon 072019 
Page3 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 320



SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

United States Laws, Regulations and Circulars (Federal} 
Contractor shall comply with Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirement 
for Federal Award, 2 CFR 200, Subpart F -Audit Requirements. 

Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, including any future 
amendments to 2 CFR Part 200, and any successor or replacement Office of Management and Budget 
(0MB) Circular or regulation. 

Contractor shall comply with Omnibus Crime Control and Safe streets Act of 1968, Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and The 
Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations, 28 C.F.R. Part 42, Subparts C.D.E. and G, and 28 
C.F.R. Part 35 and 39. 

11. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 

In the event of an inconsistency in this Contract, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence 
in the following order: 

• Applicable federal and state of Washington statutes and regulations 

• Special Terms and Conditions 

• General Terms and Conditions 

• Attachment A - Scope of Work 

• Attachment B - Budget & Invoicing 

• Attachment C - A-19 Certification 

• Attachment D -A-19 Activity Report 

Slate afWasnlnglan 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement Version 072019 
Page4 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 321



1. DEFINITIONS 

GENERAL TERMS ANO CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

As used throughout this Contract. the following terms shall have the meaning set forth below: 

A. "Authorized Representative• shall mean the Director and/or the deslgnee authorized fn writing to 
act on the Director's behalf. 

8. "COMMERCE" shall mean the Department of Commerce. 

C ·contract· or "Agreement" means the entire written agreement between COMMERCE and the 
Contractor, including any attachments, documents, or materiafs incorporated by reference. E-mail 
or facsimile transmission of a signed copy of this contract shall be the same as delivery of an 
original. 

D. MContractor" shall mean the entity identified on the face sheet performing service(s) under this 
Contract, and shall include all employees and agents of the Contractor. 

E. "Personal Information· shall mean information identifiable to any person. including, but not limited 
lo, information that relates to a person's name, heatth, finances, education, business, use or receipt 
of governmental services or other activities, addresses, telephone numbers, social security 
numbers. driver license numbers, other identifying numbers, and any financial identifiers. 

F. ·state· shall mean the state of Washington. 

G "Subcontractor shall mean one not in the employment of the Contractor, who is performing all or 
part of those services under this Contract under a separate contract with the Contractor. The terms 
·subcontractor" and ·subcontractors· mean subcontractor(s) in any tier. 

2. ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN 

This Contract contains all lhe tenns and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No other 
understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Contract shall be deemed lo 
exist or to bind any of lhe parties hereto. 

3. AMENDMENTS 

Ttus Contract may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties_ Such amendments shat! not be 
binding unless they are in writing and signed by person net authorized lo bind each of the parties. 

4. ASSIGNMENT 

Neither this Contract, work thereunder nor any claim arising under this Contract. shall be transferred 
or assigned by the Contractor w[thout prior written consent of COMMERCE. 

5. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SAFEGUARDING OF INFORMATION 

A. "Confidential Information· as used in this section includes: 

i. All material provided to the Contractor by COMMERCE that is designated as ·confidential" by 
COMMERCE; 

ii. All material produced by the Contractor that 1s designated as ·confidential" by COMMERCE; 
and 

iii. All personal Information in the possession of the Contractor that may not be disclosed under 
state or federal law. 

8 . The Contractor shall comply with all state and federal laws related lo the use, sharing, transfer, 
sale, or disclosure of Confidential Information_ The Contractor shall use Confidential Information 
solely for the purposes of this Contract and shall not use. share, transfer. sell or disclose any 
Confidential Information to any third party except with the prior written consent cf COMMERCE or 
as may be required by law. The Contractor shall take all necessary steps to assure that Confidential 
lnrormation is safeguarded to prevent unauthorized use, sharing, transfer, sale or disclosure of 
Confidential Information or violation of any state or federal laws related thereto Upon request. the 
Contractor shall provide COMMERCE w;th fts policies and procedures on confidentiality 

State ol Washington 
Oeplll1ment or Commerce 

tnteragency Agreemerit Ver,,on 072019 
Page 5 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 322



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

COMMERCE may require changes to such policies and procedures as they apply lo this Contract 
whenever COMMERCE reasonably determines that changes are necessary to prevent 
unauthorized disclosures. The Contractor shall make the changes within the time period specified 
by COMMERCE. Upon request, the Contractor shall Immediately return to COMMERCE any 
Confidential lnrormatlon that COMMERCE reasonably determines has not been adequately 
protected by the Contractor against unauthorized disclosure. 

C. Unauthorized Use or Disclosure. The Contractor shall notify COMMERCE within frve (5) working 
days of any unauthorized use or disclosure of any confidential infonnatlon, and shall take necessary 
steps to mitigate the harmful effects of such use or disclosure. 

6. COPYRIGHT 

Unless otherwise provided, all Materials produced under this Contract shall be considered ''works for 
hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act and shall be owned by COMMERCE. COMMERCE shall be 
considered the author of such Materials. In the event the Materials are not considered "works for hire· 
under the U.S. Copyright laws, the Contractor hereby Irrevocably assigns all right, title, and Interest In 
all Materials, including all intellectual properly rights. moral rights, and rights of publicity to COMMERCE 
effective from the moment of creation of such Materials. 

"Materials" means all Items in any format and Includes, but Is not limited to, data, reports, documents, 
pamphlets, advertisements, books, magazines, surveys, studies. computer programs, films, tapes. 
and/or sound reproductions. ·ownership'" includes the right to copyright, patent, register and the ability 
to transfer these rights. 

For Materials that are delivered under the Contract, but that incorporate pre-existing materials not 
produced under the Contract, the Contractor hereby grants to COMMERCE a nonexclusive, royalty
free, Irrevocable lfcense (with rights to sublicense to others) In such Materials to translate, reproduce, 
distribute, prepare derivative works, publicly perform, and publicly display. The Contractor warrants and 
represents that the Contractor has all rights and permissions, including inlelledual property rights, 
moral rights and rights of publicity. necessary to grant such a license to COMMERCE. 

The Contractor shaU exert all reasonable effort to advise COMMERCE, at the time of delivery of 
Materials furnished under this Contract. of all known or potential invasions of privacy contained therein 
and of any portion of such document which was no! produced in the performance of this Contract. The 
Contractor shall provide COMMERCE with prompt written notice of each notice or claim of infringement 
received by the Contractor with respect to any Materials delivered under this Contract. COMMERCE 
shall have the right to modify or remove any restrictive markings placed upon the Materials by the 
Contractor. 

7. DISPUTES 

In the event that a dispute arises under this Agreement. it shall be determined by a Dispute Board in 
the following manner. Each party lo this Agreement shall appoint one member to the Dispute Board. 
The members so appointed shaH Jointly appoint an additional member lo the Dispute Soard. The 
Dispute Board shall review the facts, Agreement terms and apprscable statutes and rules and make a 
determination of the dispute. The Dispute Board shall thereafter decide the dispute with the majority 
prevamng. The detennination of the Dispute Board shall be final and binding on the parties hereto. As 
an alternative to this process. either of the parties may request intervention by the Governor, as 
provided by RCW 43.17 .330, in which event the Governor's process wm control. 

8. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 

This Contract shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of Washington, 
and any applicable federal laws, and the venue of any action brought hereunder shall be In the Superior 
Court for Thurston County. 

Slate of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnleragency Agreement Ver.slon 072019 
Pagee 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 323



9. INDEMNIFICATION 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

Each party shall be solely responsible for the acts of its employees, officers, and agents. 

10. UCENS!NG. ACCREDITATION AND REGISTRATION 
The Contractor shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal licensing, accreditation and 
registration requirements or standards necessary for the performance of this Contract. 

11. RECAPTURE 

In the event that the Contractor fails to perform this Contract in accordance with state laws, federal 
laws, and/or the provisions of this Contract, COMMERCE reserves the right to recapture funds in an 
amount to compensate COMMERCE for the noncompliance in addition to any other remedies available 
at law or in equity. 

Repayment by the Contractor of funds under this recapture provision shall occur within the time period 
specified by COMMERCE. In the alternative, COMMERCE may recapture such funds from payments 
due under this Contract. 

12. RECORDS MAINTENANCE 

The Contractor shall maintain books, records, documents, data and other evidence relating to this 
contract and performance of the services described herein, including but not limited to accounting 
procedures and practices that sufficiently and properly reftect all direct and indirect costs of any nature 
expended in the performance of this contract. 

The Contractor shall maintain records that identify, in its accounts, all federal awards received and 
expended and the federal programs under which they were received, by Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance (CFOA) title and number, award number and year, name of the federal agency, and name 
of the pass-through entity. 

The Contractor shall retain such records for a period of six (6) years following the date of final payment. 
At no addilionaj cost, these records, including materials generated under the contract, shall be subject 
at all reasonable times to inspection, review or audit by COMMERCE, personnel duly authorized by 
COMMERCE, the Office of the State Auditor, and federal.and state officials so authorized by law, 
regulation or agreement. 

If any litigation, claim or audit is started before the expiration of the six (6) year period, the records shall 
be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved. 

13. SAVINGS 

In the event funding from state, federal, or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way 
after the effective date of this Contract and prior to normal completion, COMMERCE may suspend or 
terminate the Contract under the ''Termination for Convenience" clause, without the ten calendar day 
notice requirement. In lieu of termination, the Contract may be amended to reflect the new funding 
limitations and conditions. 

14, SEVERABIUTY 

The provisions of this contract are intended to be severable. If any term or provision is illegal or invalid 
for any reason whatsoever, such illegality or invalidity shalt not affect the validity of the remainder of 
the contract 

15. SUBCONTRACTING 

The Contractor may only subcontract work contemplated under this Contract if it obtains the prior written 
approval of COMMERCE. 

If COMMERCE approves subcontracting, the Contractor shall maintam written procedures related to 
subcontracting, as well as copies of all subcontracts and records related to subcontracts. For cause, 
COMMERCE in writing may: (a) require the Contractor to amend its subcontracting procedures as they 

State of W11hlng1on 
OepaltmentofComme,ce 

lnteragl!fley Agreemenl Version 072019 
Page7 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 324



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

relate to this Contract, (b) prohibit the Contractor from subcontracting with a particular person or entity; 
or {c) require the Contractor to rescind or amend a subcontract 

Every subcontract shall bind the Subcontractor to fol!ov,,r all applicable terms of this Contracl Contractor 
shall incol'J)orate 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F audit requirements into all subcontracts. The Contractor 
is responsible to COMMERCE if the Subcontractor fails to comply with any applicable term or condition 
or this Contract. The Contractor shall appropriately monitor the activities of the Subcontractor lo assure 
fiscal conditions of this Contract. In no e11ent shall the existence of a subcontract operate to release or 
reduce the liabllity of the Contractor to COMMERCE for any breach in the performance of the 
Contractor's duties. 

Every subcontract shall Include a term that COMMERCE and the State of Washington are not liable for 
claims or damages arising from a Subcontractor's performance of the subcontract. 

16. SURVIVAL 

The temis, conditions. and warranties contained in this Contract that by their sense and context are 
intended to suNive the compret1on of the performance, canceltalion or termination of this Contract shall 
so survive. 

17. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 

fn the event COMMERCE determines the Contractor has failed to comply with the conditions of this 
contract in a timely manner, COMMERCE has the right to suspend or terminate this contract. Before 
suspending or terminating the contract, COMMERCE shall notify the Contractor in writing of the need 
to take corrective action. If corrective action is not taken within 30 calendar days, the contract may be 
terminated or suspended. 

In the event of termination or suspension, the Contractor shall be liable for damages as authorized by 
law including. but not limited to. any cost difference between the original contract and the replacement 
or cover contract and all administrative costs directly related to the replacement contract, e.g., cost of 
the competitive bidding, mailing. advertisfng and staff time 

COMMERCE reserves the right lo suspend all or part of the contract, withhold further payments. or 
prohibit the Contractor from incumng additional obligations of funds during investigation of the alleged 
compliance breach and pending corrective action by the Contractor or a decision by COMMERCE to 
terminate the contract. A termination shall be deemed a "Termination for Convenience· if it is 
determined that the Contractor: (1) was not in default, or (2) failure to perform was outside of his or her 
control, fault or negligence. 

The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided in this contract are not exclusive and are in addition 
to any other rights and remedies provided by Jaw. 

18. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 

Except as otherwise provided in this Contract. COMMERCE may, by ten (10) business days wrftten 
notice, beginning on the second day after the mailing , terminate this Contract, in whole or in part. If this 
Contract is so terminated, COMMERCE shall be liable only for payment required under the terms of 
this Contract for services rendered or goods delivered prior to the effective date of termination. 

19. TERMINATION PROCEDURES 

Upon termination of this contract, COMMERCE, in addition to any other rights provided in this contract, 
may require the Contractor to deliver to COMMERCE any property specifteally produced or acquired 
for lhe performance of such part of this contract as has been terminated. The provisions of the 
''Treatment of Assets" clause shall app y in such property transfer. 

COMMERCE shall pay to the Contractor the agreed upon price, if separately stated. for completed 
work and services accepted by COMMERCE, and the amount agreed upon by the Contractor and 
COMMERCE for (1) completed work and services for which no separate price is staled, (ii) partially 
completed work and services, {ht) other property or ser11ices that are accepted by COMMERCE, and 
(iv) the protection and preservation of property, unless the termination is for default, m which case the 
Authorized Representative shall determine the extent of the liabl!Jty of COMMERCE Failure to agree 

State or Washington 
Departmenl of Commerce 

lntaragency Agreement Version 072019 
Page !I 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 325



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

with such determination shall be a dispute within the meaning of the "Disputes· clause of this contracl 
COMMERCE may withhold from any amounts due the Contrador such sum as the Authorized 
Representative determines to be necessary to protect COMMERCE against potential loss or liability. 

The rights and remedies of COMMERCE provided In this section shall not be exclusive and are In 
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this contract 

After receipt of a notice of termination, and except as otherwise dlredecl by the Authorized 
Representative, the Contractor shall: 

A. Stop work under the contract on the date, and lo the extent specified, in the notice; 

B. Place no further orders or subconlracls for materials, services, or facilities except as may be 
necessary for completion of such portion of the work under the contract that is not terminated; 

C. Assign to COMMERCE, In the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by the Authorized 
Representative, all of the rights, title, and Interest of the Contractor under the orders and 
subcontracts so tem1inated, in which case COMMERCE has the right, at its discretion, to settle or 
pay any or all clalms arising out of the termination of such orders and subcontracts; 

C. Settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such tennination of orders and 
subcontracts, with the approval or ratification of the Authorized Representative to the extent the 
Authorized Representative may require. which approval or ratification shall be final for all the 
purposes of this clause; 

E. Transfer tiUe to COMMERCE and deliver in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by 
the Authorized Representative any property which, If the contract had been completed, would have 
been required to be furnished to COMMERCE; 

F. Complete performance of such part of the work as shall not have been tenninated by the Authorized 
Representative: and 

G. Take such action as may be necessary, or as the Authorized Representative may direct, for the 
protection and preservation of the property related to this contract, which is In the possession of 
the Contractor and in which the Authorized Representative has or may acquire an Interest. 

20. TREATMENT OF ASSETS 

Title to all property fumlshed by COMMERCE shalt remain in COMMERCE. Title to all property 
furnished by the Contractor, for the cost of which the Contractor is entllled to be reimbursed as a direct 
item of cost under this contract, shall pass to and vest in COMMERCE upon delivery of such property 
by the Contractor. Title to other property, the cost of whfch is reimbursable to the Contractor under this 
contract, shal1 pass to and vest in COMMERCE upon (i) Issuance for use of such property in the 
performance of this contract, or (ii} commencement of use of such property in the performance of this 
contract, or (in) reimbursement of the cost thereof by COMMERCE In whole or In part. whichever first 
occurs. 

A. Any property of COMMERCE furnished to the Contractor shall. unless otherwise provided herein 
or approved by COMMERCE, be used only for the performance of this contract. 

B. The Contractor shall be responsible for any loss or damage to property of COMMERCE that resuits 
from the negligence of the Contractor or which results from the failure on the part of the Contractor 
to maintain and administer that property in accordance with sound management practices. 

C. If any COMMERCE property is lost, destroyed or damaged, the Contractor shall Immediately notify 
COMMERCE and shall take all reasonable steps to protect the property from further damage. 

D. The Contractor shall surrender to COMMERCE au property of COMMERCE prior to settlement 
upon completion, termination or cancellation of this contract 

All reference to the Contractor under this clause shall also Include Contractor's employees, agents 
or Subcontractors. 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

lnleragenc:y Agreement Version 072019 
Page9 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 326



21. WAIVER 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

FEDERAL FUNDS 

Waiver or any default or breach shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent default or breach. 
Any waiver shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms or this Contract unless stated to be 
such in writing and signed by Authorized Representative of COMMERCE. 

Stille orwashlnglon 
Oepilftmeot or Commerce 

loter;igeocy Agreement Version onOt9 
Pilge 10 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 327



Attachment A 

Scope of Work 

This funding Is made available under section 601(a) of the Social Security Act, as added by section 5001 
of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act rcARES Acr) and Section V and VI of the 
CARES Act, for costs incurred due to the public heatth emergency with respect to the Coronavirus Disease 
2019 (COVID·19). Under the CARES Act, the Coronavirus Relief Fund may be used to cover costs that 

1. Are necessary expenditures Incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the 
Coronavlrus Disease 2019 (COVID-19); AND 

2. Are not accounted for In the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020 (the date 
of enactment of the CARES Act) for the State or government 

These funds may be used to reimburse for expenditures incurred during the period of March 1, 2020 thru 
Oct 31, 2020. F>lease note: In order to ensure all funds have been fully utilized prior to the US 
Treasury·s December 30, 2020 end date, the State of Washington must closeout contracts by October 
31, 2020. All final requests for reimbursement must be received no later than November 15, 2020 

Expenditures must be used for necessary actions taken to respond to the public health emergency. These 
may Include expenditures incurred to allow the local government to respond directly to the emergency, such 
as by addressing medical or public health needs, as well as expenditures incurred to respond to second· 
order effects of the emergency, such as by providing economic support to those suffering from employment 
or business Interruptions due to COVID· 19-related business closures. 

Funds may not be used to fill shortfalls in government revenue to cover expenditures that would not 
otherwise qualify under the statute. Although a broad range of uses is allowed, revenue replacement is not 
a permissible use of Fund payments. 

Payments may be used only to cover costs not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of 
March 27, 2020. A cost meets this requirement if either: 

1. The cost can not lawfully be funded using a line item, allotment, or allocation within that budget; OR 

2. The cost is for a substantially different use from any expected use of funds in such a line item, 
allotment. or allocation. 

The "most recently approved" budget is the enacted budget for the relevant fiscal period for the particular 
government. A cost is not considered to have been accounted for in a budget merely because it could be 
met using a budgetary stabilization fund. rainy day fund, or similar reserve account. 

Allowable expenditures Include. but are not limited to: 

1. Medical expenses such as: 
a. COVID·19·related expenses of pub~c hospitals, clinics, and similar facilities 
b. Expenses of establishing temporary public medical facilities and other measures to increase 

COVID· 19 treatment capacity, including related construction costs. 
c. Costs of providing COVID-19 testing, including serological testing. 
d. Emergency medical response expenses. including emergency medical transportation, related 

to COVI0-19. 
e Expenses for establishing and operating public telemedicine capabilities for COV10·19·related 

treatment 

2 Public health expenses such as: 

S1a1e orwas111ng1on 
Department of Commerce 

Jnteragency Agreement Version 07201 II 
Page f1 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 328



Attachment A 

a. Expenses for c;ommunfcation and enforcement by State, territorial, local, and Tribal 
governments of public heatth orders related to COVID-19. 

b. Expenses for acquisition and distribution of medical and protective supplies, including 
sanitizing products and personal protective equipment, for medical personnel, police off1eers, 
social workers, child protection services. and child welfare officers, direct service providers for 
older adults and individuals with disabilities in community settings, and other public health or 
safety workers in connection with the COVID-19 public health emergency. 

c. Expenses for dfsinfection of public areas and other facihties, e.g., nursing homes, in response 
to the COVID-19 public health emergency. 

d. Expenses for technical assistance to local authorities or other entities on mitigation of COVI0-
19-related threats to public health and safety. 

e. Expenses for public safety measures undertaken in response to COVID-19. 
f. Expenses for quarantining individuals. 

3. Payroll expenses for public safety. public health, heaith care, human services. and similar 
employees whose services are substantially dedicated to m1tigatfng or respond ng to the COVID-
19 public health emergency. 

4 Expenses of actions lo facilitate compliance with COVID-19-related public health measures. such 
as 
a. Expenses for food delivery to residents, including. for example, senior citizens and other 

vulnerable populations, to enabre compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 
b Expenses to facllftate distance learning, including technological improvements. in connection 

with school closings to enable compliance with COVI0-19 precautions. 
c. Expenses to improve lelework capabilities for public employees to enable compliance with 

COVID-19 public health precautions. 
d Expenses of providing paid sick and paid family and medical leave to public employees to 

enable comphance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 
e. COVID-19-related expenses of maintaining state prisons and county jails, including as relates 

to sanitation and improvement of social distancing measures. to enable compliance with 
COVID-19 public health precautions. 

f. Expenses for care for homeless populations provided to mitigate COVID-19 effects and enable 
compliance with COVID-19 public health precauticns. 

5 Expenses associated with the provision of economic support in connection with the COVID-19 
pubtic health emergency, such as 
a. Expenditures related to the provision of grants to small businesses to reimburse the costs of 

business interruption caused by required closures, 
b Expendttures related to a State, territorial, local, or Tribal govemment payroll support program. 
c. Unemployment insurance costs related to the COVID-19 pub~c health emergency if such costs 

wtll not be reimbursed by the federal government pursuant to the CARES Act or otherwise, 

6. Any other COVID-19-rerated expenses reasonabty necessary to the function of government that 
satisfy the Fund's elig ibility criteria. 

Slate or Washington 
Oepartment of Commerce 

lnteragenc:y Agreemenl Version 072019 
Page 12 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 329



Attachment B 

Budget & Invoicing 

The Contractor shall determine the appropriate budget and use of funds within the following 6 budget 
categories and their sub-categories: 

1. Medical 
2. Public Health 
3. Payroll 
4. Actions to Comply with Public Health Measures 
5. Economic Support 
6. Other Covid-19 Expenses 

The Contractor shall submit Invoice reimbursement requests to the Commerce Representative using the 
Commerce Contract Management System's (CMS) Online A-19 Portal. Each reimbursement request must 
Include: 

1. A-19 Certification form -An authorized party of the local government will certify each invoice (A 19) 
submitted for reimbursement and attest that all incurred expenditures meet the US Treasury 
Department's guidance: https;//home,treasur;y,govlsystemlfUes/136/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund
Guidance-for:§tate-Territorial-Local-and-Tribal-Governments. pdf 

2. A-19 Activity Report 
3. A detailed breakdown of the expenditures incurred within each applicable budget sub-category on 

the A-19 Activity Report. 

The A-19 Certification and Activity Report templates will be provided with the executed contract The 
documents are included in Attachment C and Attachment O for reference. 

Receipts and proof of payment for costs incurred do not need to be submitted with A-19s. All contractors 
are required to maintain e1ccounting records in accordance with state and federal laws. Records must be 
sufficient to demonstrate the funds have been used fn accordance with section 601 (d) of the Social Security 
Acl Commerce reserves the right to audit any costs submitted for reimbursement. The Contractor shall 
comply with Commerce A-19 audits and provide the appropriate records upon request. 

State ofWuhlnglon 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement Ve15ion 072D19 
Page 13 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 330



LOCAL GOVERNMENT CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUNDS 
CERTIFICATION 

I, SflRSTl @~.am the <TITU> of <LOCAlGOVEflN!'!'EffT>, and l certify that: 

1. I have the authority and approval from the soverning body on behalf of the local 

Government to request reimbur~ement from the Department of Commerce 
(Commercel per contr.1ct number ~COf!IMERC~CQNl'.RACTNUN!~ from the 
allocation of the Coronavirus Relief Fund ,n cruted in section SOOl of H.R.748, the 
Coronallirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (·CARES Act") for eligible 
expenditures included on the cone.ponding A-19 invoice voucher for report period 
':.~PORT _P£JUOD FROM A-19>. 

2. I understand th.at a; additional federal guidance becomes available, a contract 

amendment to the agreement between Commerce and the Local Government may 
become necessary. 

3. I understand Commerce will rely 011 this cenification as a material representation In 
processing this reimbursement. 

4. I certify the use of funds submined for reimbursement from the Coronavirus Relief 
Funds under this contract were used only to cover those costs 1hat: 
a. Are necessary e)(JJenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with 

respect to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVl().191; 

Attachment C 

b. ~not accounted lo r in the budget most recent ly approved as of March 27, 2020; 
and 

c. Were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on October 
31, 2020. ' 

5. I understand the use o f runds pursuant to this certification must adhere to official 

federal guidance issued or to be issued on what constitutes a necessary e~penditure. 
We have reviewed the guidance esrabllshed by U.S. Department or the Treasury• and 

certify costs meet the required suidance. Any funds expended by the Local Government 
or its subcontractor(s) in any manner that does not adhere to official federal guidance 
shall be returned to the State cl Washington. 

1 .... ·n,i .: 

i : u;U~.lr~~ .t ll .. :U> II' .l ~ 

State of Washington 
Department of Commerce 

interagency Agreemenl Version 072019 
Page 1-4 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 331



, 

Attachment C 

LOC-U. 00\.'EP~ CORON,\ VIRt.iS RELIEF fl,"NOS CERTIFlC.J. TI()II: 
P•~l ofl 

6. I understand the Local Government receiving funds pursuant to this cenlfiCitlon shall 
retain documentation of all uses of the funds, lndudins but not limited to Invoices , 
and/or sales receipts In a manner consistent with §200.333 Retention requirem,mu for 
records of 2 CFR Part 200 Uni{orm Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit RequiremenrI for Federal Awards !Uniform Guidance). Such documentation shall 
be produced to Commerce upon request and may be subject to audit by the State 
Auditor. 

7. I understand any funds provided pursuant to this certification cannot be used as a 
revenue ,eplacement for lower than expected ta:,c or other revenue collections. 

s. I understand funds received pursuant to this certification cannot be used for 
expenditures for which the Local Government has received any other emersency COVI0-
19 supplemental fundins (whether state, federal or private In nature) for that same 
expense. 

I certify that I have read the above certification and my .statements contained herein are true 
and correct to the best of my ltnowledse. 

Printed Name 

Title 

Sisnature 

Date: 

State of Washlflgton 
Department of Commerce 

lnteragency Agreement version ono1 a 
Page 15 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 332



Attachment 0 

INSTRUCTIONS; 

A completed CRF A-19 Cemficahon and Ac!Mty Report must be submrt:ed w11h each A· 19 reimbursement request 
The A-19 ActlVl1y Report must be subm,tted as an Eitcel spreadsheet, not a PDF You must also include a deta~ed 
breakdown of the individual e~pend1tures reported 1n Column F for each applicable sub-category included on the A-19 
Ac!Mty Report. 

Triere are 6 pnmary budget categories 
1. Medical Eipenses 
2. Public Heallh E11:penses 
3. PayroU expenses for public employees dedicated to COVID-19 
4. Expenses to tac11itate compl1anc e with COV10-19-measures 
5. Economic Supports 
6 Other COVID-19 Expenses 

Each primary budget cat~gcry includes sub-categones and prov,des an option to add ·other" sub-categones not 
hsted. 

Fellow the ~ow inst11.1ct1on:. when completing lhe A- 19 AclMty Report 

REPORT PERIOD - Enter the report penod into CI! 11 01 ol the A-19 Act.'Vity Report 
a This shoutd match the report penod entered on the corresponding A-19 
b Report period should include Mt.11YV to t.lt,l;YVYV i e 0Ji20, t.larch 2020. 03/2020 etc 

2 COLUMN E • En/er the total amount of atl previous re,mbursement requests subm1r.ed 10 Commerce ror each 
applicable sub ·t ategor1 

3 COLUMN F - Enter the total amount being requested in the current reimbursement request for each applicable 
sut-c ategory 

4 COLUMN H: USE OF FUNDS. You must include a general description of the use of the funds being requested 
for each applicable sut:-category Keep descnptions as concise as possible, but include adequate conteict to 
demonstrate how these funds helped address the COVI0-19 emergency If applicable, please consider 

a Prcvll!ing a bnef descnptson ol the specific ac!Mlles performed. 
b lden11fy1ng specific populallons served 
c ldenllfy1ng specific programs created or ut1hzed. 
d Including anv known or intended outcomes. results, or community impacts. 

5 OTHER SUB.CATEGORIES · Budget categones 1-5 include a placeholderto add an add1t10nal sub-category if 
necessary 

a Enter a Titlit for other e•penses added within lhe appropnate budgel category 
b Enter t1lles into Cells 010. 01:l o:n. 036, and O.tl 
c There 1s only one 'other· placehOlder 1n each budget category section Please combine mul!Jple "other'" sub

categories added to the same budget categot"/ 

6 OTHER BUDGET CATEGORIES· Budget category 6 1s where you should include any e!1glble eipend1tures 
that don't fall under budget categones 1-5 

a Enter a Title for these "other" expenses within budget category 6 
b Enter titles into Cells OJ.& • 048 
c There are only 5 entry fields ava,la!lle w,thin Budget Category 6 

Stale of Was"1ngton 
Department of Commerce 

ln!eragency Agreement version 072019 
Page 16 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 333



Attacflmant D 

,_._ 
~ ·::.;.=~~;"Ji.:,~.:;;;:;.:::: 
• Wl'RH~---~ .......... ~---=--H---"~!---..:.~-----------------~ .. ~~----··· ... ... " ,_ ' """"'"""·"'""'· ... ............... ... .. , !:::::-----------,-= ..... =,-1.!'---"-+!---'~+---....;.-+--------------------t 

a ...,.._._ ___ ,._,. =---..... ,,...---=----.---------------------i 
• ¥"!."""r ................................. 1+-----;~----+!-----il------------------t 
• M':1.~.-........................... . 
'''n'l'U1'1, ..................... , ... ...... .. 
• 1¥'f"lf"N!t ............ ...... - .......... f+----'-*"---=-H----"-l--------------------1 . .,,.,..,~ ................ _ ......... . 
' !!:1:.---------... t ..... t 

··--4 ~-°'l':'!"rtP."!!l'!'!'M'ffl\~ . ....... . 
• !Tl'-"""3"':f-...................... .. . . -..... ____ ._....,.. ... --··--· .... ,_ 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 334



EXHIBIT C 

Coronav1rus Relief Funds for Local Governments 
Eligible Cost Test 

-- ·-·- ·-- ------------·--------·-·---------- - ··----·-

Instructions: 

Each jurisdiction is charged with determining whether or not an expense is eligible based on the 
US Treasury's Gu•dance and as provided in their contract scope of work with Commerce. 

To assist jurisdictions with this determination, Commerce has developed an eligibility cost test. 
This test gives each jurisdiction full authority to make the appropriate call for each circumstance. 

If all responses for the particular incurred cost are Ntrue· for all five statements below, then a 
jurisdiction can feel confident the cost is eligible: 

D True D False 

D True D False 

' D True D False 

D True D False 

D True D False 

lt is the responsibility of each jurisdiction to define Nnecessary" or ·substantially different", 
giving the jurisdiction the authority and flexibility to make their own determination. 

Addltlonal consideration - The intent of these funds is to help jurisdictions cover the 
immg_diate im.pacts of the COVID-19 emergency. Both direct costs to the jurisdiction and costs 
to their communities. 

There are many possible eligible costs. Many costs are clearly eligible and others are in more 
grey areas. One could probably justify some of the "grey area" costs based on the test, but are 
they directly addressing the immediate impacts? Possibly not. 

In these situations it may be safer and more appropriate to utilize the funds in one of the many 
other eligible cost categories that more clearly meet the intent of the funds. Again, each 
jurisdiction has the full authority to make the final call based on their individual circumstances. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 335



ELIGIBLE COSTS 

Eligible costs based on the US Treasury's Guidance and as provided In the contract scope of work with 
Commerce are as follows: 

1. Medical expenses such as: 
• COVID-19-refated expenses of public hospitals, clinics, and similar facilities. 
• Expenses of establishing lemporary public medical facilities and other measures to tncrease COVID-

19 treatment capacity, including related construction costs. 
• Costs of providing COVID-19 testing, including serological testing. 
• Emergency medical response expenses, Including emergency medical transportatron. related to 

COVID-19. 
• Expenses for establishing and operating public telemedicine capabilities for COVID-19-related 

treatment 

2. Public health expenses such as: 
• Expenses for communication and enforcement by State, territorial , local, and Tribal 

governments of public health orders related to COVID-19, 
• Expenses for acquisition and distribution of medical and protective supplies, including sanitizing 

products and personal protective equipment, for medical personnel, police officers, social workers, child 
protection services, and child welfare officers, direct service providers for older adults and individuals 
with disabilities fn community settings, and other public health or safety workers in connection with the 
COVlD-19 public health emergency. 

• Expenses for disinfection of public areas and other facilities, e.g., nursing homes, in response lo the 
COVID-19 public health emergency. 

• Expenses for technical assistance to local authorities or other entities on mitigation of COVID-19-
related threats to public health and safety. 

• Expenses for public safety measures undertaken in response to COVID-19. 
• Expenses for quarantining individuals. 

3. Payroll expenses for public safety, public health, health care, human services. and similar employees whose 
services are substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency. 

4. Expenses of actions to facilitate compliance with COVID-19-related public health measures, such as: 
• Expenses for food delivery to residents, including, for example, senior citizens and other vulnerable 

populations, to enable compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 
• Expenses to facilitate distance learning, including technological improvements, in connection with school 

closings to enable compliance with COVID-19 precautions. 
• Expenses to improve telework capabilities for public employees to enable compliance with COV1D· 19 

public health precautions. 
• Expenses of providing paid sick and paid family and medical leave to public employees to enable 

compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 
• COVlD-19-related expenses of maintaining state prisons and county jails, including as relates to 

sanitation and improvement of social distancing measures, to enable compliance with COVID-19 public 
health precautions. 

• Expenses for care for homeless populations provided to mitigate COVID-19 effects and enable 
compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 

5. Expenses associated with the provision of economic support in connection with the COVID-19 public 
health emergency, such as: 
• Expenditures related to the provision of grants to small businesses to reimburse the costs of business 

interruption caused by required closures. 
• Expenditures related to a state, territorial. local, or Tribal government payroll support program. 
• Unemployment insurance costs related to the COVID-19 public health emergency if such costs will 

not be reimbursed by the federal government pursuant to the CARES Act or otherNise. 

6. Any other COVID-19-related expenses reasonably necessary to the function of government that satisfy the 
Fund's eligibility criteria. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 336



EXHIBIT D 
_.,41f~6 Washington State 
C Departrnent of 
•4 ~ Comn1e1~ce 

Coronavi rus 
Relief Funds for 
Local Governments 
Program Guidelines 

CARES Act Funds for Local Governments 
In Washington State 

Administered by the Department of Commerce 
Local Government Division 

P. 0 . 801< 42525 
Olympia, WA 98504-2525 

(Dated 5 -18·2020) 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 337



Contact Information 

Mailing/ Street Address. 

Washington State Department of Commerce 
Local Government Division 
PO Box42525 
1011 Plum Street SE 
Olympia, WA 98504-2525 

Program Leadership: 

Tony Hanson 
Deputy Assistant Director 
Community Capital Facilities Unit 
360-725-3005 
Tony.Hanson@commerce.wa.gov 

Commerce Leadership: 

Lisa Brown, Ph.D. 
Director 

Tina Hochwender 
Managing Director 
Community Assistance and Research Unit 
360-725-3087 
Tina.Hochwender@commerce.wa.gov 

Mark Barkley 
Assistant Director 
Local Government Division 

This publication is available in an alternative fonnat upon request. Events sponsored by 
Commerce are accessible to persons with disabilities. Accommodations may be arranged with 
a minimum of 10 working days' notice by calling 360-725-3087 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 338



Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) for Local Governments 
Program Guidelines 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

General Information ... ... ..... ........ ............................. .. ........ ... ..... .. 1 

1. Source of Funds ..... ...... ...... ............................... ...... ....... . 1 

2. Allocation Formula .. ... .... .... .. .................. .......... .. ...... ...... . 1 

3. Period of Performance ..... ....................................... ....... . 1 

4. Intended Use .. .... .......... ..... ... ............................. ........... ... 1 

5. Eligible Costs .. .. .......... .. ...... .... ........................................ 2 

6. Ineligible Costs ....... ... .. ... .... ... .................................. .. ..... 4 

7. Eligible Cost Test. .. .... .... ..... ....... ..................................... 4 

8. Cost Reimbursements ... .. ...... ..... .......... .. ...... .... .. ......... .... 5 

Process & Procedure to Obtain Funds ... ... ............. .................... 7 

1. Award Letter ..... .. .. .. .... .... .. ...... ...................... ..... ..... ... ...... 7 

2. Working Papers .......... ..... ..... .. ................... ....... ............... 7 

3. Contract ..................... ... ...... .. ............... ... ...... .... .. .. .......... 7 

4. Reimbursement Requests .. ............................. ... .... ... ...... 8 

5. A-19 Certification and Activity Report.. ......... ... ... .... ... ...... 8 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 339



General Information 

1. Source of Funds 

You have been awarded funds through the state's Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF). The funds are 
available under section 601 (a} of the Social Security Act, as added by section 5001 of the Coronavirus 
Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act"). 

Your grant is funded entirely through the federal stimulus funding under the CARES Act provided by the 
U.S. Department of Treasury (US Treasury) to the Governor via the Office of Financial Management 
(OFM). 

On April 27, 2020 Governor lnslee announced the award of nearly $300 million to local governments in 
CRF from the state's allocation of the CARES Act funding. 

2. Allocation Formula 

OFM developed the allocation methodology and determined the jurisdiction amounts. The allocations 
were based on 2019 population estimates for each jurisdiction. 

Funds will be provided to cities and counties with populations under 500,000 that were ineligible to 
receive direct funding under the CARES Act. Each county will receive a minimum distribution of 
$250,000 and each city will receive a minimum distribution of $25,000. 

Cities and counties with populations over 500,000 did not receive a direct allocation from the state. 
Instead these jurisdictions received a direct allocation from the US Treasury (i.e. city of Seattle, King 
Co .. Pierce Co., Snohomish Co .. etc.). 

For a complete list of cities and counties and their allocations, click here. 

3. Period of Performance 

The Coronavirus Relief Funds may only be used for costs incurred by local governments in response to 
the COVID-19 public health emergency during the period of March 1, 2020 thru October 31 , 2020. 

The US Treasury's Guidance provides an end date of December 30, 2020. This is the end date in whtch 
the state must have reimbursed all urecipients of the funds~ (grantees) their costs incurred in response to 
the COVJD-19 emergency. In order to allow time for Commerce to process final payments and conduct 
contract closeouts; and for OFM to fully utilize any unspent funds before they expire, expenditures are 
only being accepted on costs incurred through October 31, 2020. 

All final requests for reimbursement must be submitted no later than November 15, 2020. 

4. Intended Use 

Under the CARES Act, the Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) may be used to cover costs that: 

1. Are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the 
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19); AND 

2. Are NOT accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27. 2020 (the date 
of enactment of the CARES Act) for the State or local government. The umost recently 

1 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 340



approved" budget refers to the enacted budget for the relevant fiscal period for the particular 
government. A cost meets this requirement if: 

a) The cost cannot lawfully be funded using a line item, allotment, or allocation within that 
budget; OR 

b) The cost is for a substantially different use from any expected use of funds in such a 
line item, allotment, or allocation. 

3. A cost is not considered to have been accounted for in a budget merely because it could be 
met using a budgetary stabilization fund, rainy day fund, or similar reserve account. 

Funds may NOT be used to fill shortfalls in government revenue to cover expenditures that would not 
otherwise qualify under the statute. Although a broad range of uses is allowed, revenue replacement is 
not a permissible use of Fund payments. 

The use of these funds are very broad and flexible, and can be used for both operating and capital 
expenditures. 

lf funds are being used for capital expenditures such as acquisition of real property or construction I 
renovation costs, please contact us immediately. We will provide you with further information and 
guidance. Utilizing CRF for these purposes will require additional Federal and state provisions being 
applied to the project such as: 

• All projects must be reviewed under a Federal Section 106 review for archaeological and 
cultural resources if the project: acquires property, disturbs ground, and/or involves 
structures more than 50 years old. Grantees must submit documentation to the project 
manager when the review is complete. Section 106 supersedes the Governor's Executive 
Order 05-05 review. 

• Construction/ renovation projects may be required to meet high-performance building 
standards and document they have entered the state's LEED certification process. 

• Construction / renovation projects will be required to follow Federal Davis Bacon and state 
prevailing wage laws, rules, and regulations. 

Additionally, grantees must ensure all capital expenditures are only for costs incurred through the limited 
timeframe of March 1, 2020 thru October 31 , 2020. 

5. Eligible costs 

There are six (6) primary eligible cost categories. These cost categories and their eligible cost sub
categories are as follows; 

1. Medical expenses such as; 

• COVfD-19-related expenses of public hospitals, clinics, and similar facilities. 

• Expenses of establishing temporary public medical facilities and other measures to 
increase COVID-19 treatment capacity , including related construction costs. 

• Costs of providing COVID-19 testing , including serological testing . 

• Emergency medical response expenses, including emergency medical 
transportation, related to COVID-19. 

2 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 341



• Expenses for establishing and operating public telemedicine capabilities for 
COVI D-19-related treatment. 

2. Public health expenses such as: 

• Expenses for communication and enforcement by State, territorial, local, and 
Tribal governments of public health orders related to COVID-19. 

• Expenses for acquisition and distribution of medical and protective supplies, including 
sanitizing products and personal protective equipment, for medical personnel, police 
officers, social workers, child protection services, and child welfare officers, direct 
service providers for older adults and indivlduals with disabilities in community 
settings, and other public health or safety workers in connection with the COVID-19 
public health emergency. 

• Expenses for disinfection of public areas and other facilities, e.g., nursing homes, in 
response to the COVID-19 public health emergency. 

• Expenses for technical assistance to local authorities or other entities on 
mitigation of COVID-19-related threats to public health and safety. 

• Expenses for public safety measures undertaken In response to COVID-19. 

• Expenses for quarantining Individuals. 

3. Payroll expenses for public safety, public health, health care, human services, and similar 
employees whose services are substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the 
COVID-19 public health emergency. 

4. Expenses of actions to facilitate compliance with COVID-19-related public health 
measures, such as: 

• Expenses for food delivery to residents, including, for example, senior citizens and 
other vulnerable populations, to enable compliance with COVID-19 public health 
precautions. 

• Expenses to facilitate distance learning, including technological improvements, in 
connection with school closings to enable compliance with COVI0-19 precautions. 

• Expenses to improve telework capab[lities for public employees to enable 
compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 

• Expenses of providing paid sick and paid family and medical leave to public 
employees to enable compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 

• COVJD-19-related expenses of maintaining state prisons and county jails, including as 
relates to sanitation and improvement of social distancing measures, to enable 
compliance with COVJD-19 public health precautions. 

• Expenses for care for homeless populations provided to mitigate COVID-19 
effects and enable compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 

5. Expenses associated with the provision of economic support in connection with the 
COVID-19 public health emergency, such as: 

• Expenditures related to the provision of grants to small businesses to reimburse the 
costs of business interruption caused by required closures. 

• Expenditures related to a state, territorial, local, or Tribal government payroll 
support program. 

• Unemployment insurance costs related to the COVID-19 public health emergency 
if such costs will not be reimbursed by the federal government pursuant to the 
CARES Act or otherwise. 

3 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 342



6. Any other COVID-19-related expenses reasonably necessary to the function of government 
that satisfy the Fund's eligibility criteria. 

6. Ineligible costs 

Non-allowable expenditures include, but are not limited to: 

1. Expenses for the state share of Medicaid. 

2. Damages covered by insurance. 

3. Payroll or benefits expenses for employees whose work duties are not substantially dedicated 
to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency. 

4 . Expenses that have been or will be reimbursed under any federal program, such as the 
reimbursement by the federal government pursuant to the CARES Act of contributions by 
states to state unemployment funds. 

5. Reimbursement to donors for donated items or services. 

6. Workforce bonuses other than hazard pay or overtime. 

7. Severance pay. 

8. Legal settlements. 

7. Eligib le cost test 

Grantees are charged with determining whether or not an expense is eligible based on the US Treasury's 
Guidance and as provided in the grantee's contract scope of work with Commerce. 

To assist grantees with this determination, Commerce has developed an eligibility cost test. This test 
gives each grantee full authority to make the appropriate call for each circumstance. 

TEST - If all responses for the particular incurred cost are Mtrue" for all five statements below, then a 
jurisdiction can feel confident the cost is eligible: 

1. The expense is connected to the COVID-19 emergency. 

2. The expense is "necessary". 

3. The expense is not filling a short fall in government revenues. 

4. The expense is not funded thru another budget line item, allotment or allocation, as of March 
27, 2020. 

5. The expense wouldn't exist without COVID-19 OR would be for a "substantially different" 
purpose. 

It is the responsibility of each grantee to define Mnecessary" or Msubstantlally different", giving the 
grantee the authority and flexibility to make their own determination. 

Additlonal consideration - The intent of these funds is to help jurisdictions cover the immediate 
impacts of the COV\D-19 emergency. Both direct costs to the jurisdiction and costs to their communities. 
There are many possible eligible costs. 

Many costs are clearly elig ible and others are in more of a grey area. One could probably justify some of 
the "grey areaN costs based on the test. but are they directly addressing the immediate impacts? Possibly 
not. In these situations it may be safer and more appropriate to utilize the funds in one of the many other 
eligible cost categories that more clearly meet the intent of the funds. Again, each grantee has the full 
authority to make the final call based on their circumstances and justification. 

4 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 343



8. Cost r eimbursem ent 

Funds are available on a reimbursement basis only, and cannot be advanced under any circumstances. 
If funds are being used for the acquis ition of real property or construction/ renovation costs, please 
contact us immediately. Reimbursable costs are those that a Grantee has already incurred. We may only 
reimburse grantees for eligible costs incurred in response to the COVID-19 public health emergency 
during the period of March 1, 2020 thru October 31, 2020. 

Final Date of Reimbursements 

In order to ensure all awardees and their costs Incurred In response to the COVIQ..19 
emergency are paid out by December 30, 2020 per the US Treasury's Guidance, 

expenditures are only being accepted on costs incurred through October 31, 2020. 

All final requests for reimbursement must be submitted no later than November 15, 2020. 

Grantees will not be required to submit a proposed budget prior to contract execution. Grantees will have 
the discretion and flexibility to determine where these funds may best serve their communities. 

Each grantee will determine eligible costs to submit for reimbursement. For reporting purposes, 
expenditures must be tracked at the sub-category level for the six (6) primary eligible cost categories, as 
follows: 

1. Medical Expenses 
A. Public hospitals. clinics, and similar facilities 
B. Temporary public medical facilities & increased capacity 
C. COVID-19 testing, including serological testing 
D. Emergency medical response expenses 
E. Telemedicine capabilities 
F. Other 

2. Public Health Expenses 
A Communication and enforcement of public health measures 
B. Medical and protective supplies, including sanitation and PPE 
C. Disinfecting public areas and other facilities 
D. Technical assistance on COVID-19 threat mitigatron 
E. Public safety measures undertaken 
F. Quarantining individuals 
G. Other 

3. Payroll expenses for public employees dedicated to COVID-19 
A. Public Safety 
8. Public Health 
C. Health Care 
D. Human Services 
E. Economfc Development 
F. Other 

4. Expenses to facilftate compliance with COVID-19 measures 
A. Food access and delivery to residents 
B. Distance learning tied to school closings 
C. Telework capabilities of public employees 

s 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 344



D. Paid sick and paid family and medical leave to public employees 
E. COVID-19-related expenses in county jails 
F. Care and mitigation services for homeless populations 
G. Other 

5. Economic Supports 
A. Small Business Grants for business interruptions 
B. Payroll Support Programs 
C. Other 

6. Other COVID-19 Expenses 

No receipts or proof of payment for costs incurred will be required to be submitted to Commerce. 
Grantees are still required to maintain sufficient accounting records in accordance with state and federal 
laws. Monitoring visits may be scheduled. 

6 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 345



Process and Procedure to Obtain Funds 

1. Award Letter 

Commerce strives to administer funds expediently and with a minimum of red tape. We do so within the 
policies and procedures established by the US Treasury and state's Legislature, OFM, Commerce, and 
the Office of the Attorney General. Prior to receiving funds, a contract will need to be executed with 
Commerce. 

Award letters with instructions to initiate the contracting process will be emailed to each city and county 
receiving an allocation by no later than May 22"d. Emails to cities will be sent to mayors and any other 
contacts obtained with the assistance of the Association of Washington Cities. Emails to counties will be 
sent to the county commissioners and any other contacts obtained with the assistance of the Washington 
State Association of Counties. 

Included with the award letter will be: 

• CRF Program Guidelines 

• A draft contract template for review and to initiate the public process for authorization to 
execute once the final contract is available for execution 

• Working Papers 

2. Working papers 

Your grant award packet includes Working Papers. The Working Papers ask for basic informatfon 
needed to create a contract: 

• Contact information for the person who will administer the grant once the contract is 
signed. Grant documents and correspondence will be sent to this person. 

• Your Statewide Vendor Number (SWV#) 

• Your Federal Indirect Rate 

• Your fiscal year end date 

• Name and title for the person authorized by the jurisdiction to sign the contract 

Please complete and return the Workfng Papers to the Commerce project manager identified in the award 
letter as soon as possible, even if you do not plan to begin drawing your funds for a while. Your project 
manager will manage your contract until project completion. Feel free to give us a call if you have any 
questions as you fill out the form (see contact information on previous page). 

3. Contract 

Once the completed Working Papers have been received by the Commerce project manager identified fn 
the award letter, a contract will be prepared and sent to you for signature. Have the authorized 
representative sign the contract and then return a scanned pdf copy to your project manager. Then the 
project manager will route the contract for Commerce's signature. It generally takes two to four weeks to 
fully execute a contract. Once executed by Commerce a fully executed copy will be scanned and a pdf 
copy emailed to the jurisdiction and you will have access to your funds. 

Commerce is working to make the contracting process as quick and easy as possible. 

7 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 346



4. Rejmbursements 

This is a reimbursement-style grant. meaning no advance payments. Funds are available once a contract 
is executed. All grantees are required to set up a SWV number so funds may be sent electronically. 
Grantees have the flexibility to cash out their grant or draw down funds as frequently as once a month as 
long as you have incurred documented eligible costs in response to the COVID-19 public health 
emergency during the period of March 1, 2020 thru October 31 . 2020. All final requests for 
reimbursement must be submitted no later than November 15. 2020. 

Commerce has moved to electronic vouchering through their Contracts Management System (CMS) 
Online A-19 Portal. Requests for reimbursement must be submitted online through the CMS System by 
an individual authorized by the Grantee's organization. Online electronic vouchering provides for 
grantees to receive reimbursements as quickly as possible. Grantees with barriers to using the online A-
19 portal, may request an A-19 form from their Commerce project manager. 

Access to CMS is available through the Secure Access Washington (SAW) portal. You will need to 
create a SAW account if you do not already have one. Please find detailed instructions here: Office of 
Financial Management It may take up to three weeks after you submit this information for an electronic 
transfer account to be set up. We will automatically receive your SWV number from the office that sets 
them up. 

Once logged into SAW, add the Department of Commerce to your 'services' and submit an Online A-1 9 
External User Request form. Then Commerce will add you as a new external user in CMS; and the CMS 
system will generate and email a registration code to you to complete the CMS registration. 

For additional grantee support, refer to the Commerce Online A-19 Webpage for External Users . which 
includes SAW resources and the CMS manual for external users. 

The A-19 voucher must include a detailed breakdown of the costs incurred within each eligible budget 
category and the total reportable eligible expenses in response to the COVID-19 public health 
emergency. Accompanying with each voucher must be an executed A-19 certification and A-19 activity 
report. Incomplete or improperly prepared submissions may result in payment delays. After receipt and 
acceptance of a fully completed A-19 voucher submittal, grantees can expect electronic reimbursements 
within 7-10 days. 

No receipts or proof of payment for costs incurred will be required to be submitted to 
Commerce. Grantees are still required to maintain sufficient accounting records in accordance 

with state and federal laws; and are responsfble for maintaining clear and accurate program 
records, and making them accessible to Commerce and the State Auditor. 

Monitoring visits may be scheduled. 

5. A-19 Certification and Activity Report 

In order to receive reimbursement for eligible expenses incurred, each A-19 Voucher must include: 

1. A completed A-19 Certification: 

• An individual authorized to execute on behalf of the local government must certify by 
signfng this document under penalty of perjury that the items and costs hsted herein 
and on the accompanying Commerce A-19 Voucher are eligible charges for necessary 
expenditures incurred due to the COVID-19 public health emergency that were not 
previously accounted for in the most recent approved budget as of March 27, 2020, 

8 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 347



and that the funds were used in accordance with section 601 (a) of the Social Security 
Act, as added by section 5001 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 
Act rcARES Act"). 

2. A completed A-19 Activity Report (instructions included in document): 

• Must be submitted as an Excel spreadsheet, not a PDF. 
• Include a detailed breakdown of the individual eligible expenditures reported by each 

sub-category of the six (6) primary budget categories. Each primary budget category 
includes sub-categories and provides an option to add Mother" sub-categories. 

• Include the total amount of all previous reimbursement requests for each applicable 
sub-category. 

• Include the total amount of funds being requested in the current reimbursement 
request for each applicable sub-category. 

• Include a brief description of the use of the funds being requested for each applicable 
sub-category. Keep descriptions as concise as possible, but include adequate context 
to demonstrate how these funds addressed the COVID-19 emergency. If applicable, 
please consider: 

o Providing a brief description of the specific activities performed. 
o Identifying specific populations served. 
o Identifying specific programs created or utilized. 
o Including any known or intended outcomes, results, or community impacts. 

A certification and activity report must be completed and returned with each reimbursement voucher. 

After the contract is executed, you will receive additional instructions on how to submit 
electronic reimbursement requests with the A-19 certification and A--19 activity report. 

9 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 348



 
Amendment No. 1 to the Interlocal Agreement with Island County 
Coronavirus Relief Fund Grant   10/06/2020 
Page 1 of 1 
 

1st AMENDMENT TO THE INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND GRANT BETWEEN  

CITY OF OAK HARBOR AND ISLAND COUNTY 
 
THIS CONTRACT is between the CITY OF OAK HARBOR, a Washington State Municipal 
Corporation, hereinafter referred to as the “City”, and ISLAND COUNTY, a political 
subdivision of the State of Washington, hereinafter referred to as “COUNTY.”  The City and 
County shall be jointly referred to as the “Parties.”  
 
WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with Island County 
for Coronavirus Relief Grant Fund beginning July 31, 2020. 
 
WHEREAS, the City requires additional time to finalize processing CARES Grant funding to 
qualified applicants; and  
 
WHEREAS, the current Agreement expires October 30, 2020, per section seven (7) of the 
Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties mutually agree to extend the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for 
Coronavirus Relief Fund Grant for one (1) month under the same terms and conditions; with the 
understanding that the City will submit reimbursements as soon as possible to allow Island 
County time to process. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. Section 7, “Term of Agreement” on page 2 of the Agreement is hereby amended to 
reflect a termination date of November 30, 2020. 
 

2. All other provisions remain in full force and effect.   
 

Island County - Amendment 1 to Interlocal Agreement for Coronavirus Relief Grant - 10.2020 
EXECUTED this ___ day of October, 2020.  

CITY OF OAK HARBOR (CITY) ISLAND COUNTY (COUNTY)   
 
              
Robert Severns, Mayor    Print name:      
       
Attested by:       
       
Julie Lindsey, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
       
Grant Weed, City Attorney 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 349



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 9.a.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: 2021 LTAC 2% Grant Program

Referral to Council

FROM: Finance Department

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Motion to reaffirm the following three prior commitments for the 2021 Lodging Tax (2%) Fund
Budget of:

1) Multi-Year Grants for $157,000 (issued October 15, 2019 via Resolution 19-38)

2) $20,000 for the annual agreement with Joint Island County Tourism

3) 2020 Amendment #1 carryovers in the amount of $118,424 awarded in 2020 and delayed due to
COVID-19.

Motion to refer additional funding of Lodging Tax (2%) Funds in the amount of [select from
options below] in 2021 to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC) for review of single year
applications for those funds and their recommendation to City Council.

Option A: $0

Option B: $9,576

Option C: $78,000

Option D: $156,000

Option E: [amount determined by Council]

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 350



In 2019 for grant year 2020, the City Council set aside a total of $334,000 for use of the Lodging
Tax Funds. The funds committed via contract that were signed in 2019 included the new Multi-
Year Grants for Operations of Tourism-Related organizations or facilities that promote local
tourism, the annual grants, and the interlocal agreement with the Joint Island County Tourism
(ICT) for $20,000 annually. The amount allocated for Multi-Year grants, which spans a period of
three years, was in the amount of $169,000 for 2020. However, one multi-year recipient declined
the three-year contract of $12,000 annually. These recipients are required to report on how their
operations supported/increased local tourism annually. Annual Grants awarded for activities that
promote tourism and overnight stays in Oak Harbor totaled $165,000 for 2020. Due to the impacts
of the COVID-19 pandemic, on May 5, 2020, the City allowed the Finance Director to sign
Amendment #1 to allow contracts for the single year recipients with cancelled events to carry over
their funding to 2021—which extended the use of 2020 grant funds from 12/31/2020 to
12/31/2021. We anticipate that $118,424 of the $165,000 awarded for 2020 will be carried forward
and used in 2021.

Revenues in 2020 have been projected to decrease due to the pandemic. Is it estimated that the
City will receive $146,353 of the $265,200 initially budgeted for the year. This represents a
decrease of approximately $118,847 while committed expenditures remained the same. A history
of LTAC funds in the last four years has shown that revenues have been decreasing while
expenditures have increased, resulting in the use of fund balance to cover the differences. Ending
cash balances in the last few years have also showed a decline due to the use of fund balance to
cover revenue less expenditure deficits.

During prior LTAC discussions, the City Administrator presented three potential options for the
2021 LTAC Grant Year. The first was to not fund any new annual grants in 2021; the second was
to fund at 50% which is approximately $78,000; and the third was to fully fund the grants at
approximately $156,000.

Staff recommends the following for the grant period of 2021: In 2021, the $305,000
recommendation includes prior committed expenditures for Multi-Year Grants for $157,000; the
2020 Amendment #1 carryovers in the amount of $118,424; $20,000 for the agreement with Joint
ICT; and $9,576 for new single year applicants.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Historically, the Oak Harbor City Council recommends the LTAC award a fixed amount of
lodging tax funds to grant applicants for the following Lodging Tax Grant Program year.

OHMC Section 2.66.050 authorizes City Council to make the final decision with respect to
applicants receiving grants from the lodging tax fund.

Pursuant to OHMC Section 2.66.040 and RCW 67.28.1817(2), City Council must refer any
changes to the LTAC for consideration at least 45 days prior to taking action on any such change.

FISCAL IMPACT

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 351



If City Council agrees to staff’s recommendation of prior year carryover and Option B, the City
would award $305,000. The funding is derived from $165,112 of 2021 estimated revenues and the
remaining committed items will be funded through Fund Balance. Furthermore, known
commitments in 2022 include Multi-Year grants for $157,000 and the $20,000 to Joint ICT. After
accounting for all known commitments through 2022, this would leave an Estimated (Spendable
and Unrestricted) Fund Balance of $347,739 at the end of 2021.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
City Council Meeting – May 5, 2020

City Council Meeting – September 1, 2020

City Council Meeting – September 15, 2020

ATTACHMENTS
1. LTAC Estimated Cash Available for 2021
2. LTAC Revenue and Expenditure Trend
3. LTAC Tracking for 2020 Grants
4. LTAC Amendment #1 Carryforward to 2021
5. LTAC Multi-year Contract (blank)
6. LTAC Single-year Contract (blank)
7. LTAC Contract Amendment #1 (blank)

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 352

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601597298x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601597283x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601597267x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601597242x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601597219x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601597193x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601597177x_at.pdf


LTAC Estimated Cash Available for 2021 

2020 Beginning  Cash Balance 713,094.93         

2019 Revenue Accrual (Nov & Dec 2019) 28,754.65           

741,849.58$      

2020 Anticipated Revenue 146,352.87$       $265,200 BUDGETED

* Projected Decrease of ‐118,847.13

Budgeted Expenditures

2020 Budgeted Annual Grants 165,000.00          ** (Amendment #1)

2020 Portion of PBY Memorial 27,000.00           

2020 Portion of Chamber 130,000.00         

2020 ICT 20,000.00           

342,000.00$      

Estimated Ending Cash 12/31/2020 546,202.45$      

2021 Projected Revenue: 165,112.42         

2022 Projected Revenue: (Informational) 160,000.00 

Known Committed Items 2021 ‐ 2022:

MULTI‐YEAR Grants 314,000.00$      

ICT MOU 40,000.00           

Potential Commitments for 2021: 9,576.00             

(Represents new single year awards)

Potential Commitments for 2022: (Informational) 165,000.00 

Estimated Ending Cash 12/31/2021 347,738.87$      

*** Estimated Ending Cash 12/31/2022: (Informational) 342,738.87 

* We projected a decrease of $118,847 in budgeted revenues for 2020 due to COVID.

CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WA

FUND #116 LODGING TAX (2%) FUND

** Amendment #1 allowed single year applicants to carry forward unspent LTAC funds in to 2021 due to 

COVID pandemic and canceled events.

(60% of 2019 Actual 

Revenues)

*** Estimated ending cash at 12/31/2022 is estimated and is informational only. This projected amount 

represents ending cash after projected revenues, projected new expenditures and all known committed 

items through 2022.

Attachment #1

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 353



* 2020 (P) Includes amounts projected revenues and expenses. Expenses do not include amounts carried over to 2021 due to Amendment #1.

* 2020 (P) Includes 2020 projected revenues and expenses after all 2020 comitted items.

2017 2018 2019 * 2020 (P)

TOTAL REVENUES 329,251.10 292,649.25 283,099.85 146,352.86

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 268,660.08 269,550.00 292,513.12 237,884.00

0.00

50,000.00

100,000.00

150,000.00

200,000.00

250,000.00

300,000.00

350,000.00

LTAC Revenue and Expenditure Trend ‐ 2017‐2020(P)

730,856.16
762,535.18 741,849.58

546,202.45 

0.00

100,000.00

200,000.00

300,000.00

400,000.00

500,000.00

600,000.00

700,000.00

800,000.00

900,000.00

2017 2018 2019 *2020 (P)

ENDING CASH BALANCES ‐ 2017‐2020(P)

Attachment #2

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 354



Charge to #116.00.557.30.4900

TOTAL
Vendor # Awarded Expended Remaining Notes Funds Requested

1 0008018 12,000.00$       $0.00 ‐$                  Declined Contract 55,000.00$             

2 0001218 27,000.00$       $20,250.00 6,750.00$         MULTI YEAR 27,046.00$             

3 0000345 130,000.00$     $97,499.97 32,500.03$      MULTI YEAR 130,000.00$           

4 0000345 51,000.00$       $27,076.47 23,923.53$      Amendment #1 51,200.00$             

5 0000345 13,700.00$       $0.00 13,700.00$      Amendment #1 13,700.00$             

6 0000345 6,150.00$         $0.00 6,150.00$         Amendment #1 6,150.00$               

7 0005563 12,000.00$       $0.00 12,000.00$      Amendment #1 15,000.00$             

8 0008626 10,000.00$       $0.00 10,000.00$      Amendment #1 20,000.00$             

9 0007963 9,000.00$         $0.00 9,000.00$         Amendment #1 12,000.00$             

10 0008818 4,500.00$         $4,044.88 455.12$            CLOSED 4,500.00$               

11 0005563 15,000.00$       $15,000.00 ‐$                  CLOSED 17,000.00$             

12 0006863 42,000.00$       $0.00 42,000.00$      Amendment #1 44,000.00$             

13 1,650.00$         $0.00 1,650.00$         Amendment #1 2,000.00$               

334,000.00$     $163,871.32 158,128.68 As of 9.24.20 397,596.00$           

City of Oak Harbor ‐ Marathon

Totals

City of Oak Harbor ‐ Parks

Oak Harbor Music Festival

PBY Memorial Foundation (Multi‐Year)

Friends of the Oak Harbor Library

Craig McKenzie Team Foundation

Fidalgo Ave. Merchants Association

Island County Master Gardener

Chamber Operations (Multi‐Year)

2020 2% Grant Program
Resolution # 19‐38
Total awarded in 2019 for 2020 Grant 
Year:  $334,000

Chamber Major Shuttle Service

Chamber Marketing

Chamber Boom Over the Bay

2% Joint Advisory Board (Multi‐Year)

Attachment #3

**Not included in the above amounts is the ICT Interlocal Agreement annual payment of $20,000.
     As of 9.24.2020, $15,000 has been expended.

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 355



Amendment #1 Carryforward in to 2021 

1 Chamber Marketing 23,924.00            

2 Chamber Boom Over the Bay 13,700.00            

3 Chamber Major Shuttle Service 6,150.00 

4 City of Oak Harbor ‐ Marathon 12,000.00            

5 Craig McKenzie Team Foundation 10,000.00            

6 Fidalgo Ave. Merchants Association 9,000.00 

7 Oak Harbor Music Festival 42,000.00            

8 Friends of the Oak Harbor Library 1,650.00 

118,424.00          

9 Island County Master Gardener SPENT

10 City of Oak Harbor ‐ Parks SPENT

Attachment #4

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 356



2020-2022 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Multi-Year Grant Contact 
Page 1 of 13 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR AND 
[INSERT RECIPIENT NAME] 

FOR CONTRACTED SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between the City of Oak  
Harbor, a Washington State municipal corporation (“City”), and [INSERT RECIPIENT NAME], 
a Washington [INSERT BUSINESS ENTITY] ("Contractor").  

WHEREAS, the City collects a 2% tax on the charge for furnishing lodging by a hotel, rooming 
house, tourist court, motel or trailer camp, and  

WHEREAS, the use of these tax revenues is restricted by RCW 67.28.180 to the certain explicit 
uses, including the promotion of local tourism, and the operation of tourism-related facilities; 
and  

WHEREAS, The City, after the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee duly advertised, reviewed 
and recommended lodging tax funded activities, wishes to have certain services performed 
hereinafter set forth requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities; and 

WHEREAS, The Contractor represents that it is qualified and possesses sufficient skills and the 
necessary capabilities, including technical and professional expertise where required, to perform 
the services set forth in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performances 
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the City with Contracted Services regarding the use 
of 2% tax revenues for the promotion of local tourism and the operation of tourism-related 
facilities as recommended by the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee and confirmed by the 
City Council as described in Article II. The general terms and conditions of the relationship 
between the City and the Contractor are specified in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Scope of Services is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this 
reference (“Scope of Services”).  All services and materials necessary to accomplish the tasks 
outlined in the Scope of Services shall be provided by the Contractor unless noted otherwise in 
the Scope of Services or this Agreement.  All such services shall be provided in accordance with 
the standards of the Contractor’s profession. 

Attachment #5* Highlighted text below are differences between Single Year Contract

Blank Multi-Year Contract

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 357



2020-2022 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Multi-Year Grant Contract  
Page 2 of 13 
 

 
ARTICLE III.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONTRACTOR 

 
III.1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE.  The Contractor shall accept minor changes, 

amendments, or revision in the detail of the Scope of Services as may be required by the 
City when such changes will not have any impact on the service costs or proposed 
delivery schedule.  Extra work, if any, involving substantial changes and/or changes in 
cost or schedules will be addressed as follows: 

 
 Extra Work.  The City may desire to have the Contractor perform work or render 

services in connection with each project in addition to or other than work provided for by 
the expressed intent of the Scope of Services in the scope of services.  Such work will be 
considered as extra work and will be specified in a written supplement to the scope of 
services, to be signed by both parties, which will set forth the nature and the scope 
thereof.  All proposals for extra work or services shall be prepared by the Contractor at 
no cost to the City.  Work under a supplemental agreement shall not proceed until 
executed in writing by the parties. 

 
III.2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS.  The work product and all documents 

produced under this Agreement shall be furnished by the Contractor to the City, and upon 
completion of the work shall become the property of the City, except that the Contractor 
may retain one copy of the work product and documents for its records.  The Contractor 
will be responsible for the accuracy of the work, even though the work has been accepted 
by the City. 

 
 In the event that the Contractor shall default on this Agreement or in the event that this 

Agreement shall be terminated prior to its completion as herein provided, all work 
product of the Contractor, along with a summary of work as of the date of default or 
termination, shall become the property of the City.  Upon request, the Contractor shall 
tender the work product and summary to the City.  Tender of said work product shall be a 
prerequisite to final payment under this Agreement.  The summary of work done shall be 
prepared at no additional cost to the City. 

 
 The Contractor will not be held liable for reuse of documents produced under this 

Agreement or modifications thereof for any purpose other than those authorized under 
this Agreement without the written authorization of Contractor. 

 
III.3 TERM.  The term of this Agreement shall be for a period covering three (3) calendar 

years commencing on January 1, 2020 and shall terminate at 11:59PM, on December 31, 
2022.   

 
III.4 NONASSIGNABLE.  The services to be provided by the Contractor shall not be 

assigned or subcontracted without the express written consent of the City. 
 
 
 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 358



2020-2022 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Multi-Year Grant Contract  
Page 3 of 13 
 

III.5 EMPLOYMENT.  Any and all employees of the Contractor, while engaged in the 
performance of any work or services required by the Contractor under this Agreement, 
shall be considered employees of the Contractor only and not of the City, and any and all 
claims that may or might arise under the Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any  

 said employees while so engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a 
consequence of any negligent act or omission on the part of the Contractor or its 
employees while so engaged in any of the work or services provided herein shall be the 
sole obligation of the Contractor. 

 
III.6 INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS.  The Contractor shall defend, indemnify 

and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and 
all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or 
resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Contractor in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 

 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to 
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to 
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of 
the Contractor and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the 
Contractor's liability, including the duty and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the 
extent of the Contractor's negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood 
that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Contractor's waiver of immunity 
under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. 
This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  The provisions of this section 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
III.7 INSURANCE.   
 

a. Insurance Term.  The Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of 
the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives or employees. 

 
b. No Limitation.  The Contractor's maintenance of insurance as required by the 

agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Contractor to the 
coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City's recourse to any 
remedy available at law or in equity. 

 
c. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  The Contractor shall obtain insurance of the 

types and coverage described below: 
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and 
leased vehicles.  Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability 
coverage. 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 359



2020-2022 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Multi-Year Grant Contract  
Page 4 of 13 
 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad as ISO 
occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, stop-gap independent contractors and personal injury and 
advertising injury.  The City shall be named as an additional insured under  

            the Contractor's Commercial General Liability insurance policy with 
respect to the work performed for the City using an additional insured 
endorsement at least as broad as ISO CG 20 26. 

 
3. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance 

laws of the State of Washington. 
 
4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Contractor's profession. 

 
d. Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  The Contractor shall maintain the following 

insurance limits: 
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for 
bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no 

less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 
 
3. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with the limits no less 

than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 
 

e. Other Insurance Provision.  The Contractor's Automobile Liability and 
Commercial General Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 
contain that they shall be primary insurance as respect to the City.  Any insurance, 
self-insurance, or self-insured pool coverage maintained by the City shall be 
excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
f. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 

A.M. Best rating of not less than A: VII. 
 
g. Verification of Coverage.  The Contractor shall furnish the City with original 

certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements including, but not 
necessarily limited to, the additional insured endorsement evidencing the 
insurance requirements of the Contractor before commencement of the work. 

 
h.   Notice of Cancellation.  The Contractor shall provide the City with written notice 

of any policy cancellation within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 
 
 
 
 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 360



2020-2022 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Multi-Year Grant Contract  
Page 5 of 13 
 

i. Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Failure on the part of the Contractor to maintain 
the insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of contract, upon 
which the City may, after giving five business days' notice to the Contractor to 
correct the breach, immediately terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure 
or renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, 
with any sums so expended to be repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole 
discretion of the City, offset against funds due the Contractor from the City. 

 
 
j. Public Entity Full Availability of Contractor Limits.  If the Contractor 

maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the City shall 
be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or 
Umbrella liability maintained by the Contractor, irrespective of whether such 
limits maintained by the Contractor are greater than those required by this 
contract or whether any certificate of insurance furnished to the City evidences 
limits of liability lower than those maintained by the Contractor. 

 
III.8 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL 

OPPORTUNITY LEGISLATION.  The Contractor agrees to comply with equal 
opportunity employment and not to discriminate against client, employee, or applicant for 
employment or for services because of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, marital 
status, sex, sexual orientation, age or handicap except for a bona fide occupational 
qualification with regard, but not limited to, the following:  employment upgrading; 
demotion or transfer; recruitment or any recruitment advertising; layoff or terminations; 
rates of pay or other forms of compensation; selection for training, rendition of services.  
The Contractor further agrees to maintain (as appropriate) notices, posted in conspicuous 
places, setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.  The Contractor 
understands and agrees that if it violates this nondiscrimination provision, this Agreement 
may be terminated by the City, and further that the Contractor will be barred from 
performing any services for the City now or in the future, unless a showing is made 
satisfactory to the City that discriminatory practices have been terminated and that 
recurrence of such action is unlikely. 

 
III.9 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES.  During the performance of this Agreement, 

the Contractor agrees to comply with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair employment 
practices. 

 
III.10 LEGAL RELATIONS.  The Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local 

laws and ordinances applicable to work to be done under this Agreement.  The Contractor 
represents that the firm and all employees assigned to work on any City project are in full 
compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing activities to be 
performed and that all personnel to be assigned to the work required under this 
Agreement are fully qualified and properly licensed to perform the work to which they 
will be assigned.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with 
the laws of Washington.  Venue for any litigation commenced relating to this Agreement 
shall be in Island County Superior Court. 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 361



2020-2022 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Multi-Year Grant Contract  
Page 6 of 13 
 

III.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 
 

a. The Contractor and the City understand and expressly agree that the Contractor is 
an independent contractor in the performance of each and every part of this 
Agreement.  The Contractor expressly represents, warrants and agrees that his 
status as an independent contractor in the performance of the work and services 
required under this Agreement is consistent with and meets the six-part 
independent contractor test set forth in RCW 51.08.195 or as hereafter amended.   
The Contractor, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for 
carrying out and accomplishing the services required under this Agreement.  The 
Contractor shall make no claim of City employment nor shall claim any related 
employment benefits, social security, and/or retirement benefits. 

 
b. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for paying all taxes, deductions, and 

assessments, including but not limited to federal income tax, FICA, social security 
tax, assessments for unemployment and industrial injury, and other deductions 
from income which may be required by law or assessed against either party as a 
result of this Agreement.  In the event the City is assessed a tax or assessment as a 
result of this Agreement, the Contractor shall pay the same before it becomes due. 

 
c. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent 

contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Contractor performs 
hereunder. 

 
d. Prior to commencement of work, the Contractor shall obtain a business license 

from the City. 
 

III.12 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  The Contractor agrees to and shall notify the City of 
any potential conflicts of interest in Contractor’s client base and shall obtain written 
permission from the City prior to providing services to third parties where a conflict or 
potential conflict of interest is apparent. If the City determines in its sole discretion that a 
conflict is irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement. 

 
III.13 CITY CONFIDENCES.  The Contractor agrees to and will keep in strict confidence, 

and will not disclose, communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior 
written consent from the City in each instance, the confidences of the City or any 
information regarding the City or services provided to the City. 

 
III.14 SUBCONTRACTORS. 

 
a. The Contractor shall be responsible for all work performed by subcontractors 

pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
 
 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 362



2020-2022 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Multi-Year Grant Contract  
Page 7 of 13 
 

b. The Contractor must verify that any subcontractors they directly hire meet the 
responsibility criteria for the project. Verification that a subcontractor has proper 
license and bonding, if required by statute, must be included in the verification 
process. The Contractor will use the following Subcontractors or as set forth in 
Exhibit ____: 

            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
 
b. The Contractor may not substitute or add subcontractors without the written 

approval of the City. 
 

d. All Subcontractors shall have the same insurance coverages and limits as set forth 
in this Agreement and the Contractor shall provide verification of said insurance 
coverage. 

 
ARTICLE IV.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 

 
IV.1 PAYMENTS. 
 

a. The Contractor shall be paid by the City for services rendered under this 
Agreement as described in the Scope of Services and as provided in this section.  
In no event shall the compensation paid to Contractor under this Agreement 
exceed XXXX Dollars ($00.00) annually, for each calendar year covered in this 
contract without the written agreement of the Contractor and the City.  Such 
payment shall be full compensation for work performed and services rendered and 
for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete 
the work.  In the event the City elects to expand the scope of services from that set 
forth in Exhibit "A", the City shall pay Contractor a mutually agreed amount. 

 
b. The Contractor, upon the City's receipt of an invoice and signed Exhibit C, shall 

request and will receive a monthly payment not to exceed 1/12 of the total annual 
award. The invoice will contain a description of the type of services provided by 
the Contractor. At least once annually, the Contractor will provide the City of Oak 
Harbor with an annual Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss statement clearly showing 
the financial operations of the Contractor and demonstrate how the grant was used 
to support the activities described in the grant award. 

 
Address the Invoice and Reimbursement Requests to: 

 
City of Oak Harbor 

     ATTN: Finance Department 
     865 SE Barrington Drive 
     Oak Harbor, WA  98277 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 363



2020-2022 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Multi-Year Grant Contract  
Page 8 of 13 
 

c. Monthly invoices and signed Exhibit C’s submitted must be for items or services 
directly related to your annual operations for each calendar year.  
 

d. All payments shall be subject to adjustment for any amounts, upon audit or 
otherwise, determined to have been improperly invoiced. 

 
e. The City will pay timely submitted and approved invoices received before the 

20th of each month within thirty (30) days of receipt. 
 
IV.2 CITY APPROVAL.  Notwithstanding the Contractor's status as an independent 

contractor, results of the work performed pursuant to this Agreement must meet the 
approval of the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been 
completed in compliance with the Scope of Services and City requirements. 

 
IV.3 MAINTENANCE/INSPECTION OF RECORDS.  The Contractor shall maintain all 

books, records, documents and other evidence pertaining to the costs and expenses 
allowable under this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practices.  All such books and records required to be maintained by this Agreement shall 
be subject to inspection and audit by representatives of the City and/or the Washington 
State Auditor at all reasonable times, and the Contractor shall afford the proper facilities 
for such inspection and audit.  Representatives of the City and/or the Washington State 
Auditor may copy such books, accounts and records where necessary to conduct or 
document an audit.  The Contractor shall preserve and make available all such books of 
account and records for a period of six (6) years after final payment under this 
Agreement.  In the event that any audit or inspection identifies any discrepancy in such 
financial records, the Contractor shall provide the City with appropriate clarification 
and/or financial adjustments within thirty (30) calendar days of notification of the 
discrepancy. Failure to provide reasonable documentation upon request by the City 
and/or the State Auditor’s Office will result in the repayment of LTAC grant funding 
back to the City. 

 
 

ARTICLE V.  GENERAL 
 
V.1 NOTICES.  Notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: 
  

 City of Oak Harbor  
 ATTN: Finance Department 
 865 SE Barrington Drive 
 Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 364



2020-2022 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Multi-Year Grant Contract  
Page 9 of 13 
 

Notices to the Contractor shall be sent to the following address: 
 

[Business Name] 
[Contact Name & Title] 
[Mailing Address] 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

  
 Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) days after deposit of written 

notice in the U.S. mail with proper postage and address. 
 
V.2 TERMINATION.  The right is reserved by the City to terminate this Agreement in 

whole or in part at any time upon ten (10) calendar days' written notice to the Contractor. 
 
 If this Agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City for its convenience, the City 

shall pay the Contractor for satisfactory services performed through the date of 
termination in accordance with payment provisions of Section IV.1. 

 
V.3 DISPUTES.  The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation and 

compromise, any unresolved dispute arising under this Agreement may be resolved by a 
mutually agreed-upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 

 
V.4 EXTENT OF AGREEMENT/MODIFICATION.  This Agreement, together with 

attachments or addenda, represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the 
parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either 
written or oral.  This Agreement may be amended, modified or added to only by written 
instrument properly signed by both parties. 

 
V.5 SEVERABILITY 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this 
Agreement to be illegal or invalid, in whole or in part, the validity of the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties’ rights and obligations 
shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid. 

b. If any provision of this Agreement is in direct conflict with any statutory 
provision of the State of Washington, that provision which may conflict shall be 
deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may conflict, and shall be 
deemed modified to conform to such statutory provision. 

V.6 NONWAIVER.  A waiver by either party hereto of a breach by the other party hereto of 
any covenant or condition of this Agreement shall not impair the right of the party not in 
default to avail itself of any subsequent breach thereof.  Leniency, delay or failure of 
either party to insist upon strict performance of any agreement, covenant or condition of 
this Agreement, or to exercise any right herein given in any one or more instances, shall 
not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such agreement, covenant, 
condition or right. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 365



2020-2022 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Multi-Year Grant Contract  
Page 10 of 13 
 

V.7 FAIR MEANING.  The terms of this Agreement shall be given their fair meaning and 
shall not be construed in favor of or against either party hereto because of authorship.  
This Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted by both of the parties. 

V.8 GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

V.9 VENUE.  The venue for any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall lie in the 
Superior Court of Washington for Island County, Washington. 

V.10 COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the 
same Agreement. 

V.11  AUTHORITY TO BIND PARTIES AND ENTER INTO AGREEMENT.  The 
undersigned represent that they have full authority to enter into this Agreement and to 
bind the parties for and on behalf of the legal entities set forth below. 

 
 
 
DATED this 2nd day of December, 2019. 
 
 
 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR  [INSERT RECIPIENT NAME] 
 
 
By______________________________  By _______________________________ 
Patricia Soule, Finance Director     [Insert Recipient Name & Title] 
        
     
     
Approved as to form: 
 
______________________________ 
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
 
Attest:   
 
      
Carla Brown, City Clerk 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 366



2020-2022 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Multi-Year Grant Contract  
Page 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

The City will provide such assistance and guidance as may be required, in the City’s sole discretion, to support the 
objectives set forth in the Scope of Work and will provide funding for the services and activities as set forth below. 
 
The hotel/motel tax award for the Contractor is [$ AMOUNT] annually for 2020, 2021, & 2022. 

Uses of the funds are as follows: 

 

[INSERT AMOUNT], annually – To be used for: 

‐ Developing strategies to expand tourism;  
‐ Advertising, publicizing, or otherwise distributing information for the purpose of attracting and 

welcoming tourists; 
‐ Supporting the operations of a tourism‐related facility owned or operated by a nonprofit 

organization or municipality  
 
 

Post‐Event Reporting 
 
The Contractor shall complete a Post Event/Activity Information Report, attached as Exhibit “B”, for the contract 
year.  The annual report is a requirement established by the 2013 Washington State Legislature. The report shall 
be provided to the CITY immediately after the event, festival or activity, but due no later than 31 days after 
December 31st of each calendar year that is covered in this Agreement. 

 
The City is required by State Statute to file an annual report with the State of Washington Joint Legislative Audit 
and Review Committee (JLARC) for lodging tax activity which will detail information received from the Contractor, 
and other recipient organizations.  The City must have the information from Exhibit “B” in order to file the report 
with JLARC. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 367



2020-2022 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Multi-Year Grant Contract  
Page 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT "B" – For Multi‐Year Contracts 

Post Event/Activity Information Report for Lodging Tax Contractors 
Report is due immediately and no later than 31 days after the end of the calendar year  

Send to: City of Oak Harbor, ATTN Finance Department, 865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277, or e‐mail to 
psoule@oakharbor.org and/or jdelacruz@oakharbor.org 

 
1. Organization Name and Event/Tourism Facility Name: 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. Total Oak Harbor lodging tax funds used for Event or Facility  $      

3. Total Cost of Event or Facility        $      

4. Please provide the actual numbers for the following questions, including the methodology used: 

QUESTION  ANSWER 

1. Overall Attendance at your event?   

Methodology used:   

2. Total people who traveled more than 50 miles for your event?   

Methodology used:   

3. Of those who traveled more than 50 miles, the number of people who 

traveled from another state or country? 

 

Methodology used:   

4. Of the people who traveled more than 50 miles, the number of people    who 

stayed overnight in the City of Oak Harbor or Oak Harbor area? 

 

Methodology used:   

5. Of the people staying overnight – the number of people who stayed in PAID 

accommodations (hotel/motel/bed‐breakfast) in the City of Oak Harbor or 

the Oak Harbor area? 

 

Methodology used:   

6. Of the people staying overnight – the number of people who stayed in 

UNPAID accommodations (friends or family) in the City of Oak Harbor or 

the Oak Harbor area? 

 

Methodology used:   

7. Number of PAID lodging room nights resulting from your event? (E.g. – 20 

paid rooms on Friday & 30 paid rooms on Saturday = 50 paid rooms.) 

 

Methodology used:   

 
 Submitted by:                         Date:      ___ 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 368



2020-2022 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Multi-Year Grant Contract 
Page 13 of 13 
 
 

Exhibit “C” – For Multi‐Year Contracts 
Invoice Request for Payment 

 
 
 
BILLING DATE: ____________________ 
 
INVOICE AMOUNT: $_______________ 
 
CONTRACTOR NAME: ________________________________________________ 
 
ADDRESS: __________________________________________________________ 
 
EIN/TIN: _________________________ (For 1099 reporting purposes) 
 
 
SUBSCRIBED this ______day of _______________, 20____. 
 
Signed: _______________________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________________ 
 
Type of Services Rendered: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Invoice Requirements: 
Per Section IV.1 (b), the Contractor, shall submit an invoice and signed Exhibit C, requesting a monthly payment not 
to exceed 1/12 of the total annual award. The invoice will contain a description of the type of services provided by 
the Contractor.  

 
Per Section IV.3 of the signed contract agreement, Contractor records and proof of payment must be retained and 
are subject to audit by the City. Failure to provide reasonable proof of payment documentation upon request by 
the City will result in the repayment of LTAC grant funding back to the City 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 369



2020 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Single-Year Grant Contract 
Page 1 of 13 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR AND 
[INSERT RECIPIENT NAME] 

FOR CONTRACTED SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between the City of Oak  
Harbor, a Washington State municipal corporation (“City”), and [INSERT RECIPIENT NAME], 
a Washington [INSERT BUSINESS ENTITY] ("Contractor").  

WHEREAS, the City collects a 2% tax on the charge for furnishing lodging by a hotel, rooming 
house, tourist court, motel or trailer camp, and  

WHEREAS, the use of these tax revenues is restricted by RCW 67.28.180 to the certain explicit 
uses, including the promotion of local tourism, and the operation of tourism-related facilities; 
and  

WHEREAS, The City, after the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee duly advertised, reviewed 
and recommended lodging tax funded activities, wishes to have certain services performed 
hereinafter set forth requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities; and 

WHEREAS, The Contractor represents that it is qualified and possesses sufficient skills and the 
necessary capabilities, including technical and professional expertise where required, to perform 
the services set forth in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performances 
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the City with Contracted Services regarding the use 
of 2% tax revenues for the promotion of local tourism and the operation of tourism-related 
facilities as recommended by the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee and confirmed by the 
City Council as described in Article II. The general terms and conditions of the relationship 
between the City and the Contractor are specified in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Scope of Services is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this 
reference (“Scope of Services”).  All services and materials necessary to accomplish the tasks 
outlined in the Scope of Services shall be provided by the Contractor unless noted otherwise in 
the Scope of Services or this Agreement.  All such services shall be provided in accordance with 
the standards of the Contractor’s profession. 

Attachment #6* Highlighted text below are differences between Multi Year Contract

Blank Single-Year Contract

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 370



2020 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Single-Year Grant Contract 
Page 2 of 13 
 

 
ARTICLE III.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONTRACTOR 

 
III.1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE.  The Contractor shall accept minor changes, 

amendments, or revision in the detail of the Scope of Services as may be required by the 
City when such changes will not have any impact on the service costs or proposed 
delivery schedule.  Extra work, if any, involving substantial changes and/or changes in 
cost or schedules will be addressed as follows: 

 
 Extra Work.  The City may desire to have the Contractor perform work or render 

services in connection with each project in addition to or other than work provided for by 
the expressed intent of the Scope of Services in the scope of services.  Such work will be 
considered as extra work and will be specified in a written supplement to the scope of 
services, to be signed by both parties, which will set forth the nature and the scope 
thereof.  All proposals for extra work or services shall be prepared by the Contractor at 
no cost to the City.  Work under a supplemental agreement shall not proceed until 
executed in writing by the parties. 

 
III.2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS.  The work product and all documents 

produced under this Agreement shall be furnished by the Contractor to the City, and upon 
completion of the work shall become the property of the City, except that the Contractor 
may retain one copy of the work product and documents for its records.  The Contractor 
will be responsible for the accuracy of the work, even though the work has been accepted 
by the City. 

 
 In the event that the Contractor shall default on this Agreement or in the event that this 

Agreement shall be terminated prior to its completion as herein provided, all work 
product of the Contractor, along with a summary of work as of the date of default or 
termination, shall become the property of the City.  Upon request, the Contractor shall 
tender the work product and summary to the City.  Tender of said work product shall be a 
prerequisite to final payment under this Agreement.  The summary of work done shall be 
prepared at no additional cost to the City. 

 
 The Contractor will not be held liable for reuse of documents produced under this 

Agreement or modifications thereof for any purpose other than those authorized under 
this Agreement without the written authorization of Contractor. 

 
III.3 TERM.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2020 and shall 

terminate at 11:59PM, on December 31, 2020.   
 
III.4 NONASSIGNABLE.  The services to be provided by the Contractor shall not be 

assigned or subcontracted without the express written consent of the City. 
 
III.5 EMPLOYMENT.  Any and all employees of the Contractor, while engaged in the 

performance of any work or services required by the Contractor under this Agreement, 
shall be considered employees of the Contractor only and not of the City, and any and all 
claims that may or might arise under the Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any  

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 371



2020 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Single-Year Grant Contract 
Page 3 of 13 
 

 said employees while so engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a 
consequence of any negligent act or omission on the part of the Contractor or its 
employees while so engaged in any of the work or services provided herein shall be the 
sole obligation of the Contractor. 

 
III.6 INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS.  The Contractor shall defend, indemnify 

and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and 
all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or 
resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Contractor in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 

 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to 
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to 
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of 
the Contractor and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the 
Contractor's liability, including the duty and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the 
extent of the Contractor's negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood 
that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Contractor's waiver of immunity 
under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. 
This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  The provisions of this section 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
III.7 INSURANCE.   
 

a. Insurance Term.  The Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of 
the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives or employees. 

 
b. No Limitation.  The Contractor's maintenance of insurance as required by the 

agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Contractor to the 
coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City's recourse to any 
remedy available at law or in equity. 

 
c. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  The Contractor shall obtain insurance of the 

types and coverage described below: 
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and 
leased vehicles.  Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability 
coverage. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad as ISO 

occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, stop-gap independent contractors and personal injury and 
advertising injury.  The City shall be named as an additional insured under  

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 372



2020 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Single-Year Grant Contract 
Page 4 of 13 
 

            the Contractor's Commercial General Liability insurance policy with 
respect to the work performed for the City using an additional insured 
endorsement at least as broad as ISO CG 20 26. 

 
3. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance 

laws of the State of Washington. 
 
4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Contractor's profession. 

 
d. Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  The Contractor shall maintain the following 

insurance limits: 
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for 
bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no 

less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 
 
3. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with the limits no less 

than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 
 

e. Other Insurance Provision.  The Contractor's Automobile Liability and 
Commercial General Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 
contain that they shall be primary insurance as respect to the City.  Any insurance, 
self-insurance, or self-insured pool coverage maintained by the City shall be 
excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
f. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 

A.M. Best rating of not less than A: VII. 
 
g. Verification of Coverage.  The Contractor shall furnish the City with original 

certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements including, but not 
necessarily limited to, the additional insured endorsement evidencing the 
insurance requirements of the Contractor before commencement of the work. 

 
h.   Notice of Cancellation.  The Contractor shall provide the City with written notice 

of any policy cancellation within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 
 
i. Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Failure on the part of the Contractor to maintain 

the insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of contract, upon 
which the City may, after giving five business days' notice to the Contractor to 
correct the breach, immediately terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure 
or renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, 
with any sums so expended to be repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole 
discretion of the City, offset against funds due the Contractor from the City. 

 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 373



2020 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Single-Year Grant Contract 
Page 5 of 13 
 

j. Public Entity Full Availability of Contractor Limits.  If the Contractor 
maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the City shall 
be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or 
Umbrella liability maintained by the Contractor, irrespective of whether such 
limits maintained by the Contractor are greater than those required by this 
contract or whether any certificate of insurance furnished to the City evidences 
limits of liability lower than those maintained by the Contractor. 

 
III.8 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL 

OPPORTUNITY LEGISLATION.  The Contractor agrees to comply with equal 
opportunity employment and not to discriminate against client, employee, or applicant for 
employment or for services because of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, marital 
status, sex, sexual orientation, age or handicap except for a bona fide occupational 
qualification with regard, but not limited to, the following:  employment upgrading; 
demotion or transfer; recruitment or any recruitment advertising; layoff or terminations; 
rates of pay or other forms of compensation; selection for training, rendition of services.  
The Contractor further agrees to maintain (as appropriate) notices, posted in conspicuous 
places, setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.  The Contractor 
understands and agrees that if it violates this nondiscrimination provision, this Agreement 
may be terminated by the City, and further that the Contractor will be barred from 
performing any services for the City now or in the future, unless a showing is made 
satisfactory to the City that discriminatory practices have been terminated and that 
recurrence of such action is unlikely. 

 
III.9 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES.  During the performance of this Agreement, 

the Contractor agrees to comply with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair employment 
practices. 

 
III.10 LEGAL RELATIONS.  The Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local 

laws and ordinances applicable to work to be done under this Agreement.  The Contractor 
represents that the firm and all employees assigned to work on any City project are in full 
compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing activities to be 
performed and that all personnel to be assigned to the work required under this 
Agreement are fully qualified and properly licensed to perform the work to which they 
will be assigned.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with 
the laws of Washington.  Venue for any litigation commenced relating to this Agreement 
shall be in Island County Superior Court. 

 
III.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

 
a. The Contractor and the City understand and expressly agree that the Contractor is 

an independent contractor in the performance of each and every part of this 
Agreement.  The Contractor expressly represents, warrants and agrees that his 
status as an independent contractor in the performance of the work and services 
required under this Agreement is consistent with and meets the six-part 
independent contractor test set forth in RCW 51.08.195 or as hereafter amended.   

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 374



2020 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Single-Year Grant Contract 
Page 6 of 13 
 

The Contractor, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for 
carrying out and accomplishing the services required under this Agreement.  The 
Contractor shall make no claim of City employment nor shall claim any related 
employment benefits, social security, and/or retirement benefits. 

 
b. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for paying all taxes, deductions, and 

assessments, including but not limited to federal income tax, FICA, social security 
tax, assessments for unemployment and industrial injury, and other deductions 
from income which may be required by law or assessed against either party as a 
result of this Agreement.  In the event the City is assessed a tax or assessment as a 
result of this Agreement, the Contractor shall pay the same before it becomes due. 

 
c. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent 

contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Contractor performs 
hereunder. 

 
d. Prior to commencement of work, the Contractor shall obtain a business license 

from the City. 
 

III.12 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  The Contractor agrees to and shall notify the City of 
any potential conflicts of interest in Contractor’s client base and shall obtain written 
permission from the City prior to providing services to third parties where a conflict or 
potential conflict of interest is apparent. If the City determines in its sole discretion that a 
conflict is irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement. 

 
III.13 CITY CONFIDENCES.  The Contractor agrees to and will keep in strict confidence, 

and will not disclose, communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior 
written consent from the City in each instance, the confidences of the City or any 
information regarding the City or services provided to the City. 

 
III.14 SUBCONTRACTORS. 

 
a. The Contractor shall be responsible for all work performed by subcontractors 

pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
b. The Contractor must verify that any subcontractors they directly hire meet the 

responsibility criteria for the project. Verification that a subcontractor has proper 
license and bonding, if required by statute, must be included in the verification 
process. The Contractor will use the following Subcontractors or as set forth in 
Exhibit ____: 

            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
 
b. The Contractor may not substitute or add subcontractors without the written 

approval of the City. 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 375



2020 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Single-Year Grant Contract 
Page 7 of 13 
 

d. All Subcontractors shall have the same insurance coverages and limits as set forth 
in this Agreement and the Contractor shall provide verification of said insurance 
coverage. 

 
ARTICLE IV.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 

 
IV.1 PAYMENTS. 
 

a. The Contractor shall be paid by the City for services rendered under this 
Agreement as described in the Scope of Services and as provided in this section.  
In no event shall the compensation paid to Contractor under this Agreement 
exceed XXXX Dollars ($00.00) without the written agreement of the Contractor 
and the City.  Such payment shall be full compensation for work performed and 
services rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment and incidentals 
necessary to complete the work.  In the event the City elects to expand the scope 
of services from that set forth in Exhibit "A", the City shall pay Contractor a 
mutually agreed amount. 

 
b. The Contractor shall be eligible for payment after the performance of all services 

under this contract on a reimbursable basis.  The Contractor shall submit an 
original written invoice, with necessary and appropriate documentation to receive 
payment.   

 
c. Eligible expenses for reimbursement must be submitted using Exhibit C (page 

13). The Contractor must include an itemization of services provided. Attach to 
Exhibit C the copies of invoices/statements for items and services purchased by 
the Contractor for which reimbursement is being requested for.  
 
OPTIONAL: The submission of documentation for proof of payment, such as 
cancelled checks, copies of checks used to pay for services, receipts, or other 
payment documents that are acceptable to the City is optional; However, records 
of proof of payment must be retained and subject to audit by the City per Section 
IV.3 of this contract. Failure to provide reasonable proof of payment 
documentation upon request by the City will result in the repayment of LTAC 
grant funding back to the City. 

 
Address Reimbursement Request to: 

 
City of Oak Harbor 

     ATTN: Finance Department 
     865 SE Barrington Drive 
     Oak Harbor, WA  98277 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 376



2020 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Single-Year Grant Contract 
Page 8 of 13 
 

d. Invoices for reimbursement must be for items or services directly related to 
marketing efforts or operations for your 2020 event and acquired by December 
31, 2020. Receipts dated after that date will not be paid. The submission of those 
reimbursement requests will be accepted until January 31, 2021.   
 

e. All payments shall be subject to adjustment for any amounts, upon audit or 
otherwise, determined to have been improperly invoiced. 

 
f. The City will pay timely submitted and approved invoices received before the 

20th of each month within thirty (30) days of receipt. 
 
IV.2 CITY APPROVAL.  Notwithstanding the Contractor's status as an independent 

contractor, results of the work performed pursuant to this Agreement must meet the 
approval of the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been 
completed in compliance with the Scope of Services and City requirements. 

 
IV.3 MAINTENANCE/INSPECTION OF RECORDS.  The Contractor shall maintain all 

books, records, documents and other evidence pertaining to the costs and expenses 
allowable under this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practices.  All such books and records required to be maintained by this Agreement shall 
be subject to inspection and audit by representatives of the City and/or the Washington 
State Auditor at all reasonable times, and the Contractor shall afford the proper facilities 
for such inspection and audit.  Representatives of the City and/or the Washington State 
Auditor may copy such books, accounts and records where necessary to conduct or 
document an audit.  The Contractor shall preserve and make available all such books of 
account and records for a period of six (6) years after final payment under this 
Agreement.  In the event that any audit or inspection identifies any discrepancy in such 
financial records, the Contractor shall provide the City with appropriate clarification 
and/or financial adjustments within thirty (30) calendar days of notification of the 
discrepancy. Failure to provide reasonable documentation upon request by the City 
and/or the State Auditor’s Office will result in the repayment of LTAC grant funding 
back to the City. 

 
ARTICLE V.  GENERAL 

 
V.1 NOTICES.  Notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: 
  

 City of Oak Harbor  
 ATTN: Finance Department 
 865 SE Barrington Drive 
 Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 

  
 
 
 
  

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 377



2020 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Single-Year Grant Contract 
Page 9 of 13 
 

Notices to the Contractor shall be sent to the following address: 
 

[Business Name] 
[Contact Name & Title] 
[Mailing Address] 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

  
 Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) days after deposit of written 

notice in the U.S. mail with proper postage and address. 
 
V.2 TERMINATION.  The right is reserved by the City to terminate this Agreement in 

whole or in part at any time upon ten (10) calendar days' written notice to the Contractor. 
 
 If this Agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City for its convenience, the City 

shall pay the Contractor for satisfactory services performed through the date of 
termination in accordance with payment provisions of Section IV.1. 

 
V.3 DISPUTES.  The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation and 

compromise, any unresolved dispute arising under this Agreement may be resolved by a 
mutually agreed-upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 

 
V.4 EXTENT OF AGREEMENT/MODIFICATION.  This Agreement, together with 

attachments or addenda, represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the 
parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either 
written or oral.  This Agreement may be amended, modified or added to only by written 
instrument properly signed by both parties. 

 
V.5 SEVERABILITY 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this 
Agreement to be illegal or invalid, in whole or in part, the validity of the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties’ rights and obligations 
shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid. 

b. If any provision of this Agreement is in direct conflict with any statutory 
provision of the State of Washington, that provision which may conflict shall be 
deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may conflict, and shall be 
deemed modified to conform to such statutory provision. 

V.6 NONWAIVER.  A waiver by either party hereto of a breach by the other party hereto of 
any covenant or condition of this Agreement shall not impair the right of the party not in 
default to avail itself of any subsequent breach thereof.  Leniency, delay or failure of 
either party to insist upon strict performance of any agreement, covenant or condition of 
this Agreement, or to exercise any right herein given in any one or more instances, shall 
not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such agreement, covenant, 
condition or right. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 378



2020 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Single-Year Grant Contract 
Page 10 of 13 
 

V.7 FAIR MEANING.  The terms of this Agreement shall be given their fair meaning and 
shall not be construed in favor of or against either party hereto because of authorship.  
This Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted by both of the parties. 

V.8 GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

V.9 VENUE.  The venue for any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall lie in the 
Superior Court of Washington for Island County, Washington. 

V.10 COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the 
same Agreement. 

V.11  AUTHORITY TO BIND PARTIES AND ENTER INTO AGREEMENT.  The 
undersigned represent that they have full authority to enter into this Agreement and to 
bind the parties for and on behalf of the legal entities set forth below. 

 
 
 
 
DATED this 2nd day of December, 2019. 
 
 
 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR  [INSERT RECIPIENT NAME] 
 
 
By______________________________  By _______________________________ 
Patricia Soule, Finance Director     [Insert Recipient Name & Title] 
        
     
     
Approved as to form: 
 
______________________________ 
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
 
Attest:   
 
      
Carla Brown, City Clerk 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 379



2020 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Single-Year Grant Contract 
Page 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

The City will provide such assistance and guidance as may be required, in the City’s sole discretion, to support the 
objectives set forth in the Scope of Work and will provide funding for the services and activities as set forth below. 
 
The 2019 hotel/motel tax award for the Contractor is [$ AMOUNT] 

Uses of the funds are as follows: 

 

[INSERT AMOUNT & USE OF FUNDS] – Funds to be used for tourism related Marketing, Advertising, and 
Operating Costs. 

 

Post‐Event Reporting 
 
The Contractor shall complete a Post Event/Activity Information Report, attached as Exhibit “B”, for the contract 
year.  The annual report is a requirement established by the 2013 Washington State Legislature. The report shall 
be provided to the CITY immediately after the event, festival or activity, but due no later than January 31, 2021. 

 
The City is required by State Statute to file an annual report with the State of Washington Joint Legislative Audit 
and Review Committee (JLARC) for lodging tax activity which will detail information received from the Contractor, 
and other recipient organizations.  The City must have the information from Exhibit “B” in order to file the report 
with JLARC. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 380



2020 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Single-Year Grant Contract 
Page 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT "B" 

Post Event/Activity Information Report for Lodging Tax Contractors 
Report is due immediately after event but no later than January 31, 2021  

Send to: City of Oak Harbor, ATTN Finance Department, 865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277, or e‐mail to 
psoule@oakharbor.org and/or jdelacruz@oakharbor.org 

 
1. Organization Name and Event/Tourism Facility Name: 

   ________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. Total Oak Harbor lodging tax funds used for Event or Facility  $      

3. Total Cost of Event or Facility        $      

4. Please provide the actual numbers for the following questions, including the methodology used: 

QUESTION  ANSWER 

1. Overall Attendance at your event?   

Methodology used:   

2. Total people who traveled more than 50 miles for your event?   

Methodology used:   

3. Of those who traveled more than 50 miles, the number of people who 

traveled from another state or country? 

 

Methodology used:   

4. Of the people who traveled more than 50 miles, the number of people    who 

stayed overnight in the City of Oak Harbor or Oak Harbor area? 

 

Methodology used:   

5. Of the people staying overnight – the number of people who stayed in PAID 

accommodations (hotel/motel/bed‐breakfast) in the City of Oak Harbor or 

the Oak Harbor area? 

 

Methodology used:   

6. Of the people staying overnight – the number of people who stayed in 

UNPAID accommodations (friends or family) in the City of Oak Harbor or 

the Oak Harbor area? 

 

Methodology used:   

7. Number of PAID lodging room nights resulting from your event? (E.g. – 20 

paid rooms on Friday & 30 paid rooms on Saturday = 50 paid rooms.) 

 

Methodology used:   

 
 Submitted by:                         Date:      ___ 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 381



2020 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Single-Year Grant Contract 
Page 13 of 13 
 
 

Exhibit “C” 
Invoice Request for Payment 

 
 
 
BILLING DATE: ____________________ 
 
INVOICE AMOUNT: $_______________ 
 
CONTRACTOR NAME: ________________________________________________ 
 
ADDRESS: __________________________________________________________ 
 
EIN/TIN: _________________________ (For 1099 reporting purposes) 
 
 
SUBSCRIBED this ______day of _________, 2020. 
 
Signed: _______________________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________________ 
 
Type of Services Rendered: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Invoice Requirements: 
Please provide an itemization of services provided. Attach to Exhibit C the copies of invoices/statements for items 
and services purchased by the Contractor for which reimbursement is being requested to be reimbursed.  

 
OPTIONAL: The  submission of documentation  for proof of payment,  such as  cancelled  checks,  copies of  checks 
used  to  pay  for  services,  receipts,  or  other  payment  documents  that  are  acceptable  to  the  City  is  optional; 
However, records of proof of payment must be retained and subject to audit by the City per Section  IV.3 of the 
signed contract agreement. Failure to provide reasonable proof of payment documentation upon request by the 
City will result in the repayment of LTAC grant funding back to the City. 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 382



Amendment No. 1 to 2019 Professional Services Agreement  
Page 1 of 2 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 2019 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH [Insert Name] 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor has imposed both the "basic" hotel-motel tax of 2% (RCW 
67 .28.180) and the additional lodging tax of 2% (RCW 67 .28.181) upon the sale of, or change 
made for the furnishing of lodging; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor established a Lodging Tax Advisory Committee to review 
applications for the use of Lodging Tax funds pursuant to RCW 67.28.180, which restricts funds 
to be used to promote tourism and tourism-related facilities, and 

WHEREAS, the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee reviewed the Lodging Tax applications 
submitted for the grant year 2020 and made the following recommendations to fund qualified 
applications to the City Council as described in draft Resolution 19-38; and 

WHEREAS, on October 15, 2019, the City of Oak Harbor approved Resolution 19-38 approving 
the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee’s recommendations, and  

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor executed contracts with Contractors and approved amounts 
as described in Resolution 19-38 for annual and multi year grant contracts for (1) year, and 

WHEREAS, the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is a respiratory disease that may results in 
serious illness or death and is easily transmissible from person to person, and  

WHEREAS, on January 31, 2020, the United States Department of Public Health and Human 
Services declared a public emergency for the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) beginning on 
January 27, 2020, and   

WHEREAS, on March 23, 2020, Governor Inslee issued Proclamation 20-25 “Stay Home – Stay 
Healthy,” affirming that a State of Emergency exists in all counties in the State of Washington 
and prohibits all people in Washington State from leaving their homes or participating in social, 
spiritual and recreational gatherings of any kind regardless of the number of participants, and all 
non-essential businesses in Washington State from conducting business, within the limitations 
provided therein, and  

WHEREAS, on April 2, 2020, Governor Inslee extended Proclamation 20-25 through May 4, 
2020, unless otherwise extended, and 

WHEREAS, according to an update from Governor Inslee’s Office on April 18, 2020, Governor 
Inslee suggested it is unlikely the State of Washington will be able to begin reopening efforts by 
May 4, 2020, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor (CITY) and [Insert Name] entered into a annual Grant 
Contract with a term of January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020; and 

Attachment #7* Highlighted text below are key areas of change due to Amendment #1

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 383



Amendment No. 1 to 2019 Professional Services Agreement  
Page 2 of 2 

WHEREAS, due to the novel coronavirus public emergency that currently exists and the 
possibility that Proclamation 20-25 may be extended beyond May 4, 2020 according Governor 
Inslee, the City is extending all annual LTAC grant contracts through December 31, 2021. 

NOW THEREFORE, the following provisions of the 2020 Grant Contract  
with [Insert Name] is hereby amended as follows:  

IV.1 PAYMENTS

(d) Invoices for reimbursement must be for items or services directly related to marking
efforts or operations for you 2020 event and acquired by December 31, 2021.  Receipts
dated after that date will not be paid.  The submission of those reimbursement requests
will be accepted until January 31, 2022.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed the day 
and year first hereinabove written. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR  [Insert] 
________________________  _____________________________ 
Patricia Soule, CPA [Insert] 
Finance Director 

Dated: __________________ Dated: __________________ 

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
Carla Brown, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

___________________________ 
Anna Thompson, Interim City Attorney 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 384



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 9.b.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Annual Review of the Lodging

Tax Advisory Committee
Membership

FROM: Mayor Severns

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review the current City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Membership Roster and
make changes as appropriate.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 385



Councilmember Servatius Motion at the September 15, 2020 Council Meeting:

"I move that we schedule an annual review of our Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC)
membership at our October 6, 2020 Council Meeting."

OHMC 2.66.030 requires that City Council annually review the current Lodging Tax Advisory
Committee Membership and make changes as appropriate.

State law mandates that lodging tax advisory committees consist of seven (7) members, appointed
by the city council. One member shall be an elected official of the city who serves as chair and
three members shall be representatives of businesses required to collect the tax imposed pursuant
to Chapter 67.28 RCW, and three members shall be individuals involved in activities authorized to
be funded by revenue received from the tax imposed pursuant to Chapter 67.28 RCW.

Historically, the Mayor recommends a qualified candidate to serve on the LTAC, and the City
Council confirms the appointment at a Regular City Council Meeting. 

Currently there are 5 active members on the LTAC and 2 vacancies: Collector 1 and Collector 2. 
The Mayor recommends appointing Karli Garner-Smith with Candlewood Suites to the Collector
1 position, beginning 10/06/2020 and ending 10/01/2023.

Regarding the Collector 2 position, the Mayor is actively recruiting a collector representative to fill
this vacancy.  If updates become available, staff will provide a report at the October 6th Council
Meeting.  Attached is the current roster, along with more details regarding Mayoral
recommendations. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 67.28; OHMC 2.66.020 - .030

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
September 15, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting

ATTACHMENTS
1. Current LTAC Roster

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 386

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1601326068x_at.pdf


   

 

 
 

 

Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC) 

Mayor’s Recommendations for changes to MEMBERSHIP ROSTER 

Presented to City Council October 6, 2020 
 

 
Joel Servatius, Chair 
Councilmember 
Original Appointment: 01/05/2016 
Term Expiration: 01/02/2022 
No Recommendation 

 
Larry Munns 
Oak Harbor Yacht Club & Oak 
Harbor Youth Sailing  
Recipient 1 
Original Appointment:  09/05/2017 
Term Expiration: 09/01/2020 
Recommendation: Re-appoint Larry 
Munns for a new term beginning 
10/06/2020 and ending 10/01/2023 

 
Jason McFadyen 
Chamber of Commerce Board Member 
Recipient 2 
Original Appointment: 10/06/2015 
Term Expiration: 01/01/2021 
No Recommendation 
 
Margaret Livermore 
OH Music Festival & OH Main Street  
Recipient 3 

  Original Appointment: 10/06/2015  
Term Expiration: 01/01/2022 
Recommendation: Continue 
Margaret Livermore’s term  
 

Collector 1 
Original Appointment: 10/17/2017  
Term Expiration: 12/31/2019 
Recommendation: Appoint Karli Garner-
Smith with Candlewood Suites to new term 
beginning 10/06/2020 and ending 
10/01/2023 
 
Collector 2 
Original Appointment:  04/04/2017 
Term Expiration: 01/01/2021 
Update: Staff is working on recruiting a 
representative from a collector to fill 
this vacancy 

 
Amanda Zimmerman 
Best Western Hotel 
Collector 3 
Original Appointment: 11/01/2016 
Term Expiration: 01/01/2022 
Recommendation: Continue Amanda 
Zimmerman’s term  
 

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 387



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 11.c.
Date: October 6, 2020
Subject: Property Acquisition - Possible

Council Action 

FROM: Legal Department

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Blaine Oborn, City Administrator
Vacant, Finance Director
Grant Weed, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None at this time.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
After Council discusses potential property acquisition in Executive Session pursuant to RCW
42.30.110(b), City Council may take action upon re-opening the Regular City Council Meeting
after the Executive Session concludes.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.30.110(b) "To consider the selection of a site or the acquisition of real estate by lease or
purchase when public knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of
increased price;...."

RCW 35A.11.020 "Acquisition, sale, ownership, improvement, maintenance, protection,
restoration, regulation, use, leasing, disposition, vacation, abandonment or beautification of public
ways, real property of all kinds, …….”

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

October 6, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet Page 388


	10-06-20 City Council Meeting
	4. a. - Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers
	 Accounts Payable Voucher List 22e
	 Accounts Payable Voucher List 09b
	 Accounts Payable Voucher LIst 09ub

	4. b. - Minutes of Regular Council Meeting of September 15, 2020 and Council Workshop of September 23, 2020
	 Minutes of September 15, 2020 Regular Council Meeting
	 Minutes of September 23, 2020  Council Workshop

	4.. c. - Bid Award-Odor Control Unit
	 Continental Carbon Group, Inc. bid
	 Workshop PowerPoint Presentation

	4. d. - Historic Preservation Commission Appointment of Lorraine Johnson-Coleman
	 Biography form: Lorraine Johnson-Coleman

	4.. e. - Interlocal Agreement-NPP GOV
	 NPPGov Agreement

	4. f. - Interlocal Agreement-TIPS purchasing cooperative
	 TIPS Agreement

	4. g. - Interlocal Agreement with Oak Harbor School District - School Resource Officer for 2020-2021 School Year
	 OHSD SRO Interlocal for 2020-2021 School Year
	 OHSD SRO Interlocal for 2019-2022 School Years

	4. h. - Purchase Authorization-Automated Solid Waste Replacements
	 Criteria Sheet #45
	 Criteria Sheet #46
	 Agreement for Sourcewell Bid-Recycle Trucks
	 Workshop PowerPoint

	4. i. - Purchase Authorization-Camera Van Equipment
	 Sole Source Justification
	 Sole Source Resolution
	 Exhibit "A"
	 Exhibit "B"

	4. j. - Purchase Authorization-Dump Truck Replacement
	 Criteria Scoring Sheet #22
	 Heavy Truck or Equipment Replacement Scoring Guidelines
	 Freightliner proposal
	 Northend Truck proposal
	 Workshop PowerPoint

	4.. k. - Purchase Authorization-Hybrid Patrol SUV 
	 Vehicle Quote Number 2020-9-263
	 Workshop Presentation

	4.. l. - Resolution 20-24: Island County Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan
	 Resolution 20-24 Island County Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan

	4. m. - Waterfront Pedestrian Improvements - Final Contract Voucher Certificate
	 Final Contract Voucher Certificate

	7. a. - Resolution 20-25: 2021-2022 Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) Contingent for Non-Represented Employees
	 Resolution 20-25

	8. a. - Finance Director Employment Contract
	 Finance Director Contract with David Goldman
	 David Goldman Resume

	8. b. - Gray and Osborne, Inc. - Professional Service Agreement - Water System Plan Limited Update
	 Professional Services Agreement - Gray & Osborne
	 Cost Proposal - Exhibit B
	 Scope of Services - Exhibit A

	8. c. - Interlocal Agreement with South Correctional Entity (SCORE) - Inmate Housing
	 SCORE Interlocal Housing Agreement Oct. 2020
	 SCORE Jail Services

	8. d. - Interagency Agreement with the Washington State Department of Commerce, CARES Act Funds for Local Governments, Amendment 1: Date Extension and Additional Funds
	 Interagency Agreement through the Coronavirus Relief Fund for Local Governments
	 Interagency Agreement through the Coronavirus Relief Fund for Local Governments Amendment

	8. e. - Purchase Authorization-Aries Modular Office Space with CARES Act Funds
	 Site Plan
	 Modular Pictures

	8. f. - Agreement with Island County, for Coronavirus Relief Fund Grant (CARES), Amendment 1: Date Extension
	 Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with Island County for the Coronavirus Relief Fund for Local Governments Grant with Exhibits
	 1st Amendment to the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement Coronavirus Relief Fund Grant between City of Oak Harbor and Island County

	9. a. - 2021 LTAC 2% Grant Program Referral to Council
	 LTAC Estimated Cash Available for 2021
	 LTAC Revenue and Expenditure Trend
	 LTAC Tracking for 2020 Grants
	 LTAC Amendment #1 Carryforward to 2021
	 LTAC Multi-year Contract (blank)
	 LTAC Single-year Contract (blank)
	 LTAC Contract Amendment #1 (blank)

	9. b. - Annual Review of the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Membership
	 Current LTAC Roster

	11. c. - Property Acquisition - Possible Council Action 

		2020-03-26T12:58:02-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




